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ORDER OF REFERENCE

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate,
Tuesday, December 27, 1988:

“Pursuant to Order, the Honourable Senator Murray,
P.C., moved, seconded by the Honourable Senator Beau-
doin, that the Bill C-2, An Act to implement the Feee
Trade Agreement between Canada and the United States
of America, be read the second time.

After debate, and—

The question being put on the motion,

The Senate divided. (... ) The motion was resolved in
the affirmative.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Murray, P.C., moved,
seconded by the Honourable Senator Poitras, that the Bill
be referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Foreign
Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

ORDRE DE RENVOI

Extrait des Procés-verbaux du Sénat du mardi 27 décembre

1988:

«Suivant 'ordre adopté, I’honorable sénateur Murray,
c.p., propose, appuyé par ’honorable sénateur Beaudoin,
que le Projet de loi C-2, Loi de mise en ceuvre de I’Accord
de libre-échange entre le Canada et les Etats-Unis d’Amé-
rique, soit lu la deuxiéme fois.

Apres débat,

La motion est mise aux voix.

L’opinion n’étant pas unanime, le Sénat se divise. (...)
La motion est adoptée.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois, a la majo-
rité.

L’honorable sénateur Murray, c.p., propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Poitras, que le projet de loi soit

déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires étran-
geres.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

Le greffier du Sénat
Charles Lussier
Clerk of the Senate
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS PROCES-VERBAUX

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 27, 1988 LE MARDI 27 DECEMBRE 1988

(1) (0))

[Text] [Traduction)

In accordance with Rule 69, the Standing Senate Committee
on Foreign Affairs met at 6:30 p.m. this day for the purpose
of organization.

Members of the Committee present: The Honourable Sena-
tors Bazin, Beaudoin, Bosa, Doyle, Frith, Fairbairn, Hastings,
Kelly, MacEachen, Nurgitz, Stewart (Antigonish-Guysbor-
ough) and Stollery. (12)

Other Senators present: The Honourable Senators Barootes
and Hays. :

In attendance: From the Parliamentary Centre for Foreign
Affairs and Foreign Trade: Mr. Peter Dobell, Director, and
Mrs. Carol Seaborn. Mr. Michel Dupuy, Assistant to the
Leader of the Opposition in the Senate.

Also in attendance: The Official Reporters of the Senate.

The Clerk of the Committee presided over the election of
the Chairman.

The Honourable Senator Bosa moved that the Honourable
Senator Stewart (Antigonish-Guysborough) do take the Chair
of this Committee as Chairman.

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.

The Chairman took the chair.

The Honourable Senator Beaudoin moved that the Honour-
able Senator Bazin be Deputy Chairman of the Committee.

The question being put on the motion it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.

The Honourable Senator Stollery moved that the Commit-
tee print 1,000 copies of its Proceedings.

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.

The Honourable Senator Kelly moved that the Chairman be
authorized to hold meetings to receive and authorize the print-
ing of evidence when a quorum is not present.

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.

The Honourable Senator Fairbairn moved that the Commit-
tee retain the services of the Parliamentary Centre for Foreign
Affairs and Foreign Trade as advisor to the Committee; and

That the Chairman, on behalf of the Committee, direct the
research staff in the preparation of studies, analyses and sum-
maries.

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.

The Honourable Senator Fairbairn moved that, pursuant to
Rule 84, the Chairman be authorized to report expenses
incurred by the Committee during the previous session.

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.

Conformément a I'article 69 du Réglement, le Comité séna-
torial permanent des affaires étrangéres tient aujourd’hui a
18 h 30 sa séance d’organisation.

Membres du Comité présents: Les honorables sénateurs
Bazin, Beaudoin, Bosa, Doyle, Frith, Fairbairn, Hastings,
Kelly, MacEachen, Nurgitz, Stewart (Antigonish-Guysbo-
rough) et Stollery. (12) -

Autres sénateurs présents: Les honorables sénateurs Barootes
et Hays.

Egalement présents: Du Centre parlementaire pour les
affaires étrangeres et le commerce extérieur: M. Peter Dobell,
directeur, et M™ Carol Seaborn. M. Michel Dupuy, adjoint au
leader de ’opposition au Sénat.

Aussi présents: Les sténographes officiels du Sénat.

Le greffier du Comité préside a I’élection du président.

L’honorable sénateur Bosa propose que I’honorable sénateur
Stewart (Antigonish-Guysborough) soit élu président du
Comité.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

Le président élu occupe le fauteuil.

L’honorable sénateur Beaudoin propose que I’honorable
sénateur Bazin soit élu vice-président du Comité.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Stollery propose que le Comité fasse
imprimer 1 000 exemplaires du compte rendu de ses délibéra-
tions.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Kelly propose, qu’en I’absence de quo-
rum, le président soit autorisé a tenir des séances et a recueillir
et faire imprimer des témoignages.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénatrice Fairbairn propose que le Comité
retienne les services du Centre parlementaire pour les affaires
étrangéres et le commerce extérieur a titre de conseiller aupres
du Comité; et

Que le président, au nom du Comité, oriente le personnel de
recherche pour la préparation d’études, d’analyses et de som-
maires.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénatrice Fairbairn propose que conformément
a larticle 84, le président soit autorisé 4 présenter un rapport
sur les dépenses du Comité pendant la derniére session.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.
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The Honourable Senator Hastings moved that the Chair-
man of the Committee, or in his absence the Deputy Chair-
man, be authorized to certify accounts for payment on behalf
of the Committee.

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.

The Honourable Senator Kelly moved that, pursuant to the
Order of Reference from the Senate dated 27th December
1988, the following budget application for the fiscal year end-
ing 31st March 1989 be concurred in; and

That the Chairman submit same to the Standing Senate
Committee on Internal Economy, Budgets and Administration
for approval:

Professional and Other Services

(including salaries) $35,654.00
Transportation and Communications 500.00
All Other Expenditures 1,250.00
TOTAL $37,404.00

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.

The Honourable Senator Frith moved that, pursuant to Rule
83, reasonable travelling and living expenses be paid to wit-
nesses invited or summoned to appear before the Committee
and that for such payment of expenses, a maximum of three
(3) representatives per organization be established.

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.

The Committee in compliance with the Order of Reference
dated December 27, 1988 proceeded to consider Bill C-2, An
Act to implement the Free Trade Agreement between Canada
and the United States of America.

Mr. Peter Dobell having been given preliminary guidance as
to the areas on which the Committee was likely to want to con-
centrate and as to witnesses whom the members of the Com-
mittee thought would be helpful, briefed the Committee as to a
proposed schedule and program of witnesses.

Questions were asked and comments made.

The Honourable Senator Hastings moved that the research
document prepared by Committee personnel entilted “Energy
and the Free Trade Agreement: An Interpretation of the
Energy Chapter—Chapter Nine” be published as an appendix
to the proceedings of the Committee (see Appendix “FA-1").

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.

At 7:39 p.m., the Committee adjourned to 8:15 p.m. this
day.

(@)

The Standing Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs met at
8:31 p.m., this day, the Chairman, the Honourable Senator
Stewart (Antigonish-Guysborough) presiding.

Members of the Committee present: The Honourable Sena-
tors Bazin, Beaudoin, Bosa, Doyle, Frith, Fairbairn, Hastings,
Kelly, MacEachen, Nurgitz, Stewart (Antigonish-Guysbor-
ough) and Stollery. (12)

L’honorable sénateur Hastings propose que le président du
Comité, ou en son absence, le vice-président, soit autorisé a
attester les comptes a payer au nom du Comité.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Kelly propose que conformément a
'ordre de renvoi adopté par le Sénat le 27 décembre 1988, le
budget suivant, pour I’exercice prenant fin le 31 mars 1989,
soit approuvé: et

Que le président soumette, pour approbation, le budget au
Comité sénatorial permanent de la régie interne, des budgets
et de I’administration:

Services professionnels et autres

(traitements inclus) $35 654.00
Transports et communications 500.00
Autres dépenses 1 250.00
TOTAL $37 404.00

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Frith propose, que conformément
I'article 83, une indemnité raisonnable de déplacement et de
séjour soit versée aux témoins invités ou sommés 4 comparaitre
devant le Comité, mais que I'indemnité soit versée au plus a
trois (3) représentants par organisme.

La question, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

Conformément a son ordre de renvoi daté du 27 décembre
1988, le Comité examine le projet de loi C-2, Loi de mise en
ceuvre de I’Accord de libre-échange entre le Canada et les
Etats-Unis d’Amérique.

M. Peter Dobell, ayant été mis au courant des questions que
le Comité souhaitait aborder ainsi que des témoins qui lui
seraient utiles d’entendre, propose au Comité un ordre du jour
ainsi qu’une liste des témoins.

Suit une période de questions et de commentaires.

L’honorable sénateur Hastings propose que le document de
recherche rédigé par le personnel du Comité et intitulé:
«L’énergie et I'’Accord de libre-échange: Interprétation du cha-
pitre sur I'énergie (chapitre neuf)» figure en annexe au compte
rendu de la séance (voir annexe AE-1).

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

A 19 h 39, le Comité suspend ses travaux jusqu’a 20 h 15.

(2)
Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires étrangéres se

réunit aujourd’hui a 20 h 31, sous la présidence de I’honorable
sénateur Stewart (Antigonish-Guysborough) (président).

Membres du Comité présents: Les honorables sénateurs
Bazin, Beaudoin, Bosa, Doyle, Frith, Fairbairn, Hastings,
Kelly, MacEachen, Nurgitz, Stewart (Antigonish-Guysbo-
rough) et Stollery. (12)



1:6

Foreign Affairs

27-12-1988

Other Senators present: The Honourable Senators Barootes,
Cottreau, Graham, Hays, Lang, McElman, Molgat and van
Roggen. (8)

In attendance: From the Parliamentary Centre for Foreign
Affairs and Foreign Trade: Mr. Peter Dobell, Director, and
Mrs. Carol Seaborn. Mr. Michel Dupuy, Assistant to the
Leader of the Opposition in the Senate.

Also in attendance: The official reporters of the Senate.

Witnesses:

From the Trade Negotiations Office:

Mr. Alan Nymark, Acting Head and Assistant Chief
Negotiator.

From the Department of Justice:

Mr. Konrad von Finckenstein, Q.C., Assistant Deputy Min-
ister Trade Law;

From the Department of Energy, Mines and Resources
Canada:
Mr. J. David Oulton, Director General, Oil & Emergency
Planning, Energy Commodities Sector.

The Committee in compliance with the Order of Reference
dated December 27, 1988 resumed consideration of Bill C-2,
An Act to implement the Free Trade Agreement between
Canada and the United States of America.

Messrs Nymark and von Finckenstein each made a state-
ment and together with Mr. Oulton, answered questions.

At 9:43 p.m., the Committee adjourned to 9:00 a.m.,
Wednesday, December 28, 1988. '

ATTEST:

Autres sénateurs présents: Les honorables sénateurs Baroo-
tes, Cottreau, Graham, Hays, Lang, McElman, Molgat et van
Roggen. (8)

Egalement présents: Du Centre parlementaire pour les
affaires étrangeres et le commerce extérieur: M. Peter Dobell,
directeur, et M™ Carol Seaborn; M. Michel Dupuy, adjoint au
leader de ’opposition au Sénat.

Aussi présents: Les sténographes officiels du Sénat.
Témoins:

Du Bureau des négociations commerciales:

M. Alan Nymark, chef intérimaire et négociateur en chef
adjoint.

Du ministére de la Justice:

M. Konrad von Finckenstein, c.r., sous-ministre adjoint,
Droit des échanges commerciaux.

Du ministere de I’Energie, des Mines et des Ressources:

M. J. David Oulton, directeur général, Pétrole et planifica-
tion d’urgence, Secteur des ressources énergétiques.

Conformément & son ordre de renvoi daté du 27 décembre
1988, le Comité poursuit I’étude du projet de loi C-2, Loi de
mise en ceuvre de I’Accord de libre-échange entre le Canada et
les Etats-Unis d’Amérique.

MM.: Nymark et von Finckenstein font chacun un exposé et,
avec M. Oulton, répondent aux questions.

At 21 h 43, le Comité suspend ses travaux jusqu’a 9 heures
le mercredi 28 décembre 1988.

ATTESTE:

Le greffier du Comité
Patrick J. Savoie

Clerk of the Committee
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EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Tuesday, December 27, 1988

[Text]

The Standing Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs met
this day at 6.35 p.m., to organize the activities of the commit-
tee.

Mr. Patrick Savoie (The Clerk of the Committee): Honour-
able senators, I see a quorum. The first item of business on the
agenda is to elect a chairman for this committee. I am ready to
receive nominations.

Senator Bosa: I nominate Senator Stewart (Antigonish-
Guysborough) as chairman of this committee.

The Clerk of the Committee: Are there any further nomina-
tions? There being no other nominations, I declare the nomi-
nations closed.

It is moved by Senator Bosa that Senator John B. Steyvart
(Antigonish- Guysborough) do take the chair of the committee
as the chairman. Is it your pleasure, honourable senators, to
adopt the motion?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Clerk of the Committee: I declare the motion carried
and I would ask Senator Stewart (Antigonish-Guysborough)
to take the chair.

Senator John B. Stewart
(Chairman) in the Chair.

The Chairman: Thank you, honourable senators. On this day
of long speeches, I will break the tradition and simply say that
I appreciate your confidence and that I will try to perform as
chairman of your committee as efficiently as I can.

(Antigonish-Guysborough)

The next item on the agenda is the election of a deputy
chairman.

Le sénateur Beaudoin: Honorables sénateurs, je propose que
I'honorable sénateur Jean Bazin soit élu vice-président du
comité.

The Chairman: It is moved by Senator Beaudoin that Sena-
tor Bazin be nominated as deputy chairman of the committee.
Are there any further nominations? In the absence of other
nominations, is it your pleasure, honourable senators, to adopt
the motion?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: The motion is carried and Senator Bazin is
our deputy chairman.

The next item on the agenda is the appointment of a sub-
committee on agenda and procedure, commonly known as a
steering committee. My understanding, honourable senators, is
that if we decide to do so, we can put this matter aside for this
week or, if honourable senators would prefer, we can leave this
item until later in this meeting until we have had an opportu-
nity to discuss the tentative program which I believe has. bee_n
arranged. I am just wondering whether there is any point in
having a steering committee at all when so much of the work
of that committee has been done as a result of an informal
meeting of the members of this committee.

TEMOIGNAGES

Ottawa, le mardi 27 décembre 1988
[Traduction]

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires étrangéres se
réunit aujourd’hui & 18 h 35 pour planifier ses activités.

M. Patrick Savoie, greffier du comité: Honorables séna-
teurs, je vois que nous avons le quorum. Le premier article a
'ordre du jour porte sur le choix d’un président. Je suis prét a
recevoir des mises en candidature.

Le sénateur Bosa: Je propose que le sénateur Stewart (Anti-
gonish-Guysborough) soit nommé a la présidence de ce comité.

Le greffier du comité: Y a-t-il d’autres mises en candida-
ture? Comme il n’y en a pas, je déclare terminée la présenta-
tion des mises en candidature.

Le sénateur Bosa propose que le sénateur John B. Stewart
(Antigonish-Guysborough) soit nommé 4 la présidence du

comité. Plait-il aux honorables sénateurs d’adopter la motion?

Des voix: D’accord.

Le greffier du comité: La motion est adoptée et j’invite le
sénateur Stewart (Antigonish-Guysborough) a venir occuper le
fauteuil.

Le sénateur John B. Stewart (Antigonish-Guysborough)
(président) occupe le fauteuil.

Le président: Je vous remercie, honorables sénateurs. En ce
jour ou seront prononcés de longs discours, je romps avec la
tradition et me contente de vous remercier de la confiance que
vous me témoignez et de vous dire que j’essaierai d’assumer le
mieux possible la présidence de votre comité.

Le deuxi¢me point 4 I'ordre du jour concerne I’élection d’un
vice-président.

Senator Beaudoin: Honourable senators, I move that Sena-

tor Jean Bazin be appointed deputy chairman of this commit-
tee.

Le président: Le sénateur Beaudoin propose que le sénateur
Bazin soit élu vice-président du comité. Y a-t-il d’autres mises
en candidature? Comme il n’y en a pas, plait-il aux honorables
sénateurs d’adopter la motion?

Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: La motion est adoptée et le sénateur Bazin est
notre vice-président.

Le prochain article concerne la formation d’un sous-comité
de l'ordre du jour et de la procédure, appelé communément
comité directeur. Je crois comprendre, honorables sénateurs,
que nous pouvons décider soit de mettre cette question de coté
pour cette semaine soit d’en discuter plus tard dans la séance
quand nous aurons pu discuter du programme provisoire qui, je
crois, a €té arrété. Je me demande simplement & quoi rimerait
un comité directeur alors qu’une si grande partie de son travail

a déja été accompli dans le cadre d’une réunion informelle de
notre comité.
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[Text]

Senator Frith: Mr. Chairman, that informal meeting was, in
part, acting as a steering committee in the sense that it was
representative of both sides and was attempting to do the work
of a steering committee because of the time factor.

The Chairman: Yes, exactly. The question now is whether it
is necessary to formally appoint a steering committee, or can
we leave that matter aside for the moment?

Senator Bosa: I move, Mr. Chairman, that we leave the
matter of the steering committee aside for the moment.

The Chairman: Very well then, if it is agreed, we will leave
that matter aside for the moment.

The next item on the agenda is authorization to print the
evidence of the committee. My suggestion is that we pass a
motion authorizing the printing of 1,000 copies. Experience
would suggest that that will be a satisfactory number. Perhaps
some honourable senator would be prepared to move that
motion?

Senator Stollery: Mr. Chairman, I so move.

The Chairman: It is moved by Senator Stollery that 1,000
copies of the proceedings of the committee be printed. Is it
agreed, honourable senators?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Carried.

The next item on the agenda is the requirement of a motion
to meet without a quorum. I anticipate that this will not be
something on which I will have to rely. However, it might be
that there will be occasion when it will be useful to have such a
motion in our records. The motion reads as follows:

That, pursuant to Rule 70, the Chairman be authorized
to hold meetings, to receive and authorize the printing of
evidence when a quorum is not present.

Is there an honourable senator who wishes to make that
motion?

Senator Kelly: Mr. Chairman, I so move.
The Chairman: Is it agreed, honourable senators?
Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Carried.

The next item on the agenda is the matter of appointing
research staff for the committee. The motion that is proposed
reads as follows:

That the Committee retain the services of the Parlia-
mentary Centre for Foreign Affairs and Foreign Trade as
advisor to the Committee.

That the Chairman, on behalf of the Committee, direct
the research staff in the preparation of studies, analyses
and summaries.

Senator Bosa: Mr. Chairman, I so move.

[Traduction)

Le sénateur Frith: Monsieur le président, cette réunion
informelle jouait en partie le réle d’un comité directeur dans
une certaine mesure puisque des membres des deux partis y
ont siégé et ont essayé d’accomplir le travail d’un comité direc-
teur dans le peu de temps dont nous disposions.

Le président: Oui, exactement. Il s’agit maintenant de se
demander s’il est nécessaire de nommer officiellement un
comité directeur ou s’il est possible, de remettre la question a
plus tard?

Le sénateur Bosa: Je propose, monsieur le président, que
nous nous reportions pour l'instant a I’étude de la question du
comité directeur.

Le président: Trés bien. Si les sénateurs sont d’accord, nous
remettrons cette question a plus tard.

Le prochain article concerne 'impression des délibérations
du comité. Je propose que nous adoptions une motion autori-
sant I'impression de 1 000 exemplaires. L’expérience démontre
que ce nombre devrait suffire. Quelqu’un voudrait-il proposer
cette motion?

Le sénateur Stollery: Je la propose.

Le président: Le sénateur Stollery propose que 1 000 exem-
plaires des délibérations du comité soient imprimés. Les hono-
rables sénateurs sont-ils d’accord?

Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: La motion est adoptée.

Le prochain article porte sur la motion nous autorisant 4 sié-
ger méme s’il n’y a pas quorum. Je ne m’attends pas a devoir y
recourir. Toutefois, il se pourrait qu’il soit utile qu’une telle
motion soit consignée dans notre compte rendu. Voici le texte
de la motion:

Que, conformément 4 I'article 70 du Réglement, le pré-
sident soit autorisé a tenir des séances pour entendre les
témoignages et en autoriser la publication en I’absence
d’un quorum.

Est-ce que quelqu’un voudrait proposer la motion?

Le sénateur Kelly: Je la propose.
Le président: Les sénateurs sont-ils d’accord?
Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: La motion est adoptée.

Le prochain point inscrit & I'ordre du jour concerne la nomi-
nation du personnel de recherche pour le comité. Voici le texte
de la motion:

Que le comité retienne les services de conseillers du
Centre parlementaire pour les affaires étrangéres et le
commerce extérieur.

Que le président, au nom du comité, dirige le personnel
dans la préparation des études, des analyses et des résu-
més.

Le sénateur Bosa: Je la propose.
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Senator Stollery: Mr. Chairman, I would like to discuss this
matter at length. Are we moving that motion now?

The Chairman: Senator Stollery, we do not have very much
time at our disposal. My understanding is that we are aspiring
to complete the work on this bill in this week. The proposal is
made that the committee retains the services of that body and,
secondly, that the chairman direct the research staff. There is
a third facet to that motion which reads as follows:

That, pursuant to Rule 84, the Chairman be autl.lorized
to report expenses incurred by the Committee during the
previous session.

Senator MacEachen: Mr. Chairman, with respect to motion
number 6 dealing with the research staff, I think it is necessary
to engage the Parliamentary Centre in the circumstances.
Senator Stollery said he would like to discuss this matter. Per-
haps I might suggest that if he wishes to raise the matter in the
new session, that that would be in order.

Senator Stollery: Yes, that would be convenient for me, Mr.
Chairman.

The Chairman: Thank you, Senator Stollery. Perhaps some
honourable senator would make that motion?

Senator Fairbairn: Mr. Chairman, I so move.

The Chairman: Senator Fairbairn has moved the motion
with respect to the engagement of the Parliamentary Centre
for Foreign Affairs, the authority of the chairman to direct
such staff in the preparation of studies, et cetera, and that the
chairman be authorized to report expenses incurred by the
committee during the previous session. Is it your pleasure, hon-
ourable senators, to adopt the motion?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Carried.
The next item on the agenda is the certification of accounts.
The proposal reads as follows:

That the Chairman of the Committee, or in'his absence,
the Deputy Chairman, be authorized to certify accounts
for payment on behalf of the Committee.

Is there some honourable senator who is prepared to make
that motion?
Senator Hastings: Mr. Chairman, I so move.

The Chairman: Is it agreed, honourable senators, to adopt
the motion?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.
The Chairman: Carried.

The next item on the agenda is with respect to a budget for
the committee. As you know, it is necessary to submit a budget
for the committee to the Internal Economy Committee. I
believe our clerk has anticipated this possible motion and is
now distributing a possible budget.

Senator Kelly: Mr. Chairman, I am wonde;ing whethgr it is
necessary to deal with this matter at this particular meeting. It
seems to me that, in the interests of time, we may want to

296732

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Stollery: Monsieur le président, j’aimerais dis-
cuter plus 4 fond de cette question. Proposons-nous cette
motion maintenant?

Le président: Sénateur Stollery, nous ne disposons pas de
beaucoup de temps. Je crois comprendre que nous espérons
terminer I’étude de ce projet de loi cette semaine. Il est proposé
que le comité retienne les services de cet organisme et que le
président dirige le personnel de recherche dans ses travaux. Iy
a un troisiéme aspect de cette motion qui se lit comme suit:

Que, conformément a I’article 84 du Réglement, le pré-
sident soit autorisé a faire rapport des dépenses engagées
par le comité au cours de la session précédente.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Monsieur le président, en ce qui
concerne la motion n° 6 concernant le personnel de recherche,
je crois qu’il est nécessaire dans les circonstances de retenir les
services du Centre parlementaire. Le sénateur Stollery aime-
rait discuter de cette question. Permettez-moi de dire que sil
désire soulever cette question au cours de la prochaine session,
cela serait dans les régles.

Le sénateur Stollery: Oui, cela me conviendrait monsieur le
président.

Le président: Merci, sénateur Stollery. Quelqu’un pourrait
peut-€tre proposer cette motion?

Le sénateur Fairbairn: Je la propose.

Le président: Le sénateur Fairbairn propose la motion con-
cernant le recours aux services du Centre parlementaire pour
les affaires étrangéres, I'autorité du président de diriger le per-
sonnel dans la préparation des études, et ainsi de suite, ainsi
que 'autorisation conférée au président de faire rapport des
dépenses engagées par le comité au cours de la session précé-
dente. Plait-il aux sénateurs d’adopter la motion?

Des voix: D’accord.
Le président: La motion est adoptée.

Le prochain point a I'ordre du jour concerne ’attestation des
comptes. Voici le texte de la proposition:

Que le président du comité, ou en son absence, le vice-
président, soit autorisé 4 attester les comptes 4 payer au
nom du comité.

Quelqu’un est-il prét 4 présenter la motion?

Le sénateur Hastings: Je la propose.

Le président: Plait-il aux honorables sénateurs d’adopter la
motion?

Des voix: D’accord.
Le président: La motion est adoptée.

Le prochain point est le budget du comité. Comme vous le
savez, il est nécessaire de soumettre au Comité de régie interne
un budget pour le comité. Notre greffier a prévu cette motion
et distribue maintenant un budget provisoire, si je ne m’abuse.

Le sénateur Kelly: Monsieur le président, je me demande sil
est nécessaire de nous occuper de cette question au cours de la
présente séance. Il me semble qu’étant donné les délais impar-
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move ahead swiftly. I am asking, therefore, whether there is
any way in which this matter could be set aside until this meet-
ing is over.

Senator Frith: As long as the people who will be paid are
prepared to work on staff.

Senator Kelly: It might be helpful if these expenses to cover
this particular session are dealt with at this meeting. Then we
could have a further meeting to deal with the budget for the
whole year.

The Chairman: I believe this has been prepared on the basis
of completing the current fiscal year ending March 31, 1989.

Senator Frith: That would include this week.

Senator Kelly: We are not then looking at a budget, we are
looking at set of figures which describe what has already been
spent, short of what will be spent for the balance of this fiscal
year.

The Clerk of the Committee: These are the expenses which
will be incurred from now on until the end of the fiscal year.

Senator Kelly: Up until March 31, 19897
The Clerk of the Committee: Yes.

The Chairman: Perhaps the Clerk will tell me if I am correct
in assuming that if we were to adjourn, let us say, at the end of
this week or early next week, until some time early in March
and the committee were not activated in a new session early in
March, we would be spending only part of the amount.

The Clerk of the Committee: Yes.

Senator Kelly: Am I correct that this relates to an’ original
budget which has not been updated to take into account the
current circumstances and the foreseeable circumstances
between now and March 317

The Clerk of the Committee: Yes.

Senator Stollery: Am I correct that there is no distinction
between the session and the fiscal year? We are in a session
that, I assume, will end at the end of this week; but this budget
that we are approving includes the items that we just discussed
up until the end of the fiscal year and not actually until the
end of the session.

The Clerk of the Committee: A budget has to run from
April 1 to March 31.

The Chairman: If there is prorogation, then, of course, the
committee will not be spending money after that prorogation.

Senator Stollery: If, in fact, this session is prorogued, when
we return will we then be approving another budget and will
the money which has not been spent be left unspent?

The Chairman: Yes.

“Senator Stollery: We will then go through this process
again.

The Chairman: If there were work for the committee to do
after progrogation early in March and before March 31, there
would be a budget to cover that and there would certainly have
to be a new budget covering the period in the new fiscal year.

[Traduction)

tis nous souhaitions procéder rapidement. J'aimerais savoir s’il
y aurait eu moyen de reporter cette question jusqu'aprés la
tenue de la présente séance du comité.

Le sénateur Frith: Dans la mesure ou ceux qui seront payés
sont préts a travailler.

Le sénateur Kelly: I1 serait utile que les frais relatifs a cette
session particuliére soient réglés a la présente séance. Nous
pourrions ensuite avoir une autre séance sur le budget de toute
I'année.

Le président: Je pense que ce budget a été préparé pour
I’année financiére actuelle devant se terrhinée le 31 mars 1989.

Le sénateur Frith: Cela comprendrait donc cette semaine.

Le sénateur Kelly: Ce n’est pas un budget que nous exami-
nons, mais seulement une série de chiffres portant sur ce qui a
déja été dépensé, moins ce qui sera dépensé pour le reste de
’année financiére.

Le greffier du comité: Il s’agit des dépenses qui seront faites
a partir de maintenant jusqu’a la fin de ’année financiére.

Le sénateur Kelly: Jusqu’au 31 mars 19897

Le greffier du comité: C’est exact.

Le président: Le greffier pourrait peut-étre me dire si j’ai
raison de penser que si nous ajournons, disons, d la fin de la
semaine ou au début de la semaine prochaine, jusqu’au début
mars et que le comité ne reprenne pas ses travaux pour une

nouvelle session au début de mars, nous ne dépenserions
qu'une partie de ce montant.

Le greffier du comité: Oui.

Le sénateur Kelly: Ces chiffres se rapportent donc 4 un bud-
get initial qui n’a pas été mis 4 jour et qui ne tient donc pas
compte de la situation actuelle et de la situation a venir d'ici le
31 mars?

Le greffier du comité: Oui.

Le sénateur Stollery: Ai-je raison de dire qu’il n’y a aucune
distinction entre la session et I’année financiére? La session
actuelle devrait, je suppose, se terminer a la fin de la semaine;
ce budget que nous allons approuver comprend des articles de
dépenses dont nous avons parlé et qui courent jusqu’a la fin de
I'année financiére et non pas jusqu’a la fin de la session.

Le greffier du comité: Tout budget couvre la période du 1¢
avril au 31 mars.

Le président: S’il y a prorogation, il va sans dire que le
comité ne dépensera pas d’argent apres.

Le sénateur Stollery: Si en fait cette session est prorogée,
devrons-nous, lorsque nous reviendrons, approuver un autre
budget et ne pourrons-nous pas dépenser les fonds qui ne
’auront pas été?

Le président: C’est exact.

Le sénateur Stollery: Nous recommencerons alors tout ce
processus.

Le président: Si des travaux étaient prévus pour le comité
aprés la prorogation, au début de mars et avant le 31 mars, on
prévoirait un budget 4 cet effet et il y faudrait certainement un
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Senator Kelly: What we are looking at is the approval of the
difference between approximately $111,000 and $203,000 and,
if it is necessary, that can be spent between now and the end of
the fiscal year.

The Clerk of the Committee: I believe the relevant figure is
$37,404.

Senator Kelly: I am looking at the item on the second page
which states, “Budgets approved for the fiscal year 1988-89,
$203,228.00” and “Expenditures to date, $111,047.40.”

The Chairman: That merely shows the amount of money
available. This budget is not asking to spend the total amount
of money available. It is anticipated that the expenditures will
be $37,000. Indeed, knowing what we do about the work that
is likely to come from the Senate, the expectation is that even
that amount will not be expended.

Senator Hastings: We are being told that this budgqt covers
the period to March 31, 1989, yet all the calculations are
based on the two months of January and February.

The Chairman: Those are in the fiscal year.

Are you prepared, honourable senators, to approve this
request for a budget?

Senator Kelly: I would so move.

The Chairman: It is moved by Senator Kelly that the
budget, as presented, be adopted. Is it agreed, honourable
senators?

Honourable Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: 1 now turn to the matter of travelling
expenses for witnesses. My understanding—and I say this hop-
ing to be corrected if 1 am wrong—is that we do not pay wit-
nesses unless (a) we seek their attendance and (b) we are con-
vinced that they are coming primarily in the interest of the
committee rather than to present, in an interested way, their
personal or corporate viewpoint. That is the tradition, is it not?

Senator Nurgitz: Yes.

The Chairman: Having said that, and not being corrected, is
anyone prepared to move that, pursuant to Rule 83, reaspnable
travelling and living expenses be paid to witnesses invited to
appear before the committee and that for such paym.ent.of
expenses a maximum of three representatives per organization
be established?

Senator Frith: I so move.
The Chairman: Is it agreed, honourable senators?
Honourable Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: The next item on the agenda is “Other Mat-
ters.” I believe the other matter which is probably at the top of
the private agenda of each of us is proposed witnesses to be
heard on Bill C-2 and our schedule.

[Traduction)]

nouveau budget pour la période au cours de la nouvelle année
financiére.

Le sénateur Kelly: Nous devons en fait approuver la diffé-
rence entre environ 111 000 $ et 203 000 $, ce qui, au besoin,
pourra étre dépensé d’ici la fin de ’année financiére.

Le greffier du comité: Je crois que le montant qui nous inté-
resse est 37 404 §.

Le sénateur Kelly: Je me reporte 4 I'article de la deuxiéme
page qui indique, «Budgets approuvés pour I’année financiére
1988-1989, 203228 $» et «Dépenses jusqu'da ce jour,
111 047,40 $.»

Le président: Cela indique tout simplement le montant dis-
ponible. Ce budget ne vise pas a permettre de dépenser le mon-
tant total disponible. Il est prévu que les dépenses s’éléveront a
37000 $. En fait, compte tenu de ce que nous savons des tra-
vaux qui doivent nous arriver du Sénat, il est probable que
méme ce montant ne sera pas dépensé.

Le sénateur Hastings: On nous dit que ce budget vise la
période se terminant le 31 mars 1989 et pourtant tous les cal-
culs portent sur les mois de janvier et de février.

Le président: Il s’agit des mois de 'année financiére.

Etes-vous préts, honorables sénateurs, 4 approuver cette
demande de budget?

Le sénateur Kelly: J’en fais le proposition.

Le président: Le sénateur Kelly propose que le budget, tel

que présenté, soit adopté. Etes-vous d’accord, honorables séna-
teurs?

Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: Je passe maintenant 4 la question des frais de
voyage des témoins. Si je comprends bien, et n’hésitez pas 4 me
reprendre si je me trompe, nous ne payerons pas les témoins
avant (a) de leur avoir demandé de se présenter et (b) d’étre
stirs qu’ils viennent dans I'intérét du comité avant tout et non
pour présenter, de fagon intéressée, leur point de vue personnel
ou celui de leur société. C’est la tradition je pense, n’est-ce
pas?

Le sénateur Nurgitz: Oui.

Le président: Ceci dit, et comme personne ne m’a repris,
pourrais-je demander 4 un sénateur de proposer, conformé-
ment 4 Iarticle 83 du Réglement, que les frais raisonnables de
voyage et de logement soient payés aux témoins invités 4 com-
paraitre devant le Comité et que I’on n’invite pas plus que trois
représentants de chaque organisme?

Le sénateur Frith: J’en fais la proposition.
Le président: Etes-vous d’accord, honorables sénateurs?
Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: Le point suivant inscrit 4 I'ordre du jour est
«Autres questions». Si je ne me trompe pas, 'autre question qui
figure en premiére place sur I'ordre du jour de chacun d’entre
nous vise les témoins qu’il est proposé d’entendre & propos du
projet de loi C-2, ainsi que notre programme.
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As members of the committee know, an informal meeting of
members of the committee took place last Thursday and some
preliminary guidance was given to Mr. Peter Dobell as to the
areas on which the committee was likely to want to concen-
trate and as to the witnesses whom the members of the com-
mittee thought would be helpful to us.

I will ask Mr. Dobell at this point to report to the committee
and what he proposes as the schedule and program of wit-
nesses. He will tell us what he has been able to arrange in a
tentative way.

Mr. Peter Dobell, Director, Parliamentary Centre: Mr.
Chairman, has a text been circulated?

The Chairman: Not yet.

Mr. Dobell: The first request at the informal meeting was
that either this evening, if the committee were able to meet, or
tomorrow morning, there should be a meeting with officials to
review, in a rather formal way, the actual legislation, Bill C-2.
That will be happening this evening starting at 8 o’clock. The
officials will continue tomorrow morning for as long as that is
wished.

The group indicated that there were five subjects on which
they would like to hear particular testimony. The five were
adjustment assistance; agriculture; financial services or, rather,
services and, particularly, the question of temporary entry
visas; energy; countervail and anti-dumping.

I was also asked to ascertain whether witnesses could be
found from outside of government to give testimony in these
areas.

Two other requests were made: One that Mr. de Grandpré
be invited, and, secondly, that a senior official of the Interna-
tional Energy Agency in Paris be invited. I indicated at that
meeting that I was neither in a position to approach Mr. de
Grandpré, who was chairing a committee appointed by the
government, nor in a position to approach the International
Energy Agency.

I think it would be most helpful if I were to go through the
proposed timetable. The proposed subject for discussion tomor-
row morning is temporary entry regulations. That will be after
the committee feels it has had a general discussion of the bill.
This subject is one on which there is very little knowledge.
Four witnesses from the private sector were identified as being
reasonably well informed. All four of them had been witnesses
before the committee in August and September. In discussing
this matter with the anticipated chairman, it was agreed that it
was preferable not to invite back people who had already met
with the committee. In the circumstances, I have set up meet-
ings with officials from both the Department of Employment
and Immigration and from the TNO.

The afternoon is to be devoted to adjustment assistance. The
meeting will begin with the Canadian Labour Congress. The
Executive Vice-President, Dick Martin, and two other senior
officials of the CLC have agreed to appear. It is worth noting
that the initial reaction by the CLC was one of rejection. The
CLC was closed last Thursday when I first approached them.

[Traduction)

Les membres du comité ne sont pas sans savoir que les mem-
bres du comité se sont réunis officieusement jeudi dernier et
que des consignes préliminaires ont été données 4 M. Peter
Dobell au sujet des domaines sur lesquels le comité souhaite-
rait s’attarder et des témoins qui, de I’avis des membres du
comité, lui seraient utiles.

Je vais demander maintenant a M. Dobell de faire rapport
au comité et de nous faire part de ce qu'il propose comme liste
et programme des témoins. Il va nous dire ce qu’il a pu organi-
ser pour le moment.

M. Peter Dobell, directeur du Centre parlementaire: Mon-
sieur le président, a-t-on fait circuler le document?

Le président: Pas encore.

M. Dobell: Lors de la rencontre officieuse, il a tout d’abord
été demandé que dés ce soir, si le comité pouvait se réunir, ou
demain matin, il soit prévu une rencontre avec certaines per-
sonnes pour examiner, de fagon plutdt officielle, le projet de loi
proprement dit, soit le projet de loi C-2. Nous allons commen-
cer cet examen des ce soir a partir de 20 heures. Les personnes
invitées poursuivront demain matin et ce, aussi longtemps
qu’elles le désirent.

Le groupe a indiqué vouloir entendre des témoignages sur
cinq sujets en particulier. Il s’agit de I'aide a ’adaptation; de
'agriculture; des services financiers ou, plutdt, des services et,
plus précisément, de la question des visas de séjour temporaire;
de I’énergie; des droits compensateurs et des mesures antidum-
ping.

On m’a également demandé de voir a faire venir des témoins
n’appartenant pas au gouvernement.

Deux autres demandes ont été faites: D’une part, que M. de
Grandpré soit invité et, d’autre part, qu’un cadre supérieur de
I’Agence internationale de 1’énergie 4 Paris le soit également.
J'ai indiqué a cette rencontre que je ne pouvais pas communi-
quer avec M. de Grandpré, qui présidait un comité constitué
par le gouvernement et que je ne pouvais pas non plus commu-
niquer avec I’Agence internationale de I’énergie.

Je pense qu’il serait trés utile de passer en revue le calen-
drier prévu. Les réglements relatifs au séjour temporaire sont
le sujet qu'il est proposé de débattre demain matin, aprés une
discussion générale du projet de loi. On connait trés peu de
choses 4 ce sujet. On a dit de quatre témoins du secteur privé
qu’ils étaient raisonnablement bien informés. Ils ont tous les
quatre comparu devant le Comité au mois d’aoit et au mois de
septembre. Au cours des discussions tenues a ce sujet avec le
président éventuel, il a été convenu de ne pas inviter des per-
sonnes qui ont déja comparu devant le comité. Par conséquent,
j’ai organisé des rencontres avec des représentants du ministére
de ’Emploi et de I'Immigration, ainsi que du Bureau des négo-
ciations commerciales.

L’aprés-midi sera consacré aux programmes d’aide a I’adap-
tation. Le premier témoin sera le Congrés du travail du
Canada, représenté par le vice-président administratif, M.
Dick Martin, et par deux autres des cadres supérieurs. Il con-
vient de mentionner que le CTC a d’abord refusé notre invita-
tion. Ses bureaux étaient fermés jeudi dernier lorsque j’ai
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There has been an intensive review going on within the CLC as
a result of some reflections following the last election. They
changed their mind the following day and decided that they
would like to appear. At 3 o’clock we will hear from the Eco-
nomic Council. Judy Maxwell, the chairman, and Paul
Gorecki, who was the study director of a major project they

did on adjustment assistance and released during the summer,
will appear.

The informal groups suggested that I inquire about the poss-
ibility of a chief executive officer of a company appearing.
After exploring the matter, I concluded that the problem in
approaching a chief executive officer is that while he is famil-
iar with the situation of his own company, and possibly the
industry if it has common problems, he would not be in a posi-
tion to comment on the situation across the economy. I then
approached the Canadian Chamber of Commerce, which has
completed a study. Their office was closed and none of the
officials, including the president, who were knowledgeable in
this area, were to be in Canada. I then approached the
Canadian Manufacturers’ Association, and they too were
closed. The president or executive director, whatever his title
is, was initially prepared to come, but on reflection concluded
that he had not done any work on the matter and that he
would not be a good witness. So I finally decided that the Eco-
nomic Council would give the best overall presentation on the
subject. In discussions with Senator Stewart we decided that
we would suggest the form that after each session with repre-
sentatives from the private sector the officials or specialists
who sat through the meeting would be available if the commit-
tee wished to direct questions to them. Officials from Employ-
ment and Immigration and TNO would be available at the
conclusion of these first two sessions. That would conclude the
afternoon.

Let us now go to the evening. I was asked to approach the
Canadian Federation of Agriculture. The president, Don
Knorr, has appeared before the committee. He resides in the
interior of B.C. We pressed him strongly, but he took the posi-
tion that he was not prepared to come. I think the situation is
that not only is it a considerable distance for him to travel, but
he was being offered a fairly short period of time in which to
prepare. Senators will recollect from the previous session that
the federation is divided. Segments of the federation favour
free trade and other segments are strongly opposed to free
trade. It puts the president in a fairly difficult position. We
attempted to approach the one vice-president who has a gen-
eral mandate. The other vice-presidents are all heads of seg-
ments of the industry. He lives somewhere in rural Alberta and
had gone away without indicating where he was going. So, as
an alternative, we will receive from the Canadian Federation
of Agriculture and from the Canadian Egg Marketing Agency
statements reviewing the positions that they took when they
appeared before this committee in August and September and
indicating with considerable precision where there has been a
response from the government and where there has not. You
should then be able to direct questions to officials from the
Department of Agriculture and, presumably, from the TNO as

[Traduction]

appelé la premiére fois. On sait que cet organisme a entrepris
des études approfondies sur la question par suite des derniéres
élections. Ses représentants ont changé d’avis le lendemain et
ont décidé d’accepter I'invitation. A 15 heures, nous aurons des
nouvelles du Conseil économique. Comparaitront M™ Judy
Maxwell, présidente du Conseil, et M: Paul Gorecki, directeur
d’une importante recherche que le Conseil a faite sur les pro-
grammes d’aide a4 I'adaptation, recherche qui a été publiée
pendant I’été.

Les groupes non officiels ont proposé que j’étudie la possibi-
lité d’inviter un président d’entreprise. Aprés examen de la
question, je me suis rendu compte qu’inviter un président
d’entreprise faisait probléme puisque, méme s’il connait bien la
situation de sa propre compagnie, voire de I'industrie a laquelle
appartient I’entreprise, le chef d’entreprise invité ne serait pas
en mesure de traiter de I’économie dans son ensemble. J’ai
communiqué ensuite avec la Chambre de commerce du
Canada, qui a également publié une étude sur le sujet. Ses
bureaux étaient fermés et aucun de ses représentants, y com-
pris le président, qui posséde des connaissances en la matiere,
n’étaient au Canada. J’ai ensuite contacté 1’Association des
manufacturiers canadiens, mais ses bureaux étaient aussi fer-
més. Son président ou directeur administratif—je ne connais
pas son titre exact—était dans un premier temps disposé a
comparaitre, mais aprés réflexion, il s’est rendu compte qu’il
n’avait fait aucune recherche sur la question et ne serait donc
pas un bon témoin. C’est ainsi que j’ai décidé que le Conseil
économique pourrait donner le meilleur point de vue global sur
la question. Aprés en avoir discuté avec le sénateur Stewart,
j’ai opté pour la formule suivante: exposé fait par les représen-
tants du secteur privé et suivi de questions adressées aux repré-
sentants du gouvernement ou aux spécialistes présents. A la fin
des deux premicres séances, des représentants d’Emploi et
Immigration et du Bureau des négociations commerciales
seraient a notre disposition. Ainsi prendrait fin 'aprés-midi.

En soirée maintenant. On m’a demandé de contacter la
Fédération canadienne de I'agriculture. Son président, M. Don
Knorr, a déja comparu devant le Comité. Il réside en Colom-
bie-Britannique, en province. Nous I’avons fortement pressé de
comparaitre, mais il a rejeté notre offre. On le comprend faci-
lement: la distance qu’il aurait a parcourir est considérable et
nous ne lui avons pas donné beaucoup de temps pour se prépa-
rer. Les sénateurs présents a la derniére séance se souviendront
que la Fédération est divisée. En effet, certains éléments de
cette derniére sont en faveur du libre-échange, tandis que
d’autres y sont fortement opposés. Le président est donc entre
I'enclume et le marteau. Nous avons tenté de communiquer
avec celui des vice-présidents dont le mandat est général. Les
autres vice-présidents sont tous chefs de secteurs de I'industrie.
Ce vice-président habite la campagne albertaine et était parti
sans laisser d’adresse ou le joindre. Comme solution de
rechange, nous recevrons de la Fédération canadienne de
I’agriculture et de 1’Office canadien de commercialisation des
ceufs des déclarations comportant un résumé des positions
qu’ils avaient adoptées au moment de leur comparution en
aolt et en septembre et mentionnant avec d’amples détails les
mesures prises par le gouvernement et celles qu’il n’a pas pri-
ses. Vous pourrez alors poser des questions aux représentants
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to why the government has not moved in some of the areas that
the CFA and CEMA solicited.

The Chairman: Did you say Don Knorr? Is he still the presi-
dent?

Mr. Dobell: There was a challenge, but he won out.

The Chairman: So the man who appeared here last summer
is still the president and he was unwnllmg to appear before this
committee?

Mr. Dobell: That is right. Earlier I indicated that there had
been a request that someone be invited from the International
Energy Agency.

Senator Frith: Is this for Thursday?

Mr. Dobell: No, we are still on Wednesday evening. I had
indicated I was not prepared to make that approach. I knew
that it would not succeed given the short period of time and
that the people would have to come from Paris. So what I did
was to make tentative arrangements with a Professor Glen
Toner of Carleton University. He wrote a book on the politics
of energy which was published last year. He specializes in the
International Energy Agency and last year wrote a paper
analyzing the sharing arrangements under the International
Energy Agency and their implications for Canada and com-
paring the situation under the Free Trade Agreement. So he is
tentatively available at the end of the day on Wednesday, if
that is the committee’s wish.

I was specifically asked to approach Mitchell Sharp, and he
will appear the following morning. I was asked to ask him if he
would talk about the question of countervail and anti-dumping.
He said that he was prepared to come, but that he would much
prefer to talk about energy and proceeded to express some
interest in views which were an extension of views that I had
not previously heard from anyone else. I think you would find
them interesting. So at this point he will be coming to talk
primarily about energy. Again, I discussed this with Senator
Stewart. That is what I have scheduled for 9 o’clock Thursday
morning. Officials from the Trade Negotiations Office and the
Department of Energy, Mines and Resources will also be sit-
ting through that meeting. If senators decided to hear from
Glen Toner, he would also sit through that meeting.

The last subject not yet covered is countervail and anti-
dumping. At 10.30 a.m. Thursday morning, we have arranged
for the appearance of two witnesses, both of the name Clark.
Mr. Mel Clark is a retired public servant who used to work in
the GATT negotiations. Peter Clark, also a retired public ser-
vant, also worked in GATT but is somewhat younger and is
now a consultant working in the trade field. Incidentally, he
was the adviser on the first successful Canadian countervail
action against the United States. The two witnesses will be
appearing together. They have been asked to talk about the
Canadian experience with countervail and anti-dumping. I sus-
pect that Mel Clark will speak somewhat more broadly. Again,
officials will be present on that occasion and can respond to
questions afterwards.

[Traduction)

du ministére de I’Agriculture et, sans doute, 4 ceux du Bureau
des négociations commerciales, pour savoir pourquoi le gouver-
nement n’a pas réagi dans le sens préconisé par ces organismes.

Le président: Avez-vous dit Don Knorr? Est-il toujours pré-
sident?

M. Dobell: Sa présidence a été contestée, mais il est
demeuré en poste.

Le président: Celui qui a comparu devant nous 1’été dernier
est toujours président de la FCA et il n est pas disposé & com-
paraitre devant le Comité?

M. Dobell: C’est exact. J’ai mentionné plus tot que I'on nous
a demandé d’inviter un représentant de I’Agence internationale
de I’énergie.

Le sénateur Frith: Pour jeudi?

M. Dobell: Non, mercredi soir. J’ai déja dit que je ne voulais
pas inviter cet organisme. Je savais qu’il serait difficile de le
faire, compte tenu du délai trés court et du fait que ses repré-
sentants auraient a venir de Paris. J’ai donc conclu une entente
provisoire avec le professeur Glen Toner de 'université Carle-
ton, auteur d’un livre sur les politiques énergétiques qui a été
publié I'an dernier. Il se spécialise dans les questions liées a
I’Agence internationale de I'énergie et a rédigé il y a un an un
article ou il analyse les ententes de partage administrées par
I’Agence internationale de I’énergie et leurs répercussions pour
le Canada, et ou il compare ce mécanisme avec I’Accord de
libre-échange. M. Toner pourrait &tre a la disposition du
Comité 4 la fin de la journée, mercredi.

On m’a demandé aussi d’inviter M. Mitchell Sharp, qui
comparaitra dans la matinée suivante. Je lui ai demandé de
parler des droits compensateurs et antidumping. Il a dit qu’il
viendrait, mais qu’il aimerait mieux parler de I’énergie et a
mentionné ensuite son intérét pour des idées qui sont le prolon-
gement de points de vue inédits. Je crois que vous trouverez ces
points de vue intéressants. Il nous parlera donc principalement
d’énergie. Encore une fois, j’en ai discuté avec le sénateur Ste-
wart. Voila ce qui est prévu pour 9 heures jeudi matin. Seront
également présents des représentants du Bureau des négocia-
tions commerciales et du ministére de I’Energie, des Mines et
des Ressources. M. Glen Toner pourrait également étre 1a si
les sénateurs le désirent.

La derniére question dont on n’a pas encore parlé est celle
des droits compensatoires et des droits antidumping. Pour
10 h 30, jeudi matin, nous avons invité deux témoins qui por-
tent tous deux le nom de Clark. M. Mel Clark est un fonction-
naire 4 la retraite qui travaillait aux négociations du GATT.
M. Peter Clark, aussi fonctionnaire a4 la retraite, travaillait
également au GATT, mais il est un peu plus jeune et est main-
tenant expert-conseil en matiére commerciale. En passant, il
était conseiller lorsque le Canada a réussie pour la premiére
fois 4 imposer des mesures compensatoires aux Etats-Unis. Les
deux témoins comparaitront ensemble et, comme on le leur a
demandé, ils parleront de leur expérience dans le domaine des
droits compensatoires et antidumping. Je présume que M. Mel
Clark donnera un exposé plus général. Encore une fois, des res-
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I was told this morning that Mr. de Grandpré had been
approached and was available to appear on Thursday after-
noon. I proposed 2 o’clock, at which time he will be speaking
on his task force. Senators had also requested that Mr. Crosbie
be invited and he has been scheduled to follow Mr. de Grand-
pré at some time between 3 and 4 o’clock.

I have not scheduled anything for Thursday evening. Sena-
tors should be aware that the Assembly of First Nations,
which is the major Indian organization in Canada, has been
pressing hard and frequently for a hearing before this commit-
tee. They wish to speak on matters across the board rather
than on specific subjects. It has been suggested that, unless
they were to speak on specific subjects, probably they should
not be scheduled. However, they continue to press for an
appearance before the committee and they also want to bring
all of their leadership from across Canada to Ottawa. If the
committee should decide to hear from them, there will be time
to do so on Thursday evening.

The Chairman: I think that gives the members of thp com-
mittee some notion of what is before them. What is their reac-
tion to what has been proposed?

Senator Fairbairn: Mr. Chairman, on the question of adjust-
ment policy, would you entertain a suggestion to hear from the
minister responsible, the Honourable Barbara McDougall?

The Chairman: Your suggestion is that Thursday afternoon,
after Mr. de Grandpré appears, the Honourable Barbarg
McDougall should appear? All right, that is a possible addi-
tion to our list.

Senator MacEachen: Mr. Chairman, I have some comment-
sto make with respect to two possible witnesses. It was my
hope that we would hear from someone in authority at the
International Energy Agency to speak about the emergency
provisions for sharing, and so on. I am not certain that I want
to hear from anyone else. It has been said that Professor Toner
has written on this subject. I could easily take a book out of
the library and inform myself on what he has written rather
than tie up the committee on this point. I do not think he
would be able to provide the authoritative commentary that I
think the committee needs.

Secondly, while I would be most interested in hearing
Mitchell Sharp, I am not sure that we need any further tes-
timony on the energy provisions of the Free Trade Agreement,
unless he can provide some new insight that would be of value
to us. I notice that the appearance of Professor Toner is to be
confirmed and, in the case of the Honourable Mitchell Sharp,
if the invitation has gone and been accepted it would be a mat-
ter of courtesy to hear from him and we ought to consider
doing so.

I believe that we are to be well served in the area'of adjust-
ment and, possibly, on countervail and anti-dumping, but I
suggest that we may be an hour and a half on the short side.

[Traduction)

ponsables du gouvernement seront présents et pourront répon-
dre aux questions par la suite.

On m’a dit ce matin que M. de Grandpré a été invité et qu’il
pourra comparaitre jeudi aprés-midi. J'ai proposé qu’il compa-
raisse 4 14 heures et qu’il nous parle du groupe de travail dont
il fait partie. Les sénateurs ont également demandé que I'on
invite M. Crosbie, qui suivra M. de Grandpré entre 15 et 16
heures.

Rien n’est prévu pour jeudi soir. J’'informe aussi les séna-
teurs que I’Assemblée des Premiéres nations, principale organi-
sation d’autochtones du Canada, a fait pression fortement et
souvent pour obtenir une audience auprés du Comité. Ses
représentants ont l'intention de parler de questions d’ordre
général plutdt que de sujets particuliers. On a proposé de ne
pas les inviter, & moins qu’ils traitent de questions particulié-
res. Toutefois, ils continuent de faire pression et ils veulent que
soient présents tous les dirigeants de I'organisme d’un bout a
'autre du Canada. Si le Comité décide de les inviter, il pourra
le faire pour la soirée de jeudi.

Le président: Voild, je crois que vous avez maintenant une
bonne idée du calendrier des travaux. Qu’en pensez-vous?

Le sénateur Fairbairn: Monsieur le président, au sujet de
I’adaptation, accepteriez-vous la proposition voulant que nous
entendions la ministre responsable de cette question, M™ Bar-
bara McDougall?

Le président: Vous proposez que, jeudi aprés-midi, aprés M.
de Grandpré, comparaisse ’honorable Barbara McDougall?
D’accord, on pourrait ajouter son nom sur la liste.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Monsieur lep résident, j’ai des
observations 4 faire 4 propos de deux témoins éventuels.
Jespérais que nous entendrions un dirigeant de I’Agence inter-
nationale de I’énergie, qui aurait traité des dispositions sur le
partage en cas d’urgence, etc. Je ne sais pas s’il convient d’invi-
ter un autre témoin a sa place. Certes, le professeur Toner a
écrit sur le sujet, mais on pourrait facilement aller a la biblio-
théque et consulter ses ouvrages en la matiére au lieu de consa-
crer du temps du Comité sur ce point. Je ne crois pas qu’il

serait en mesure de faire le genre d’observations dont a besoin
le Comité.

En deuxiéme lieu, méme s’il serait des plus intéressant
d’entendre M. Mitchell Sharp, je ne suis pas convaincu que
nous ayons encore besoin d’informations sur les dispositions
énergétiques de I’Accord de libre-échange, sauf si M. Sharp
peut nous donner un point de vue inédit qui nous soit utile. Je
note que M. Toner n’a pas encore confirmé sa présence. Quant
a M. Mitchell Sharp, je ne sais pas si I'invitation a été faite ni
si elle a été acceptée; quel que soit le cas, il conviendrait qu’il
la confirme ou que nous communiquions avec lui.

Jestime que nous aurons des témoins de premier ordre sur
la question de I’adaptation et, peut-étre, sur celle des droits
compensatoires et antidumping. Toutefois, je crois qu’il pour-
rait nous manquer une heure et demie.
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Those are my comments, thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Hays: Mr. Chairman, I am not a member of the
committee, so you will, perhaps, receive my comments in that
light. I did not hear whether the committee would devote a
meeting to Chapter Eighteen of the agreement, which deals
with provisions by which to settle disputes between the parties.
Perhaps one of the most interesting ways in which to focus
upon Chapter Eighteen might be in the context of the energy
component of the agreement. I just wanted to make that com-
ment. It may be a useful course of inquiry if the committee
were to focus in on this subject in that way.

The Chairman: Is there anything else anyone wishes to sug-
gest? Then let us deal with these items as they came about.
First, we propose that the Honourable Barbara McDougall be
asked to appear before the committee with regard to adjust-
ment programs. Presumably we would hear her after we hear
from Mr. de Grandpré. What is the reaction of the committee
to this suggestion?

Senator Frith: On the subject of services, we have some peo-
ple appearing from the department. If the committee wishes to
hear the policy side of that question, perhaps the proper thing
to do would be to ask her to appear. We will be hearing from
Mr. Crosbie on another topic and I think such a course of
action would be appropriate.

Mr. Dobell: This is really a new proposition and I have no
idea whether Mrs. McDougall is in Canada at this time. I
could probably find the answer to that question for the com-
mittee by tomorrow morning.

The Chairmman: I take it, then, that it is the request of the
committee that the HonourBble Barbara McDougall appear.
The ideal time for her to do so, from our point of view, would
be Thursday afternoon.

Mr. Dobell: Mr. Crosbie is still to appear, is he?
The Chairman: That is my understanding, yes.

Senator Frith: In the event that she cannot appear, has she a
minister of state who could come before the committee?

Mr. Dobell: Her minister of state right now is Ms. Vézina
and she has broken her leg.

The Chairman: We have heard Senator MacEachen’s
suggestion with regard to the International Energy Agency. As
I recall the informal discussion, Senator Doody, on behalf of
the government, was going to facilitate the invitation and
appearance of Mr. de Grandpré and a witness from the IEA.
Mr. de Grandpré is coming. Do you know if this question was
raised with the government and do you know what, if any,
problem has resulted in no one’s appearance from the IEA?
What is the problem in that regard?

Mr. Dobell: I have been told that a decision was taken that
this was an international agency and, therefore, it was not
someone that the Canadian government could direct to come
in the way that they could with Mr. de Grandpré, and that,
therefore, the committee should make its request directly.

[Traduction]

Voila pour mes observations. Je vous remercie, monsieur le
président.

Le sénateur Hays: Monsieur le président, je ne suis pas
membre du Comité, mais je me permets de faire les remarques
suivantes. Je n'ai pas entendu si le Comité consacrerait une
séance au chapitre dix-huit de I’accord, qui traite des disposi-
tions relatives au réglement des différends. La meilleure fagon
d’aborder le chapitre dix-huit pourrait étre de le faire dans le
cadre des dispositions énergétiques de I’accord. Je voulais sim-
plement faire cette observation. Il pourralt étre utile au comité
de traiter ainsi de ce sujet.

Le président: D’autres propositions? Nous traiterons donc
de ces points dans I'ordre ou ils ont été proposés. D’abord, nous
proposons d’inviter M™ Barbara McDougall & comparaitre
devant le comité au sujet des programmes d’adaptation. Elle
pourrait comparaitre juste aprés M. de Grandpré. Qu’en pen-
sez-vous?

Le sénateur Frith: Pour ce qui est des services, nous avons
invité des représentants du ministére. Si le comité désire avoir
des renseignements sur les politiques du ministére, la meilleure
chose 4 faire serait peut-étre d’inviter M™ McDougall.
Comme M. Crosbie nous parlera d’un autre sujet, je crois qu'il
serait approprié d’inviter M™ McDougall pour nous parler de
cette question.

M. Dobell: C’est une proposition tout a fait nouvelle et je
n’ai aucune idée si M™™ McDougall est au Canada a I’heure
actuelle. Je pourrais me renseigner pour le comité d’ici demain
matin.

Le président: Je présume alors que le comité aimerait inviter
Mme Barbara McDougall. Le meilleur moment pour sa compa-
rution serait jeudi aprés-midi.

M. Dobell: M. Crosbie doit-il toujours comparaitre?
Le président: Autant que je sache, oui.

Le sénateur Frith: Si M™ McDougall ne peut comparaitre,
y a-t-il un ministre d’Etat qui pourrait le faire a sa place?

M. Dobell: Ce serait M™ Vézina, mais elle s’est fracturé une
jambe.

Le président: Le sénateur MacEachen a proposé d’inviter
I’Agence internationale de I’énergie. Si je me rappelle les dis-
cussions non officielles, le sénateur Doody, au nom du gouver-
nement, devait inviter M. de Grandpré et un témoin de I'IEA a
comparaitre devant le comité. M. de Grandpré viendra. Savez-
vous si 'on a parlé de cette question au gouvernement et pour-
quoi aucun représentant de I'IEA recomparaitra devant le
comité? Quel est le probléme?

M. Dobell: On m’a dit qu’il s’agissait d’une agence interna-
tionale, que le gouvernement canadien, par conséquent, ne
pourrait enjoindre & cette personne de comparaitre comme il
peut le faire dans le cas de M. de Grandpré et qu’il vaudrait
donc mieux que le Comité présente lui-méme sa demande.
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Senator Frith: Does the Canadian government pay any of
the budget of the IDA?

Mr. Dobell: Oh, yes, it must.
Senator Frith: Do they not have anyone here in Canada?

Mr. Dobell: I do not believe so.

Senator Barootes: Mr. Chairman, may I make a comment
on the problem Senator MacEachen and Mr. Dobell raised? I
think it was also raised by Senator Hays. It is obvious that you
are unlikely to entice somebody from Paris to appear. It would
be difficult. There is some interest in how energy will impact
on the future, as you mentioned in your address this afternoon,
both with our friends on the board and elsewhere, and also in
how we are going to interpret the proportionality cla}lse. Scng-
tor Hays raised the matter of having a particular interest in
this. If we are unable to tidy this up completely, because you
suggested Mr. Toner was inappropriate at the present time and
Mitchell Sharp wants to speak on something that is not the
subject matter we wish, how would it be if we thought seri-
ously, as there are at least three people from the Energy ;md
Natural Resources Committee here, that such a subject might
be suggested as a thorough investigation that might be under-
taken with invitations to these people when we reassemble? It
is obvious we are not going to do much about the bill itself, but
it would be interesting and perhaps helpful to Canada, and to
the government, if we did that kind of study. I would ask Sena-
tor Hastings if he has a comment to make.

The Chairman: Senator MacEachen, what is your opinion? I
am concerned with the immediate task, which is Bill C-2, and
I take it that there is a general willingness to try to have that
bill clear the Senate later this week.

Senator Nurgitz: Good idea.

The Chairman: My question to Senator MacEachen is: Is
the appearance of someone from the IEA essc?ntlal'to the
accomplishment of what seems to be the common intention?

Senator MacEachen: No. I am not going to say that the bill
will not get through this week if we do not get someone.fror.n
the IEA, but I do not find, I must say, that the explanation is
very convincing that the government could not take a pro-
active role in getting a member of the agency. After all, we
have many Canadians working in Paris who know these agen-
cies. We probably have a representative there at t'he Energy
Agency. It is probably too late now for the committee to do
anything. It is Tuesday. However, my answer is no, it is not
essential, but I do not see why I should listen to Profess_or
Toner or have him here when he does not have the authority
that an executive of the agency would have.

Senator Bazin: I would agree with Senator MacEachen con-
cerning Professor Toner on the one hand. Secondly, on the

[Traduction)

Le sénateur Frith: Le gouvernement canadien contribue-t-il
au budget de I'TEA?

M. Dobell: Fort probablement.

Le sénateur Frith: Il n’y a aucun représentant de cet orga-
nisme au Canada?

M. Dobell: Je ne pense pas.

Le sénateur Barootes: Monsieur le président, me permettez-
vous d’intervenir au sujet de la question soulevée par le séna-
teur MacEachen et par M. Dobell? Je pense que le sénateur
Hays y a également fait allusion. Il est évident que vous ne
réussirez probablement pas 4 attirer ici un témoin de Paris. Ce
serait difficile. Comme vous I’avez mentionné cet aprés-midi,
nos amis de I’Office de I'énergie et d’autres se demandent si, en
ce qui concerne ’énergie, nous n’avons pas hypothéqué notre
avenir; on s’inquiéte également de la maniére dont sera inter-
prété Darticle relatif a la proportionnalité. Le sénateur Hays a
dit qu’il s’y intéressait tout particuliérement. Si nous sommes
incapables de tirer cette question au clair, étant donné que
vous avez laissé entendre qu’il ne convenait pas a ce moment-ci
d’inviter M. Toner et que M. Mitchell Sharp désire parler d’un
sujet autre que celui dont nous voulons traiter, que diriez-vous
d’envisager sérieusement I'idée—comme il y a, ici, au moins
trois personnes qui font partie du Comité sénatorial permanent
de I’énergie et des ressources naturelles—de faire de cette
question le sujet d’une enquéte approfondie? Nous pourrions
alors inviter ces personnes lorsque nous nous réunirons de nou-
veau. Il est évident que nous ne pourrons faire beaucoup en ce
qui a trait au projet de loi lui-méme, mais nous pourrions peut-
étre faire ceuvre utile, pour le Canada et le gouvernement, en
réalisant ce type d’étude. J’aimerais savoir ce qu’en pense le
sénateur Hastings.

Le président: Le sénateur MacEachen, qu’en pensez-vous?
Je me préoccupe de notre tiche immédiate, qui est ’étude du
projet de loi C-2, et je pense qu’on veut, en général, que le
Sénat en finisse vers la fin de cette semaine avec ce projet de
loi.

Le sénateur Nurgitz: Bonne idée.

Le président: La question que je pose au sénateur MacEa-
chen est la suivante: la comparution d’un représentant de
I'EA est-elle essentielle pour accéder 4 ce qui semble étre le
veeu de la majorité?

Le sénateur MacEachen: Non. Je ne dis pas que le projet de
loi ne sera pas adopté cette semaine si quelqu’un de I'I[EA ne
comparait pas, mais je ne suis pas trés convaincu par I’explica-
tion selon laquelle le gouvernement outrepasserait son role en
demandant 4 un membre de ’Agence de comparaitre. Aprés
tout, de nombreux Canadiens travaillent 4 Paris et connaissent
ces agences. Nous avons probablement un représentant 2
I’Agence internationale de I'énergie. Il est probablement trop
tard, maintenant, pour que le Comité puisse faire quoi que ce
soit. C’est mardi aujourd’hui. Toutefois, ma réponse est non, ce
n’est pas essentiel; par contre, je ne vois pas pourquoi je devrais
écouter M. Toner ou méme linviter ici puisqu’il n’a pas un sta-
tut comparable aux directeurs de I’Agence.

Le sénateur Bazin: Je suis d’accord avec le sénateur MacEa-
chen au sujet de M. Toner. Par ailleurs, en ce qui concerne M.
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question of Mitchell Sharp, it may well be, that the invitation
has gone out. If it has, it would be more difficult. It might be
better to try to schedule Barbara McDougall if she is available
to fill in that Thursday morning slot, or to appear on Thursday
morning instead of pushing everything back on Thursday
afternoon. If Mr. de Grandpré is here at 2 o’clock, it may take
more than one hour, and if Mr. Crosbie comes in afterwards,
we are then pushing into late Thursday, and I do not know if
the minister would be available then. However, it might be an
idea to see if she could be available on Thursday morning to
replace, or take some time on the schedule that was allocated
to Mitchell Sharp. ’

The Chairman: The next question I was going to raise was
the question of Mr. Sharp. [ am going to call on Mr. Dobell to
say something on this possible witness.

Mr. Dobell: I was asked to approach him and to invite him
to speak on countervail and anti-dumping. He said he would be
available to appear before us, although he really did not think
he had anything to say on countervail and anti-dumping, but
that he would, however, include some remarks on that subject.
He did say that he had been doing some work on the propor-
tionality question and particularly on problems faced by the
NEB, if it is monitoring, because it then must monitor not only
Canadian consumption but imputed American consumption.
The analysis sounded quite interesting. It was briefly
expressed. It was clear from past experience with Mitchell
Sharp that he is going to talk about what he is going to talk
about. My original notes have been to the effect of Mitchell
Sharp mainly on energy. He has accepted. I obviously could
still phone him and say that the committee, on reflection, has
decided it could use that time another way. However, it is pos-
sible to limit the time with him so as to have more time on the
anti-dumping and countervail. In other words, we could termi-
nate that meeting by 10, leaving two hours with the other wit-
ness.

The Chairman: That would seem to be an acceptable solu-
tion with regard to that proposal.

Senator Hays is proposing additional witnesses, as I under-
stand it, particularly on Chapter 18. Is that correct, senator?

Senator Hays: Mr. Chairman, I think it would be useful to
examine energy in the context of Article 18 and what has been
characterized as the vexed notion of going outside of the four
corners of the agreement to deal with the undoubted problems
we would have in a situation of energy shortage. I think it is
the same thing perhaps on Senator MacEachen’s mind and I
thought Senator Barootes had not a bad suggestion to the
effect that if there is no time for this committee to deal with it
as a whole committee, then perhaps some members who are
interested in it might be able to deal with it in a specific case.

The Chairman: Did you have names of witnesses to propose?

Senator Hays: No, not immediately, but the people that we
would be most interested in hearing from would be people in
the energy sector, because that is the area most likely to be a
problem, and it seems to me that the key thing in the whole

[Traduction)

Mitchell Sharp, I'invitation est peut-étre déja lancée, auquel
cas la situation est plus délicate. Il serait peut-étre préférable
d’essayer d’inviter M™ Barbara McDougall—si elle pouvait
venir jeudi matin—au lieu de tout repousser au jeudi aprés-
midi. Si M. de Grandpré est ici 4 14 heures, il se pourrait qu’il
faille plus d’une heure, et si M. Crosbie comparait par la suite,
cela nous améne assez tard dans I'aprés-midi de jeudi; je ne
sais pas si la ministre serait alors disponible. On devrait lui
demander si elle peut venir jeudi matin en remplacement de
M. Mitchell Sharp, ou lui allouer du temps prévu pour ce der-
nier. :

Le président: J’allais justement soulever la question de la
comparution de M. Sharp. Je vais demander @ M. Dobell de
nous dire quelque chose a ce sujet.

M. Dobell: On m’a demandé de communiquer avec lui et de
I'inviter 4 parler des droits compensatoires et antidumping. Il a
dit qu’il pourrait comparaitre devant nous, mais qu’il ne pen-
sait pas avoir grand-chose a dire au sujet des droits compensa-
toires et antidumping. Il a ajouté qu’il avait étudié la propor-
tionnalité et, en particulier, les problémes de contrdle de
I’Office national de I’énergie, qui devra 4 ce moment surveiller
non seulement la consommation canadienne, mais également la
consommation attribuée aux Américains. Son analyse semblait
fort intéressante, bien qu’il n’en ait parlé que briévement. De
ce que je sais de M. Mitchell Sharp, il parlera de ce qui I'inté-
resse. Dans mes notes, j'avais surtout associé M. Sharp a la
question de I’énergie. Il a accepté. Je pourrais encore lui télé-
phoner et lui dire que le Comité, réflexion faite, a décidé d’uti-
liser autrement cette période de temps. Il est toutefois possible
de limiter le temps que nous lui avons alloué, pour en avoir un
peu plus 4 consacrer aux questions des droits compensatoires et
antidumping. En d’autres mots, nous pourrions mettre fin a
’entretien que nous aurons avec lui @ 10 heures et consacrer
deux heures a 'autre témoin.

Le président: Cette solution me semble acceptable.

Le sénateur Hays propose, si je comprends bien, d’inviter
d’autres témoins, en ce qui concerne en particulier le Chapitre
18. Est-ce exact, sénateur?

Le sénateur Hays: Monsieur le président, je pense qu’il
pourrait étre utile d’examiner la question de 1’énergie dans le
contexte de l'article 18 et, bien qu’on ait dit que cela n’avait
rien 4 voir avec I’Accord, d’examiner les problémes que nous
aurons certainement s’il y a un jour une crise de ’énergie. Je
pense que cette question préoccupe également le sénateur
MacEachen et que le sénateur Barootes a eu une bonne idée en
proposant & certains membres qui s’y intéressent d’aborder la
question en parlant de cas particuliers, étant donné que le
Comité ne dispose pas d’assez de temps pour en traiter comme
le ferait un comité plénier.

Le président: Avez-vous des noms de témoins a proposer?

Le sénateur Hays: Non, pas maintenant, mais il serait cer-
tainement intéressant d’entendre des gens du secteur de 1’éner-
gie, parce que c’est celui qui causera probablement des diffi-
cultés, et il semble que le principal point de I’Accord soit
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agreement is Article 18. It will either live or die on Article 18
because that is the process by which changes will happen in the
two countries. To the extent that it is deficient, we should start
to become aware of that. To the extent that it is not deficient,
then fine.

The Chairman: Is this a matter which could be dealt with by
this committee or any other committee to which the Senate
delegates responsibility for observing the realization of the
intent of the agreement? If we cannot do it this week—

Senator Hays: I agree. The problem will not go away.

The Chairman: Are you saying it is essential for the passage
of Bill C-2?

Senator Hays: No more essential than any other item we
might be looking at. It surprises me that we would spend some
time on that key part of the agreement at this stage of our
deliberations when we could do it afterwards. It seems to me
that it could be dealt with in an energy context, because that is

the part of the agreement where we go all the way on day one,
essentially.

The Chairman: My problem, Senator Hays, is that you are
opening up an inviting prospect, but in such a general way I do
not see how it can be done this week. If you have the names of
two or three witnesses who can help the committee this week,
that is a different proposition all together; but in the enticing
but general way you put it, I do not know how I, as one mem-
ber of the committee, could react. Would you take it under

consideration? Perhaps you could give us some further guid-
ance.

Senator Hays: Certainly. I will speak to you, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: There is one other matter that was raised
with regard to witnesses, and that is the request from the
Assembly of First Nations. They requested last September
that they be given an opportunity to make a presentation, and
they renewed that request in a letter dated December 5 to the
Senate in this Parliament.

As Mr. Dobell has said, they have indicated great interest in
appearing. The informal group felt that it was not in a position
to deal conclusively with this request, but we have to deal with
it conclusively now.

Senator Frith: Mr. Chairman, we would have to change our
whole approach in order for us to justify hearing them. I know
they are keen on coming, but I know of groups in Saskatche-
wan and British Columbia that are keen on coming because
they want to talk about the whole agreement. We have decided
that we are going to hear people like that in due course; but for
the purpose of these two days, we only want to lay groundwork
for the longer haul when I hope we will hear them. I would like
to hear their views on land claims, for example, but I do not
see how we can justify hearing them without changing our
whole modus operandi. 1 don’t know how we can say no to
them if we say yes to these other groups, as much as I would
like to hear them.

The Chairman: Anyone else?

[Traduction]

I'article 18. Cet Accord survivra ou mourra selon I’évolution de
l'article 18, c’est-a-dire du processus en vertu duquel des chan-
gements surviendront dans les deux pays. S’il est inapproprié,

il faudrait commencer 4 en prendre conscience. Sinon, c’est
parfait.

Le président: S’agit-il d’'une question qui pourrait étre trai-
tée par notre Comité ou tout autre comité auquel le Sénat
délégue la responsabilité de s’assurer que l'esprit de I’Accord
est respecté? Si nous ne le pouvons pas cette semaine . . .

Le sénateur Hays: Bien siir, le probléme ne disparaitra pas.

Le président: Dites-vous que c’est essentiel pour I’adoption
du projet de loi C-2?

Le sénateur Hays: Pas plus essentiel que toute autre ques-
tion que nous pourrions examiner. Cela m’étonne que cette
partie importante de I’accord retienne notre attention a ce
moment-ci, alors que nous pourrions I’examiner 4 un autre
moment. Nous pourrions 1’étudier avec les autres questions
énergétiques auxquelles nous allons consacrer le premier jour
de nos délibérations.

Le président: Assurément, sénateur Hays, vous soulevez une
perspective intéressante, mais en termes assez généraux que je
me demande si nous allons pouvoir I’examiner cette semaine.
Si vous connaissez deux ou trois témoins qui pourraient nous
éclairer, ce serait différent; mais de la fagon générale, quoique
séduisante, dont vous soulevez la question, je ne sais trop quoi
en penser en ma qualité de membre du Comité. Voulez-vous la
reconsidérer? Peut-&tre auriez-vous des précisions 4 nous
apporter.

Le sénateur Hays: Certainement. Je vous en reparlerai,
monsieur le président.

Le président: En ce qui concerne les témoins, nous avons la
requéte de I’Assemblée des Premiéres Nations. En septembre
dernier, celles-ci avaient voulu venir témoigner et elles ont
renouvelé leur demande dans une lettre adressée au Sénat le 5
décembre.

Comme M. Dobell I’a dit, les Premiéres Nations souhaitent
vivement témoigner. Le groupe que nous avons formé a jugé

qu’il ne pouvait pas décider de cette requéte, et c’est a nous de
décider maintenant.

Le sénateur Frith: Monsieur le président, si nous décidons
de les entendre, il nous faudrait modifier totalement notre
ligne de conduite. Je sais qu’ils tiennent a venir témoigner,
mais je connais d’autres groupes, en Saskatchewan et en
Colombie-Britannique, qui souhaiteraient également nous
entretenir de I'accord en général. Nous avons décidé que nous
entendrions ces gens-1a en temps et lieu. Comme nous n’avons
que deux jours 4 notre disposition, nous ne pouvons que pren-
dre des dispositions pour les entendre ultérieurement. Nous
aimerions connaitre leurs vues sur les revendications territoria-
les par exemple, et je me demande comment nous pourrions les
entendre ces jours-ci sans changer radicalement notre appro-
che. Je me demande comment nous pourrions dire non aux uns
et oui aux autres.

Le président: Quelqu’un d’autre?
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Senator Frith: Unless they have something on energy or
agriculture and want to give us some information on these spe-
cific points that we have covered, I don’t see how we can jus-
tify hearing them and at the same time refuse to hear others
who are equally keen.

The Chairman: At the moment you appear to be a distinct
minority, Senator Frith. He is alone.

Some Hon. Senators: No!

The Chairman: Now I hear a clamour, but I do not hear any
one person.

Senator Nurgitz: I am a clamourer for Frith.

Senator Doyle: From what Mr. Dobell has said, we could
anticipate having a delegation of some size. My experience
here in the Senate dealing with delegations of some size is that
it cannot be done quickly. You may as well put a day aside for
it. I do not think that we can attend to our purposes here if we
do that. Yes, I am agreeing with Senator Frith.

The Chairman: You are saying that if they came, we would
almost inevitably be giving them a short shift.

Senator Doyle: We would, yes, and they would feel it very
much if we ushered them in and ushered them out after a few
questions on a single subject. They want to talk about it
broadly, and I think there should be a forum for that, if they
have not already appeared before the Foreign Affairs Commit-
tee. I do not whether they have or not.

Mr. Dobell: They appeared before the Senate in the House
committee.

Senator Doyle: They were in the House committee, so they
were heard at some point in the Senate, but I do not think it is
essential to this kind of tight—

Senator Frith: Focus.

Senator Doyle: —assessment or reassessment of what has
been going on. That is a single opinion, but it supports what
Senator Frith has said.

The Chairman: We have two senators who tend to agree.

Senator Nurgitz: Three.
Senator Kelly: Four.

The Chairman: Senators Kelly and Nurgitz. Is there general
agreement then?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: I understand. There is one other—
Senator Frith: We have got an expanding minority here.
Senator Hastings: Are you leaving witnesses until the end?

The Chairman: Yes. Senator Hastings?

Senator Hastings: Could you go through agriculture again?
What did you end up saying?

Senator Fairbairn: That was my point.

Mr. Dobell: What is actually proposed is that there will be
produced tomorrow from the Canadian Federation of Agricul-
ture a detailed commentary on the issues they raised when

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Frith: A moins qu’ils aient quelque chose & nous
dire sur I’énergie ou l'agriculture et qu’ils veulent commenter
les points que nous avons examinés, pouvons-nous nous per-
mettre d’entendre ceux-1a et refuser le méme privilége aux
autres.

Le président: Pour le moment, votre point de vue est trés
minoritaire, sénateur Frith. Il est le seul.

Des voix: Non.

Le président: J’entends des protestations, mais aucune voix
distincte. ;

Le sénateur Nurgitz: Je suis partisan de Frith.

Le sénateur Doyle: D’aprés ce que nous a dit M. Dobell,
nous pourrions recevoir une assez grosse délégation. Chaque
fois que le Sénat a eu affaire 4 de fortes délégations, il a fallu
du temps pour les entendre. Cela prendrait peut-étre un jour

entier. Est-ce bien cela que nous voulons? Oui, je suis d’accord
avec le sénateur Frith.

Le président: Vous dites que s’ils se présentaient, nous
n’aurions que peu de temps 4 leur consacrer.

Le sénateur Doyle: C’est vrai, et ils seraient vexés si nous
nous contentions de leur poser quelques questions sur un seul
sujet. Elles veulent traiter de questions générales et je pense
qu’elles ont raison, si elles n’ont pas déja témoigné devant le
Comité des affaires étrangéres. C’est ce que j'ignore.

M. Dobell: Elles ont témoigné devant le comité plénier du
Sénat.

Le sénateur Doyle: Si elles ont témoigné devant le comité
plénier, elles ont donc été entendues par le Sénat, mais je ne
pense pas que ce soit essentiel . . .

Le sénateur Frith: Attention!

Le sénateur Doyle: .. .4 cette évaluation ou réévaluation

serrée. C’est une opinion personnelle, mais j’appuie le sénateur
Frith.

Le président: Nous avons deux sénateurs qui semblent du
méme avis.

Le sénateur Nurgitz: Trois.
Le sénateur Kelly: Quatre.

Le président: Les sénateurs Kelly et Nurgitz. C’est le senti-
ment général alors?

Des voix: D’accord.
Le président: Je vois. Il y a un autre. . .
Le sénateur Frith: Nous avons une minorité qui grandit.

Le sénateur Hastings: Vous reportez les témoins jusqu’a la
fin?

Le président: Oui. Sénateur Hastings?

Le sénateur Hastings: Pouvons-nous revenir a ’agriculture?
Qu’avez-vous dit au juste?

Le sénateur Fairbairn: C’était mon point.

M. Dobell: On propose d’entendre demain des représentants

de la Fédération canadienne de I’agriculture qui reprendraient
en détail les questions qu’ils avaient soulevées devant le comité
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they appeared before the committee at the end of August.
They raised a number of items that they wanted the govern-
ment to consider. Some of those things have been done and
others have not. This is a report on what has happened. The
same goes for the Canadian Egg Marketing Agency which also
raised a number of concerns. In their case, I already have their
paper and it has been given to the Chairman.

Senator Hastings: I wondered if David Orchard of Sas-
katoon might not be valuable in that area of agriculture to
guide us.

Mr. Dobell: Who was that?

Senator Hastings: David Orchard or Donald Orchard. I am
only suggesting that.

Mr. Dobell: The reason I did it the way I did is that the
group specifically asked that it be the Federation of Agricul-
ture’s views that are expressed.

The Chairman: When they appeared here they said that
they had serious, specific problems and that there were ongo-
ing conversations with the government. They hoped that many,
if not all, of these problems could be cleared up before January
1. What was in mind was that they would come in and tell us
what progress had been made in dealing with the specific prob-
lems which they identified. In other words, it was not opening
up the whole question of agriculture; it was the specific presen-
tation of the Canadian Federation of Agriculture and the
problems that they identified. That is why it was as limited as
it was, Senator Hastings.

Senator Fairbairn: Is there no way that we could get a live
body from the executive of the CFA? It seems to me it would
be much more useful to have someone to question.

Mr. Dobell: The difficulty is that apart from the presi_dcnt
and one vice-president, each heads a segment, whether it be
cattlemen, grain growers, wine growers or different groups.
They are very sensitive of the fact that they have to balance
their various interests. They are prepared to come, but not on
this occasion. When they came before, there were about eight
or nine members, and there was a very careful balancing.

The other possibility that I explored was having th; staff
who are working here in Ottawa attend. The problem is they
are junior people and would not have the confidence of their
executive.

The Chairman: I am now moving away from witnesses and
programming to one other matter that I wanted to raise.

You will recall that on June 21, in Issue No. 26 of the
Minutes of Proceedings of this committee, the committee pub-
lished a staff memorandum on “dispute-settlement”. This was
based on the meetings of the committee held in Washington,
D.C., on May 25 and 26, 1988. In the interim a staff memo-
randum on energy and the Free Trade Agreement was pre-
pared. This was circulated to the members of the committee by
the Clerk of the Committee. The proposal is that that paper be
printed as an appendix to the Minutes of the Proceedings of
this committee. Is that acceptable?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.
The Chairman: Carried.

[Traduction]

a la fin d’aoit. Ils avaient soumis au gouvernement un certain
nombre de questions. Certaines ont été examinées; d’autres,
pas. En somme, ils feraient le point sur la question. Il en va de
méme pour I’Office de commercialisation des ceufs qui avait
fait part de certaines inquiétudes. L’Office a déja remis un
document au président.

Le sénateur Hastings: Je me demande si David Orchard de
Saskatoon ne pourrait nous donner des conseils intéressants a
ce sujet.

M. Dobell: Oui?

Le sénateur Hastings: David Orchard ou Donald Orchard.
Ce n’est qu’une suggestion.

M. Dobell: J’ai agi ainsi, parce que le groupe avait expressé-
ment demandé de connaitre les vues de la Fédération de I’agri-
culture.

Le président: Quand ils sont venus témoigner, ils nous
avaient dit qu’il y avait des problémes graves et qu’ils avaient
des discussions permanentes avec le gouvernement. Ils espé-
raient qu’un bon nombre de ces problémes, sinon tous, seraient
réglés avant le 1* janvier. Nous avions cru qu’ils pourraient
venir faire le point sur ces questions. Autrement dit, il ne
s’agissait pas de parler d’agriculture en général; la Fédération
aurait fait le point sur des problémes qu’elle avait cernés. C’est
pourquoi c’était limité, sénateur Hastings.

Le sénateur Fairbairn: Ne pourrions-nous pas avoir un
représentant du conseil de la Fédération? Ce serait beaucoup
plus utile si nous avions un témoin 4 interroger.

M. Dobell: C’est qu’a ’exception du président et d’un vice-
président, chaque membre représente un secteur particulier: les
éleveurs, les céréaliers, les viticulteurs, etc. Ils savent fort bien
qu’ils doivent mettre en équilibre leurs différents intéréts. Ils
veulent bien venir, mais pas cette fois-ci. La derniére fois, ils
étaient huit ou neuf représentants qui ont défendu un point de
vue tres équilibreé.

Il'y a aussi la possibilité de convoquer des personnes en poste
a Ottawa. Mais ce ne sont pas des cadres supérieurs, et ils ne
peuvent donc pas parler au nom de leur exécutif.

Le président: Laissons de coté les témoins et ’ordre du jour
pour passer a une autre question.

Vous vous souviendrez que dans la fascicule n° 26 du 21 juin
dernier, le comité a publié un compte rendu sur les mécanismes
de reglements des différends. Ce document découlait des réu-
nions que le Comité a tenues & Washington les 25 et 26 mai
1988. Depuis, on a rédigé un document sur I’énergie et
’Accord de libre-échange. Le greffier en a remis un exem-
plaire aux membres du comité. On propose maintenant que le

document soit annexé aux délibérations du comité. Etes-vous
d’accord.

Des voix: D’accord.
Le président: Adopté.
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Our taskmasters have arranged that we are to meet at eight
o’clock—approximately 25 minutes from now. The witnesses
are to be Mr. Don Campbell, Assistant Deputy Minister, U.S.
Branch, Department of External Affairs; Mr. Alan Nymark,
Assistant Chief Negotiator, Trade Negotiations Office; Mr.
Konrad von Finckenstein, Assistant Deputy Minister, Trade
Law, Department of Justice; and Mr. Sulzenko, Assistant
Chief Negotiator (Services and Investment), Trade Negotia-
tions Office.

The proposal is that we come back at 8.15 p.m. in this room.

The committee adjourned until 8.15 p.m.

Ottawa, Tuesday, December 27, 1988

The Standing Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs, to
which was referred Bill C-2, to implement the Free Trade
Agreement between Canada and the United States of
America, met this day at 8.15 p.m. to give consideration to the
bill.

Senator John B. Stewart (Antigonish Guysborough)
(Chairman) in the Chair.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, we have a reference
from the Senate on Bill C-2, which was passed at second read-
ing in the Senate earlier this day. We are starting a little late
because there was an organizational meeting of this committee
earlier this evening, and there was a good deal of business to be
done. We are now ready to begin our work.

We have with us this evening certain government officials,
who include: Mr. Don Campbell, Assistant Deputy Minister,
U.S. Branch, Department of External Affairs; Mr. Alan
Nymark, Acting Head and Assistant Chief Negotiator, Trade
Negotiations Office; Mr. Andrei Sulzenko, Assistant Chief
Negotiator (Services and Investment), Trade Negotiations
Office; and Mr. Konrad von Finckenstein, Assistant Deputy
Minister, Trade Law, Department of Justice.

If the witnesses have coordinated their forces and would like
to make a presentation, would they please proceed to do so?

Mr. Alan Nymark, Acting Head and Assistant Chief
Negotiator, Trade Negotiations Office: Mr. Chairman, I will
make my opening remarks very brief because I know you want
to get on with your review of Bill C-2 this evening.

Our main purpose here is to respond to any technical ques-
tions you have with respect to both the Free Trade Agreement
and the implementing legislation. We understand that you
have a legal analysis provided on dispute settlement, energy
and financial services, and those issues will arise during the
course of the hearings over the next couple of days. We have
specialists here who will be prepared to respond to those in
some detail. Questions may arise in those areas this evening as
we go through Bill C-2, and we will be prepared to respond to
them.

The minister will be appearing on Thursday. Clearly, he will
be dealing with the policy-oriented and future-oriented ques-
tions which you have on your mind.

[Traduction)

Nous allons nous réunir de nouveau a 20 heures, soit dans
environ 25 minutes. Nous aurons comme témoins M. Don
Campbell, sous-ministre adjoint, Secteur des Etats-Unis, du
ministére des Affaires extérieures; M. Alan Nymark, chef
négociateur adjoint, Bureau des négociations commerciales;
M. Konrad von Finckenstein, sous-ministre adjoint, Droit des
échanges commerciaux, ministére de la Justice et M. Sulzenko,
chef négociateur adjoint, (Services et Investissement), Bureau
des négociations commerciales.

Il est proposé que nous nous réunissions a 20 h 15 dans la
méme salle.

(Le Comité suspend ses travaux jusqu'a 20 h 15.)

Ottawa, le mardi 27 décembre 1988

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires étrangéres
auquel a été renvoyé le projet de loi C-2, Loi de mise en ceuvre
de I’Accord de libre-échange entre le Canada et les Etats-Unis
d’Amérique se réunit aujourd’hui & 20 h 15 pour étudier le
projet de loi.

Le sénateur John B. Stewart (Antigonish-Guysborough)
(président) occupe le fauteuil.

Le président: Honorables sénateurs, le Sénat nous a référé le
projet de loi C-2 qu’il a adopté en deuxiéme lecture un peu
plus tot aujourd’hui. Nous commengons un peu en retard, car
le Comité a tenu sa réunion d’organisation en début de soirée
et de nombreux points ont été soulevés. Nous voici donc main-
tenant préts & entamer notre travail.

Nous avons comme témoins ce soir quelques hauts fonction-
naires; M. Don Campbell, sous-ministre adjoint, Secteur des
Etats-Unis, ministére des Affaires extérieures; M. Alan
Nymark, chef intérimaire et négociateur en chef adjoint,
Bureau des négociations commerciales; M. Andrei Sulzenko,
négociateur en chef adjoint (Services et Investissement),
Bureau des négociations commerciales et M. Konrad von Finc-
kenstein, sous-ministre adjoint, Droit des échanges commer-
ciaux, ministére de la Justice.

Les témoins s’étant entendus, je leur demanderais mainte-
nant de faire leur présentation.

M. Alan Nymark, chef intérimaire et négociateur en chef
adjoint, Bureau des négociations commerciales: Monsieur le
président, je ferai quelques remarques liminaires trés bréves
parce que je sais que vous voulez vous mettre d I’étude du pro-
jet de loi C-2 ce soir.

Nous sommes ici essentiellement pour répondre a toute
question de procédure que vous auriez au sujet de ’Accord de
libre-échange et de sa loi de mise en ceuvre. Je crois savoir
qu’on vous a fourni une analyse juridique du mécanisme de
réglement des différends, des services en matiére d’énergie et
de finances, questions qui surgiront pendant les audiences des
prochains jours. Nous aurons des spécialistes qui seront préts a
répondre 4 ces questions dans le détail. Mais, ce soir déja,
I'examen du projet de loi C-2 pourrait susciter des questions
auxquelles nous sommes disposés a répondre.

Le ministre comparaitra jeudi. Il est clair qu’il abordera les
questions d’orientation générale ainsi que celles concernant
I'avenir.
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In a sense, Bill C-2 and its predecessor, Bill C-130, deal with
the past in that the only purpose of this legislation is to put
into legislative form an agreement which was struck between
our two governments in principle a year ago October and then
in final form as presented to the House of Commons a little
over a year ago. It has no other purpose. It does no less and it
does no more.

As for the present, we have been making preparations to
implement this agreement on the assumption that since the
election it may be possible to do so as early as January 1. We
are ready to do that, to turn the key if, through your delibera-
tions, we are ready as early as that time.

As for the future, it is quite clear that the Canada-U.S. Free
Trade Agreement is a living document. It opens a great‘dcal of
scope as far as monitoring of policies and practices in b.oth
countries. There are requirements for exchange of information.
There are numerous working groups which are established by
the agreement and, indeed, in certain cases there are negotia-
tions, most notably in the subsidies trade remedy area, as well
as some others, including procurement services and autos,
which will take place over the next several years.

As officials here responsible for the negotiations which led
to the trade agreement, we are not really in a position to dpal
head on with those issues which will be coming down the pipe.
Probably those issues are more appropriate to be addressed to
the minister when he appears on Thursday.

With those opening remarks, we thought we migh_t turn next
to dealing with Bill C-2 specifically. Konrad von Finckenstein
is the Assistant Deputy Minister, Trade Law, Departmemlof
Justice. He was on loan to the Trade Negotiations Office
throughout the latter part of the negotiations and was respon-
sible for turning the agreement into legislative form on behalf
of the Department of Justice. He would be prepared to go
through the structure of Bill C-2 and, in particular, perhaps
point out some of the differences which may exist now between
Bill C-2 and Bill C-130.

Mr. Konrad von Finckenstein, Assistant Deputy Mi.niste.r,
Trade Law, Department of Justice: There was a minimalist
approach taken in drafting this legislation. The Free Trade
Agreement covers all sorts of areas of activity for the govern-
ment. We have examined all federal statutes and have deter-
mined the extent to which, in their present form, they are
inconsistent with the agreement, and we have changed those.
We have also provided new legislative footings for the new fea-
tures of the agreement which are not found in present
Canadian legislation, such as the Procurement Review Board.

Where there was a discretion in the legislation, eithe{ in the
government or the Governor General or the administration, we
have not changed those discretionary powers. We are proceed-
ing on the assumption that the government will be guided by
the Free Trade Agreement and exercise those discretionary
powers in accordance with the Free Trade Agreement and not
contrary to it.

[Traduction]

En un sens, le projet de loi C-2 et son prédécesseur, le projet
de loi C-130, portent sur le passé, du fait que cette loi a pour
unique objet de donner une forme législative a un accord de
principe qui‘a été conclu entre nos deux gouvernements il y a
un an en octobre, et qui a été adopté ensuite sous sa forme
définitive par la Chambre des communes il y a un peu plus
d’un an. C’est son unique but. Elle ne fait rien de plus ni rien
de moins.

Pour le moment, nous sommes a préparer la mise en ceuvre
de cet accord en partant de I’hypothése que, depuis les élec-
tions, cela pourrait se produire dés le 1° janvier. Nous serons
préts du moment que, de votre c6té, vos délibérations nous per-
mettent d’aller de I’avant.

Pour ce qui est de I'avenir, il est clair que I’Accord de libre-
échange entre le Canada et les Etats-Unis est un document
vivant. Il ouvre d’immenses perspectives sur les plans de la sur-
veillance réciproque des politiques et des pratiques. Il com-
porte des exigences relatives a I’échange d’informations. De
multiples groupes de travail seront créés et, dans certains cas,
méme des négociations seront ouvertes, tout spécialement en
matiére de subventions, mais aussi dans d’autres domaines,
incluant les services d’achats publics et les automobiles, négo-
ciations qui auront lieu au cours des prochaines années.

En qualité de fonctionnaires chargés des négociations qui
ont débouché sur I’Accord de libre-échange, nous ne sommes
pas vraiment qualifiés pour aborder carrément les problémes
qui se poseront par la suite. Il serait plus indiqué que vous
posiez ces questions-la au ministre lors de sa comparution
jeudi.

Ces remarques préliminaires faites, nous avons pensé en
venir directement au projet de loi C-2. M. Konrad von Finc-
kenstein est sous-ministre adjoint, Droit des échanges commer-
ciaux, au ministere de la Justice. Il a été détaché au bureau des
négociations commerciales pendant la derniére phase des négo-
ciations et a été chargé de transposer 1’Accord en termes juri-
diques pour le compte du ministére de la Justice. Il serait heu-
reux de vous parler de la structure du projet de loi C-2 et de
vous signaler notamment certaines différences entre les projets
de loi C-2 et C-130.

M. Konrad von Finckenstein, sous-ministre adjoint, Droit
des échanges commerciaux, ministére de la Justice: La rédac-
tion de cette loi a été faite dans une perspective «minimaliste».
Comme I’Accord de libre-échange porte sur une foule de
domaines d’activité du gouvernement, nous nous sommes con-
tentés d’examiner toutes les lois fédérales, de repérer tous les
passages incompatibles avec I’Accord et de les modifier. Nous
avons également proposé de nouvelles bases législatives pour
les dimensions de I’Accord qui sont inédites par rapport 4 la
législation canadienne actuelle, par exemple pour la Commis-
sion de révision des marchés publics.

Partout ot la loi donne un pouvoir discrétionnaire au gou-
vernement, au gouverneur général ou 4 I’administration, nous
I’avons laissée telle quelle. Nous partons de I’hypothése que le
gouvernement tiendra compte de I’Accord de libre-échange et

exercera ses pouvoirs discrétionnaires conformément et non
contrairement 4 celui-ci.
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While we have amended 27 statutes, we have only amended
them to the extent required by the FTA. There may be other
things in those statutes which should be amended and are long
overdue to be amended. However, we have religiously stuck to
the rule that only amendments necessary to implement the
Free Trade Agreement be made. That was done in Bill C-130
and now in Bill C-2.

The bill itself is structured in five parts. The first part deals
with the approval of the agreement generally and the powers
that are required to implement the agreement. The second part
establishes the Procurement Review Board and gives the
necessary regulatory powers to put that whole process into
being. The third part is an amendment to the Special Import
Measures Act. It sets up the whole bi-national dispute settle-
ment mechanism of the agreement, which is an essential part
and a truly new part of the agreement. Part IV is consequen-
tial amendments to 26 other acts. The fifth part is the transi-
tional part and provides for the coming into force of the agree-
ment. There are three schedules annexed to the bill. The first
schedule is the Free Trade Agreement, and there are two tariff
schedules to the agreement.

Senator Hays: Those tariff schedules being the changes to
the Canadian Tariff Schedule and the changes to the U.S.
Tariff Schedule?

Mr. von Finckenstein: They are both changes to the
Canadian Tariff Schedules. One is the new tariff schedule, and
the second one is an exception to the new tariff schedule.

Mr. Chairman, if you are interested, I can point out for you
the differences between this Bill C-2 and Bill C-130. Between
the time that Bill C-130 passed through the house and Bill C-2
was introduced, two things happened: First, the revision of the
Statutes of Canada took place. That revision should take place
every 15 years, but on this occasion it was slightly late because
it has been 18 years since the last revision. Those Revised Stat-
utes of Canada were proclaimed into force on December 12 of
this year. That means that statutes passed between 1970 and
1988 have been consolidated and all of the amendments inte-
grated. That resulted in a renumbering of the statutes. There-
fore Bill C-2 has been redrafted to take into account the
changes arising from that revision of the Statutes of Canada.

Secondly, Bill C-130 had, aas a trigger date for all of the
various provisions of the Free Trade Agreement, the date of
January 1, 1989. We changed that to read the date of entry
into force of the agreement. This change was made because if
the legislation is not passed by January 1, we still have a valid
piece of legislation to which can be added a subsequent date.

Lastly, there were some errors in Bill C-130 which occurred
because of the timeframe within which it was drafted. We
have therefore corrected some of the errors that were pointed
out by the research staff working with the Senate committee.

Further, between the time that Bill C-130 was introduced
and Bill C-2 was introduced, three bills which had been before
the House of Commons—namely the Copyright Act, the Cus-
toms and Tariff Act and an Act to establish the Canadian

[Traduction)

Nous avons ainsi modifié 27 lois, mais seulement dans la
mesure requise par I’Accord. Je veux dire que bien d’autres
aspects de ces lois devraient étre modifiés et auraient dd I'étre
depuis longtemps, mais que nous nous en sommes religieuse-
ment tenus 4 la régle de ne modifier que les passages nécessai-
res 4 la mise en ceuvre de I’Accord. Cela avait été fait pour le
C-130 et de nouveau pour le C-2.

Le projet de loi comprend cing parties. La premiére traite de
I'approbation de I’Accord général et des pouvoirs requis pour
sa mise en ceuvre. La deuxiéme crée la Commission de révision
des marchés publics et confére les pouvoirs de réglementation
nécessaires au déclenchement de tout -ce processus. La troi-
siéme est une modification 4 la Loi sur les mesures spéciales
d’importation. Elle met sur pied tout le mécanisme binational
de réglement des différends prévu 4 1’Accord, qui en est une
partie essentielle et véritablement nouvelle. La Partie IV com-
prend les modifications corrélatives dans 26 autres lois. La
Partie V renferme les dispositions transitoires et celles relatives
a I'entrée en vigueur de I’Accord. Le projet de loi comprend
trois annexes: la premiére est I’Accord lui-méme, et les deux
autres sont des listes tarifaires.

Le sénateur Hays: Elles comprennent les modifications aux
listes tarifaires du Canada et des Etats-Unis?

M. von Finckenstein: Ce sont deux séries de changements
apportés aux listes tarifaires canadiennes. L’une est la nouvelle
liste tarifaire et le deuxiéme est une exception a cette nouvelle
liste.

Monsieur le président, si vous le désirez, je peux vous indi-
quer les différences entre le C-2 et le C-130. Entre le moment
de I'adoption du C-130 par la Chambre et le dépdt du C-2
devant celle-ci, deux choses se sont produites: il y a d’abord eu
la révision des Statuts du Canada. Cette révision doit normale-
ment avoir lieu tous les quinze ans, mais celle fois-ci, elle est
un peu en retard; en effet dix-huit ans se sont écoulés depuis la
derniére refonte. La nouvelle version des lois révisées du
Canada est entrée en vigueur le 12 décembre de cette année.
Aussi toutes les lois adoptées de 1970 a 1988 ont-elles été
refondues de maniére 4 intégrer toutes les modifications, et il a
fallu les renuméroter. Le projet de loi C-2 a donc été rerédigé
pour tenir compte des modifications découlant de la nouvelle
révision des lois du Canada.

En deuxiéme lieu, toutes les dispositions du C-130 étaient
congues en fonction du 1¢ janvier 1989. Nous avons modifié
cela et indiqué plutét la date d’entrée en vigueur de I'Accord.
Ainsi, si le projet de loi n’est pas adopté au 1° janvier, il
demeure valide; il suffira de préciser sa date d’entrée en
vigueur.

Enfin, compte tenu des délais trés serrés de rédaction, cer-
taines erreurs s’étaient glissées dans le projet de loi C-130.
Nous en avons corrigé quelques-unes qui nous avaient été sou-
lignées par le personnel de recherche travaillant pour le
Comité du Sénat.

Par ailleurs, entre le moment du dépdt du C-130 et du C-2,
trois autres projets de loi ont été adoptés par la Chambre, &
savoir la Loi sur le droit d’auteur, la Loi modifiant le tarif des
douanes et la Loi constituant le Tribunal canadien du com-
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International Trade Tribunal—were passed. Bill C-130 had
been written on the basis that those bills had not yet been
passed. Therefore Bill C-130 had at the end a transitional
provision saying that, in the event that these bills are passed
during the session, then the former amendments shall not
count and the new ones shall count. That provision, obviously,
will not now be required for Bill C-2; so we have drafted Bill
C-2 on the basis that these three relevant acts are now part of
the law.

If you are interested, Mr. Chairman, I can go through this
bill page by page and clause by clause in order to point out the
differences between this and the previous bill. However, I do
not want to waste your time, and so I am in your hands.

The Chairman: Mr. von Finckenstein, does that complete
your initial presentation?

Mr. Nymark: Yes it does, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: At this point, then, we will turn to the sena-
tors for their questions. I have a couple of questions. I thought
that the best thing to do would be to get rid of my questions
first. Then we can concentrate on the questions asked by other
senators and answered by the witnesses.

The questions I have are really formal. I am looking at

clause 8 which appears at page 4 of the bill. Clause 8 states
that:

The Agreement is hereby approved.
You will note that the language of the clause is in the indica-
tive mood and therefore I ask you, what is the function of that
clause in the bill? Perhaps I should put my question in another
way: If clause 8 were to be removed, would there be any legal

consequences for the performance of the terms of the agree-
ment?

Mr. von Finckenstein: That clause, Mr. Chairman, is essen-
tially the political statement by the Parliament of Canada that
it approves the agreement negotiated by the government. It
does not have any legal effect. It does not in any way take
away or give strength to the agreement as it stands. The agree-
ment once signed by the government, and once entered into
force, is, of course, a binding agreement on the Government of
Canada. This clause is a traditional one which is placed in the
various trade agreements entered into by Canada to ensure
that the Parliament of Canada has approved the agreement as
negotiated by the government.

The Chairman: For the purpose of my next question, I will
stay with Part I. We were told earlier that if the bill becomqs
law before January 1, 1989, the government will be in a posi-
tion to “turn the key”—I think that was the expression that
was used. With regard to the power to make regulations under
clause 9, which is there for the purpose of authorizing the Gov-
ernor in Council to make Orders in Council to give effect, in a
province, to Chapter VIII of the agreement, has the minister
had consultations with the provinces as provided for under
clause 9(3) so that as of January 1, 1989, any regulations that
may be necessary can be made? Have those consultations
taken place and, if so, with what provincial governments have
they taken place?

[Traduction]

merce extérieur. Le projet de loi C-130 avait été rédigé avant
qu’elles ne soient adoptées. Il comportait donc a la fin une dis-
position transitoire aux termes de laquelle, si les projets de loi
susmentionnés étaient adoptés durant la session, les modifica-
tions antérieures seraient nulles et non avenues, mais les nou-
velles seraient valables. Cette disposition n’est évidemment
plus nécessaire dans le projet de loi C-2 puisque nous I’avons
rédigé en tenant compte des trois nouvelles lois susmention-
nées.

Si vous le désirez, monsieur le président, je peux parcourir le
projet de loi page par page, article par article pour relever les
différences entre les deux projets de loi. Mais je ne tiens pas a
gaspiller votre temps et vous laisse décider.

Le président: Monsieur von Finckenstein, cela compléte-t-il
votre déclaration liminaire?

M. Nymark: Oui, monsieur le président.

Le président: Nous passons donc maintenant aux questions
des sénateurs. J’ai moi-méme une ou deux questions a poser; le
mieux est, me semble-t-il, que je les pose tout de suite; nous
passerons ensuite aux questions des autres sénateurs.

Mes questions sont de nature formelle. L’article 8 4 la page
4 du projet de loi est le suivant:

L’Accord est approuvé.

Le mode employé ici est 'indicatif. Ma question est la sui-
vante: Que fait cet article dans le projet de loi? Je pourrais la
formuler autrement: si on supprimait cet article, cela aurait-il

des conséquences sur la portée juridique des dispositions de
I’Accord.

M. von Finckenstein: Cet article, monsieur le président, est
essentiellement celui par lequel le Parlement du Canada
déclare politiquement qu’il approuve l’accord négocié par le
gouvernement. Il n’a aucun effet juridique. I1 ne donne
d’aucune fagon force a ’accord, et ne lui en 6te aucune. Une
fois qu’il est signé par le gouvernement et qu’il est entré en
vigueur, ’Accord lie évidemment le gouvernement du Canada.
Un article semblable figure dans tous les accords commerciaux
conclus par le Canada; il garantit que le Parlement du Canada
approuve I'accord négocié par le gouvernement.

Le président: Ma question suivante vise encore la Partie I.
On vient de nous dire que si le projet de loi est adopté avant le
1¢ janvier 1989, le gouvernement pourra «aller de I’avant—ije
crois que ce sont les mots mémes qui ont été utilisés plus tot.
En ce qui concerne le pouvoir de prendre des réglements prévu
a l'article 9, dont l'objet est d’autoriser le gouverneur en con-
seil de rendre des ordres en conseil donnant effet, dans une
province, au Chapitre VIII de I’Accord, le ministre a-t-il eu
avec les provinces les consultations prévues au paragraphe 9(3)
pour qu’au 1¢ janvier 1989 les réglements nécessaires puissent
étre pris? Ces consultations ont-elles eu lieu et, dans I’affirma-
tive, avec quels gouvernements provinciaux?
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Mr. Nymark: Mr. Chairman, clause 9 gives the federal gov-
ernment the power to make regulations in certain circum-
stances and to claim those regulations on a province-by-prov-
ince basis if certain provinces do not bring their laws, policies
and regulations into conformity with the Free Trade Agree-
ment.

Throughout the course of the negotiations and subsequently
over the last year, there have been numerous consultations
with the provinces at all levels, including officials and minis-
ters, having to do with wine and distilled spirits. Most recently,
the Minister of International Trade has written to all the pro-
vincial premiers, stating that it was his expectation that, in the
light of the previous consultations, the provinces would bring
their laws, policies and practices into conformity with the Free
Trade Agreement by January 1, 1989.

I must tell you that we have not had responses to this formal
minister’s letter from all of the provinces. I believe that, at the
moment, Ontario still has not responded, although I am not
exactly sure. It may be that, over this Christmas period, some
correspondence may have come in from the Province of
Ontario.

However, clause 9 provides for a situation where, come
January 1, 1989, if we were to find that a particular province
had not brought its laws, policies and practices into conform-
ity, we would then undertake consultations with those prov-
inces that were in that situation. That, Mr. Chairman, is the
kind of consultation which I think you are referring to. There-
fore, Mr. Chairman, always presuming that the agreement
enters into force as of that date, we will wait until January 1,
1989 to determine what provinces are in conformity and what
provinces are not.

The Chairman: So assuming that the agreement becomes
effective as of January 1, 1989, there might well be some
weeks—and perhaps even months—in which Canada would be
in default because a provincial government had not, on its own
initiative, brought its regime into conformity with the require-
ments of the treaty.

On the other hand, the minister would not have held the
necessary consultations, and the Governor in Council would
not have passed the regulations necessary to impose the new
federal regime upon that province. Is that correct?

Mr. Nymark: Yes, that is correct. The same is true in the
United States as well.

Senator Frith: Pardon?

Mr. Nymark: The same is true with respect to the United
States to a similar degree, although the situation there is not
identical with the situation in Canada.

Senator Frith: Supplementary to what you were asking and
the answer that was given, Mr. Chairman, I understand that
the legal situation is different in the United States from what
it is in Canada. In the United States, I understand, treaties
must be ratified by the Senate and, when ratified, they become
the law of the land, whereas, in Canada they do not automati-
cally become the law of the land and there is some connection
between that and section 9. When you said that the same sit-

[Traduction)]

M. Nymark: Monsieur le président, I'article 9 confére au
gouvernement fédéral le pouvoir de prendre des réglements
dans certaines circonstances et d’obliger telle ou telle province
a les respecter lorsqu’elle n’a pas rendu ses lois, ses politiques
et ses réglements conformes a I’Accord de libre-échange.

Tout au long des négociations ainsi qu’au cours de I’an der-
nier, de nombreuses consultations ont eu lieu avec les provinces
a tous les niveaux, y compris celui des hauts fonctionnaires et
des ministres, pour ce qui est des vins et spiritueux. Tout der-
niérement, le ministre du Commerce extérieur a écrit 4 tous les
premiers ministres pour leur dire qu’il s’attendait que, compte
tenu des négociations antérieures, les provinces rendent leurs
lois, politiques et pratiques conformes a I’Accord de libre-
échange a compter du 1 janvier 1989.

Je dois dire que certaines provinces n’ont pas encore répondu
a cette lettre officielle du ministére. Je crois, par exemple, qu’a
I’heure actuelle, 'Ontario n’y a pas encore répondu, bien que
je n’en sois pas sir. Il se peut que les lettres aient été échan-
gées avec cette province durant la période des Fétes.

Quoi qu’il en soit, 'article 9 prévoit que, 4 compter du 1¢
janvier 1989, si une province n’a pas rendu ses lois, ses politi-
ques et ses pratiques conformes a 1’Accord, nous pourrions
entrer en consultation avec elle. Voild, monsieur le président,
le type de consultation auquel vous faites allusion, je crois. Par
conséquent, monsieur le président, toujours en supposant que
I’Accord entrera en vigueur a cette date-1a, nous attendrons
jusqu’au 1¢ janvier 1989 pour savoir quelles provinces sont en

régle et lesquelles ne le sont pas.

Le président: Tenant donc pour acquis que ’Accord entrera
en vigueur tel que prévu le 1 janvier 1989, il se pourrait que
pendant plusieurs semaines, voire plusieurs mois, le Canada
soit en situation irréguliére du fait qu'un gouvernement provin-
cial n’aura pas, de sa propre initiative, rendu sa législation con-
forme aux exigences du traité.

D’un autre cbté, le ministre n’aurait pas tenu les consulta-
tions nécessaires et le gouverneur en conseil n’aurait pas pris
les réglements requis pour imposer le nouveau régime fédéral a
cette province. Est-ce exact?

_ M. Nymark: Oui, ce 'est. Mais cela est également vrai des
Etats-Unis.

Le sénateur Frith: Pardon?

M. Nymark: Cela vaut également pour les Etats-Unis dans
une certaine mesure, bien que leur situation ne soit pas identi-
que a la nétre.

Le sénateur Frith: Pour faire suite & ce que vous demandiez
et 4 la réponse qu’on vous a donnée, monsieur le président, je
crois comprendre que la situation juridique n’est pas la méme
aux Etats-Unis et au Canada. Chez nos voisins, si je com-
prends bien, les traités doivent &tre ratifiés par le Sénat aprés
quoi ils s’appliquent au pays tout entier. Au Canada, cela ne se
fait pas automatiquement et il y a un certain lien entre cela et
Particle 9. Lorsque vous avez dit que la méme situation s’appli-
que aux Etats-Unis, faisiez-vous allusion a autre chose?
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uation applies in the United States, were you referring to
something other than what I just said?

Mr. Nymark: Yes, that is true. There are two responses to
your question. One is a legal one. You are not quite correct in
your assumption so far as the United States goes. Perhaps I
could ask Mr. von Finckenstein to comment on that.

The second response to your question is a more practical one
given the legal response in that I think the United States would
assume that state governments would move to bring their laws
and practices into conformity with the agreement.

Mr. von Finckenstein: Senator, what you said was abso-
lutely correct insofar as a treaty is concerned. The Free Trade
Agreement is not a treaty. In American parlance there is a big
difference between a treaty, an executive agreement and a
trade agreement. Here we are talking about a trade agree-
ment. Under the Constitution of the U.S., trade is a matter for
Congress to decide. On the other hand, the making of interna-
tional agreements is for the President to decide, the executive.

In order to solve this seeming contradiction in the Constitu-
tion, you have the procedure which they have adopted called
the “fast-track procedure” where the President negotiates and
Congress implements. That is what happens in this instance. If
there were no congressional implementation legislation in the
U.S.,, the agreement negotiated by the President would have no
force and effect. It is not a treaty in the formal sense.

Senator Frith: You have to just complete what you are say-
ing. You have to go on and say, “... and, in the case of a
trade agreement, which is different from a treaty, there is no
automatic application to the state laws in terms of overriding
state laws as is the case with a treaty.” That is implied in what
you said. A trade agreement has to be implemented state by
state.

Mr. von Finckenstein: No. It depends on what the trqde
agreement says. In this particular case, the U.S. implementing
legislation says that it does override inconsistent state leggsla-
tion. It specifically says so in the U.S. implementation legisla-
tion.

However, it goes on to say that any such action can only be
taken by the U.S. government; it cannot be taken by a private
person. If there were, for example, inconsistent Georgia State
legislation, it would fall because of the conflict with the federal
U.S. legislation; but the only party who could take action to
have the Georgia state legislation declared invalid would be
the United States of America.

Senator Frith: What provoked my intervention in the first
place was that it is not correct to say the situation is the same
in the United States as in Canada in terms of automatic over-
ride or automatic implementation. There is more required on
the Canadian side than on the U.S. side once Congress has
implemented the trade agreement.

[Traduction)

M. Nymark: En effet. Il y a deux réponses a votre question.
La premiére est d’ordre juridique. Votre hypothése en ce qui
concerne les Etats-Unis n’est pas tout 4 fait exacte. Je pourrais
peut-étre demander 4 M. Finckenstein de vous répondre la-
dessus.

Quant a la deuxiéme réponse & votre question, elle est beau-
coup plus pratique étant donné I'autre de nature juridique, en
ce sens qu'a mon avis les Etats-Unis supposeraient que les
administrations des Etats rendraient leurs lois et leurs prati-
ques conformes a 1’ Accord.

M. Finckenstein: Sénateur, vous avez tout 4 fait raison en ce
qui concerne les traités. Or I’Accord de libre-échange n’est pas
un traité. Pour les Américains, il existe une grande différence
entre un traité, un accord entre chefs d’Etat et un accord com-
mercial. Dans le cas qui nous intéresse, nous parlons d’un
accord commercial. En vertu de la Constitution des Etats-
Unis, les décisions en matiére commerciale relévent du Con-
gres. Par ailleurs, lorsqu’il s’agit de conclure des accords inter-

nationaux, c’est au Président, 4 ’Exécutif, de prendre les déci-
sions.

Pour supprimer cette contradiction apparente dans la Cons-
titution, il y a la procédure d’autorisation accélérée que les
Etats-Unis ont adoptée et selon laquelle le Président peut
négocier un accord que le Congrés met en ceuvre. Cest ce qui
se passe dans ce cas-ci. S’il n’y avait aucune loi de mise en
ceuvre du Congrés aux Etats-Unis, I’Accord négocié par le Pré-
sident n’aurait aucun effet. Ce n’est pas un traité dans le sens
formel.

Le sénateur Frith: Vous avez simplement 4 terminer vos
propos. Vous devez poursuivre en disant, «... et, dans le cas
d’un accord commercial, lequel différe d’un traité, il n’y a pas
application automatique aux lois des Etats, pour ce qui est
d’outrepasser ces derniéres, comme c’est le cas avec un traité.»
C’est ce que vous laissez entendre dans vos propos. Un accord
commercial doit étre mis en ceuvre Etat par Etat.

M. Finckenstein: Non. Cela dépend de ce que stipule
I’accord commercial. Dans ce cas particulier, la loi de mise en
ceuvre des Etats-Unis dispose que ’Accord I’emporte sur les
lois incompatibles des Etats. C’est ce que la loi de mise en
ceuvre des Etats-Unis précise bel et bien.

Toutefois, elle précise également que toute mesure de ce
genre ne peut étre prise que par le gouvernement des Etats-
Unis; elle ne peut I’étre par un particulier. Si, par exemple, une
loi de I’Etat de la Georgie était incompatible avec la loi fédé-
rale, elle cesserait de s’appliquer parce qu’elle entre en conflit
avec la loi fédérale des Etats-Unis, mais seul le gouvernement
des Etats-Unis d’Amérique pourrait prendre des mesures pour
déclarer invalide la loi de I'Etat de la Georgie.

Le sénateur Frith: Ce qui au départ m’a poussé 2 intervenir,
c’est qu'il est inexact de dire que la situation est la méme dans
les deux pays en ce qui concerne le pouvoir de révision automa-
tique ou la mise en ceuvre automatique. La loi canadienne sera

plus exigeante que la loi américaine lorsque le Congrés aura
mis I’Accord en ceuvre.
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Mr. von Finckenstein: You are absolutely right. In Canada,
you need a set of regulations and in the U.S. you do not need
the regulations.

Mr. Nymark: I did not want to convey the impression that it
was identical at all, but it is similar in that, regardless of the
legal situation in the United States, it is expected that consul-
tations with the states will take place and that the states will
undertake their own amendments.

Senator Stollery: I was curious with regard to the five- and
seven-year period during which a great many decisions will be
made that, I suppose, in Canada, will be implemented by way
of regulation. Is section 9 the authorizing section? I see Mr.
von Finckenstein shaking his head.

Mr. von Finckenstein: Section 9 &eals only with the provi-
sions of Chapter 8. Those are the provisions regarding wine
and alcoholic spirits.

The negotiations that will take place in the United States in
the next five to seven years will concern subsidies. Assuming
that the negotiations result in agreement, that agreement will
be subject to implementing legislation on both sides of the bor-
der. You would require amendments to Canadian legislation
and you would require amendments to U.S. legislation in order
to implement the subsidy agreement.

Senator Stollery: There obviously will be discussions as to
what are and what are not subsidies over the next five years.
When agreement is reached it will not be the sort of agreement
that can be authorized in Canada by way of regulation. Am I
correct that it will require legislation?

The Chairman: Could we leave that question for now,
because we were dealing with another subject?

Senator Stollery: I brought the matter up because I thought
we were dealing with regulations.

Senator Hays: I do not have it with me, but I seem to recall
reviewing an opinion prepared by Arnold and Porter for the
Department of Justice with respect to the binding nature of the
agreement on states and, if I remember correctly, the opinion
said that it was binding on states in the U.S. Is that different
as to whether it is a treaty or whether it is an international
agreement?

Mr. von Finckenstein: You are dealing with a trade agree-
ment and a trade agreement has to be negotiated by the Presi-
dent and authorized by Congress. The implementing legisla-
tion for the Canada-U.S. Free Trade Agreement specifically
provides that in case of conflict between the provisions of this
legislation and state law, the provisions of this U.S. legislation
overrides.

Senator Hays: Is that true whether it is a treaty or an inter-
national agreement, or is there a distinction?

The Chairman: May 1 ask a question? Am I correct in
thinking that the U.S. regards this agreement as made under
the commerce clause which is a power of the Congress, a
power quite different from the treaty power?

[Traduction)

M. Finckenstein: Vous avez tout a fait raison. Au Canada,
on a besoin d’une série de réglements, ce qui n’est pas le cas
aux Etats-Unis.

M. Nymark: Je ne voulais pas du tout donner I'impression
que c’était la méme chose, mais les situations se ressemblent
du fait que, peu importe la situation juridique aux Etats-Unis,
on s’attend 4 des consultations avec les Etats et 4 des modifica-
tions de leur part.

Le sénateur Stollery: J’étais curieux au sujet de la période
de cinqg 4 sept ans au cours de laquelle un grand nombre des
décisions qui seront prises, je suppose, au Canada, seront mises
en ceuvre au moyen de réglements. L’article 9 est-il I'article
d’autorisation? Je vois que M. Finckenstein hoche de la téte.

M. Finckenstein: L’article 9 ne porte que sur les questions
prévues au chapitre 8. Il s’agit des dispositions concernant les
vins et spiritueux.

Les négociations qui se tiendront aux Etats-Unis au cours
des cinqg 4 sept prochaines années porteront sur les subventions.
A supposer que I’on s’entende, il faudra adopter des lois de
mise en ceuvre de part et d’autre de la frontiére. Des modifica-
tions s'imposeraient 4 la loi canadienne ainsi qu’a la loi améri-
caine pour mettre en ceuvre I’accord sur les subventions.

Le sénateur Stollery: Au cours des cinq prochaines années,
on discutera de toute évidence de la définition de ce qui consti-
tue une-subvention. L’accord auquel on parviendra ne sera pas
du genre qui peut étre autorisé au Canada au moyen de régle-
ments. Ai-je raison de croire qu’il exigera une mesure législa-
tive?

Le président: Pourrions-nous laisser tomber cette question
pour I'instant vu que nous traitions d’un autre sujet?

Le sénateur Stollery: J’ai soulevé la question parce que je
croyais que nous parlions de réglementation.

Le sénateur Hays: Je n’ai pas ce document en main mais il
me semble me rappeler avoir examiné une opinion préparée
par la firme Arnold and Porter pour le ministére de la Justice
et qui portait sur la nature exécutoire de I'accord pour les
Etats. Si je me souviens bien, on y disait que les Etats améri-
cains étaient liés par I’Accord. Y a-t-il une différence selon
qu’il s’agisse d’un traité ou d’un accord international?

M. Finckenstein: Vous avez affaire a un accord commercial
et tout accord commercial doit étre négocié par le Président et
autorisé par le Congres. La Loi de mise en ceuvre de I’Accord
de libre-échange Canada-Etats-Unis dispose précisément qu’en
cas de conflit entre les dispositions de cette loi et la loi d’un
Etat, ce sont les dispositions de la loi américaine qui ’empor-
tent.

Le sénateur Hays: En va-t-il de méme qu’il s’agisse d’un
traité ou d’un accord international ou y a-t-il une distinction?

Le président: Puis-je poser une question? Ai-je raison de
penser que les Etats-Unis considérent cet accord comme s’il
avait été accepté par le Congres en vertu de son pouvoir en
matiére commerciale et qu’il s’agit 1a d’un pouvoir tres diffé-
rent du pouvoir en matiére de traités?
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Mr. von Finckenstein: Correct. You are absolutely correct.
It is a trade agreement which is made under dual powers, the
commerce power of Congress and the President’s power to
negotiate international agreements. It is not a treaty, because a
treaty, as Senator Frith pointed out, if negotiated, has to be
approved by two-thirds of Congress. If it is approved by two-
thirds of Congress, in effect, it is binding on everybody.

Senator Hays: You have answered my question. Whether it
is a treaty or an international agreement, U.S. law, so far as
we are concerned, is clear that it binds state governments.

Mr. von Finckenstein: Absolutely.

Senator Hays: And this may or may not be the case in
Canada. I do not want to get into that, at least not right now.

Senator Stollery: On the question of regulation, I am left
unclear as to what would happen if the dispute that arises is
over a regulation. Could not a dispute arise over a regulation?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Yes.

Senator Stollery: If that happened and it were settled in
Canada, then it would not have to go before Parliament, would
it?

Mr. von Finckenstein: That is right.

Senator Stollery: It would be a change in the regulations.

Mr. von Finckenstein: Yes.

Senator Stollery: Regulations, then, may be subject to dis-
pute in the five-to seven-year period but if, in fact, the ruling
in the five- to seven-year period goes against Canada and
Canada has to change that regulation, I suppose that is where

the implementation of section 9 of the agreement would come
in.

Mr. Nymark: You are right and you are wrong. First, the
five-to-seven- year period deals only with subsidies.

Senator Stollery: I understand that.

Mr. Nymark: Clause 9(1) has to do with regulations dealing
only with wine and distilled spirits. However, you are correct
in saying that throughout the agreement regulations which
give effect to policies which may be contrary to the FTA are
challengeable under the dispute settlement process, and if
challenged under the dispute settlement process and found to
require amendment, they would not necessarily have to come
before Parliament to be amended.

The Chairman: I have a second question. I am looking at
clause 77.22. It authorizes the government to pay members of
any panel, “such remuneration and is entitled to such travel
and living expenses incurred in the performance of the mem-
ber’s duties under this Part as are fixed by the Canada-United
States Trade Commission established pursuant to the Free
Trade Agreement.” [ take it that you do not regard that as
appropriation.

Mr. von Finckenstein: No. The appropriations for any pay-
ments such as will be required for the panels will be made by

[Traduction]

M. Finckenstein: C’est exact. Vous avez tout 4 fait raison. Il
s’agit d’un accord commercial conclu en vertu de deux pou-
voirs, le pouvoir du Congrés en matiére commerciale et le pou-
voir du Président de négocier des accords internationaux. Il ne
s’agit pas d’un traité parce que, comme I’a fait remarquer le
sénateur Frith, tout traité qui fait I'objet d’une négociation
doit étre approuvé par les deux tiers du Congres. S’il regoit
cette approbation, il devient exécutoire pour tout le monde.

Le sénateur Hays: Vous avez répondu & ma question. Qu’il
s’agisse d’un traité ou d'un accord international, la loi des
Etats-Unis, en ce qui nous corcerne, dit explicitement que
I’entente lie les administrations des Etats.

M. Finckenstein: Tout a fait.

Le sénateur Hays: Et cela peut étre le cas ou non au
Canada. Je ne veux pas aborder cette question, du moins pas
maintenant.

Le sénateur Stollery: En ce qui concerne les réglements, je
ne vois pas ce qui se produirait si le différend portait sur un
réglement. Cela ne pourrait-il pas arriver?

M. Finckenstein: Oui.

Le sénateur Stollery: Si cela se produisait et si le différend
était réglé au Canada, la question ne devrait-elle pas alors étre
devant le Parlement?

M. Finckenstein: C’est exact.

Le sénateur Stollery: Il s’agirait de modifications aux régle-
ments.

M. Finckenstein: Oui.

Le sénateur Stollery: Ainsi les réglements pourraient faire
I'objet d’un différend pendant cette période de cinq a sept ans
mais si, en fait, la décision au cours de cette période était ren-
due contre le Canada et que celui-ci devait modifier ce regle-
ment, je suppose que c’est la qu’interviendrait la mise en ceuvre
de l’article 9 de I’ Accord.

M. Nymark: Vous avez a la fois tort et raison. D’abord, la
période de cing a sept ans ne concerne que les subventions.

Le sénateur Stollery: Oui, bien sir.

M. Nymark: Le paragraphe 9(1) porte sur des réglements
qui concernent uniquement les vins et spiritueux. Toutefois, il
est exact de dire que, d’un bout 4 I’autre du texte de ’accord, il
existe des réglements nécessaires 4 la mise en ceuvre de politi-
ques, mais pouvant étre jugés contraires a I’Accord de libre-
échange et donc contestés en vertu du processus de réglement
des différends; si 'on jugeait que des modifications s’imposent,
il ne serait pas nécessaire de faire appel au Parlement.

Le président: J'ai une deuxiéme question. Il s’agit d’abord
de l'article 77.22, qui autorise le gouvernement a verser aux
membres des groupes spéciaux qui ont droit 4 des allocations
de voyage et de séjour, un traitement pour les frais engagés
dans I’exercice des fonctions qui leur sont confiées en applica-
tion de la partie II, traitement fixé par la Commission mixte
canado-américaine établie aux termes de 1’accord. Je présume
que vous ne considérez pas ces dépenses comme des crédits.

M. von Finckenstein: Non. Les dépenses engagées par ces
groupes seront remboursées conformément au paragraphe
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virtue of clause 12(3) which says that out of the present Exter-
nal Affairs vote you can pay such moneys as are required to be
paid by or on behalf of the Commission.

The Chairman: So this is not an appropriation bill in any
part?
Mr. von Finckenstein: No.

The Chairman: It follows then that there was no royal
recommendation? Is that correct?

Mr. von Finckenstein: The bill certainly does not appropri-
ate any money, but I do not recall—

The Chairman: I believe there was no royal recommenda-
tion, and that is what I want to ask about. It seems to me that
clause 12(3) at the top of page 6 does amend the Appropria-
tion Act and consequently that clause makes this bill an appro-
priation bill insofar as that clause is concerned. Let me read it:

The purposes specified in External Affairs Vote 1 set
forth in the Main Estimates for the fiscal year ending the
31st day of March, 1989, as laid before the House of
Commons during the second session of the thirty-third
Parliament, are extended to include expenditures incurred
by or on behalf of the Commission.

In other words, we have a change in the purpose of a vote of
Parliament and that has always been regarded as appropria-
tion.

Mr. von Finckenstein: There was a royal recommendation
as well as a ways and means motion with this bill. Whether
they are required by virtue of this clause is a fine point that we
can argue, but these costs have traditionally been taken from
External Affairs Vote 1, which is a general vote under which
the department expends its funds for its activities, which
include international agreements.

The Chairman: You say that there was a royal recommenda-
tion. It does not show up in my copy of the bill. But the copy I
have here is in the form that passed the House of Commons
rather than the first reading copy. If subclause 12(3) were not
in the bill, subclause 12(2) alone would not make this an
appropriation bill. That subclause says:

The Government of Canada shall pay one half of the
aggregate of any expenditures incurred by or on behalf of
the Commission.

Is that correct?

Mr. von Finckenstein: It is a re-statement of what is in the
agreement. It is an international obligation which we have
assumed.

The Chairman: But that money would have to be voted sepa-
rately by Parliament?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Absolutely, every year.

The Chairman: I have a final question. You indicated that
there will be a whole family of regulations to give effect to the
Free Trade Agreement. Will these regulations which relate to

[Traduction]

12(3), selon lequel la portée prévue du crédit 1 des Affaires
extérieures est étendue aux dépenses prises en charge par la
Commission ou en son nom.

Le président: Ce n’est donc pas un projet de loi de crédits?

M. von Finckenstein: Non.

Le président: Il s’ensuit qu’il n’y a alors pas eu de recom-
mandation royale, n’est-ce pas?

M. von Finckenstein: Le projet de loi ne porte certainement
pas affectation de crédits, bien que je ne me souvienne plus . . .

Le président: Je crois qu’il n’y a pas eu de recommandation
royale et c’est précisément ce que je demande. Il me semble
que le paragraphe 12(3), qui figure en haut de la page 6, modi-
fie la Loi des crédits et que, par conséquent, il fait de ce docu-
ment un projet de loi portant affectation de crédits dans la
mesure ou cet article est concerné. Ce paragraphe dit ceci:

La portée prévue du crédit 1 des Affaires extérieures
figurant au budget des dépenses principal pour I’exercice
se terminant le 31 mars 1989, déposé a la Chambre des
communes pendant la deuxiéme session de la 33¢ Législa-
ture, est étendue aux dépenses supportées par la Commis-
sion ou en son nom

En d’autres termes, il s’agit d’'un changement de la partie d’un
crédit du Parlement, ce qui a toujours été considéré comme
portant affectation de crédits.

M. von Finckenstein: Ce projet de loi a fait ’objet d’une
recommandation royale aussi bien que d’'une motion de voies et
moyens. On pourrait discuter longtemps pour savoir si c’était
une exigence prévue a ce paragraphe, mais ces frais ont tou-
jours été remboursés sur le crédit 1 des Affaires extérieures,
qui est un crédit général dans lequel le ministére puise ses
fonds pour financer ses activités, y compris les ententes avec
d’autres pays.

Le président: Vous affirmez qu'’il y a eu une recommanda-
tion royale. Il n’en est pas fait mention dans mon exemplaire
du projet de loi. Ce doit étre la version du projet de loi qu’ont
adopté les Communes, plutdt que la version de la premiére lec-
ture. Si le paragraphe 12(3) ne figurait pas dans le projet de
loi, le paragraphe 12(2) a lui seul ne ferait pas du projet de loi
une mesure portant affectation de crédits. Le paragraphe
12(2) se lit comme suit:

Le gouvernement du Canmada paie la moitié du total
des frais supportés par la Commission ou en son nom.

Est-ce exact?

M. von Finckenstein: On reprend ce que dit ’Accord. Il
s’agit d’une obligation internationale que nous assumons.

Le président: Mais ces crédits devraient étre approuvés
séparément par le Parlement.

M. von Finckenstein: Absolument, chaque année.

Le président: J’ai une derniére question. Vous avez dit que
I’on adoptera un ensemble de réglements pour mettre en ceuvre
’Accord de libre-échange. Ces réglements, qu’ils découlent de
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the Free Trade Agreement, either as descendents of this stat-
ute or as other powers which the Governor in Council now has,
which powers will be used to give effect to the Free Trade
Agreement, be collected in any special way, or will people who,
for business reasons, or other reasons are interested in those
regulations have to work their way through the voluminous
mass of the Canada Gazette?

Mr. von Finckenstein: All of these regulations—at least,
most of them—have to be in place by January 1 or on what-
ever date the agreement enters into force. So the issue of the
Canada Gazette following immediately the entering into force
of the agreement will contain all of the regulations. There
won’t be a special heading saying, for example, “Free Trade
Implementation Regulations.” They will all be in one volume
so that the persons wanting to find particular regulations can
find them.

The Chairman: And you are implying they are ready to go
now?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Subject to the enactment 'of the le.gis-
lation. When it is enacted we can enact the regulations in time.

Senator van Roggen: The witness, in response to the chair-
man’s first question, touched on the five-to-seven year negotia-
tions on subsidies. My understanding is that at one point the
American legislation had a provision extending the fast track
for 30 months, two-and-half years, for any amendments to the
legislation that might prove necessary and/or amendment to
the settlement of the five-to-seven year negotiation on subsi-
dies. I wonder if you can confirm that that is still the case. My
point is that it might well be worthwhile, that being the case,
for the government to press the settlement of this question
under the two-and-a-half year period so that the fast track
would apply to its approval by Congress, rather than dragglqg
it out to the five- or seven-year period. Is that provision still in
the American legislation?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Yes. There is a 30-month-fast-trg1ck
provision in the American implementing legislation regarding
any further amendments that may be required to the U.S.
legislation and also in order to implement any results of the
subsidy negotiations reached within those 30 months.

Senator van Roggen: So it would apply to both areas, neces-
sary amendments and negotiations on subsidies?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Yes.

Senator MacEachen: The witness has drawn our attention
to the table of contents and the table of provisions of Bill C-2.
That has been helpful. However, this committee has been
working with the Free Trade Agreement. I notice that in
clause 2 the text of the agreement is set out in Part A of the
Schedule. I think it would be helpful to the committee if there
were a way of cross referencing the parts and chapters of the
Free Trade Agreement and Bill C-2. Has that been done and,
if so, could it be circulated?

[Traduction]

la loi de mise en ceuvre ou soient établis par le gouverneur en
conseil, lequel exercera ses pouvoirs pour mettre en ceuvre
I’Accord de libre-échange, figureront-ils dans un recueil quel-
conque ou forcera-t-on au contraire les intéressés a les consul-
ter dans une foule de fascicules de la Gazette du Canada?

M. von Finckenstein: Tous les réglements, du moins la plu-
part d’entre eux, doivent &tre établis au plus tard le 1¢ janvier
ou & une autre date fixée pour I’entrée en vigueur de ’accord.
Le fascicule de la Gazette du Canada qui suivra immédiate-
ment I’entrée en vigueur de I'accord comprendra tous les regle-
ments. La Gazette ne comportera pas de titre comme Reégle-
ments sur la mise en ceuvre de I’Accord de libre-échange. Les
réglements figureront dans un seul volume: leur consultation
en sera facilitée.

Le président: Vous sous-entendez donc qu’ils sont préts a
étre adoptés?

M. von Finckenstein: Sous réserve de I’adoption du projet de

loi. Si le projet de loi est adopté, nous adopterons les régle-
ments a temps.

Le sénateur van Roggen: Dans sa réponse 4 la premiére
question du président, le témoin a mentionné la question de la
période de cing & sept ans relative aux subventions. A ma con-
naissance, le projet de loi américain a déja comporté un article
¢tendant la portée du dispositif des négociations accélérées
(deux ans et demi), a toute modification de la loi jugée néces-
saire ou du réglement des négociations de subventions (éche-
lonnées sur une période de cinq 4 sept ans). Je me demande si
vous pouvez m’éclairer sur ce point. Si cet article figure tou-
jours dans le projet de loi américain, le gouvernement devrait
peut-étre faire pression pour que cette question se régle au
cours de cette période de deux ans et demi, afin que le disposi-
tif des négociations accélérées s’applique a I’approbation du
Congres, plutdt que de laisser la situation durer cing ou sept
ans. Cet article figure-t-il toujours dans le projet de loi améri-
cain?

M. von Finckenstein: Oui. Il existe, dans le projet de loi de
mise en ceuvre américain, un dispositif de négociations accélé-
rées applicable 4 toute modification législative qui sera néces-

saire ainsi qu’a la mise en ceuvre des résultats des négociations

sur les subventions obtenus au cours de cette période de deux
ans et demi.

Le sénateur van Roggen: Le dispositif s’appliquera donc 4 la
fois aux modifications nécessaires et aux négociations sur les
subventions?

M. von Finckenstein: Oui.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Le témoin a attiré notre attention
sur la table des matiéres et la table analytique du projet de loi
C-2. Nous I’en remercions. Le Comité a di toutefois consulter
I’Accord de libre-échange. Je note qu’a I’article 2, il est men-
tionné que le texte de I'accord figure dans la partie A de
I’Annexe. Il serait utile, & mon avis, de mettre au point un sys-
téme de renvois entre les parties et chapitres de ’Accord de
librg-échange et le projet de loi C-2. Est-ce que cela a été fait
et si oui, pourrions-nous en avoir des copies?
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Mr. von Finckenstein: Senator, we have prepared what we
call a table of concordance, which relates every section of the
act to the place it originated in the Free Trade Agreement.
They do not fall neatly one into the other, as you can appreci-
ate. Some acts have been amended by virtue of several sections
or chapters of the FTA.

If senators wish, we can make that table available to the
committee. In that way, you an see what section of the FTA
drove what particular amendment of the acts before you.

Senator MacEachen: Thank you. That would be helpful to
the members of the committee.

The Chairman: You will bring that table tomorrow morning,
then, will you?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Yes.

Senator Hays: Mr. Nymark, you emphasized, when you
were making your general comments, that the purpose of this
legislation is only to implement the Free Trade Agreement. I
do not have it with me, but I have had a chance to look briefly
at the implementing legislation passed by the U.S. Congress. I
have looked, as well, at the Statement of Administrative
Action. I notice that in the U.S. legislation there is no refer-
ence to energy regulation. The Statement of Administrative
Action maintains that there is no need for that because noth-
ing in the agreement calls for any change.

In looking at our implementing legislation, I see that we
expressly make our regulator subservient to the agreement,
which is not necessarily a remarkable thing. The remarkable
thing is that we transfer from the National Energy Board to
the Governor in Council the power to restrict exports. I wonder
why that is required by the agreement? I can see that as a
matter of domestic policy the Government of Canada perhaps
wants to take that power away from the NEB and take it unto
itself, but I do not see why this is necessary under the agree-
ment. Would that be an exception to your statement? Could
you please comment on that?

Perhaps you could comment generally on why there are such
specific provisions in our agreement while there are no such
provisions in the U.S. agreement and a statement that none are
necessary.

Mr. Nymark: By way of a general remark, first of all, I
think you will find a great many differences between the U.S.
legislation and Bill C-2. Certain changes were necessary to
bring their system into conformity with the agreement. The
purpose of this legislation, as I said, is to amend those laws and
regulations which eventually require changing in order to be in
conformity with the agreement. In some areas in our country
we have in place policies and laws that are already in conform-
ity with the agreement and, therefore, no legislation is
required. The same is true in the United States. Therefore, one
would not expect to see identical or symmetrical legislation in
both countries in order to be in conformity with the agreement.

On the specific point you have raised with regard to trans-
ferring powers from the National Energy Board to the Gover-
nor in Council, I think it is true that that is consistent with the
general division of powers between the National Energy Board

[Traduction]

M. von Finckenstein: Monsieur le sénateur, nous avons pré-
paré ce que nous appelons un tableau de concordance qui éta-
blit un lien entre les dispositions de la loi et celles de I’Accord.
Comme vous pouvez vous en rendre compte, elles ne coincident
pas parfaitement. Certaines lois ont été modifiées en vertu de
plusieurs sections ou chapitres de I’Accord de libre-échange.

Si les sénateurs le veulent, nous pouvons fournir un exem-
plaire du tableau au comité. De cette maniére, vous verrez
comment les différentes modifications aux lois sont justifiées
par les dispositions de I’Accord.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Je vous remercie. Ce sera utile aux
membres du comité.

Le président: Vous nous I'apporterez demain matin, n’est-ce
pas?
M. von Finckenstein: Oui.

Le sénateur Hays: Monsieur Nymark, dans vos observations
générales, vous avez dit que I'objet du projet de loi était sim-
plement de mettre en ceuvre ’Accord de libre-échange. Je ne
I’ai pas ici, mais j’ai eu 'occasion de jeter un coup d’ceil & un
projet de loi semblable voté par le Congreés des Etats-Unis. J’ai
également examiné le Statement of Administrative Action. Je
constate que la loi américaine ne parle pas de réglementation
de I’énergie. Selon le Statement of Administrative Action, ce
n'est pas nécessaire parce que I’Accord ne réclame pas de
changements.

Pour ce qui est de notre loi, je constate que notre mécanisme
de réglementation est assujetti a I’Accord, ce qui n’est pas une
chose tout a fait remarquable. Ce qu’il y a de remarquable,
c’est que nous transférons de ’Office national de I’énergie au
gouverneur en conseil, le pouvoir de restreindre les exporta-
tions. Je me demande d’ou vient cette nécessité? C’est peut-
étre une question de politique intérieure que le gouvernement
du Canada veuille enlever ce pouvoir & 'ONE pour se 'appro-
prier, mais je ne vois pas comment I’Accord exige une telle
chose. Croyez-vous que c’est une exception? Qu’en pensez-vous
au juste?

Peut-étre que vous pourriez nous dire d’une fagon générale
pourquoi il existe de telles dispositions dans notre loi, mais non
dans la loi américaine, et qu’on a dit que ce n’était pas néces-
saire.

M. Nymark: D’abord, vous constaterez qu’il existe beaucoup
de différences entre la loi américaine et le projet de loi C-2.
Certaines modifications aux lois américaines ont été nécessai-
res pour se conformer a I’entente. Comme je ’ai dit, le projet
de loi vise 4 modifier les lois et réglements pour nous permettre
de nous conformer a I’Accord. Dans certains secteurs, nous
avons déja des politiques et des lois qui sont déja conformes a
I’Accord de sorte qu’il n’y a pas lieu de les modifier. Il en est
de méme aux Etats-Unis. Il ne faut donc pas s’attendre a ce
que les lois des deux pays soient identiques ou symétriques afin
que chacun puisse se conformer a I’Accord.

Pour ce qui est du transfert des pouvoirs de I'Office national
de I’énergie au gouverneur en conseil, je crois que cela corres-
pond 4 la répartition générale des pouvoirs entre ’Office et le
gouverneur en conseil; ainsi le gouvernement définit la politi-
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and the Governor in Council, in that the government makes
policy with respect to energy and the National Energy Board
administers that policy. In a case, for example, where the
National Energy Board determines, perhaps through the
application of a surplus test, that there is a shortage at any
particular time and it chooses to restrict licences for the export
of energy as a result of that, under this legislation it would
need to make that recommendation to the Governor in Coun-
cil, who would then make the final determination. There may
be other cases, however, where the National Energy Board
determines, for reasons other than shortage of supply or price
controls or whatever, that there may be a need to make restric-
tions. In those cases, it would not have to refer that decision to
the Governor in Council.

Senator Frith: Therefore, this provision is driven by domes-
tic policy. Is that so, or is it necessary for the agreement? That
was the question.

Mr. Nymark: It is necessary for the agreement in those par-
ticular cases of shortage of supply.

Senator Hays: Could you direct us to the part of the agree-
ment which makes that necessary?

Mr. Nymark: I believe it is Article 904 in the agreement.
Senator Hays: Article 904 deals with proportional access.

Mr. Nymark: Yes, and Article 904 specifies the parti_cu}ar
circumstances under which you are allowed to take restrictive
action at the border.

Senator Hays: Therefore, the government’s position is thqt
that had to be the power of the Governor in Council, that it
could not be left to the National Energy Board, subject to gov-
ernment review?

Mr. Nymark: That is a matter of general policy. The gov-
ernment decided that that should be left in the hands of gov-
ernment and not given to an administrative body such as the
National Energy Board.

Senator Hays: I find two things here interesting. One is that
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission deals with the
ERA. It is not subject to the equivalent of our Governor in
Council; namely, the U.S. administration. Could you comment
on why the U.S. government would not see it necessary to
transfer that power to the administration?

The second question gets into what we touched upon but did
not discuss earlier: that is, that the Government of Alberta, for
instance, leaves the power to restrict the exportation of
petroleum products out of the province to a regulator. It has
not taken unto itself, as a governor in council, the right to deal
with that. In fact, it leaves the surplus test in place, and so on.

Could you elaborate on those two comments? First, why is it
not necessary that the U.S government do the same thing our
government did to implement the agreement? Secondly, will it
be necessary for the provinces to do what the federal govern-
ment has seen as something it must do to comply with the
agreement?

[Traduction]

que énergétique, et I'Office est chargé de I'appliquer. A suppo-
ser, par exemple, que ’Office détermine, par la procédure du
test d’excédent, qu’il y a pénurie 4 un moment donné et décide
de limiter les licences d’exportation d’énergie; en vertu de la
loi, PONE devrait présenter une recommandation au gouver-
neur en conseil qui prendrait la décision finale. Dans d’autres
cas, cependant, I'Office pourra déterminer, pour des raisons
autres qu’une pénurie ou qu'un contrdle des prix ou toute autre
raison, qu’il y a lieu d’établir des restrictions. Dans ces cas-la,
il ne serait pas tenu de faire approuver sa décision par le gou-
verneur en conseil.

Le sénateur Frith: En somme, cette disposition est justifiée
par la politique intérieure. Est-ce bien le cas ou est-ce justifié
par ’Accord? C’était la question qui se posait.

M. Nymark: Cette disposition est justifiée par I’Accord en
ce qui concerne les pénuries d’approvisionnement.

Le sénateur Hays: Pouvez-vous nous indiquer Iarticle de
I’Accord qui justifie la disposition?

M. Nymark: Sauf erreur, c’est I’article 904.

Le sénateur Hays: L’article 904 porte sur I’accés proportion-
nel.

M. Nymark: Oui, cet article précise dans qu’elles circons-
tances il sera permis de limiter les exportations.

Le sénateur Hays: Donc, le gouvernement estime que la
décision incombe au gouverneur en conseil, qu’il ne peut con-
fier cette responsabilité a 1’Office national de I’énergie, sous
réserve de 'approbation du gouvernement?

M. Nymark: C’est une question de politique générale. C’est
le gouvernement qui décide que c’est 4 lui de prendre la déci-
sion et non 4 un organisme administratif tel que I’Office natio-
nal de ’énergie.

Le sénateur Hays: Deux choses retiennent mon attention:
D’abord, la FERC (Federal Energy Regulatory Commission)
s’occupe de certains secteurs qui relévent de 'ERA (Economic
Regulatory Administration). Ces questions ne sont pas soumi-
ses 4 I’équivalent de notre gouverneur en conseil, soit au gou-
vernement des Etats-Unis. Pouvez-vous nous dire pourquoi le
gouvernement américain n’a pas jugé bon de s’approprier ce
pouvoir?

La deuxi¢me question a déja été abordée, mais n’a pas été
discutée: le gouvernement de I’Alberta a confié & un organisme
le pouvoir de limiter les exportations, en ce qui concerne la
province, de produits du pétrole. Il ne s’est pas approprié le
pouvoir de le faire lui-méme. En somme, la procédure du test
d’excédent reste en place, et les autres.

Pouvez-vous nous dire ce que vous pensez de ceci: d’abord,
pourquoi le gouvernement des Etats-Unis n’est-il pas obligé de
faire la méme chose que notre gouvernement pour mettre en
ceuvre I’Accord de libre-échange? En second lieu, les provinces
seront-elles obligées de faire comme le gouvernement fédéral
pour se conformer aux prescriptions de I’Accord?
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Mr. Nymark: I am not really in a position to comment on
how the U.S. chooses to govern its affairs in this respect so as
to bring its powers into conformity with the Free Trade Agree-
ment. Perhaps Mr. von Finckenstein could make a comment in
this regard.

Mr. von Finckenstein: As you will appreciate, senator, on
both sides of the border these will be obligations of the federal
governments. In cases of non-compliance, the federal govern-
ments will have to answer to a binational dispute settlement
panel. The Americans have chosen a different way to imple-
ment the agreement than we have, for whatever internal politi-
cal reasons. If their way does not work, they will have to
account for it, just as we will if ours does not work.

I do not think I can really explain to you the motivation
behind why they chose to do it this way or why we chose to do
it through the Governor in Council rather than through a
regulatory body. Either way is equally effective.

Senator Hays: You have said that the only purpose of this
legislation is to implement the agreement. Correct me if I am
wrong, but I take it that Canada felt that it must go about
things in this way in order to be in compliance with the agree-
ment.

Mr. Nymark: Perhaps Mr. Oulton could comment in this
regard.

Mr. J. David Oulton, Director General, Oil & Energy Plan-
ning, Energy Commodities Sector, Department of Energy,
Mines and Resources: Senator, the difference in the United
States is as follows. If you look at the legislation that sets up
the ERA or the FERC, the Federal Energy Regulatory Com-
mission, there is nothing in that legislation that specifically
requires those two agencies to take actions which have an
impact on the agreement. In the statement of administrative
action, the U.S. was quite clear in stating that it expected its
regulatory agencies to take their actions consistent with the
Free Trade Agreement. In the case of the National Energy
Board Act, there was a provision—which was section 83 in the
old numbering—and I do not know the new numbering, which
basically said that unless the board found that an export was
surplus, it must deny that export. So by legislation, they had
no choice. If they found that the export was surplus, they had
to deny it.

Senator Hays: You mean if it was not surplus?

Mr. Oulton: I am sorry. If they found it was not surplus,
they had to deny it. With the Free Trade Agreement, there are
implications both in terms of energy policy, because of the con-
ditions set out in Article 904, and, of course, in terms of trade
policy to the NEB being required by legislation to turn down
an export application if it was not found to be surplus. So you
are correct in saying that the government decided, therefore,
that decision must have a policy overlay, both from an energy-
policy point of view and from a trade-policy point of view

[Traduction]

M. Nymark: Je ne suis vraiment pas en mesure de commen-
ter la fagon dont les Etats-Unis ont décidé de se conformer a
I’Accord de libre-échange. Peut-étre que M. von Finckenstein
aurait quelque chose a dire 4 ce sujet.

M. von Finckenstein: Comme vous vous en rendrez compte,
monsieur le sénateur, les deux gouvernements fédéraux sont
assujettis 4 certaines obligations. Chaque fois qu’il y aura des
problémes de non-observation, les deux gouvernements devront
en répondre devant un groupe binational de réglement des dif-
férends. Pour des raisons politiques internes, les Américains
ont choisi une voie différente pour mettre en ceuvre 1’Accord.
Si cela ne marche pas, ils devront alors s’expliquer comme
nous devrons le faire si notre méthode ne donne pas les résul-
tats escomptés.

En vérité, je ne pense pas pouvoir vous expliquer ce qui les a
incités 4 agir de telle maniére ou encore pourquoi nous avons
décidé de faire appel au gouverneur en conseil plutét qu’a un
organisme de réglementation. Les deux méthodes sont égale-
ment valables.

Le sénateur Hays: Vous avez dit que le seul objet du projet
de loi était de mettre en ceuvre I’Accord de libre-échange.
Vous pouvez me corriger au besoin, mais je crois que le
Canada a cru que c’était la voie qu’il fallait suivre pour se con-
former & I’Accord.

M. Nymark: Peut-étre que M. Oulton aurait des précisions a
ajouter.

M. J. David Oulton, directeur général, Pétrole et planifica-
tion d’urgence, Secteur des ressources énergétiques, ministére
de I’Energje, des Mines et des Ressources: Monsieur le séna-
teur, aux Etats-Unis la différence est la suiuvante: en considé-
rant la loi qui a créé 'ERA (Economic Regulatory Adminis-
tration) ou la FERC (Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission), aucune disposition n’oblige les deux organismes
a prendre des décisions qui aient un impact sur I’Accord. Dans
leur déclaration relative aux mesures administratives, les
Etats-Unis ont clairement dit qu’il est prévu que leurs organis-
mes de réglementation prennent des mesures compatibles avec
I’Accord de libre-échange. Dans le cas de la Loi sur I'Office
national de Iénergie, une disposition—I’article 83 de
’ancienne version, je n’en connais pas le nouveau numéro—sti-
pulait qu'a moins que 1'Office ne décide qu’une exportation
n’était excédentaire, il devait la rejeter. En vertu de la loi donc,
I’Office n’avait pas le choix. S’il décidait que l’exportation
était excédentaire, il devait la rejeter.

Le sénateur Hays: Vous voulez dire si elle n’était pas excé-
dentaire?

M. Oulton: Oui, C’est ce que je voulais dire, s'il décidait
qu’elle n’était pas excédentaire, il devait la rejeter. L’Accord
de libre-échange entraine certaines conséquences tant au cha-
pitre de la politique énergétique, en raison des conditions fixées
par l'article 904, qu’au chapitre bien évidemment de la politi-
que commerciale prévue pour 'Office national de I'énergie
lequel, en vertu de la loi, doit refuser toute demande d’exporta-
tion qui n’est pas déclarée excédentaire. Vous avez raison de
dire que le gouvernement a donc décidé que cette décision



27-12-1988

Affaires étrangéres 135

[Text]

because the legislation which exists now forced the NEB to
take that decision and they had to make that a decision which
could be taken by the government because the Free Trade
Agreement now brought into account other considerations of
government policy.

Senator Hays: Discretion could have been left with the
NEB, though, having made it subject to the agreement, surely.

Mr. Oulton: It could have been, and you are right, there was
a choice on the part of the government as to where that discre-
tion should lie and that was a policy decision obviously on the
part of the government, that it should best lie with the Gover-
nor in Council.

Senator Hays: Which is another issue we will get into at
some point, in terms of how the Governor in Council acts as a
regulator to the extent that there are public hearings and so
on. However, in any event we will not get into that now. The
United States does export some minimal, marginal amounts of
gas into Canada, so it is probably not a relevant question at the
moment; but there is a proposal to import larger volumes
under the St. Clair River into Canada. Surely, you would
agree when I say that it will be necessary for the U.S. to make
their regulator subject to the agreement?

Mr. Oulton: Yes.

Senator Hays: If they are going to be in the same position
we are.

Mr. Oulton: Yes.
Senator Hays: They have not yet done that?

Mr. Oulton: They do not need to change their legislation to
do that but, yes, if their regulator decided to inhibit the flow of
trade between the U.S. and Canada, then that would give us
cause for action under the agreement. However, there is noth-
ing in the legislation that set up the ERA, which is what pro-
vides the licences to allow the gas to be exported to Canada,
which requires the ERA to turn down that export under cer-
tain specified legislative conditions. It is purely within their
discretionary ability and they are required to take into account
the terms of the Free Trade Agreement in exercising their dis-
cretion.

Senator Hays: But the ERA is not made subject to the
agreement specifically by implementing the legislation the way
that our regulators are. Do I take it from that that our feeling
about it is that they do not have to be, that the U.S. is correct
that, simply because the U.S. has entered into this interna-
tional agreement, which is binding on them—that is, the U.S.
and the states—that nothing more is needed?

Mr. Oulton: Yes. The essence of it is that there was no rea-
son to believe that this would be necessary. In other words, in
the past, when the U.S. has entered into these kinds of agree-
ments, U.S. regulatory authority, such as FERC and the ERA,
have acted in a fashion which is consistent with it. So we have
a right to believe that that is how it will work. If it does not,

[Traduction)

devait étre politique, tant d’un point de vue de politique éner-
gétique que d’un point de vue de politique commerciale, étant
donné que la loi actuelle oblige I'Office national de I’énergie a
prendre une décision que le gouvernement pourrait accepter
étant donné que I’Accord du libre-échange tient maintenant
compte d’autres aspects de la politique gouvernementale.

Le sénateur Hays: L’Office national de 1’énergie aurait pu
toutefois conserver son pouvoir de discrétion puisqu’il est assu-
jetti a ’Accord.

M. Oulton: C’est exact, vous avez raison, le gouvernement
avait le choix de décider 4 qui accorder ce pouvoir discrétion-
naire. A I’évidence, le gouvernement a pris une décision politi-

que en accordant ce pouvoir décisionnaire au Gouverneur en
conseil.

Le sénateur Hays: C’est une autre question que nous étudie-
rons plus tard pour savoir comment le Gouverneur en conseil
peut agir comme organisme de réglementation, s’il tiendra des
audiences publiques, etc. Nous n’allons toutefois pas nous pen-
cher sur cette question pour I'instant. Les Etats-Unis exportent
quelques quantités minimes et marginales de gaz au Canada, si
bien qu'’il ne s’agit sans doute pas d’une question pertinente
pour le moment. Toutefois, ils se proposent d’en importer des
quantités plus importantes au Canada sous la St-Clair River.
Vous conviendrez siirement avec moi qu’il faudra que les
Etats-Unis assujettissent leur organisme de réglementation a
I’Accord.

M. Oulton: Oui.

’ Le senateur Hays: S’ils doivent se retrouver dans la méme
situation que nous.

M. Oulton: Oui.
Le sénateur Hays: IIs ne I'ont pas encore fait?

M. Oulton: Ils n’ont pas besoin de modifier leurs lois pour le
faire; mais il est entendu bien sir que si leur organisme de
réglementation décidait d’entraver les échanges commerciaux
entre les Etats-Unis et le Canada, I'Accord nous permettrait de
prendre des mesures 4 cet effet. Toutefois, rien dans la loi
créant P’ERA, organisme accordant les licences d’exportation
de gaz 4 destination du Canada, n’exige que I'ERA rejette de
telles exportations dans certaines conditions législatives bien
précises. Elle en a le pouvoir discrétionnaire, mais doit cepen-
dant tenir compte des conditions de I’Accord de libre-échange.

Le sénateur Hays: Mais I'ERA n'est pas assujettic a
I’Accord en vertu d’une loi de mise en ceuvre comme nos orga-
nismes de réglementation. Dois-je comprendre que nous accep-
tons que I'ERA n’a pas 4 y étre assujettie, que les Etats-Unis
ont raison de dire qu’ils ont signé cet accord international,
qu’ils doivent le respecter et qu’il n’y a rien d’autre a ajouter?

M. Oulton: Oui. En fait, il n’y a aucune raison de penser
qu’il faudrait ajouter quoi que ce soit. En d’autres termes, cha-
que fois que les Etats-Unis ont signé des accords du méme
genre, les organismes de réglementation américains, comme le
FERC et 'ERA, ont agi d’une fagon respectant les conditions
de ces accords. Nous pouvons donc nous permettre de croire
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there is a remedy under the Free Trade Agreement to deal
with that situation.

Senator Hays: Turning now to Canadian provinces, let us
use the Alberta example. We already have a difference
between an approach of the NEB on a recent decision with
respect to trend gas, where we see an Alberta regulator disa-
greeing with the national regulator, being more restrictive and
having in place essentially a régime much like the one we used
to have in the country as a whole. Do you see it necessary for
that province, Alberta, with that régime that is analagous to
the régime that we had in Canada as a whole, to change that
régime?

Mr. Oulton: I think they will have to take into account—
and, as far as I understand, they are in the process of taking
into account—the implications of the trade agreement for the
actions of their regulatory bodies. I believe, actually, that spe-
cific decision that you are referring to, that was taken a month
or two ago, has given them cause to review the whole review
mechanism. So the answer to that is yes. Provinces that export
energy are going to have to take account of how they regulate
their trade in energy and how that is consistent with the Free
Trade Agreement, to the extent that they realize that if they
take actions which inhibit trade, then that could give rise to
action under the trade agreement. So the answer is yes.

Senator Hastings: Would you think it would then be neces-
sary for them to take that authority away from the regulatory
agency and into the provincial Governor in Council’s hands?

Mr. Oulton: I am not intimately acquainted with their legis-
lation and I think you would have to be to give a sound
response to that. However, my hunch is that they have the dis-
cretionary ability under their existing regulatory format to do
that without having to make a regulatory or legislative change.
However, that is not an authoritative response. I am not com-
fortable enough with their legislation.

Senator Bazin: | have two questions that relate to the draft-
ing itself, just to get the opinion of the witness. The first
relates to paragraph 77.26 on page 35. It deals with the
offences provided for where one of the members of the com-
mission does not disclose whatever he is supposed to disclose,
and in particular it deals with the punishment section which
states that, if there is an infraction or an offence under sub 1,
that person is guilty of an indictable offence and liable to a
fine not exceeding $1 million or is guilty of an offence punish-
able on summary conviction. I would like to hear what the pur-
poses of having the “or” in there. You deal in (a) with an
indictable offence and in (b) with summary conviction. I am
not sure why the “or” is in there.

Mr. von Finckenstein: It gives a prosecutor the discretion to
proceed either by way of indictment or summary proceeding,
depending on the gravity of the offence and the information
that was disclosed and how large the harm is that follows from
the unauthorized disclosure.

[Traduction)

que c’est ainsi qu'iront les choses. Si tel n’est pas le cas,
I’Accord de libre-échange prévoit une solution nous permettant
de régler ce genre de situation.

Le sénateur Hays: Pour en venir aux provinces canadiennes,
prenons I'exemple de I’Alberta. Nous avons déja été témoins
d’une divergence de vues entre cette province et I'Office natio-
nal de I’énergie a propos d’une décision récente visant Trend.
Nous avons vu un organisme de réglementation albertain en
désaccord avec I'organisme de réglementation national; il a été
plus restrictif, adoptant un régime bien semblable 4 celui que
nous avions adopté pour le pays entier. Pensez-vous qu’il soit
nécessaire pour cette province, pour 1*Alberta, de modifier son
régime actuel, régime analogue a celui que nous avions pour
tout le Canada?

M. Oulton: Je pense que la province devra tenir compte—et
si je comprends bien, c’est ce qu’elle est en train de faire—des
conséquences de I’accord commercial relativement aux mesu-
res prises par leurs organismes de réglementation. Si je ne me
trompe pas, la décision a laquelle vous faites allusion et qui a
été prise il y a un ou deux mois, est a ’origine de I’examen de
tout leur mécanisme de réglementation. La réponse est donc
positive. Les provinces qui exportent des ressources énergéti-
ques devront tenir compte de leurs méthodes de réglementation
visant leurs échanges énergétiques et s’assurer qu’elles sont
compatibles avec les dispositions de I’Accord de libre-échange.
Ainsi, les provinces se rendront compte qu’en prenant des
mesures qui entravent le commerce, elles risquent d’avoir a en
subir les conséquences, en raison de I’Accord commercial. La
réponse est donc oui.

Le sénateur Hastings: Pensez-vous qu’il serait donc néces-
saire que les provinces retirent cette autorité de 'organisme de
réglementation et la confient a leur Gouverneur en conseil?

M. Oulton: Je ne connais pas parfaitement leur loi et je
pense que vous avez droit 4 une réponse éclairée. Toutefois, j’ai
comme I'impression qu’elles ont le pouvoir discrétionnaire de le
faire en vertu de leur systéme de réglementation, sans avoir a
modifier leur mécanismes de réglementation ou leur loi. Ma
réponse ne fait toutefois pas autorité, étant donné que je ne
connais pas suffisamment leur loi.

Le sénateur Bazin: J'ai deux questions & poser a propos du
libellé proprement dit, juste pour obtenir le point de vue du
témoin. La premiére porte sur le paragraphe 77.26 de la page
35. 1l traite des infractions prévues lorsque I'un des membres
de la Commission ne divulgue pas ce qu’il est censé divulguer,
et plus précisément, de I'article sur les peines qui stipule que,
en cas d’infraction en vertu de I’alinéa 1, cette personne est
coupable d’une infraction majeure et passible d’'une amende
maximale d’un million de dollars ou est coupable d’une infrac-
tion passible d’'une condamnation sommaire. J’aimerais savoir
le but du mot «ou». Il s’agit dans (a) d’'une infraction majeure
et dans (b) d’une condamnation sommaire. Je ne comprends
pas la raison du «ou» ici.

M. von Finckenstein: Cela donne au procureur le pouvoir
discrétionnaire de poursuivre par inculpation ou par jugement
sommaire, selon la gravité de I'infraction, 'importance des ren-
seignements divulgués et 'importance des conséquences de
cette divulgation non autorisée.
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Senator Bazim: It relates strictly to subclause 77.21(2)
which imposes on the members the obligation to sign and com-
ply, and so forth, and make certain disclosures.

Mr. von Finckenstein: Senator, when a panel reviews a
countervail or an anti-dumping decision, it, in effect, looks at
the costing data of certain companies, how they cost their
product and whether that product, in effect, is dumped or is
subsidized by the government or not. That is very sensitive
information which, if disclosed, could very materially harm a
company. Therefore, you ask the panel members who conduct
these reviews to sign an undertaking in Canada or a protective
order in the U.S. that they will not disclose this very sensitive
information which is given to them for the purpose of making
their very difficult decision. If an attorney appearing before
that panel or an assistant to a lawyer or anybody who, through
that process, is entitled to look at the information covered by
the protective order or the undertaking, discloses it, then we
can prosecute that person; and depending on what kind of dis-
closure it was, whether it was vital information or irrelevant,
whether it was on purpose or accidental, the prosecutor can
choose to go by indictment or by summary proceedings.

Senator Bazin: By going one way or the other, obviously the
consequences would be very different. Are there similar provi-
sions in the U.S. legislation, to your knowledge, which would
make it symmetric to the obligation imposed on the panel
members in the Canadian legislation?

Mr. von Finckenstein: The Americans have a provisiqn
called a civil fine, which is an expression we do not know in
Canada, but it also allows them to charge them $100,000 per
day per offence. So you can run into a huge amount depending
upon how long the unauthorized disclosure took place and f_or
what period of time. So far I was only speaking about the .dlS-
closure and how it is caught, but you also have to take into
account the deterrent effect. When you decide whether to
prosecute by indictment, it is probably the deterrent effect
which will sway your opinion one way or the other, whether
you think this will again happen in the future or not.

Hopefully we will never have to use the section at all
because if people do not have faith in the process and they feel
that the information which they render is subject to disclosure,
then the process will break down. So it is really a deterrent sec-
tion.

Senator Bazin: So there is symmetry in the American legis-
lation?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Rough symmetry.

Senator Bazin: Rough symmetry. My second question
relates to clause 11(1) on page 5 on Commissions and bodies.
Looking at (a@)—which says that the Governor in Council may
establish such committees, commissions, panels or other bodies
as may be deemed necessary—why was it felt that there was a

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Bazin: Cela se rapporte strictement au sous-ali-
néa 77.21(2) qui oblige les membres 4 signer et a se confor-
mer, etc., et 4 faire certaines révélations.

M. von Finckenstein: Lorsqu’une commission examine une
décision relative aux droits compensateurs ou aux mesures
antidumping, elle examine en fait les données d’établissement
des coits de certaines sociétés, la fagon dont elles fixent les
coiits de leurs produits et si, en fait, ces produits font ’objet de
dumping ou sont subventionnés par le gouvernement ou non. Il
s’agit de renseignements trés délicats qui, s’ils sont divulgués,
pourraient entrainer de ficheuses conséquences matérielles
pour la société visée. Par conséquent, vous demandez aux
membres de la commission chargée de faire ces examens de
signer, au Canada, un engagement, ou, aux Etats-Unis, un
réglement de sécurité, indiquant qu’ils ne divulgueront pas ces
renseignements trés délicats qui leur sont donnés pour qu’ils
puissent prendre une décision trés difficile. Lorsqu’un avocat
comparait devant cette commission ou que I’adjoint d’un avo-
cat ou qui que ce soit d’autre a acces, au cours de ce processus,
aux renseignements visés par le réglement de sécurité ou
I'engagement, et les divulgue, il est possible, & ce moment-13,
de poursuivre cette personne en justice; ensuite, selon le genre
de divulgation, si ces renseignements sont essentiels ou non
pertinents, si cette divulgation s’est faite délibérément ou acci-

dentellement, le procureur peut choisir I'inculpation ou le juge-
ment sommaire.

Le sénateur Bazin: D’une fagon ou d’une autre, il est évident
que les conséquences ne seraient pas les mémes. A votre con-
naissance, la loi américaine comporte-t-elle des dispositions du
méme ordre qui la rendraient semblable 4 la loi canadienne en

ce qui concerne les obligations imposées aux membres de la
commission?

M. von Finckenstein: Les Ameéricains ont une «amende
civiler—expression inexistante au Canada—qui leur permet
d’exiger 100000 § par jour par infraction. La somme risque
donc d’étre énorme, selon la longueur de la période pendant
laquelle il y a eu divulgation non autorisée. Jusqu’a mainte-
nant, je n’ai parlé que de la divulgation et de la maniére dont
on s’en rend compte, mais il faut également tenir compte de
I'effet de dissuasion. Quand on décide de procéder par mise en
accusation, c’est probablement I'effet de dissuasion qui joue,
selon qu’on pense que cela se reproduira ou non a I’avenir.

Nous espé_rons que nous n’aurons jamais A recourir a cet
article, car si les gens n’ont pas confiance dans le processus et
pensent que les renseignements fournis pourraient étre divul-

gués, le processus ne fonctionnera pas. Cet article vise donc a
dissuader.

I’,e.sépateur Bazin: Il y a donc symétrie dans la législation
ameéricaine?

M. von Finckenstein: En gros.

Le sénateur Bazin: En gros, oui. Ma deuxiéme question
porte sur le paragraphe 11(1), page 5, concernant les commis-
sions et les organismes. Ce paragraphe dit: «Le gouverneur en
conseil peut créer les organismes—comités, commissions, grou-
pes spéciaux ou autres—qu’il estime nécessaires». Pourquoi a-
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need to include in this legislation the power to establish com-
mittees, commissions, panels and other bodies in the context of
the FTA?

Mr. von Finckenstein: In various chapters of the agreement,
it envisions that there will be joint working bodies to do various
things. For instance, there will be a group on automotives, on
retransmission, on the various tender measures and on the
various agricultural workings. There will be eight separate
agricultural working groups called for standards, et cetera.
This basket clause allows the government to set up the neces-
sary bodies and to pay the proper people who sit on these
bodies.

Senator Bazin: Not to belabour the point, if, in the Free
Trade Agreement, there are numerous provisions for bodies,
committees and so on and so forth, specifically having
approved the agreement, why was it felt necessary to include
this article concerning what the Governor in Council already
has, which is to establish committees, commissions, panels and
so forth?

Mr. von Finckenstein: The approval clause is only a political
statement saying that Parliament approves the action of the
government. It has no legal power. It does not enable the gov-
ernment to do anything. This clause gives the government the
express power to set up such bodies and to remunerate the peo-
ple who sit on them.

Senator Doyle: I have a supplementary question regarding
clause 11 on page 5 where we are establishing committees,
commissions, panels or other bodies. Is there any place in the
documentation or background papers for the act that indicates
what kind of expertise might be required of various appoin-
tees? There has been some speculation in the last few days that
most of the U.S. appointees under this clause would be lawyers
and a hint from some nameless body that many of those
appointed in Canada would be lawyers, although not neces-
sarily. Is there some guidance paper somewhere that says so
many lawyers, so many academics or so many Indian chiefs?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Senator, I presume you are now talk-
ing about the binational dispute settlement mechanism?

Senator Doyle: That is one group.

Mr. von Finckenstein: That specifically provides that the
Chairman of each panel has to be a lawyer. Since the members
of these panels are drawn from joint rosters which both parties
set up, we want to have a chairman who is loyal, and we must
have some lawyers as members among those two rosters. So, to
answer the question regarding lawyers, yes, the agreement in
effect—

Senator Doyle: Would that apply to other kinds of commis-
sions, bodies, councils or—

Mr. von Finckenstein: I assume it would depend upon what
the subject matter is and what expertise is required. You
would appoint people who are best suited to do the job, be they
lawyers or non-lawyers.

[Traduction)

t-on jugé nécessaire d'inclure dans cette loi le pouvoir de cons-
tituer des comités, des commissions et d'autres groupes spé-
ciaux, dans le contexte de I’Accord?

M. von Finckenstein: Dans divers chapitres de I’Accord, on
parle de la possibilité de créer des groupes de travail mixtes
pour différentes fins. Par exemple, il y aura des groupes sur les
véhicules automobiles, sur la retransmission, sur les diverses
mesures concernant les appels d’offres et sur les diverses ques-
tions agricoles. Il y aura dans le domaine de I’agriculture huit
groupes de travail distincts chargés d’établir les normes, etc.
Cet article d’ordre général permet au gouvernement de consti-
tuer les organismes nécessaires et d’en rémunérer adéquate-
ment les membres.

Le sénateur Bazin: Sans vouloir trop insister, pourquoi
estime-t-on nécessaire de conférer ici au gouverneur en conseil
le pouvoir de créer des comités, commissions et groupes de tra-
vail, alors que I’Accord lui en accorde déja le pouvoir et prévoit
déja de nombreuses dispositions a cet effet?

M. von Finckenstein: L’article sur I'approbation n’est
qu’une déclaration de caractére politique disant que le Parle-
ment approuve les mesures prises par le gouvernement. Il ne
donne aucun pouvoir juridique. Il n’abilite pas le gouverne-
ment 4 faire quoi que ce soit. Cet article ne donne au gouver-
nement que le pouvoir de créer pareils organismes et d’en
rémunérer les membres.

Le sénateur Doyle: J’ai une autre question sur ce méme arti-
cle 11, page 5. Y a-t-il dans les documents qui accompagnent
ce projet de loi des indications concernant le type d’expérience
susceptible d’étre exigée des diverses personnes nommées. Ces
derniers temps, le bruit a couru que la plupart des Américains
nommeés en vertu de cet article seront des avocats, et que ce ne
sera pas nécessairement le cas au Canada. Dit-on dans un
guide quelconque qu’il devra y avoir un certain nombre d’avo-
cats, de professeurs d’université ou de chefs indiens?

M. von Finckenstein: Sénateur, je suppose que vous pensez
au mécanisme de réglement des différends?

Le sénateur Doyle: Il s’agit d’un seul groupe.

M. von Finckenstein: Il a été expressément prévu, dans ce
cas, que le président de chaque groupe serait un avocat. Puis-
que les membres de ces groupes sont nommés a partir de listes
mixtes établies par les deux parties, nous désirons un président
qui soit loyal, et il faut donc qu’il y ait des avocats parmi ceux
dont le nom figure sur ces listes. Donc, pour répondre a la
question concernant les avocats, oui, I’Accord, en effet . . .

Le sénateur Doyle: Cette disposition s’applique-t-elle a
d’autres types de commissions, d’organismes, de conseils ou . . .

M. von Finckenstein: Je suppose que tout dépendra du sujet
en cause et de I'expérience nécessaire. On nommera les plus
aptes 4 faire le travail, qu’ils soient ou non avocats.
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Senator Doyle: But I wondered if there was any further
guidance. You say there is in the case of the dispute panel, that
the chairman must be a lawyer.

Mr. von Finckenstein: There is no guidance in the agree-
ment with regard to any other body to be set up.

The Chairman: I see no other hands. Does that mean that
there is no further questioning for tonight?

Senator Frith: What have we got for tomorrow?

The Chairman: The plan for tomorrow is that we would have
the same four gentlemen back plus two others, and that would
enable members of the committee to consider the testimony we
have heard tonight, perhaps to review the bill again; and, when
that is completed, we would go on to the question of the tem-
porary entry regulations on services. So we will be_ coming
back with this general focus first thing in the morning, ?nd
then we will be concluding with the immigration provisions
with regard to temporary entrance.

Senator Frith: Is anyone going to walk us through each
clause, not in detail but take us through each clause and say

that the clause deals with this, this and this and then comment
on it?

The Chairman: | suspect the witnesses are competent to do
that. Does the committee feel that this is desirable?

Senator Frith: I must say that that is what I thought was
going to happen. Mr. von Finckenstein, would that be an oner-
ous thing to do, to walk us through each clause? Tomorrow we
would have your concordance. I am not looking to pick each
word, but you know that in court, with a judge, you walk him
through a bit of the material to help him find his way, and
then you can focus on something if need be; if not, you are sat-
isfied to pass through it.

Mr. von Finckenstein: I can certainly do that, senator, if
that is your wish. I could also group a few sections together
rather than deal with it clause by clause, because it would be
very tedious.

Senator Frith: You could say: “Those three sections deal
with this, this and this,” and even pick out a phrase if it is a
highlight phrase, but not read it right through.

Mr. von Finckenstein: Sure.

Senator Frith: Then we will have your concordance tomor-
row. That might not take very long at all, but I would like to
feel that I have walked through the house and seen all the
rooms without taking them apart.

Senator Beaudoin: Are we going to have that table of con-
cordance tomorrow morning?

The Chairman: That is my understanding.

Mr. von Finckenstein: We will have it first thing in the

morning, and we can distribute it to the committee, Mr. Chair-
man.

Senator Frith: It might be handy to say that those three sec-
tions are driven by this clause in the Free Trade Agreement.

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Doyle: Je me demandais s’il existait d’autres
directives. Dans le cas du mécanisme de réglement des diffé-
rends, vous dites que le président doit étre avocat.

M. von Finckenstein: Il n’existe pas d’autres directives, dans
I’Accord, concernant les autres organismes qui seront établis.

Le président: Je ne vois pas d’autres mains levées. Cela
signifie-t-il qu’il n’y a pas d’autres questions pour ce soir?

Le sénateur Frith: Qu’avons-nous au programme demain?

Le président: Il a été prévu, demain, de faire comparaitre de
nouveau ces quatre messieurs, plus deux autres; cela permettra
aux membres du Comité de réfléchir aux témoignages enten-
dus ce soir, peut-étre méme d’examiner le projet de loi encore
une fois. Nous passerons ensuite 4 la question des régles régis-
sant I'autorisation de séjour temporaire. Donc, nous repren-
drons cette étude d’ordre général, en tout premier lieu, demain
matin, puis nous finirons par les dispositions de I'immigration
concernant I’autorisation de séjour temporaire.

Le sénateur Frith: Quelqu'un nous présentera-t-il chaque

article, non pas en détail, mais pour les résumer et les com-
menter?

Le président: Je pense que les témoins ont compétence pour
ce faire. Le Comité estime-t-il que c’est souhaitable?

Le sénateur Frith: Je dois dire que c’est exactement ce que
je pensais que nous ferions. Monsieur von Finckenstein, est-ce
que ce serait trop long? Demain, nous aurons votre tableau de
concordance. Je n’ai pas I'intention de m’arréter 4 chaque mot,
mais vous pourriez peut-étre, comme on le fait en cour pour
aider un juge a se retrouver dans les documents, vous arréter
sur ’essentiel et ne pas tenir compte de I’accessoire.

M. von Finckenstein: Je peux certainement procéder de la
sorte, sénateur, si vous le désirez. Je pourrais également
regrouper quelques articles, au lieu de les présenter les uns 4 la
suite des autres, ce qui serait fastidieux.

Le sénateur Frith: Par exemple, vous pourriez nous dire que
tel article traite de ceci, tel autre, de cela, et vous pourriez
méme souligner un membre de phrase important, au lieu de
lire les articles en entier.

M. von Finckenstein: Certainement.

Le sénateur Frith: Nous aurons donc votre tableau de con-
cordance demain matin. Cela ne prendra peut-étre pas beau-
coup de temps, mais j'aimerais avoir le sentiment de visiter la

maison au complet, de voir toutes les piéces sans les analyser
minutieusement.

Le sénateur Beaudoin: Aurons-nous ce tableau de concor-
dance demain matin?

Le président: C’est ce que j’ai cru comprendre.

M. von Finckenstein: Nous ’aurons dés demain matin, et

nous pourrons le distribuer aux membres du Comité, monsieur
le président.

Le sénateur Frith: Il convient de souligner que les trois arti-
cles découlent de cette disposition de I’ Accord.
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Senator Stollery: Mr. Chairman, we are meeting at 9
o’clock to go through the bill, and then we have the immigra-
tion provisions. I am trying to get a rough idea in my mind as
to what the sequence is.

The Chairman: Senator Stollery, I am hoping that tomorrow
morning we will be able to put in the hands of the members of
the committee a schedule of witnesses and times that will
reflect the decisions made by the committee at its organization
meeting earlier.

Senator Stollery: I was only thinking of the morning,
because if we were going through the bill clause by clause, that
could mean a long procedure.

The Chairman: The aspiration tomorrow morning would be
to conclude with the witnesses we now have and then deal with
the matter of the temporary entry regulations, and then we
could go on to something else in the afternoon.

Senator Frith: You mentioned earlier that some of these
witnesses would be standing by. I was thinking, for example, of
Mr. Andre Sulzenko, the Assistant Chief Negotiator of Ser-
vices and Investments. I take it that he would be the resource
person for us when we are dealing with that particular subject.
In other words, he will not be gone?

The Chairman: That is my understanding.

Mr. Nymark: We will have officials here throughout the
course of your deliberations. The more specific your agenda is,
the more specific we can be about matching our expertise with
your agenda.

Senator Frith: Sure; that makes sense.

Mr. Nymark: A moment ago you mentioned financial ser-
vices in passing. Is it on your agenda at some point?

Senator Frith: Yes.
Mr. Nymark: I had understood that it was not.

Senator Frith: Services are on the agenda, and financial ser-
vices will be included. Am I wrong about that? We are dealing
only with movement of persons under services. We had an
informal briefing on financial services.

The Chairman: Yes. It would be open to members of the
committee to raise questions arising out of the working paper
which we had on financial services, banking and such institu-
tions. It looks as if we may well have time tomorrow morning
for those members of the committee who wish to raise ques-
tions on that to do so..

Senator Frith: Okay; that is fair.

Mr. Nymark: We are perfectly happy to match up officials
with subjects, but matching up—

Senator Frith: You have to know what the subjects are.

Mr. Nymark: —immigration officials for temporary entry
and finance officials for financial services are quite different
things.

[Traduction)]

Le sénateur Stollery: Monsieur le président, nous nous réu-
nissons & 9 heures pour examiner le projet de loi d’abord, puis
les dispositions sur I'immigration. J'essaie de me faire une idée
du déroulement de la séance de demain.

Le président: Sénateur Stollery, j’espére que nous pourrons,
demain, remettre aux membres du Comité un horaire et une
liste de témoins qui traduisent bien les décisions prises par le
Comité au cours de sa séance d’organisation.

Le sénateur Stollery: Je pensais seulement 4 la séance du
matin, car si nous étudions le projet de loi article par article, ce
pourrait étre trés long.

Le président: Nous tenterons, demain matin, de mettre fin &
I'interrogation des témoins qui sont ici, puis de traiter des
régles sur I'autorisation de séjour temporaire; nous pourrions
ensuite passer a autre chose dans I’aprés-midi.

Le sénateur Frith: Vous avez indiqué tout a I’heure que cer-
tains de ces témoins seraient disponibles. Je pensais par exem-
ple 2 M. André Sulzenko, négociateur en chef adjoint, Services
et Investissement. Je suppose qu’il serait la personne-ressource
a consulter lorsque nous aborderons cette question. En d’autres
mots, il ne sera pas parti?

Le président: C’est ce que j’ai compris.
M. Nymark: Tout au long de vos délibérations nous aurons
ici des fonctionnaires compétents. Plus votre ordre du jour sera

précis, plus il nous sera possible de faire appel a des spécialis-
tes.

Le sénateur Frith: Bien sir; c’est logique.

M. Nymark: Vous avez mentionné en passant, il y a un ins-
tant, les services financiers. Comptez-vous les aborder a4 un
moment donné?

Le sénateur Frith: Oui.
M. Nymark: J’avais compris le contraire.

Le sénateur Frith: Les services figurent 4 I’ordre du jour, et
les services financiers en feront partie. Est-ce que je me
trompe? Nous n’aborderons que le mouvement des personnes
sous la rubrique Services. Nous avons eu une séance informelle
d’information sur les services financiers.

Le président: Oui. Les membres du Comité auraient le loisir
de poser des questions sur le document de travail qui nous a été
remis sur les services financiers, les banques et autres institu-
tions semblables. Il se pourrait que nous ayons le temps d’y
venir demain matin, et les membres du Comité qui désirent
poser des questions a ce sujet sont invités a le faire.

Le sénateur Frith: Bon, cela est équitable.

M. Nymark: Nous sommes tout 4 fait d’accord pour faire
venir des témoins en fonction des sujets abordés . . .

Le sénateur Frith: Mais vous devez connaitre les sujets,
n’est-ce pas?

M. Nymark: . . . mais le fait de convoquer des fonctionnaires
de I'Immigration pour traiter des séjours temporaires et des
spécialistes des finances pour aborder les services financiers,
c’est une autre paire de manches.
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The Chairman: Well, we may well have to have them both
here tomorrow morning.

Mr. Nymark: We may have a bit of a crowd here, then, if
you will forgive us.

The Chairman: That will be fine.

Senator Hays: Mr. Nymark indicated that there is a current
review under way of provincial legislation which is inconsistent
with the agreement, and that an attempt is being made to
resolve problems that arise out of that by the end of the year.
Can you disclose the nature of those inconsistencies, or some of
them?

Mr. Nymark: No, sir. I may have led you down the wrong
path there. There is nothing in provincial legislation that is
inconsistent with the Free Trade Agreement that needs to be
changed, except in the area of wine and distilled spirits. In that
area there is only one province that actually needs to make
legislative change, and that is Ontario. If the other provinces
are not in conformity with the Free Trade Agreement already
they can do so through regulation.

Senator Frith: That is all that clause 9 deals with, does it
not?

Mr. Nymark: That is right.
Senator Hays: Thank you.

The Chairman: We have finished for this evening. We will
convene at nine o’clock tomorrow in this place.
The committee adjourned.

[Traduction]

Le président: Peut-&tre, mais il se peut que nous ayons
besoin des lumiéres de ces témoins demain matin.

M. Nymark: Il y aura donc peut-étre beaucoup de monde
ici, et vous nous en excuserez.

Le président: Il n’y a pas de probléme.

Le sénateur Hays: M. Nymark a parlé d’une révision en
cours des législations provinciales non conformes 4 I’Accord et
a dit qu’on s’efforgait de résoudre, d’ici la fin de I’année, les
problémes que cela pourrait poser. Pouvez-vous nous indiquer
de quelles incohérences ou autres incongruités il s’agit?

M. Nymark: Non, monsieur. Je vous ai peut-étre induit en
erreur. Rien de ce qui dans les législations provinciales n’est
pas conforme 4 I’Accord de libre-échange ne doit étre modifi€,
si ce n’est dans le domaine des vins et spiritueux. Et dans ce
secteur une seule province doit apporter des changements 1égis-
latifs, & savoir 'Ontario. Si les 1égislations des autres provinces

ne sont pas déja conformes a I’Accord, elles peuvent les modi-
fier par réglement.

Le sénateur Frith: C’est tout ce que vise ’article 9, n’est-ce
pas?

M. Nymark: C’est exact.
Le sénateur Hays: Merci.

Le président: Nous avons terminé pour ce soir. Nous repren-
drons & 9 heures demain matin, ici méme.

Le Comité ajourne ses travaux.
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APPENDIX “FA-1”
STAFF MEMORANDUM

SENATE COMMITTEE ON
FOREIGN AFFAIRS

Energy and The Free Trade Agreement

An interpretation of the
Energy Chapter—Chapter Nine

It may be useful to provide, in very brief summary, an inter-
pretation of the Articles in the energy chapter of the FTA and
the principal conclusions that can be drawn from_them. It
should be noted that with respect to a number of issues the
process of speculating about the interpretation and how the
Agreement would function in particular circumstances is far
from complete. Indeed there are some issues, noted below,
which may ultimately have to await legal challenge before
their implications are perfectly clear.

Chapter Nine of the Agreement comprises Articles 901
through 909 and Annexes 902.5 and 905.2. Articles 902, 203
and 904 essentially mirror Articles 407, 408 and 409 applying
to all goods and were presumably included for greater cer-
tainty. As will be clear, it is the linkage of four elements in
particular, however, that constrain the kinds of government
actions Canada has taken in the past—the prohibition on
quantity restrictions on exports and imports except under
duress; the interpretation of this prohibition to include the set-
ting of minimum export or import prices by governments: the
prohibition on export taxes; and the proportionality provisions
with respect to exports which apply during allowable periods of
restriction.

Article 902: Import and Export Restrictions

Article 902 together with Article 407 of Chapter Four
explicitly bring energy commodities under Article XL.1 of the
GATT. No prohibitions or restrictions may be imposed on the
export or import of energy commodities except as permitted
under Articles XI.2a and XX.g, XX.i, XX.j of the GATT
(covered in Article 904). For greater certainty the wording in
GATT Article X.1 is extended to explicitly prohibit “mini-
mum export or import price requirements”.

The effect of 902/407 then is to prohibit any governmental
intervention in trade (except as permitted under 904) and in
particular to prevent application to Canada of any U.S. plan to
impose a minimum import price for oil. It is to be further
noted that though these provisions have resided in the GATT,
they have not previously been employed to bring complaints
against the energy policies of GATT members.

ANNEXE «AE-1»
DOCUMENT DE RECHERCHE

COMITE SENATORIAL PERMANENT
DES AFFAIRES ETRANGERES

L’énergie et I’ Accord de
libre-échange

Interprétation du chapitre sur
I’énergie (chapitre neuf)

11 convient de fournir, de fagon trés résumée, une interpréta-
tion des articles du chapitre sur I’énergie de 1’Accord de libre-
échange, et d’en tirer les principales conclusions. On n’a pas
fini de spéculer sur linterprétation de 1’Accord et sur son
application dans certaines circonstances particuliéres. En fait,
pour certaines questions qui sont mentionnées plus loin, il fau-
dra peut-étre attendre que les tribunaux tranchent avant que
I’on puisse en saisir parfaitement les répercussions.

Le chapitre neuf de I’Accord comprend les articles 901 2
909 inclusivement, ainsi que les annexes 902.5 et 905.2. Les
articles 902, 903 et 904, qui reprennent presque textuellement
les articles 407, 408 et 409 visant ’ensemble des produits, ont
sans doute été inclus & I’Accord pour éviter toute ambiguité.
Comme on le verra, c’est la combinaison de quatre éléments
particuliers qui entrave le genre de mesures que le Canada a
prises dans le passé, soit Iinterdiction de restrictions quantita-
tives a Dexportation et 4 Iimportation (sauf sous la
contrainte), I'interprétation suivant laquelle cette interdiction
comprend la fixation de prix minimaux & I'importation et a
I’exportation par les gouvernements, I'interdiction de taxes a
’exportation, et les dispositions relatives a la proportionnalité
des exportations et de I'approvisionnement total qui s’appli-
quent pendant les périodes admissibles de restriction.

Article 902: Restrictions 4 'importation et I’exportation

Les articles 902 et 407 du Chapitre quatre assujettissent
expressément les produits énergétiques a Particle XI 1 de
I’Accord général sur les tarifs douaniers et le commerce
(Accord général). Aucune interdiction ou restriction ne peut
étre imposée a I'exportation ou 4 I'importation de produits
énergétiques, 4 I’exception de celles qui sont permises en vertu
des articles XI 2a) et XX g), i) et j) de I’Accord général (cou-
verts par I'article 904). Pour plus de clarté, I’article 902 inter-
dit expressément les «prescriptions de prix minimaux 4 ’expor-

tation et a I'importation», donnant ainsi un sens plus large a
I'article XI 1 de ’Accord général.

Les articles 902 et 407 ont donc pour effet d’interdire toute
intervention gouvernementale sur le plan commercial (a
I'exception des mesures permises en vertu de I’article 904), et
plus spécialement d’empécher que I'imposition éventuelle d*un
prix minimum a 'importation du pétrole par les Etats-Unis ne
s’applique au Canada. Il est également 4 noter que méme si ces
dispositions sont contenues dans 1’Accord général, elles n’ont
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Article 903: Export Taxes

Article 903 parallels Article 408 for all goods and explicitly
prohibits the imposition of an export tax. No such provision
has its counterpart in the GATT.

Article 904: Other Export Measures

GATT XIl.2a permits export restriction
applied to prevent or relieve critical shortages.”

“temporarily

GATT XX.g export restrictions can be imposed “relating to
the conservation of exhaustible resources if such measures are
made effective in conjunction with restrictions on domestic
production and consumption”.

These permitted exceptions to 902 are conditioned by
904(a) which requires that the restriction not reduce the pro-
portion of the total export shipments of a particular energy
good, relative to the “total supply” of the exporting party,
below the proportion prevailing in the most recent 36-month
period, or other agreed representative period. Once again this
provision has no counterpart in the GATT.

Article 904(b) forbids any government imposed difference
between export and import prices during a period of restric-
tion.

Article 904(c) states that restrictions must not disrupt nor-
mal channels of supply or normal proportions among energy
goods.

GATT XX.g would seem to eliminate any further use of
tests of “surplus to Canadian requirements” by the NEB in
considering applications for export licenses except in circum-
stances where “restrictions on domestic production or con-
sumption” are in force. It is the case that these tests have sub-
stantially been abandoned under the policy initiatives of post-
1984 for a more passive “monitoring” function but it raises the
question of the mechanism by which, say a foreseen delivera-
bility crisis in oil or gas, is signalled and acted upon to launch
a “period of restriction”. It would seem further to prevent any
governmental authority from intervening to attempt to influ-
ence the 36-month average of exports.

Article 905: Regulatory and Other Measures

Articles 902, 903 and 904 narrowly limit permissible restric-
tions on exports and involve prohibition of certain actions.
They presumably respond to U.S. concerns though they may
have some benefit to Canada in the cases of uranium and elec-
tricity where export restrictions have existed or have been
occasionally threatened. Article 905 creates a right of consul-

jamais été invoquées a I'appui de plaintes contre la politique
énergétique de ses signataires.

Article 903: Taxes a I'exportation

L’article 903 fait pendant a I’article 408 pour tous les pro-
duits et interdit explicitement I'imposition d’une taxe a I’expor-
tation. Aucune disposition analogue ne figure dans 1’Accord
général.

Article 904: Autres mesures a I’exportation

Aux termes de I'article XI 2a) de I’Accord général, il est
permis d’imposer des restrictions a 1’exportation «appliquées
temporairement pour prévenir une situation critique due a une
pénurie (. . .), ou pour remédier 4 cette situationn.

Par ailleurs, I'article XX g) autorise 'imposition de restric-
tions a I’exportation «se rapportant a la conservation des res-
sources naturelles épuisables, si de telles mesures sont appli-
quées conjointement avec des restrictions a la production ou a
la consommation nationales».

Ces exceptions possibles 4 I'article 902 sont assujetties a
I'article 904 a), suivant lequel les restrictions ne doivent pas
réduire la proportion des expéditions totales pour exportation
de produits énergétiques spécifiques par rapport a l'«approvi-
sionnement total» en ce produit de la partie exportatrice, com-
parativement 4 la proportion observée pendant la période de 36
mois la plus récente avant I'imposition de la mesure, ou pen-
dant toute autre période représentative dont peuvent convenir
les parties. La encore, I’Accord général ne contient aucune dis-
position correspondante.

L’article 904 b) interdit & I'une ou l'autre des parties
d’imposer des prix différents 4 I'exportation et & 'importation
au cours d’une période de restriction.

L’article 904 ¢) pose que les restrictions ne doivent pas per-
turber les voies normales d’approvisionnement ni les propor-
tions normales entre différents produits énergétiques.

L’article XX g) de I’Accord général semble éliminer le
recours 4 I’évaluation des quantités excédant les besoins cana-
diens par 'ONE lorsqu’il s’agit d’étudier les demandes de
licence & ’exportation, sauf lorsque des «restrictions a la pro-
duction ou 4 la consommation nationales» sont en vigueur. Il se
trouve effectivement que ces évaluations ont été largement
abandonnées dans l'orientation politique de 1’aprés 1984 et
qu’elles ont cédé la place a une fonction plus passive de «sur-
veillance», mais il faut alors se demander quel mécanisme per-
mettra de signaler, par exemple, une crise prévue dans la
livraison du pétrole ou du gaz, de s’y préparer et d’instaurer
une «période de restriction». L’article XX g) semble en outre
empécher toute intervention gouvernementale visant a influer
sur la moyenne des exportations pendant les 36 mois considé-
rés.

Article 905: Mesures de réglementation et autres mesures

Les articles 902, 903 et 904 circonscrivent étroitement les
restrictions possibles 4 I’exportation et comprennent I'interdic-
tion de certaines mesures. Ils font vraisemblablement écho aux
préoccupations des Etats-Unis en la matiére, mais offrent
peut-étre aussi certains avantages pour le Canada dans le cas
de l'uranium et de ’électricité, qui ont fait I'objet de restric-
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tation with respect to regulatory actions and presumably
responds to Canadian concerns, since regulatory interference
has been the primary mechanism by which the U.S. has sought
to influence imports.

Article 906: Government Incentives

This Article which approves of government incentives to oil
and gas exploration and development presumably lessens th_e
“countervailability” of subsidies and incentive programs in oil
and gas.

SOME FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

1. Can differences in price exist between exports and domes-
tic prices of energy commodities?

Yes, so long as they are the result of bona fide commercial
transactions or so long as the mechanism employed to effect
lower prices, say within a province, are not contrived by gov-
ernment interferences with quantities or policies that ha\{e‘an
export tax or minimum export price character. Such policies,
however, may be countervailable. It may also be difficult to
design such policies without having them potentially challenge-
able under the FTA. For instance there appears to be some
question whether the NEB’s second price test, ie. has a poten-
tial export been offered to a Canadian buyer at the same price,
could be considered a form of minimum export price in effect
and challenged. Similarly the general arm’s length character

of crown utilities and their commercial dealings may come
under question.

: s I o
2. Can governments or their agencies maintain “surplus
tests as a condition of granting export licenses?

No, except where a condition of “restriction” has been
imposed compelling proportional reductions in domestic con-
sumption/production and exports. Nor does there appear to be
any legitimate mechanism by which governments could inter-
vene to attempt to influence the average or 36-month level of
exports. It is to be noted that provincial lifting and rempval
permit practices may be challengeable as a form of implicit or
explicit surplus test.

3. How might a condition of “restriction” arise and be
declared?

An international disruption would probably invoke commit-
ments under the IEA. The letter from Gordon Ritchie
describes that situation. The letter from the Ontario Natural
Gas Association seems to be an accurate interpretation of how
a regime of restriction might arise from actual or apprehended
delivery difficulties in Canada. In the latter case, the NEB
under its monitoring function would have alerted the govern-
ment to impending difficulties or would have responded to a
challenge of an export licence application as in the ONGA

tions 4 I’exportation ou en ont été menacées 4 I'occasion.
L’article 905, qui confére aux parties des droits de consultation
sur les mesures de réglementation, répond probablement aux
préoccupations du Canada, puisque c’est avant tout par voie de
réglementation que les Etats-Unis cherchent 4 limiter leurs
importations.

Article 906: Stimulants gouvernementaux

Cet article, qui autorise les stimulants gouvernementaux a
I’exploration et au développement des ressources pétroliéres et
gaziéres, réduit sans doute la possibilité que les programmes de

subvention et de stimulation soient frappés de droits compensa-
teurs.

QUELQUES QUESTIONS COURANTES

1. Le prix national des produits énergétiques peut-il différer
de celui des produits d’exportation?

Oui, 4 condition que cette différence soit le résultat de tran-
sactions commerciales conclues de bonne foi, ou que le méca-
nisme ayant servi 4 abaisser les prix, par exemple dans une
province, ne soit pas artificiellement créé par des mesures gou-
vernementales influant sur les quantités ou les politiques, si ces
mesures peuvent &tre assimilées 4 une taxe ou a un prix mini-
mum a ’exportation. Cependant, cette différence de prix ris-
que d’appeler des droits compensateurs. Il sera peut-étre aussi
difficile de concevoir ces politiques de prix différents sans ris-
quer quelles soient contestées en vertu de I’Accord de libre-
échange. Par exemple, on semble se demander si la deuxiéme
formule d’évaluation du prix de ’ONE, qui consiste & vérifier
si un produit d’exportation a été offert 4 un acheteur canadien
au méme prix, pourrait étre considérée comme une forme de
prix minimum & I’exportation et, de ce fait, contestée. De la
méme fagon, on pourrait mettre en doute I'indépendance des
services de la Couronne et de leurs activités commerciales.

2. Les gouvernements ou organismes gouvernementaux peu-

vent-ils appliquer les tests d’excédent pour I’attribution des
licences d’exportation?

Non, sauf lorsque I'imposition d’une situation de «restric-
tion» oblige a des réductions porportionnelles de la consomma-
tion ou de la production nationales et des exportations. Il ne
semble exister non plus aucun moyen légitime pour les gouver-
nements d’intervenir en vue d’influer sur la moyenne ou le
niveau des exportations pendant la période de 36 mois. Notons
que les pratiques provinciales entourant la délivrance des per-
mis de chargement et d’acheminement peuvent étre assimilées
a une forme implicite ou explicite de test d’excédent et contes-
tées.

3. Comment une situation de «restriction» peut-elle surgir et
étre déclarée?

Une perturbation d’envergure internationale se répercuterait
sans doute sur les engagements pris avec I’AIE. Dans sa lettre,
Gordon Ritchie décrit cette situation. La lettre de I’Ontario
Natural Gas Association (ONGA) fournit ce qui parait étre
une juste interprétation de la maniére dont un régime de res-
trictions pourrait naitre de difficultés réelles ou appréhendées
dans la livraison des produits énergétiques au Canada. Dans ce
dernier cas, 'ONE pourrait, grice 4 ses activités de surveil-
lance, mettre le gouvernement en garde contre les difficultés
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case. In either case a “restriction” would have had to be
declared before export licenses could be refused and then only
as part of a program to proportionately affect Canadian pro-
duction/consumption and exports. If a restriction were
declared and the export licence refused or modified regulations
which constrained growth or absolutely reduced gas availabil-
ity would have to be proportionately applied to Canadian and
export markets.

4. How would proportionality work?

This must be purely hypothetical. One would have to assume
that sometime in the 1990’s or later as a result of disappoint-
ing reserve additions in Canada, there would be a diminishing
capacity to service domestic and export markets in the case of
gas or a rising import dependency in the case of oil. In the gas
case one might assume further that exports and domestic con-
sumption would be of roughly similar magnitudes. As domestic
consumption and exports were constrained together the
Canadian government of the day would have to defend con-
tinuing exports to the U.S. while absolute constraints operated
in Canada without the prospect of import relief. In the oil case,
imports would relieve any shortages but increasing interna-
tional dependency would have to be defended while exports
continued. Of course, the Agreement works both ways. To the
degree that eastern Canada had become dependent on, say, oil
product imports from the U.S., increasing U.S. oil dependency
could not be relieved by more than proportional reductions in
U.S. exports to Canada.

5. Is Canada vulnerable to a U.S. oil import tariff?

No, since it is a minimum import price and as proscribed as
a minimum export price. As Mr. Oulton’s memo makes clear,
however, such an action on the part of the U.S. against third-
party imports would pose considerable problems for Canadian
policy to prevent an excessive surge of Canadian exports and
imports for re-export to the U.S. market. It may be that the
pressure to impose a corresponding import fee in Canada to
ease market pressures would prove difficult to resist. Since the
U.S. policy aim would be to provide incentives to domestic
exploration and development, heavy imports from Canada
would not be in their interest. It may be that this would be an
instance when the right to consultation might well play a role.

6. Can Canadian exporters be compelled to export?

imminentes ou réagirait 4 la contestation d’'une demande de
licence d’exportation, comme dans le cas de 'TONGA. Dans un
cas comme dans 'autre, il faudrait décréter une «restriction»
avant de pouvoir refuser les licences d’exportation, et la
encore, seulement dans le cadre d’un programme qui touche-
rait dans une proportion égale la production ou la consomma-
tion canadienne, et les exportations. Si une période de restric-
tion devrait étre décrétée et que les licences d’exportation
étaient refusées ou modifiées, les réglements qui limiteraient la
croissance des quantités de gaz disponibles ou qui les rédui-
raient devraient viser en proportion égale les marchés intérieur
et extérieur.

4. Dans les faits, que signifierait cette proportionnalité?

La réponse est purement hypothétique. Il faut supposer qu’a
un moment donné, au cours des années 90 ou par la suite, si les
additions aux réserves du Canada se révélaient décevantes, il y
aurait une diminution de la capacité de servir les marchés inté-
rieur et extérieur dans le cas du gaz, ou une dépendance accrue
a I’égard des importations dans le cas du pétrole. Pour ce qui
est du gaz, on peut supposer en outre que les exportations et la
consommation nationale seraient 4 peu prés de méme enver-
gure. Dans un contexte ol la consommation nationale et les
exportations seraient toutes les deux entravées, le gouverne-
ment canadien de I'heure devrait justifier le maintien des
exportations vers les Etats-Unis, alors que le Canada serait
soumis 4 des restrictions absolues qui ne pourraient étre atté-
nuées par des importations de gaz. Dans le cas du pétrole, les
importations pourraient compenser les éventuelles pénuries,
mais il faudrait alors justifier notre dépendance accrue a
I’égard des sources d’approvisionnement internationales alors
que nous continuerions d’exporter du pétrole. L’Accord agit
naturellement dans les deux sens. Dans la mesure ou I’est du
Canada serait devenu dépendant, par exemple, des produits
pétroliers en provenance des Etats-Unis, notre dépendance
accrue 4 1'égard du pétrole américain ne pourrait étre atténuée
qu’en proportion de la réduction des exportations américaines
vers le Canada.

5. Les Etats-Unis peuvent-ils imposer des droits sur le
pétrole importé du Canada?

Non, puisqu’il s’agit 14 de I'imposition d’un prix minimum a
I'importation, mesure interdite au méme titre que I'imposition
d’un prix minimum 4 ’exportation. Néanmoins, comme il res-
sort clairement de la note de M. Oulton, I'imposition de tels
droits 4 I’égard de produits importés de pays tiers poserait des
problémes énormes au Canada, qui pourrait difficilement
empécher un accroissement excessif des exportations canadien-
nes et des importations destinées a étre réexportées vers les
marchés américains. Le Canada se trouverait peut-étre ainsi
contraint d’imposer des droits correspondants pour atténuer les
pressions qui s’exerceraient sur les marchés. Comme la politi-
que américaine viserait 4 stimuler I’exploration et le dévelop-
pement sur son territoire, I'importation massive de produits
canadiens ne servirait pas les intéréts des Etats-Unis. Voild
sans doute un cas ou le droit de consultation pourrait entrer en
jeu.

6. Les exportateurs canadiens peuvent-ils étre forcés a
exporter des produits énergétiques?
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No. All sales and purchases of energy commodities will be
market transactions and hence commercially determined.
Thus, though both parties are forbidden from taking any offi-
cial action to interfere with proportionality in a time of restric-
tion, they cannot compel exporters to export if it is not in their
commercial interest.

February 1988

Non. Toutes les ventes et tous les achats de produits énergé-
tiques seront des transactions marchandes et de ce fait, seront
déterminés par le jeu des forces du marché. Ainsi, bien qu’il
soit interdit aux deux parties de prendre quelque mesure offi-
cielle que ce soit pour influer sur la proportionnalité en période
de restriction, elles ne peuvent forcer les exportateurs a expor-

ter un produit si I’exportation ne sert pas les intéréts commer-
ciaux de ceux-ci.

Février 1988
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ORDER OF REFERENCE

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate,
Tuesday, December 27, 1988:

“Pursuant to Order, the Honourable Senator Murray,
P.C., moved, seconded by the Honourable Senator Beau-
doin, that the Bill C-2, An Act to implement the Free
Trade Agreement between Canada and the United States
of America, be read the second time.

After debate, and—

The question being put on the motion, :

The Senate divided. (... ) The motion was resolved in
the affirmative.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Murray, P.C., moved.
seconded by the Honourable Senator Poitras, that the Bill
be referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Foreign
Affairs,

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

ORDRE DE RENVOI

Extrait des Procés-verbaux du Sénat du mardi 27 décembre
1988:

«Suivant 'ordre adopté, I’honorable sénateur Murray.
c.p., propose, appuyé par I’honorable sénateur Beaudoin.
que le Projet de loi C-2, Loi de mise en ceuvre de I'Accord
de libre-échange entre le Canada et les Etats-Unis d’Am¢-
rique, soit lu la deuxieme fois.

Apres débat,

La motion est mise aux voix.

L’opinion n’étant pas unanime, le Sénat se divise. (... )
La motion est adoptée.

_ Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois, 4 la majo-
rité.

L’honorable sénateur Murray, c.p., propose. appuyé par
I'honorable sénateur Poitras, que le projet de loi soit
dt::féré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires étran-
geres.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

Le greffier du Sénat
Charles Lussier

Clerk of the Senate
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS PROCES-VERBAUX

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 28, 1988 LE MERCREDI 28 DECEMBRE 1988

(3) (3)

[Text] [Traduction]

The Standing Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs met at
9:00 a.m., the Chairman, the Honourable Senator Stewart
(Antigonish-Guysborough), presiding.

Members of the Committee present: The Honourable Sena-
tors Bazin, Beaudoin, Bosa, Doyle, Fairbairn, Frith, Hays,
Kelly, LeBlanc (Beauséjour), MacEachen, Murray, Nurgitz,
Stewart (Antigonish-Guysborough) and Stollery. (14)

Other Senators present: The Honourable Senators Barootes,
Doody, Flynn, Grafstein, Hastings, Perrault and van Roggen.

In attendance: From the Parliamentary Centre for Foreign
Affairs and Foreign Trade: Mr. Peter Dobell, Director, and
Mrs. Carol Seaborn. Mr. Michel Dupuy, Assistant to the
Leader of the Opposition in the Senate.

Also in attendance: The Official Reporters of the Senate.
Witnesses:

From the Department of Justice:

Mr. Konrad von Finckenstein, Q.C., Assistant Deputy Min-
ister, Trade Law.

From the Trade Negotiations Office:

Mr. Alan Nymark, Acting Head and Assistant Chief
Negotiator.

From the Department of Finance:

Mr. John Raymond LaBrosse. Chief, Industry Relations,
Financial Institutions and Markets Division.

From the Department of Communications:
Mr. Michel Hétu, General Counsel.

The Committee, in compliance with the Order of Reference
dated December 27, 1988, resumed consideration of Bill C-2,
An Act to implement the Free Trade Agreement between
Canada and the United States of America.

Mr. von Finckenstein made a statement and tabled a docu-
ment entitled “Canada—United States Free Trade Implemen-
tations Act, Clause by Clause analysis”, issued by the Trade
Negotiations Office which had been requested by the Commit-
tee. It was circulated to all Senators present. This document
was retained by the Committee as Exhibit FA-2.

At 10:35 a.m., the sitting was suspended.
At 10:45 a.m., the sitting resumed.
The witnesses answered questions.

The Honourable Senator Frith moved, That the document
entitled “Amendments to the Bank Act—financial services” be
printed as an appendix to this day’s Proceedings (See Appen-
dix “FA-24").

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires étrangéres se
réunit aujourd’hui @ 9 heures sous la présidence de I’honorable
sénateur Stewart (Antigonish-Guysborough) (président).

Membres du Comité présents: Les honorables sénateurs
Bazin, Beaudoin, Bosa, Doyle, Fairbairn, Frith, Hays, Kelly.
LeBlanc (Beauséjour), MacEachen, Murray, Nurgitz, Stewart
(Antigonish-Guysborough) et Stollery. (14)

Autres sénateurs présents: Les honorables sénateurs Baroo-
tes, Doody, Flynn, Grafstein, Hastings, Perrault et van Rog-
gen.

Egalement présents: Du Centre parlementaire pour les
affaires étrangeres et le commerce extérieur: M. Peter Dobell.
directeur, et M™ Carol Seaborn. M. Michel Dupuy, adjoint du
leader de 'opposition au Sénat.

Aussi présents: Les sténographes officiels du Sénat.
Témoins:

Du ministere de la Justice:

M. Konrad von Finckenstein, c.r., sous-ministre adjoint.
Droit des échanges commerciaux.

Du Bureau des négociations commerciales:

M. Alan Nymark, chef intérimaire et négociateur en chefl
adjoint.

Du ministere des Finances:

M. John Raymond LaBrosse, chef, Relations industrielles.
Division des institutions et des marchés financiers.

Du ministere des Communications:

M. Michel Hétu, avocat général.

Conformément a son ordre de renvoi du 27 décembre 1988.
le Comité poursuit I'étude du projet de loi C-2, Loi de mise en
ceuvre de ’Accord de libre-échange entre le Canada et les
Etats-Unis d’Amérique.

M. von Finckenstein fait un exposé et dépose un document
intitulé «Canada—United States Free Trade Implementation:
Act, Clause by Clause Analysis», préparé par le Bureau des
négociations commerciales & la demande du Comité. Le docu-
ment est remis a tous les sénateurs présents et il est versé au
dossier du Comité (piece FA-2).

La séance est suspendue 4 10 h 35.

La séance reprend 4 10 h 45.

Les témoins répondent aux questions.

L’honorable sénateur Frith propose: Que le document int”
tulé «Modifications de la Loi sur les banques concernant l€8
services financiers» figure en annexe au compte rendu des dél
bérations d’aujourd’hui (Annexe FA-2A).
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After debate,
The question being put on the motion. it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

At 12:06 p.m., the Commitiee adjourned.

I(:l;TERNOON SITTING

The Standing Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs met at
2:17 p.m., the Chairman, the Honourable Senator Stewart
(Antigonish-Guysborough), presiding.

Members of the Committee present. The Honourable Sena-
tors Bazin, Beaudoin, Bosa, Doyle, Fairbairn, Erlth, Hays,
Kelly, LeBlanc (Beauséjour), MacEachen, Nurgitz, Stewart
(Antigonish-Guysborough) and Stollery. (13)

Other Senators present: The Honourable Senators Argu?
Asselin, Chaput-Rolland, Corbin, David, Denis, Flynn, Gral-
stein, Marchand, Molgat and van Roggen- !

In attendance: From the Parliamentary Centre for Foreign
Affairs and Foreign Trade: Mr. Peter Dobell. Director, and
Mrs, Carol Seaborn. Mr. Michel Dupuy. Assistant 1 the
Leader of the Opposition in the Senate.

Also in atrendance: The Official Reporters of the Senate.

Witnesses:

From the Canadian Labour Congress:
Mr. Dick Martin, Executive Vice-President:
Mr. Kevin Hayes, National Represemative.

From the Economic Council of Canada:

Ms. Judith Maxwell, Chairman.
The Committee, in compliance with 1h§ Ordgr of Re.felrgl_cze
dated December 27, 1988, resumed consideration of Bil .
N Act to implement the Free Trade Agreement between
anada and the United States of America.
anEAr' Martin made a statement and wit
wered questions. ;
Ms. Maxwell made a statement and answered questions.

At 6:02 p.m. the Committee adjourncd.

h Mr. Hayes,

‘(ES\;ENING SITTING

The Standing Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs met at
735 D, megChairmam the Honourable Senator Stewart
(Antigonish-Guysborough), presiding. ble Sena-

Members of the Committee present: The Honogly he Hays
tors Bazin, Beaudoin, Bosa, Doyle, Fairbairn, Frith, >

MacEachen, Nurgitz, Stewart ( Ann'gonish-Guysborough) and

Stollery. (11)

Other Senators present: The Honourable Senators Bell, Bie-

lish, Bolduc, Grafstein and Perrault. .
In attendance: From the Parliamentary Centre Jor Forealﬁg
Affairs and Foreign Trade: Mr. Peter Dobell, Directoh £
rs. Carol Seaborn. Mr. Michel Dupud: Assistant 10
Leader of the Opposition in the Senate.

Also in attendance: The Official Reporters of the Senate.

Affaires étrangéres
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'

Un débat a lieu et la motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

Le Comité suspend ses travaux a 12 h 06.

SEANCE DE L'APRES-MIDI
(4)

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires étrangeres sc
réunit 4 14 h 17 sous la présidence de I'honorable sénateur Ste-
wart (Amigom'sh-Guysborough) (président).

Membres du Comité présents: Les honorables sénateurs
Bazin, Beaudoin, Bosa, Doyle, Fairbairn, Frith, Hays, Kelly.
LeBlanc (Beauséjour), MacEachen, Nurgitz, Stewart (Anti-
gonish-Guysborough) et Stollery. (13)

Autres sénateurs présents: Les honorables sénateurs Argue.
Asselin, Chaput-Rolland, Corbin, David, Denis, Flynn.
Grafstein, Marchand, Molgat et van Roggen.

Egalement présents: Du Centre parlementaire pour les
affaires étrangeres et le commerce extérieur: M. Peter Dobell.
directeur, et M™ Carol Seaborn. M. Michel Dupuy. adjoint du
leader de 'opposition au Sénat. :

Aussi présents: Les sténographes officiels du Sénat.
Témoins:

Du Congres du travail du Canada:
M. Dick Martin, vice-président exécutif;
M. Kevin Hayes, représentant national.

Du Conseil économique du Canada:

M Judith Maxwell, présidente.

Conformément & son ordre de renvoi du 27 décembre 1988.
Je Comité poursuit I'étude du projet de loi C-2, Loi de mise en
ceuvre de I'Accord de libre-échange entre le Canada et les
Etats-Unis d'Amérique.

M. Martin fait un exposé et, avec M. Hayes, répond aux
questions.

Mm Maxwell fait un exposé et répond aux questions.

Le Comité suspend ses travaux a 18 h 02.

SEANCE DU SOIR
%)

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires étrangéres se
réunit 4 19 h 35 sous la présidence de I'honorable sénateur Ste-
wart (Antigonish-Guysborough) (président).

Membres du Comité présents: Les honorables sénateurs
Bazin, Beaudoin, Bosa, Doyle, Fairbairn, Frith, Hays.
MacEachen, Nurgitz, Stewart (Antigonish-Guysborough) et
Stollery. (11)

Autres sénateurs présents: Les honorables sénateurs Bell.
Bielish, Bolduc, Grafstein et Perrault.

Egalement présents: Du Centre parlementaire pour les
affaires étrangeres et le commerce extérieur: M. Peter Dobell,

directeur, et M™ Carol Seaborn. M. Michel Dupuy. adjoint du
leader de I'opposition au Sénat.

Aussi présents: Les sténographes officiels du Sénat.



226

Foreign Affairs

28-12-198%

Witnesses:

From the Trade Negotiations Office:
Mr. Alan Nymark, Acting Head and Assistant Chief
Negotiator;
Mr. André Sulzenko, Assistant Chief Negotiator, Services
and Investment Trade;
Mr. Michael Giffard, Agriculture Negotiator.

From the Department of Justice:

Mr. Konrad von Finckenstein, Q.C., Assistant Deputy Min-
ister, Trade Law.

From the Department of Employment and Immigration:
Mr. Ken Mclntosh, Manager, Business Immigration, Pro-
gram Delivery Directorate;
Mr. Harland Harvey, Program Specialist, Business Immi-
gration. Program Delivery Directorate.

The Committee, in compliance with the Order of Reference
dated December 27, 1988, resumed consideration of Bill C-2,
An Act to implement the Free Trade Agreement between
Canada and the United States of America.

It was Agreed,—That the document entitled “Government
response to the Canada Egg Marketing Agency (CEMA)
concerns” and the brief submitted by The Canadian Federa-
tion of Agriculture be printed as appendices to this day’s
Proceedings (See Appendices “FA-2B" and “FA-2C").

At 10:25 p.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the
Chair.

ATTEST:

Témoins:

Du Bureau des négociations commerciales:
M. Alan Nymark, chef intérimaire et négociateur en chefl
adjoint;
M. André Sulzenko, négociateur en chef adjoint, Services ct
investissement;
M. Michael Giffard, négociateur, Agriculture.

Du ministere de la Justice:

M. Konrad von Finckenstein, c.r., sous-ministre adjoint.
Droit des échanges commerciaux.

Du ministere de I'Emploi et de I'Immigration:

M. Ken Mclntosh, directeur, Immigration des gens d'affai-
res, Exécution du programme d'immigration;

M. Harland Harvey, spécialiste de programme, Immigration
des gens d’affaires, Exécution du programme d'immigra-
tion.

Conformément a son ordre de renvoi du 27 décembre 19&§.
le Comité poursuit I'étude du projet de loi C-2, Loi de mise en
ceuvre de I'Accord de libre-échange entre le Canada et les
Etats-Unis d’Amérique.

11 est convenu,—Que le document intitulé «Réponse du gou-
vernement & 'OCCO au sujet de I'’Accord du libre-échange»
ainsi que le mémoire de la Fédération canadienne de I'agricul-
ture, figurent en annexe au compte rendu des délibérations
d'aujourd’hui (voir Annexes FA-2B et FA-2C).

A 22 h 25, le Comité suspend ses travaux jusqu'a la convo-
cation du président.

ATTESTE:

Le greffier du Comité
Patrick J. Savoie
Clerk of the Committee
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EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Wednesday, December 28, 1988
[Text)

The Standing Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs, (;o
which was referred Bill C-2, to implement the Free Tra ef
Agreement between Canada and the United States ©

America, met this day at 9 a.m. to give consideration to the
bill.

Senator John B. Stewart (Antigonish-Guysborough)
(Chairman) in the Chair.

The Chairman: It was agreed last night that the first order
of business today would be that the witnesses whq were here
last night would take the committee through the bill; in ottl:gr
words, they would give us a bird’s eye view o_f the relations ;\P
between the agreement and Bill C-2, which is now before the
Committee.

1 should tell members of the committee that I was asked if
this should be a fast run or a slow run. 1 suggestgd that the
best way would be to go through the bill rather rapidly, being
ready to slow down and give greater detail in Cases where
members of the committee indicate they want greater detail.

With that as a ground rule, we will commence.

Mr. Konrad von Finckenstein, Assistant Deputy Mm.lsteri
Trade Law, Department of Justice: Mr. Chairman, last pnghl
Promised 1o hand to you and the members of the commm;el a
table of concordance between the agreement and the legisla-
Uon. We have decided to go a little further than that. We have
Produced a book which we call a clause-by-clause exammauon%
Which hag 4 table of concordance as its first item. The body 0f
e document then contains on the left-hand snd'e the c]auseio'
the act, and on the right-hand side an explanation of why t ?1
are there and how they relate to the FTA. Thqre are er;oug_
Copies of this book for all members of the gommmee.. Un ortul
Nately, the person who is supposed t0 bring them 1s no]l yg:”
Present, so I will start without him. As soon a$ he comes w;(
distribute them to all members. In the meantime, I shall l?h:
YOu through the preliminary part of the bill, which is b
umbrella for the entire act. The bill begins by setting out .
general background of the agreement and the aim that
agreement pursues.

Clause 1 names the act—the Canada-United States Free
Trade Agreement Implementation Act. &

Clause 2 gives certain definitions which are used throug O:d
the agreement and the act. They are sclf-cx?.lanatory, ‘an”
explain what the “Agreement” means, what “Commissio

A i et
means, and that “Minister” means the Minister responsible,
Cetera.

Clause 3 is the purpose clause, and states the purposde Zt; ”llﬁ

A. This basically is an aid to interpretation for JUCEE®: 7
the future, if they look at a dispute and want t0 v
Purpose of this agreement, they can refer to clause 3. : ;

. Clause 4 provides that the act is binding on Her-Ma'lcsltdy 1132
right of Canada. If that provision were not there, 1th01(1)r L
UP to the judges to determine from the context whet eé ada
the legislation was meant to bind the common pighvBEatinas.

TEMOIGNAGES

Ottawa, le mercredi 28 décembre 1988
[Traduction)

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires extérieures.
auquel a été renvoyé le projet de loi C-2 de mise en ceuvre de
I’Accord de libre-échange entre le Canada et les Etats-Unis
d’Amérique, se réunit en ce jour, a 9 h 00, pour étudier le pro-
jet de loi.

L’honorable sénateur John B. Stewart (Antigonish-Guysbo-
rough) (président) préside I'assemblée.

Le président: 11 a été convenu hier soir que le premier point
de l'ordre du jour d'aujourd’hui serait que les témoins qui
étaient ici hier soir expliqueraient le projet de loi au Comité:
en d’autres termes, ils doivent nous donner un apergu des rap-
ports entre I’Accord et le projet de loi C-2 dont nous sommes
saisis.

Je me dois de préciser au Comité qu'on m'a demandé s'il fal-
lait y aller rapidement ou lentement. J'ai répondu qu'a mon
avis, un survol rapide vaudrait mieux, quitte a ralentir et a

donner plus de détails dans les cas ol les membres du Comité
souhaitent plus de précisions.

Ceci posé, nous pouvons commencer.

M. Konrad von Finckenstein, sous-ministre adjoint, Droit
commercial, ministére de la Justice: Monsieur le président.
j’ai promis hier soir de vous remettre, 4 vous et aux membres
du Comité, une table de concordance entre I'Accord et le pro-
jet de loi. Nous avons décidé de faire un peu plus et nous avons
réalisé un examen article par article; le premier point de cette
étude est une table de concordance. Le corps du document
comprend donc, a gauche, les articles de la loi et, a droite, la
raison pour laquelle ils y figurent et leur rapport avec I’Accord.
J'ai suffisamment d’exemplaires de ce livret pour tous les
membres du Comité. Malheureusement, la personne chargée
de les apporter n'est pas encore arrivée. Je vais donc commen-
cer sans ces documents. Dés qu'’ils seront arrivés, j’en remettrai
un exemplaire a tous les membres. Dans I'intervalle, j'exami-
nerai avec vous dans la partie préliminaire du projet de loi. qui
couvre la loi en son entier. Le législateur commence par situer
dans son contexte I’Accord et ses objectifs.

L’article 1 donne le nom abrégé de la loi: Loi de mise en
ceuvre de I’Accord de libre-échange Canada-Etats-Unis.

L’article 2 contient certaines définitions qui sont utilisées
partout dans I'accord et dans la loi et qui se passent de com-
mentaires: elles expliquent ce que signifient les termes
«Accord», «Commission, et ce que nous entendons par «minis-
tre», c’est-a-dire le ministre responsable, etc.

L’article 3 'précise 'objet de I’Accord. Fondamentalement.
cet article doit aider les juges a interpréter la loi. A I'avenir.

s'ils examinent un litige et souhaitent vérifier I'objet de cet
accord, ils pourront se reporter a I'article 3.

L’article 4 précisc.que la loi lie Sa Majesté du chef du
Canada. Sans cette disposition, c’est aux juges qu'il incombe-

‘rait de déterminer, par le contexte, si la loi avait pour but de

lier le droit du Canada. Elle constitue donc clairement une
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It is clearly an obligation of the federal government and binds
Her Majesty, which is specifically specified herein.

The Chairman: Does this clause have the effect of eliminat-
ing any common law prerogative powers of the Crown?

Mr. von Finckenstein: To the extent that they would be in
contradiction to the provisions of the agreement, yes.

Clause § is the prohibitive clause, which basically says that
any rights under Part I can only be exercised by the Attorney
General of Canada or the federal government. If you read this
in conjunction with clause 9, which provides the power to make
regulations and prescribe how wine and alcoholic beverages
should be sold in a province, if a province was in non-compli-
ance with that regulation, a private party could not take their
performance to court. It could only be the federal government.
The purpose of clause 5 is to say that any contravention of
Part 1 of this act, if it has to be litigated, will be litigated by
the federal Crown. A private person cannot litigate without
consent.

Senator Frith: In fact, they would probably never give the
consent, but it does permit a private action providing consent
of the federal Crown is given.

Mr. von Finckenstein: You are absolutely right, Senator
Frith. The federal Crown can give the consent.

Clause 6 is an assertion of the constitutional position that
the government and the Parliament of Canada are taking. The
position they are taking is that this agreement, because of its
national dimension, is clearly within the gambit of the federal
powers under the Constitution and, therefore, anything that is
required to be enacted in order to put the FTA into effect can
be done by the federal government. It, in itself, does not create
any power or give the federal government any leverage over
the provinces. It is, in effect, an assertion saying that the fed-
eral government believes it has the power to do everything
necessary and will do everything necessary, if required. The
assumption, of course, is that the provinces, recognizing this,
will, on their own, conduct themselves in accordance with the
FTA and there will not be any need to legislate it.

Senator Beaudoin: I take it that clause 6 is, legally speaking,
declaratory?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Yes. This clause is a declaration of
the Parliament of Canada as to what it believes the federal
powers are in respect of the FTA.

Senator Beaudoin: The Constitution as it is?
Mr. von Finckenstein: Yes.

Senator Frith: That is an interesting thought. Suppose, for
example, Meech Lake passed and they were up against the dis-
tinct society clause—I should ask this question of Senator
Beaudoin.

The Chairman: I think we should go on with the clause-by-
clause review.

Mr. von Finckenstein: Clause 7 is an amendment that was
put into Bill C-130 during its passage to the house the first

[Traduction)

obligation pour le gouvernement fédéral et lie Sa Majesté.
comme le précise cet article.

Le président: Est-ce que cette clause a pour effet d'éliminer
les pouvoirs exceptionnels que la Couronne détient en vertu du
common law?

M. von Finckenstein: Oui, dans la mesure ou ils seraient en
désaccord avec les dispositions de I’Accord.

L’article 5 est un article de restriction qui, en substance.
limite au Procureur général du Canada et au gouvernement
fédéral I'exercice des droits prévus en vertu de la Partie 1. Si
on le lit en paralléle avec I'article 9, dont découle le pouvoir de
formuler des réglements et d’établir, par exemple, les modali-
tés de vente du vin et des boissons alcoolisées dans une pro-
vince, si une province se trouvait en contravention, un tiers
privé ne pourrait faire appel aux tribunaux. Seul le gouverne-
ment fédéral le pourrait. L’objet de I'article 5 est de préciser
qu’en cas de non-observation de la Partie I de la loi, seul le
gouvernement fédéral a le droit de poursuivre. Un citoyen ne
peut le faire sans le consentement du Procureur général.

Le sénateur Frith: En fait, le consentement ne serait proba-
blement jamais donné, mais cet article autorise une poursuite
privée pourvu qu'il y ait consentement du gouvernement fédé-
ral.

M. von Finckenstein: Vous avez absolument raison, mon-
sieur le sénateur Frith. Le gouvernement fédéral peut donner
son consentement.

L’article 6 est une affirmation de la position constitution-
nelle du gouvernement et du Parlement du Canada; selon eux
le présent Accord, en raison de sa dimension nationale, reléve
clairement des pouvoirs accordés au gouvernement fédéral par
la Constitution, et en conséquence, le gouvernement fédéral
peut adopter toute loi nécessaire a la mise en ceuvre de
I'’Accord. En 'soi, cet article ne crée aucun pouvoir et ne donne
au gouvernement fédéral aucun avantage sur les provinces.
C’est simplement une affirmation: le gouvernement fédéral
estime avoir le pouvoir de faire tout ce qui est nécessaire et il le
fera, au besoin. L’hypothése est évidemment que les provinces.
tenant compte de cela, décideront elles-mémes de se conduire
conformément a I’Accord et qu’il ne sera donc pas nécessaire
de légiférer.

Le sénateur Beaudoin: Si je comprends bien, en langage
juridique, I'article 6 est un article déclaratoire.

M. von Finckenstein: Oui. Le Parlement du Canada y
déclare quels sont a son avis les pouvoirs du gouvernement
fédéral relativement a I’Accord de libre-échange.

Le sénateur Beaudoin: Selon la Constitution?

M. von Finckenstein: Oui.

Le sénateur Frith: C’est un aspect intéressant. Supposons.
par exemple, que I’Accord du lac Meech soit adopté et que 1'on
ait quelque chose 4 redire contre I'article relatif a la société
distincte . . . je devrais poser la question au sénateur Beaudoin.

Le président: Je crois que nous devrions continuer notre exa-
men article par article.

M. von Finckenstein: L’article 7 est un amendement inséré
au projet de loi C-130 lors de sa premiére lecture a la Cham-
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time around. It basically clarifies the question of water. A§ you
know, there is a tariff on water right now which will be
reduced pursuant to the Free Trade Agreement. As a result of
that tariff, 1 think there was some concern that water, 1n its
natural state, would also be affected by the provisions of the
agreement. This clause, therefore, makes it cl;ar that ;xcept
for Article 401, which provides for the elimination of tariffs or;
water, nothing in this agreement affects water in its natura
state.

We then come to Part I of the act, having gone through the
preliminaries. Clause 8 provides that the agreement 1?
approved. As I advised you yesterday, that is a statement O
Parliament saying that they have approved the agreeme.nt.

Clause 9 deals with the sale of alcoholic beverages in provl-
inces. This is Chapter Eight of the agreement. Thg a‘grelcmcnor,
in its present form, does not affect any of the provmcxal aws i
legislation. Everything that the provinces do as of today I'Sd
accordance with the FTA. Once the FTA is In force it provi e's
what can and cannot be done, and we assume that th'e pr0\:
inces will abide by the provisions of the FTA. The onlfj exﬁz}r)e
tions are the provisions of Chapter Eight, which rea »;/1 i
the province’s present conduct is not in accordance Wit o
FTA. We are essentially talking about the sale of wine.
expect that the provinces will implement the neces§a|"y Chlin%l::
to the legislation to put themselves in conformity wit ?
FTA. However, should they fail to do that we will then have
consultations with the provinces concerned and suggest tha;
they reform their practices, procedures and legislation to p\‘;_
themselves in conformity with the FTA. Should those const;1
tations fail we can then, by regulation, p{escrlbe wh?’x.t the
Provisions regarding the sale of wine will be in those ;;rol\)mctehsé
and those provisions will have to be complied with by
entity that sells wine in that province. : %

Specifically, clause 9 subclause (5) provides that aﬁ)’ ‘fesgt“ i
tion made under subsection (1) is l?mdmg on Hch ajrflisZion
right of that province. So that a Liquor Control %mh o
would have to abide by a regulation made under Chap
should that be the case. \ o

Clause 10 provides that the Governor in Council may fea f
nate the minister who is responsible for the purposes of any
provision of this act. _ g

Clause 11 gives the Governor in Council the pow.crh to s
lish bodies required under the agreement to deal WI:JOd pgs e
of the agreement and to appoint members to such bodl
fix the terms of their remuneration. . ki

Clause 12 provides that the Governor in 'Cou?c(l:anada
appoint a minister to be the principal representative 0 i
under the Canada-United States Free Trade Comnr"ld proz
which is set up under Chapter 18 of the agreemen’} tahe L
vides that the government can pay the members 0
mission.

Essentially, that is Part 1. That is the sort of l}mbf:::a 1{32
the entire legislation enacting free trade. H?v";gregarding
umbrella up, we then go into the specific provision
each obligation of the agreement. o

Chapter 13 of the agreement sets out the 5::{ 2o
respect of procurement. Essentially, 1t provides

[Traduction)

bre. Fondamentalement, il apporte des précisions sur la ques-
tion de I’eau. Comme vous le savez, I'eau fait actuellement
I'objet de droits, qui seront réduits en vertu de I'Accord de
libre-échange. On craignait, je crois, que I'eau, dans son état
naturel, ne soit aussi touchée par les dispositions de I’Accord.
Ainsi, cet article précise qu'a I'’exception de I'article 401, qui
prévoit ’élimination des droits sur I'eau, rien dans I'Accord ne
touche I’eau a I'état naturel.

Nous arrivons 4 la Partie 1 de la loi, qui fait suite 4 la partie
préliminaire. L’article 8 stipule que I’Accord est approuvé.

Comme je I'ai expliqué hier, le Parlement déclare ainsi qu'il a
approuvé I’Accord.

L’article 9 traite de la vente des boissons alcoolisées dans les
provinces. C'est le chapitre 8 de I'Accord. Dans sa forme
actuelle, I’Accord ne touche aucune loi provinciale. Tout ce
que font les provinces aujourd’hui est conforme a I’Accord de
libre-échange. Cet article stipule ce qu'il sera permis ou inter-
dit de faire, lorsque I’Accord sera en vigueur, et nous suppo-
sons que les provinces se plieront aux dispositions de I'ALE.
Les seules exceptions sont les dispositions prévues au chapitre
8, qui touchent les cas ou la conduite actuelle d’une province
n’est pas conforme a I'’ALE. Essentiellement, il s’agit du com-
merce du vin. Nous comptons que les provinces adopteront les
amendements législatifs nécessaires pour se conformer 2
'ALE. Cependant, si elles ne le font pas, nous tiendrons des
consultations avec les provinces intéressées afin de leur deman-
der de modifier leurs pratiques, modalités et lois, pour se con-
former a I’ALE. Si ces consultations échouent, nous devrons
alors adopter un réglement précisant les dispositions relatives a
la vente du vin dans ces provinces et ’organisme qui vend le
vin dans la province visée devra s’y conformer.

L’alinéa 9(5) prévoit expressément que tout réglement pro-
mulgué en vertu de I'alinéa 1(1) lie Sa Majesté du chef de
cette province. Ainsi, éventuellement, une régie provinciale des
alcools devrait se soumettre 4 un réglement promulgué en
vertu du Chapitre 9.

L’article 10 autorise le gouverneur en conseil a désigner le
ministre responsable en vertu des dispositions de la présente
loi.

L’article 11 donne au gouverneur en conseil le pouvoir de
créer les organismes nécessaires a I'application des dispositions

de I'accord, d’en nommer les membres et de fixer les conditions
de leur rémunération.

L’article 12 donne au gouverneur en conseil le pouvoir de
nommer un ministre comme principal représentant du Canada
a la Commission de I’Accord de libre-échange Canada—Etats-
Unis, créée en vertu du Chapitre 18 de I'ALE, et stipule que le
gouvernement peut rémunérer les membres de la Commission.

Essentiellement, cela constitue la Partie I, qui couvre toute
la législation de mise en ceuvre du libre-échange. Aprés ces dis-
positions générales, nous passons aux articles touchant expres-
sément chacune des obligations prévues a I'accord.

Le Chapitre 13 de 'accord énonce les dispositions sur les
marchés publics. 11 y est dit essentiellement que les marchés
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ments within a specified range, done by certain designated
entities of the Government of Canada, shall be done in a neu-
tral manner and shall be subject to review by a non-successful
competitor. To implement those provisions, Part 11 sets up a
procurement review process, which consists of the establish-
ment of a statutory tribunal to which one can appeal if one is
unsuccessful and have an award of the contract reviewed.

In clause 13 of Part Il the definitions are set out. It all ties
back into Chapter 13 of the agreement.

Clause 14 sets up the board to which one appeals in case of
an award where a contractor feels that he is wronged.

Senator Beaudoin: Before you go further, 1 wish to ask you
about Her Majesty in right of the province.

The Chairman: Senator MacEachen indicated that he
wanted to ask a question.

Senator MacEachen: When you said “one can appeal,” does
that mean both American and Canadian contractors?

Mr. von Finckenstein: An unsuccessful bidder is a person
who can certainly appeal.

Senator MacEachen: Including Canadians?

Mr. von Finckenstein: If it is purchased by a designated
entity within the specified range set out in the FTA, yes.

Chapter 13 designates certain entities. For example, Public
Works purchases must be in accordance with this part. They
have to be in the range as set out in the FTA II. So that a pur-
chase by Public Works, which falls in the range of this—
roughly $125,000 to $250.000—is reviewable regardless of
who the successful bidder is and whether the complainant is an
American or a Canadian.

Senator MacEachen: It could not be a non-Canadian or a
non-American, could it? Could a European complain?

Mr. von Finckenstein: It can be anyone. You cannot restrict
it to Canadians and Americans. For practical purposes it is the
bidder, and the successful one may be European. We have said
that contracts by these entities in this range are reviewable. So
that regardless of who is successful and who is unsuccessful,
any one of these unsuccessful bidders can complain.

Senator MacEachen: 1 do not understand why, under the
procurement arrangements provided by the FTA, it would go
beyond American and Canadian bidders. Does that mean that
new benefits will be available to third parties?

Mr. von Finckenstein: You would be creating a rank dis-
crimination that would state that if you are a bidder in
Canada—if you are an American or a Canadian—you would
enjoy a right of review, but if you are European we do not give
you the right of review. That would cast the whole process in
doubt. Either you establish a right of review or you do not.
You cannot just say that an unsuccessful bidder who happens
to be European-owned has no right, whereas an unsuccessful

[Traduction)

publics, dans une gamme précise, effectués par certaines enti-
tés désignées du gouvernement du Canada, seront adjugés de
facon neutre et pourront étre examinés par un concurrent non
choisi. Pour appliquer ces dispositions, la Partie Il crée un
mécanisme d’examen des marchés publics, en particulier la
création d'un tribunal statutaire, auquel le soumissionnaire
non choisi peut en appeler et demander une révision du march¢
adjugé.

L’article 13 de la Partie Il comprend les définitions perti-
nentes, qui reposent toutes sur le Chapitre 13 de 'ALE.

L’article 14 porte création de la Commission d'appel a
laquelle I'entrepreneur qui s’estime 1ésé peut s'adresser.

Le sénateur Beaudoin: Avant d'aller plus loin, j'aimerais
poser une question sur Sa Majesté du chef de la province.

Le président: Le sénateur MacEachen a fait savoir qu'il sou-
haitait poser une question.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Lorsque vous dites qu'un entrepre-
neur pouvait en appeler, entendez-vous par la a la fois I'entre-
preneur des Etats-Unis comme celui du Canada?

M. von Finckenstein: Tout soumissionnaire non choisi peut
certainement faire appel.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Y compris les Canadiens”?

M. von Finckgnstein: Oui, si le marché reléve d'une entité
désignée qui se situe dans la gamme précisée dans I'ALE.

Le Chapitre 13 désigne certaines entités. A titre d'exemple.
les achats des Travaux publics doivent étre conformes a cette
partie. Ils doivent se situer dans la gamme stipulée dans I'ALE
11. Ainsi, un marché des Travaux publics qui tombe dans cette
gamme, soit environ 125000 $ a 250 000 $, peut faire I'objet
d’une révision, quel que soit le soumissionnaire choisi et que le
plaignant soit américain ou canadien.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Ce ne peut pas étre un non-Cana-
dien ou un non-Américain, n'est-ce pas? Un Européen peut-il
se plaindre?

M. von Finckenstein: Ce peut étre n'importe qui. Nous ne
pouvons le restreindre aux Canadiens et aux Américains. Dans
la pratique, il est soumissionnaire; il se peut que le soumission-
naire choisi soit Européen. Les marchés des entités qui se
situent dans cette gamme peuvent faire I'objet d'une révision.
Ainsi, sans égard a qui est choisi ou non, n'importe quel sou-
missionnaire non choisi peut porter plainte.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Je ne vois pas pour quelle raison.
en vertu des mécanismes prévus 4 I'ALE en matiére de mar-
chés de I'Etat, cette possibilité serait offerte 4 des soumission-
naires autres que ceux du Canada et des Ftats-Unis. Cela
signifie-t-il que des tiers pourraient en tirer de nouveaux avan-
tages?

M. von Finckenstein: Ce serait créer une discrimination de¢
rang en vertu de laquelle, si vous étes soumissionnaire au
Canada, c’est-a-dire si vous étes américain ou canadien, vous
auriez le droit de demander une révision; cependant, si vous
étes européen, vous n'auriez pas ce droit. Cela jetterait des
doutes sur I'ensemble du mécanisme. Ou le droit de révision
existe, ou il n'existe pas. On ne peut simplement dire qu'ur
soumissionnaire non choisi, qui est européen, n'a aucun droit.
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bidder who is American-owned does have a right to appeal.
Either there was an injustice done in the procurement process
or there was not.

Senator MacEachen: If my understanding is correct, under
the procurement provisions both the American and 'Canadlan
governments have taken some steps to open up their govern-
ment purchases to the other party, but no steps have been
taken to extend those benefits beyond the two parties. Is that
correct?

Mr. von Finckenstein: I am sorry. I think we are spealglng at
cross purposes. If you are talking about the “opening up , you
are absolutely right. When you write the request for proposal
you can specify in it who may or may not bid. I expect that the
procuring entity there would specify who can bid on these con-
tracts. If you restrict it to Canadians or Americans, obviously
the right of review is also restricted.

Senator MacEachen: Isn’t that what the FTA does?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Yes, that is what the FTA—I am
sorry; 1 guess I took your questions too literally. You said,
“Who could appeal?” You should go back to the question of
“To what extent do we open up?” We open up only to the
Americans. Therefore, as a practical consequence, having only
opened up to Americans, it is only the Americans who can
appeal. i

The appeal process by itself does not make the distinction
between Americans, but because we have opened up pnly to
the Americans only Americans can avail themselves qf n.vl am
sorry. 1 misled you on your earlier answer; you are quite right.

Senator Frith: They have to get in the door first.
Mr. von Finckenstein: Exactly.
Senator MacEachen: But they are not in the door.

Senator Beaudoin: You said that Her Majesty in right of
Canada is bound by this statute. That is obviously the case.

Mr. von Finckenstein: Yes.

Senator Beaudoin: What about the provinces? If the federal
authority intervenes under clause 9, is the Crown in r!gl)t of
the province bound? If it is in the field of the province IS it up
to the provinces to bind themselves?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Chapter 13 specifically provides that
the procurement obligations only relate to the fqderal govern-
ment, and even in that case only to the entity designated in t'he
annex. It does not extend to provincial purchases at all. Prpvm-
cial purchases are totally outside the FTA, and there 1s no
review mechanism for them at all.

Clause 14 establishes the board.

The Chairman: Before you leave the review, does the compa-
rable U.S. law provide for similar review where, for example, 2
Canadian company felt aggrieved?

[Traduction)

tandis qu'un soumissionnaire non choisi appartenant a des
intéréts américains a le droit de présenter un appel. La situa-
tion est nette: ou bien il y a eu injustice dans I'adjudication des
marchés d’Etats, ou il n'y en a pas eu.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Si je comprends bien, en vertu des
dispositions sur les marchés publics, le gouvernement du
Canada et celui des Etats-Unis ont pris des mesures pour
ouvrir les achats gouvernementaux a l'autre partie, mais non

pour élargir ces avantages au-deld des deux parties. Est-ce
exact?

M. von Finckenstein: Je regrette, mais je crois que nous ne
parlons pas de la méme chose. Si vous parlez des «ouvertures».
vous avez absolument raison. Dans la rédaction de la demande
de proposition, il est possible de préciser qui peut ou ne peut
pas soumissionner. Je suppose que I’entité qui offrira le marché
précisera qui peut soumissionner. Si le marché est réservé a des
entités canadiennes ou américaines, il est évident que cela res-
treint également le droit de révision.

Le sénateur MacEachen: N’est-ce pas ce que fait 'ALE?

M. von Finckenstein: Oui, c’est ce que I'ALE . .. excusez-
moi; je suppose que j'ai pris votre question au pied de la lettre.
Vous avez dit «Qui peut en appeler?» Je voudrais revenir & la
question de savoir dans quelle mesure faisons-nous preuve
d’ouverture. Nous n’ouvrons nos marchés qu'aux Américains.
En conséquence, dans la pratique, eux seuls peuvent faire
appel.

Le mécanisme d’appel en lui-méme ne fait pas de distinc-
tion, mais puisque nous n'avons ouvert nos marchés qu'aux
Américains, seuls ceux-ci peuvent s’en prévaloir. Je suis désolé,
je vous ai induit en erreur dans votre question précédente.
Vous avez tout a fait raison.

Le sénateur Frith: 1ls doivent d’abord passer la porte.
M. von Finckenstein: Exactement.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Mais ils ne sont pas encore ren-
trés.

Le sénateur Beaudoin: Vous avez dit que Sa Majesté du
chef du Canada est liée par cette loi. C’est évidemment le cas.

M. von Finckenstein: Oui.

Le sénateur Beaudoin: Qu’en est-il des provinces? Si I'auto-
rité fédérale intervient en vertu de I'article 9, le gouvernement
provincial est-il li€? Si la question reléve de la compétence de
la province, n’incombe-t-il pas a cette derniére de se lier elle-
méme?

M. von Finckenstein: Le Chapitre 13 stipule expressément
que les obligations relatives aux marchés publics ne touchent
que le gouvernement fédéral et, la encore, uniquement I'entité
désignée dans I'annexe. Cela ne touche absolument pas les
marchés provinciaux. Les marchés publics des provinces sont
totalement étrangers a I'’ALE, et il n’existe aucun mécanisme
d’examen a cet égard.

L’article 14 crée la Commission.

" Le président: Avant que vous ne terminiez I’examen, est-ce
que la loi américaine équivalente prévoit un mécanisme de
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Mr. von Finckenstein: Yes, it will provide for that. The
Americans already have the review. They will lower the
threshold for the contracts so that the same range of contracts
that are reviewable in Canada will be reviewable in the United
States, and Canadian suppliers can, (a) bid on it; and (b) avail
themselves of the review process.

The Chairman: Carry on, please.

Mr. von Finckenstein: Clause 15 provides who may file a
complaint. Clause 16 covers the situation whereby the board
decides to commence an investigation into a complaint con-
cerning a procurement. The board shall first of all give notifi-
cation to the complainant and, at the same time, may order the
government institution or department to postpone awarding
the contract pending the investigation by the board.

Clause 17 refers back to Article 1305 of the agreement and
delineates the principles that are to be applied by the board
when reviewing a contract.

Clause 18, then, provides that the board shall issue a report
as a result of its review. Clause 19 provides that the board may
actually suggest in its recommendations an appropriate
remedy to the complaint. It can suggest that a new solicitation
for the contract be issued; that new bids for the contract be
sought; that the bids be re-evaluated: that the contract be ter-
minated, et cetera. Clause 19(1)(b) sets out that the board
may award to the unsuccessful bidder both the costs of his
appeal and his bid preparation costs.

Clause 19(2) provides that any moneys awarded pursuant to
paragraph (1)(b) shall be paid out of moneys appropriated by
the Consolidated Revenue Fund.

Clause 20 provides what shall be done by the government
entity that receives the report from the review board. Clause
21 sets out the regulations that the Governor in Council may
pass in order to make this whole process workable. Clause 22
provides that the board shall annually report to Parliament on
its proceedings during the year as to what investigations it has
conducted, et cetera.

Mr. Chairman, 1 believe the clause-by-clause books have
now arrived and they are now being distributed to you. It is a
black binder and under tab A3 in that binder, Senator Frith,
you will find the table of concordance that you were looking
for yesterday. On the left-hand side it sets out the section of
the Free Trade Agreement that requires a change in legisla-
tion; on the right-hand side it sets out the various numbers of
the bills where such changes have been made.

Senator Bazin: Mr. Chairman, 1 would like to go back one
step—

Senator MacEachen: Mr. Chairman, the witness said tab 3.
When I look at tab 3, I do not find what he has been talking
about.

Mr. von Finckenstein: Senator, | am sorry, it is tab A3.

[Traduction)

révision analogue si, par exemple, une entreprise canadienne se
sentait lésée?

M. von Finckenstein: Oui, elle comportera une disposition
en ce sens. Nos voisins du Sud ont déja un mécanisme d’'exa-
men. Ils abaisseront le seuil des marchés de fagon a ce que la
méme gamme de marchés puissent faire I'objet d'une révision
tant au Canada qu’aux Etats-Unis; les fournisseurs canadiens
peuvent (a) soumissionner et (b) se prévaloir dugmécanisme de
révision.

Le président: Veuillez continuer, s'il vous plait.

M. von Finckenstein: L’article 15 stipule qui peut déposer
une plainte. L’article 16 traite du cas ou la Commission décide
d'enquéter sur une plainte relative 4 un marché public. La
Commission doit d’abord informer le plaignant et, en méme
temps, elle peut demander a I'organisme ou au ministére gou-
vernemental de différer I'adjudication du marché jusqua la fin
de I'enquéte.

L'article 17 se reporte & I'article 1305 de I'accord et précise
les principes que la Commission doit respecter dans I'examen
d'un marché.

L'article 18 stipule que la Commission doit remettre un rap-
port d’enquéte. A I'article 19, il est dit que la Commission peut
en fait formuler, dans ses recommandations, des mesures cor-
rectives appropriées. Elle peut par exemple recommander unc
nouvelle demande de soumission, un nouvel appel d'offres. unc
réévaluation des offres, la résiliation du contrat, etc. L article
19(1)b) stipule que la Commission peut accorder au soumis-
sionnaire non choisi les frais entrainés par sa plainte et par la
préparation de la soumission.

En vertu de I'article 19(2), les sommes accordées en vertu du
paragraphe (1)b) seront défalquées des sommes affectées au
Fonds du revenu consolidé.

L’article 20 stipule ce que doit faire 1’entité gouvernemen-
tale qui regoit le rapport de la Commission d'examen. A I'arti-
cle 21, on précise les réglements que le gouverneur en conseil
peut prendre pour rendre viable I'ensemble du mécanisme. En
vertu de l'article 22, la Commission doit remettre au Parle-
ment un rapport d’activité pour 'année contenant des rensei-
gnements sur les enquétes menées, etc.

Monsieur le président, les exemplaires du recueil dont j¢
parlais au début viennent d’arriver; je crois qu’on vous les dis-
tribue. C’est une reliure noire; a I'intercalaire A3, monsieur l¢
sénateur Frith, vous trouverez la table de concordance que
vous cherchiez hier. Vous y trouverez, du coté gauche, l'article
de I’Accord de libre-échange qui entraine une modification
Jégislative et, a droite, les numéros des lois ou ces changements
ont été apportés.

Le sénateur Bazin: Monsieur le président, j'aimerais revenir
un peu en arriére . . .

Le sénateur MacEachen: Monsieur le président, le témoin 4
dit I'intercalaire 3. J'ai bien regardé, mais je ne trouve pas ¢¢
dont il parlait.

M. von Finckenstein: Je suis désolé, monsieur le sénateur:
mais c’est I'intercalaire A3.
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Senator Frith: Mr. Chairman, the interpreters have just told
us through the system that they do not have a copy of t}ps
document and would like to have it. 1 understand it is on its
way.

Mr. von Finckenstein: As 1 was saying, under tab A3 qf the
document, you will find the table of concordance which 1
promised you. With respect to the rest of that document, as
you can see, on the left-hand side it sets out the provision of
the act and on the right-hand side an explanation of each sec-
tion.

Senator Bazin: 1 have a question on the recourses of the
aggrieved company. On looking through clause 19, it seems to
me that nothing prevents or excludes any other recourse which
the company may wish to exercise. Is that correct?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Absolutely.
Senator Frith: Which clause are you talking about, senator?

Senator Bazin: Clause 19, senator. The answer is that the
other recourses are available.

The Chairman: Turning.now to Part 1117

Mr. von Finckenstein: Very well, Mr. Chairman. Part 111
deals with the amendments to the Special Import Measures
Act—

Senator MacEachen: Mr. Chairman, before we turn to Part
111, as a matter of interest perhaps the witness could tell us the
global amount of business which has now been opened up to
each side as a result of the procurement provision?

Mr. Alan Nymark, Acting Head and Assistant C!\ief
Negotiator, Trade Negotiations Office: Yes, senator. I believe
that in the Canadian case, this agreement will add something
in the order of $400 million worth of business, whereas in the
United States it will open up something in the order of $3 bil-

lion.

Senator Frith: That is, because of government procurement,
access to their market will be what?

Mr. Nymark: The additional access in the U.S. market to
Canadian suppliers will mean something in the order of an
additional $3 billion in contracts which we are now able to bid
on which formerly we were not able to bid on.

Senator Frith: What was the reverse situation?

Mr. Nymark: It is approximately in the order of $400 mil-
lion, senator.

Senator MacEachen: Can you tell me what segments of
public business were precluded from the procurement agree-
ment by the United States?

Mr. Nymark: Senator, the nature of this agreement on pro-
curement is indeed very limited. This agreement takes exactly
the entities that are subject to the GATT procurement code
and it does not expand or contract on those entities; it snnply
changes the threshold above which business is open t0 suppliers
in another country. Therefore the scope of contracting has not

[Traduction)

Le sénateur Frith: Monsieur le président, les interprétes
viennent de dire qu’ils n'ont pas d’exemplaires de ce document
et aimeraient en avoir. Je crois qu'on va les leur remettre.

M. von Finckenstein: Comme je le disais, @ I'intercalaire A3
du document, se trouve la table de concordance dont je vous
parlais. En ce qui a trait au reste du document, vous constate-
rez que figurent 4 la partie gauche la disposition de la loi et.
dans la partie droite, une explication de chaque article.

Le sénateur Bazin: J'ai une question a poser sur les recours
dont dispose I'entreprise lésée. Aprés avoir examiné l'article
19, il me semble que rien n'empéche ou n’interdit I'entreprise
d’utiliser tout autre recours dont elle peut souhaiter se préva-
loir. Est-ce exact?

M. von Finckenstein: Absolument.

Le sénateur Frith: De quel article parlez-vous, monsieur le
sénateur?

Le sénateur Bazin: De I'article 19, monsieur le sénateur. La
réponse est que I'entreprise peut recourir aux autres recours.

Le président: Passons-nous a la partie 1117

M. von Finckenstein: Bien, monsieur le président. La partic
111 porte sur les modifications & la Loi sur les mesures spécia-
les d'importation . . .

Le sénateur MacEachen: Monsieur le président, avant de
passer a la partie 111, simplement pour I'intérét de tous, peut-
étre les témoins pourraient-ils nous préciser globalement le
montant des activités commerciales désormais ouvertes a cha-
que partie par suite de la disposition sur les marchés publics?

M. Alan Nymark, chef intérimaire et négociateur en chef
adjoint, Bureau des négociations commerciales: Trés bien,
monsieur le sénateur. A mon avis, dans le cas du Canada,
'accord ajoute environ 400 millions de dollars en marchés
publics, tandis qu'aux Etats-Unis, cela se situe aux environs de
3 milliards de dollars.

Le sénateur Frith: En raison des marchés publics, quel sera
I'acces a leurs marchés?

M. Nymark: L’acces élargi aux marchés américains pour les
fournisseurs canadiens signifie environ 3 milliards de dollars de
plus de marchés pour lesquels nous pouvons désormais soumis-
sionner, alors que nous ne le pouvions pas auparavant.

Le sénateur Frith: Et inversement?

M. Nymark: La somme est d’environ 400 millions de dollars.
monsieur le sénateur.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Pouvez-vous me dire quels sec-
teurs des marchés publics ont été exclus de I'accord avec les
Etats-Unis?

M. Nymark: Monsieur le sénateur, la nature de cet accord
sur les marchés publics est en fait trés limitée. L'accord
reprend exactement les entités régies par le code des marchés
du GATT, sans les élargir ou les modifier; il modifie simple-
ment le seuil au-dela duquel ces marchés sont ouverts aux
fournisseurs de notre pays. En conséquence, la portée de
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changed; it is simply that a threshold has been established
above which competition is allowed.

The Chairman: You are saying, however, that the threshold
has been lowered?

Mr. Nymark: Yes, the threshold has been lowered to
approximately $25,000.

The Chairman: 1 understand that the entities are listed in
the Free Trade Agreement under Annex 1304.37

Mr. Nymark: Yes, Mr. Chairman, that is right.
The Chairman: Is there anything else on Part 11?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Following Part 11, Mr. Chairman,
Part 111 deals with the amendments to the Special Import
Measures Act. As you can appreciate, Mr. Chairman, the Spe-
cial Import Measures Act is a Canadian statute that we use to
control the trade into and out of Canada by providing for
penalties against dumping or the sale of subsidized goods into
Canada. This act is now amended in order to take into account
the new provisions of Chapter XIX of the binational review
process.

With your permission, Mr. Chairman, rather than going
clause by clause through Part I1I, I would characterize it as
follows: Part 111 is made up of three parts or sections. The sec-
tion called Part 1 deals with the present scheme of imposing
temporary and permanent duties against dumped goods or sub-
sidized goods being exported into Canada. We have made
consequential amendments to those sections in order to take
into account the new system of binational panel review on
orders that may follow therefrom, so that the whole system of
levying those protective tariffs takes into account the new
procedures that follow as a result of the binational dispute set-
tlement process.

Senator Frith: Therefore what happens is that our present
system involving what used to be called the Anti-dumping Tri-
bunal—what is it now called?

Mr. von Finckenstein: The International Trade Tribunal.

Senator Frith: Yes, the International Trade Tribunal up
until now, has dealt with complaints about material injury
from any imports that are alleged to have been dumped. That
function continues. However, with respect to cases involving
the United States, are they now dealt with by a separate tri-
bunal or by a separate system?

Mr. von Finckenstein: No. As you know, the way in which
the system works is that the Deputy Minister of National
Revenue makes the initial finding of dumping or subsidization.
The CITT then makes its finding of injury. There is then a
final finding of dumping and a final finding of injury. The
whole system continues. The only thing is that when the
Deputy Minister of National Revenue and the CITT make
their findings, they have to segregate the goods from the rest
of the world and the goods from the United States. If dumping
is alleged on goods from the United States, then obviously the
provisions for goods from the United States would apply. If the
goods are from, for example, the United States, France and

[Traduction)

'impartition n’a pas changé; on a simplement établi un seuil
au-dela duquel la concurrence est autorisée.

Le président: Par contre, vous nous dites que le seuil a été
abaissé, n'est-ce pas?

M. Nymark: En effet, le seuil a été abaissé a environ
25000 $.

Le président: Je crois savoir que les entités figurent a
’'annexe 1304.3 de I’Accord de libre-échange?

M. Nymark: Oui, monsieur le président, c’est exact.
Le président: Y a-t-il autre chose au sujet de la partie 117

M. von Finckenstein: Aprés la partie 11, monsieur le prési-
dent, nous en venons a la partie 111, qui porte sur les modifica-
tions 4 la Loi sur les mesures spéciales d’importation. Vous
n’ignorez certainement pas, monsieur le président, que cette loi
est une mesure législative canadienne que nous utilisons pour
régir le commerce en provenance et 4 destination du Canada.
et qui prévoit des sanctions pour le dumping ou la vente de
biens subventionnés au Canada. Cette loi comporte désormais
une modification pour tenir compte des nouvelles dispositions
du chapitre XIX du mécanisme bilatéral d’examen.

Avec votre permission, monsieur le président, plutdt que
d’examiner la partie 111, article par article, je me permettrai de
la décrire comme suit: elle se compose de trois sections. La pre-
miére, appelée «partie I», porte sur le régime actuel d'imposi-
tion de droits temporaires ou permanents sur les marchandises
sous-évaluées ou subventionnées exportées au Canada. Nous
avons apporté des amendements consécutifs a ces articles pour
tenir compte du nouveau systéme d’examen bilatéral dans les
ordonnances qui peuvent en découler, pour que le systéme glo-
bal d’imposition de droits protectionnistes tienne compte des
nouvelles modalités découlant du mécanisme bilatéral de régle-
ment des litiges.

Le sénateur Frith: Ainsi, notre systéme actuel, faisant appel
a I'organisme qu’on appelait le Tribunal antidumping . .. quel
est son nom, maintenant?

M. von Finckenstein: Le Tribunal du commerce internatio-
nal.

Le sénateur Frith: Ah oui, le Tribunal du commerce inter-
national s’occupait jusqu’a maintenant des plaintes de domma-
ges matériels résultant d’importations supposément sous-éva-
luées. 11 conserve cette fonction. Cependant, en ce qui a trait
aux affaires qui touchent les Etats-Unis, sont-elles traitées par
un tribunal distinct ou un systéme distinct?

M. von Finckenstein: Non. Comme vous le savez, de la
fagon dont le systéme fonctionne, le sous-ministre du Revenu
national doit d’abord constater que les biens ont été sous-éva-
lués ou subventionnés. C'est ensuite que le tribunal doit déci-
der s’il y a eu dommages. L’étape suivante est une décision
finale de sous-évaluation ou de dommages. Le systeme
demeure complet. La seule différence est que, lorsque le sous-
ministre du Revenu national et le tribunal tirent leurs conclu-
sions, ils doivent faire une distinction entre les biens provenant
du reste du monde et ceux qui viennent des Etats-Unis. Si I'0P
soupgonne qu’il y a eu dumping 4 I'égard de biens importés des
Etats-Unis, il est évident qu'il faudra appliquer des disposition?
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Japan, they would make two orders—one in respect of goods
from France and Japan and one in respect of gc?ods from the
United States. The reason they make two orders is because the
appeals from those orders go to different places. The appeals
regarding U.S. goods would go to the binational panel and the
appeal with regard to French and Japanese goods would go to
the Federal Court.

Senator Frith: Which is the present system also for the
United States?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Yes.

Senator Frith: So those findings informing us of m‘atcrlal
injury will all be the same and come from the same .tnbuna]i
but the person who receives them will know that his appeaq
path is a different one for U.S. goods than for non-U.S. goods?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Yes. For reasons best known 10 the
drafters, the way this Special Import Measures Act is struc-
tured is such that it starts with the levying of tariffs, and the
second part deals with the investigation and ?he': prqcedure that
leads to the levying of the tariff. As to why it is this way, 1 do
not know, but that is how the act is right now. The present
amendments to the first part in effect are techical amendments
to the levying of tariffs which we now have to pay each time
we buy from the United States and other countries. Parl. 11 of
SIMA sets out the procedure for the binational panel review as
found in chapter 19.

Senator MacEachen: When you talk about 1h§ Jevying of
tariffs, are you referring to the tariffs that are levied on coun-
ter-dumped and subsidized goods?

Mr. von Finckenstein: 1 am sorry; .I should say “‘du}nes )
which are there in order to offset dumping and subsidization.

Senator MacEachen: Have you changed the definition of
“dumping?”’

Mr. von Finckenstein: No. Nothing has changed at all. The
first part of SIMA is purely technical and deals with the
mechanics of putting such a duty on once there has been a
finding of dumping or subsidization and injury.

Senator Bosa: Clause 11 says that the .Governor in Coun;tl
can establish committees and commissions. What are tl :
qualifications for members who will form those committee
and commissions?

The Chairman: Senator Bosa, do you want to g0 back to
Part I of the bill?

Senator Bosa: Were we not just asking questions about Part
1?

Mr. von Finckenstein: 1 was speaking about Part I of the

Special Import Measures Act. Part 1 of the bill provides f}?r
the setting up of these committees. It does not specify the

[Traduction)

relatives aux biens en provenance des Elgts-Unis. A titre
d’exemple, si ces biens proviennent des Etats-Unis, de la
France et du Japon, il y aura deux instances, I'une a I'égard
des biens de la France et du Japon et I'autre, pour ceux prove-
nant des Etats-Unis. S’il existe deux palliers, c'est parce que
les appels qui en émanent ne sont pas acheminés au méme
endroit. Les appels relatifs aux biens provenant des Etats-Unis
iront a la Commission bilatérale, tandis que I'appel relatif aux
biens provenant de la France et du Japon sera adressé & la
Cour fédérale.

Le sénateur Frith: C'est aussi le systéme actuel aux Etats-
Unis, n’est-ce pas?

M. von Finckenstein: Oui.

Le sénateur Frith: Ainsi, lorsqu’on nous informera qu'il y a
eu dommages matériels, les conclusions seront les mémes et
proviendront du méme tribunal, mais la personne qui les rece-
vra saura que son appel sera acheminé différemment, selon que
les biens proviennent des Etats-Unis ou d’ailleurs?

M. von Finckenstein: Oui. Pour des raisons que les rédac-
teurs de la loi connaissent mieux que moi, la Loi sur les mesu-
res spéciales d'importation commence par l'imposition de
droits tarifaires, tandis que la deuxiéme partie traite des
enquétes et du mécanisme aboutissant a I'imposition de droits.
Pourquoi en est-il ainsi, je ne le sais pas, mais c'est de cette
fagcon que la loi se présente actuellement. Les amendements
actuels a la premiére partie sont en fait des amendements tech-
niques a la perception des droits que nous devons payer chaque
fois que nous achetons aux Etats-Unis ou a d'autres pays. La
partie deux de la LMSI précise la procédure a suivre dans
'examen bilatéral en commission, telle que décrite au chapitre
19.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Quand vous parlez de perception
de tarifs, s’agit-il de droits prélevés sur les biens sous-évalués
ou subventionnés?

M. von Finckenstein: Je suis désolé, j'aurais di parler non
pas de tarifs, mais de droits visant & compenser les subventions
et la sous-évaluation.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Avez-vous modifi¢ la définition de
la «sous-évaluation»?

M. von Finckenstein: Non. Rien n’a changé. La premiére
partie de la LMSI est purement technique et porte sur les
mécanismes d’imposition de ces droits, lorsqu'on a constaté
que les biens étaient sous-évalués ou subventionnés, et qu'il y a
eu dommages.

Le sénateur Bosa: L’article 11 stipule que le gouverneur en
conseil peut créer des comités et des commissions. Quelles sont
les compétences requises des membres qui feront partie de ces
comités et commissions?

Le président: Monsieur le sénateur Bosa, souhaitez-vous
revenir a la Partie I du projet de loi?

Le sénateur Bosa: Ne posions-nous pas des questions sur la
Partie 1?

M. von Finckenstein: Je parlais de la Partie I de la Loi sur
les mesures spéciales d’importation. La Partie I du projet de loi
prévoit la création de ces comités. On n'y précise pas les com-
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qualifications that are needed by members. Those have to be
determined in light of the special body that is being set up and
the expertise required for that body.

Senator Bosa: Are the qualifications for the members of
these committees found in any part of the bill?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Only in the Special Import Measures
Act, where you are dealing with the binational panels to review
countervail or anti-dumping decisions, do we provide that the
chairman of such a panel be a lawyer. The members of that
panel are drawn from rosters submitted by both sides. Those
rosters must contain the names of some lawyers. Otherwise,
you will not have a chairman who is a lawyer. That is the only
qualification.

Senator Bosa: So they have to be lawyers?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Not all of them have to be lawyers,
just some of them, in order to meet the requirement of
appointing a lawyer as chairman.

The Chairman: We will now go back to Part 111 at page 11
of the bill. we have dealt with Part 1. I believe you were going
on to Part I1.

Mr. von Finckenstein: Yes. Part I is found on pages 11 to
26, and it deals with the technical amendments regarding the
levying of anti-dumping and countervailing duties. Part 11 is a
new part of SIMA, and it deals with a specific dispute settle-
ment procedure under Chapter 19, which now forms part of
the Special Import Measures Act so that Canadian decisions
on dumping or countervail against U.S. goods can be appealed
or reviewed by the binational panel. Section 77.1 of Part 11
defines the various terms that are used in that section. These
definitions conform with what is in the agreement. Section
_ 77.1 deals with requests for decisions to be reviewed. In effect,
the minister asks for a review and sets out the limitation period
and the grounds for review. The grounds are exactly the same
as those set out in Section 28 of the Federal Court Act.

Section 77.12 provides that if a person—

Senator MacEachen: Would you clarify the description
“dispute settlement respecting goods of the United States”
found on page 26? Presumably, these are goods from the
United States entering Canada about which we have found a
complaint.

Mr. von Finckenstein: Right.

Senator MacEachen: The procedures by which we take our
complaints to the various panels are established. Is that right?

Mr. von Finckenstein: That is correct.

Senator MacEachen: Presumably the American legislation
will have a reciprocal provision.

Mr. von Finckenstein: Exactly. They would disregard
American decisions on countervail or anti-dumping and take
them to the binational panel as well.

[Traduction)

pétences requises pour en faire partie. C'est un aspect qu'il
faudra déterminer compte tenu de I'organisme spécial 4 créer
et de la compétence qu’on en attend.

Le sénateur Bosa: Précise-t-on les compétences des membres
de ces comités quelque part dans le projet de loi.

M. von Finckenstein: Seule la Loi sur les mesures spéciales
d’importation, ou I'on traite de commissions bilatérales d'exa-
men des décisions touchant les mesures compensatoires ou
antidumping, précise que le président doit étre avocat. Les
membres de cette commission sont choisis & partir de listes
présentées par les deux parties. Quelques avocats doivent figu-
rer sur ces listes. Autrement, le président ne sera pas avocat.
C’est la seule condition de candidature.

Le sénateur Bosa: Ainsi, ils doivent étre avocats?

M. von Finckenstein: Pas tous, seulement certains, pour
répondre a I'obligation de nommer un avocat a la présidence.

Le président: Nous revenons a la Partie 111, 4 la page 11 du
projet de loi. Nous avons traité de la Partie 1. Je crois que vous
étiez sur le point d’aborder la Partie 11.

M. von Finckenstein: Oui. La Partie I se trouve aux pages
11 4 26 et traite des amendements techniques relatifs 4 la per-
ception de droits antidumping et compensatoires. La Partic |1
est nouvelle, dans la LMSI, et traite d’une procédure précise
de réglement des litiges en vertu du chapitre 19, qui désormais
fait partie de la Loi sur les mesures spéciales d'importation, de
fagon que la Commission bilatérale puisse recevoir des appels
ou faire des enquétes sur les décisions canadiennes de mesures
compensatoires ou antidumping 4 I'égard de biens en prove-
nance des Etats-Unis. L’article 77.1 de la Partie 11 définit les
divers termes utilisés dans cette partie. Ces définitions sont
conformes a ce qui figure dans I'accord. L'article 77.1 traite
des demandes de révision des décisions. En fait, le ministre
demande un examen, précise la période limite et les motifs de
révision. Ces motifs sont notamment les mémes que ceux qui
figurent 4 I'article 28 de la Loi sur la Cour fédérale.

L’article 77.12 stipule que si une personne . . .

Le sénateur MacEachen: Pouvez-vous fournir des éclaircis-
sements sur ’expression «réglement des différends concernant
les marchandises des Etats-Unis» qui se trouve 4 la page 26 1]
faut supposer qu'il s'agit de marchandises des Etats-Unis qui
entrent au Canada et qui font I'objet d’une plainte.

M. von Finckenstein: C’est exact.
Le sénateur MacEachen: On y précise les modalités de pré-

sentation de nos plaintes aux diverses commissions. Est-ce bien
cela?

M. von Finckenstein: C’est exact.

Le sénateur MacEachen: 11 faut supposer qu'il existe une
disposition réciproque dans les lois américaines.

M. von Finckenstein: Exactement. On ne tiendrait pas
compte des décisions américaines sur les mesures compensatoi-
res ou antidumping, car elles seraient également présentées d
la Commission bilatérale.
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Senator MacEachen: Mr. Chairman, at some point I would
like to ask some general questions about the review process.

The Chairman: Perhaps this might be a good time as we are
focused on that subject now.

Senator MacEachen: In my speech in the Senate yesterday I
referred to some argumentation that had been made by Mr.
Ritchie, the former Deputy Trade Negotiator, in which he
used the expression of Canada “hauling” the Americans before
the binational panels. Would you please describe the circum-
stances under which Canada can “haul” the Americans before
the binational panels?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Yes. Is your question based on the
context of countervail and anti-dumping or on the context of
the agreement generally?

Senator MacEachen: In the context of the agreement gener-
ally.

Mr. von Finckenstein: There are essentially three sepa-
rate—

Senator MacEachen: To be fair in making that statement |
think Mr. Ritchie was thinking only of the binational panel,
rather than the commission.

Mr. von Finckenstein: There has been some confusion
because of the terminology in the agreement. The agreement,
in effect, has two quite different dispute-settlement mech-
anisms. One is Chapter 18 which deals with anything but anti-
dumping, countervail or financial services—any other dispute
concerning any part of the agreement or the interpretation
thereof. It provides for notification of the parties to each other,
in case there is a controversy, of consultation for 30 days. If
the cannot resolve those differences in 30 days, either party
may ask for the establishment of a panel to rule on who is right
and who is wrong and what remedy should be taken.

With the consent of both parties, that panel can also give
binding decisions. Without that consent, that panel will, in
effect, give its advice and will make a recommendation. Once
that decision comes down, if it is a recommendation, then the
other party has to live up to it. If it fails to live up to it, it
would be exposed to retaliation from the other side. If it is a
binding arbitration then, obviously, the party has to live up to
it; otherwise it would be in breach of the agreement. That is
Chapter 18.

Chapter 19 deals with anti-dumping and countervailing
issues.

Senator MacEachen: In Chapter 18 I presume you are talk-
ing about any trade hearing between Canada and the United
States.

Mr. von Finckenstein: Subject to the FTA. There may be
trade irritants between Canada and the U.S. which are outside
the FTA. You may have a dispute about air landing rights and
there is nothing in the FTA which you could invoke for that
purpose. If it is a dispute on agricultural standards, or some-

[Traduction)

Le sénateur MacEachen: Monsieur le président, j'aimerais.
lorsque ce sera possible, poser quelques questions générales sur
le mécanisme de révision.

_ Le président: Le moment semblerait bien choisi, car c'est
Justement ce dont il est question maintenant.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Dans mon discours d’hier au
Sénat, j'ai parlé d'un raisonnement suivi par M. Ritchic.
ancien négociateur commercial, dans lequel il faisait allusion
au Canada «trainant» les Américains devant les commissions
bilatérales. Pouvez-vous nous parler des circonstances dans les-
quelles le Canada pourrait «trainer» nos voisins du sud devant
les commissions bilatérales?

M. von Finckenstein: Oui. Votre question se situe-t-elle dans
le contexte des mesures compensatoires ou antidumping. ou
dans le contexte général de 1'accord?

Le sénateur MacEachen: Dans le contexte général de
'accord.

. M von Finckenstein: 1] existe essentiellement trois éventua-
lités distinctes pour . . .

Le sénateur MacEachen: Pour replacer cette déclaration
dans son juste contexte, je crois que M. Ritchie ne visait que
'organisme bilatéral, et non la commission.

M. von Finckenstein: La terminologie de I'Accord a causé
une certaine confusion. En pratique, I’Accord comporte deux
mécanismes trés différents de réglement des différends. Le
premier est le chapitre 18 qui traite de tous les domaines sauf
des droits antidumping et compensateurs de méme que des ser-
vices financiers, c’est-a-dire tout autre litige au sujet d'une
partie ou I'autre de I’Accord ou de son interprétation. En cas
de controverse, ce chapitre prévoit que les parties peuvent
signifier 'une a 'autre leur intention de se consulter dans une
période de trente jours. Si le probléme ne peut étre résolu au
cours de cette période, I'une ou I'autre des parties peut deman-
der la création d’un groupe spécial qui aurait pour mandat de
trancher la question et de décider de la mesure a prendre.

Avec le consentement des deux parties, ce groupe spécial
peut aussi prendre des décisions exécutoires. En 'absence d'un
tel consentement, le groupe spécial donnera un avis et fera une
recommandation. Dés que la décision est arrétée, I'autre partie
doit la respecter s’il s’agit d’une recommandation. Si cette par-
tie ne parvient pas a respecter la décision, elle s’expose & des
représailles de la part de 'autre partie. S'il s’agit d’un juge-
ment exécutoire, I'autre partie doit évidemment s’y plier au ris-
que de contrevenir 4 I'Accord. Voila essentiellement le contenu
du chapitre 18.

Le chapitre 19 traite des droits antidumping et compensa-
teurs.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Pour ce qui est du chapitre 18, je
suppose que vous voulez parler de I'instruction d'une affaire
commerciale entre le Canada et les Etats-Unis.

M. von Finckenstein: Sous réserve des dispositions de

‘I’ALE. Il peut y avoir des obstacles commerciaux entre le

Canada et les Etats-Unis qui échappent a la compétence de
I’Accord. Par exemple, il peut s’agir d’une divergence concer-
nant des droits d’atterrissage, au sujet desquels I'’ALE ne pré-
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thing like that, then we clearly deal with agricultural stand-
ards in this agreement; so you would then go to Chapter 18.

Chapter 19 has two separate procedures. One is found in
Article 1903 which provides that either party can amend its
present trade remedy action, Canada’s being the Special
Import Measures Act and the United States being the Trade
Act, 1976; but, in terms of any such amendments there first
has to be consultation and, second, if they are supposed to
apply to the other party, the other party has to be specifically
named. If the party is not named it does not apply. Then, if the
other party feels that that amendment is not consistent either
with the GATT anti-dumping code, the GATT countervail
code or the purpose and intent of this Free Trade Agreement,
to be ascertained from the provisions and the preamble hereof,
then it can ask for the establishment of a panel.

The panel would then look at the amendment and determine
whether or not it is consistent with the standards 1 have just
mentioned. If not, then the other party has to amend its legis-
lation or, if it fails to do so, the other side can take equivalent
legislative regulatory action cr terminate the agreement on 60
days’ notice.

That is Article 1903. The idea is to make sure that while we
negotiate new rules on subsidies, the present system, essen-
tially, stays in place and is not amended beyond what is there
and beyond what is encompassed in this bill and the intent of
the FTA.

Senator MacEachen: | understand we are dealing with a sit-
» uation in which either country would choose to amend its trade
laws where one party might consider this to be inconsistent
with either the GATT or the purpose and intent of the FTA.
Let us say that Canada brings a complaint to the binational
panel, what I want to ask you is: Is it not, in that case, true
that that binational panel cannot issue an order of any kind,
that it issues a declaratory opinion?

Mr. von Finckenstein: The legislation in both countries are
supreme. The Government of Canada can enact what it wants
and the Congress can enact what it wants. If, in effect, by
design or by accident they have enacted something that is
inconsistent with the FTA, the binational panel will tell them
so. It is then up to the country in question to amend its legisla-
tion and to persuade its legislature to do so. If it fails to do so,
you have, in effect,.a breach of the agreement.

Senator MacEachen: Is it not the case that the agreement
provides, in these circumstances, that once the binational panel
issues a declaratory opinion—not an order since it cannot
order the governments to do anything—the governments can
ignore it? If, in this case, the United States ignored it, Canada
would be allowed to take some counter measures of its own; is
that right?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Or it may terminate the agreement
on 60 days’ notice. Absolutely.

[Traduction)

voit aucune disposition. S'il sagit de litige sur des normes agri-
coles ou quelque chose de ce genre, on invoquera alors le
chapitre 18 puique I’Accord touche clairement a ce point.

Le chapitre 19 renferme deux procédures distinctes. La pre-
miére se trouve a I'article 1903, qui prévoit que I'une ou I'autre
des parties peut modifier sa propre loi en matiére de com-
merce, celle du Canada étant la Loi sur les mesures spéciales
d’importation et celle des Etats-Unis, la Trade Act de 1976:
cependant, 4 I'égard de ces modifications, une consultation doit
d’abord avoir lieu et, en second lieu, si les modifications sont
censées s’appliquer 4 'autre partie, cette derniére doit étre
expressément désignée, sans quoi elle n’est pas touchée par la
modification. Par la suite, si la partie touchée estime que la
modification ne respecte ni le code antidumping du GATT, ni
le code des droits compensateurs du GATT ni I'objet du pré-
sent Accord de libre-échange, dont l'interprétation se fera &
partir des dispositions et du préambule de cet Accord, la partie
lésée peut demander la création d’un groupe spécial.

Le groupe spécial examinera alors la modification et déter-
minera si elle satisfait ou non aux normes que je viens de men-
tionner. Dans la négative, I'autre partie doit modifier sa loi ou.
si elle ne le fait pas, la partie lésée peut adopter une mesure
équivalente de réglementation ou mettre fin a I'Accord moyen-
nant un préavis de soixante jours.

Voild I'essentiel de I'article 1903. Cet article a pour but
d’assurer que le régime actuel, pendant que nous négocions de
nouvelles régles sur les subventions, demeure essenticllement
en vigueur et qu’il ne fait pas I'objet de modifications dépas-
sant le cadre actuel ou les dispositions du présent projet de loi
ou I'objet de 'ALE.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Je crois comprendre que nous
avons affaire a une situation dans laquelle I'un ou I'autre des
deux pays peut décider de modifier ses lois commerciales et
que l'autre peut considérer cette modification comme étant
contraire aux mesures du GATT ou a I'objet de I'Accord. Sup-
posons que le Canada saisisse le groupe spécial binational
d’une plainte. N'est-il pas vrai que ce groupe ne peut émettre
aucune ordonnance, mais seulement une opinion déclarative?

M. von Finckenstein: Dans les deux pays, les lois constituent
'autorité supréme. Le gouvernement du Canada et le Congres
peuvent adopter toutes les lois qu'ils veulent. Si, volontaire-
ment ou non, ils adoptent une loi qui contredit les dispositions
de 'ALE, le groupe spécial binational les avisera de la chose. Il
reviendra alors au pays en question de persuader ses législa-
teurs de modifier la loi. Si le pays néglige de procéder de la
sorte, il y a alors effectivement infraction 4 I’Accord.

Le sénateur MacEachen: N’est-il pas vrai que, dans ces cir-
constances, I'’Accord prévoit que dés que le groupe binational
émet une opinion déclarative, et non une ordonnance puisqu il
n’a aucun pouvoir a cet effet, les gouvernements peuvent n¢
pas en tenir compte? Dans ce cas, si les Etats-Unis agissaient
de la sorte, le Canada ne serait-il pas alors en droit de prendre
des contre-mesures?

M. von Finckenstein: Ou bien il peut mettre fin & I'Accord
avec préavis de soixante jours. Vous avez entiérement raison.
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Senator MacEachen: When Mr. Ritchie. in his article in the
Globe and Mail said that in these circumstances the binational
panel could order the governments to do something, it cer-
tainly was a very loose commentary on the agreement because
the binational panels in these limited circumstances in which
we are talking about a change in the law, can say, “We don't
like it. We give you our opinion,” and the governments can
ignore it. The other government can tear up the agreement or
it can take action on its own part. Do I have it right?

Mr. von Finckenstein: I have not read Mr. Ritchie’s article,
but you are right in the fact that nobody can order the legisla-
ture of the other country to amend.

Senator MacEachen: Or the government.

Mr. von Finckenstein: Or the government. It is a basic prin-
ciple of international law that things are done by consent. You
submit to something. If you do not submit, then, obviously. it
is not an issue. Even if you submit, the only penalty which can
be imposed upon you is you being kicked out of the club you
have submitted to. There .is no international enforcement
agency.

Senator MacEachen: It does not even insist that you be
kicked out.

Mr. von Finckenstein: No, you have the option of leaving.

Senator MacEachen: You have the option of ignoring the
binational panel and saying to the other country, “If you don’t
like it, take some action.”

. Mr. von Finckenstein: You have to put it in context, Sena-
tor. If you look at the GATT, the GATT makes a recommen-
dation and if we do not live up to it, the other country can
retaliate.

Here, you agreed to the binational panel and the binational
panel will then certify to you that you are in breach of your
agreement. It will then be up to the government to say either—
and it is most unlikely—*‘Yes, we are in breach of our agree-
ment and, the consequences be damned, we will stay in breach
of our agreement,” or—which is much more likely—“Having
had the certification by a body to which we have submitted, we
are in breach of an international obligation, so we will remedy
the situation.”

You are putting very strong pressure on the country to con-
form. It is much stronger than any other existing trade agree-
ment we have.

Senator MacEachen: Is it not clear that the agreement itself
foresees a situation in which the country found at fault will not
conform because it provides, in those circumstances, for a
course of action to be taken by the complaining country? I am
not trying to make a case, I am trying to understand the end
point, and the end point is that the Free Trade Agreement
acknowledges the possibility that a declaratory opinion by a
binational panel will be ignored by the country found at fault
and provides, in those circumstances, that the aggrieved party

[Traduction)

Le sénateur MacEachen: Lorsque, dans I'article qu'il a fait
paraitre dans le Globe and Mail, M. Ritchie a dit que, dans
ces circonstances, le groupe binational pourrait enjoindre les
gouvernements de faire quelque chose, il s’agissait alors assu-
rément d’une remarque fort abusive au sujet de I’Accord. étant
donné que les groupes binationaux, lorsqu’ils ont affaire a une
modification a la loi, peuvent s’y opposer et donner leur propre
opinion, mais que les gouvernements n'ont pas a en tenir
compte. L’autre gouvernement peut mettre fin 4 I’Accord ou
prendre ses propres mesures de représailles. Mon interpréta-
tion est-elle juste?

M. von Finckenstein: Je n’ai pas lu I'article de M. Ritchie.
mais vous avez raison de dire que personne ne peut ordonner
quoi que ce soit aux législateurs d'un autre pays.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Ou au gouvernement.

M. von Finckenstein: C’est juste. Il y a en droit internatio-
nal un principe de base selon lequel les choses se font par con-
sentement mutuel. Vous vous soumettez a quelque chose. mais
dans le cas contraire, il y a évidemment pas sujet & contro-
verse. Méme si vous vous pliez aux régles d'une association.
votre éviction de cette association est la seule peine qu'on
puisse vous imposer. Aucun organisme international n'a de
pouvoir coercitif.

Le sénateur MacEachen: 11 n’exige méme pas votre éviction.

M. von Finckenstein: En effet, vous avez le choix de partir
de vous-méme.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Vous avez le choix de ne pas
reconnaitre le groupe binational et de dire & 'autre pays de
prendre les mesures qu'il veut s’il n’aime pas votre attitude.

M. von Finckenstein: C'est 1a une bonne interprétation.
monsieur le sénateur. Par exemple, si le GATT nous fait une
recommandation que nous refusons d'adopter, le pays lésé peut
prendre des mesures de représailles.

Dans ce cas-ci, vous avez accepté la création du groupe bina-
tional, et ce dernier attestera de votre infraction 4 I'Accord. De
deux choses I'une: ou bien le gouvernement, et c’est fort impro-
bable, reconnait sa faute et décide de se moquer des consé-
quences et de demeurer dans I'illégalité; ou bien, situation
beaucoup plus probable, acceptant I'opinion de l'organisme
auquel il a décidé de se soumettre, il reconnaitra son manque-
ment 4 une obligation internationale et prendra les mesures qui
s’imposent.

Vous exercez des pressions trés fortes sur le pays pour qu'il
respecte les régles du jeu. Cette pression est beaucoup plus
astreignante que toute autre entente commerciale dont nous
sommes actuellement signataires.

Le sénateur MacEachen: N’est-il pas évident que l'accord
prévoit ce genre de situation, c'est-a-dire celle d'un pays con-
trevenant qui décide de ne pas respecter les régles du jeu, étant
donné qu’il permet alors au pays 1ésé de prendre des mesures
de représailles? Mon intention n'est pas de faire un cas
d’espéce, mais simplement d’essayer de comprendre ce qui se
passe vraiment, c’est-d-dire le fait que I'Accord de libre-
échange admet la possibilité que le pays contrevenant puisse ne
pas tenir compte de I'opinion déclarative d'un groupe binatio-
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can take measures on its own, short of getting out of the agree-
ment.

Mr. von Finckenstein: This is your interpretation and |
would look at it and say that every country reserves itself a
remedy and will not totally give this up. Therefore, any inter-
national obligation is always subject to the country not going
along.

Senator MacEachen: Let us look at the agreement.
Mr. von Finckenstein: This is at page 273.

Senator MacEachen: It states quite clearly in Article 1903
that if remedial legislation is not enacted, the party that
requested the panel may take comparable legislative or equiva-
lent executive actions or terminate the agreement. All I am
saying is that you should not press to the point where you say
that the agreement does not take into account the possibility
that a declaratory opinion by a binational panel under Article
1903 will be ignored by the country found at fault and provides
a way by which the aggrieved country can respond. It is right
there.

Mr. von Finckenstein: I do not think I can add anythmg to
what 1 said before, senator.

Senator MacEachen: ] gather you cannot, and I understand
why. Anyway, let us go on.

Mr. von Finckenstein: In the second part of Chapter 19,
from Article 1904 onward there is set out a review of decisions
made by the organisms who are charged with finding dumping
or countervail and injury in both countries. Right now, in both
countries, these decisions can be subject to judicial review. In
the United States you can appeal to the Court of International
Trade—in Canada, to the Federal Court—and ask that such a
decision be reviewed to ensure that it was conducted essentially
in accordance with the law of the country. What we provide
here is that these reviews continue but that rather than go into
a national court in either country, they go to a joint binational
panel of five members, two appointed from each side who then
choose the fifth, and that these binational panels, applying the
law of the country from which the review originates, will then
see whether either the finding of dumping or countervail or the
finding of injury was correct in accordance with the law of the
country or was incorrect. If it is incorrect, they send it back to
be redone and redone properly the second time around. These
reviews and a decision as to whether to redo it or to uphold it
are binding on the lower body and must be obeyed.

Senator Frith: What is binding?
Mr. von Finckenstein: Let me give it to you.

Senator Frith: | am with you up to the point where number
five permits the domestic judicial review.

Mr. von Finckenstein: Yes. I am taking an example from
the United States where you have a countervail action against
a Canadian product which is found to be both subsidized and

[Traduction)

nal et que, dans ces circonstances, la partie lésée puisse pren-
dre des mesures de son propre chef, en dehors de mettre fin a
I'accord.

M. von Finckenstein: C’est 1a votre interprétation, mais je
vous ferai remarquer que chacun des pays se réserve un
recours et qu'il ne renoncera pas entiérement. Par conséquent.
toute obligation internationale comporte toujours le risque quc
’'un des pays ne s’y soumette pas.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Examinons ce que dit I'accord.
M. von Finckenstein: C’est 4 la page 273.

Le sénateur MacEachen: L’article 1903 énonce trés claire-
ment que si une loi de recours n’est pas adoptée, la partie qui a
demandé I'intervention du groupe spécial peut prendre des dis-
positions législatives comparables ou des mesures équivalentes.
ou dénoncer I'accord. Tout ce que je dis, c’est que vous ne
devriez pas aller jusqu'a dire que I'accord ne prévoit pas la pos-
sibilité que les pays contrevenants ne tiennent pas compte
d’une opinion déclarative émise par un groupe spécial binatio-
nal aux termes de I'article 1903, et que ce méme accord offre
aux pays lésés un moyen de représailles. Tout est la.

M. von Finckenstein: Je ne pense avoir rien d'autre a ajou-
ter 4 mes propos antérieurs, monsieur le sénateur.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Je pense plutdt que vous ne le pou-
vez pas et je comprends pourquoi. Quoi qu'il en soit poursui-
vons.

M. von Finckenstein: A la deuxiéme partie du chapitre 19. 4
partir de I'article 1904, il est dit qu'un examen sera fait des
décisions prises par les organismes ayant pour mandat de cons-
tater une situation de dumping, de droits compensateurs et de
dommages dans les deux pays. A I'heure actuelle, de telles
décisions peuvent faire 'objet d'un examen judiciaire dans les
deux pays. Aux Etats-Unis, I'instruction est faite par la Cour
du commerce international, tandis qu'au Canada, on peut
demander 4 la Cour fédérale d'examiner une telle décision et
de s’assurer qu’elle a été prise essentiellement d'aprés les lois
du pays. On prévoit ici que de tels examens se poursuivront.
mais plutdt que de faire appel 4 un tribunal national dans 1'un
ou l'autre pays, les parties soumettront leurs doléances & un
groupe binational mixte de cing membres dont ils choisiront
chacun deux membres puis s’entendront sur le cinquiéme. Ces
groupes binationaux, appliquant la loi du pays d'ou provient la
demande d’examen, examinent si I'accusation de droits anti-
dumping ou compensateurs ou de dommages est justifiée con-
formément aux lois du pays en question. S'ils estiment qu'elle
n’est pas fondée, ils demandent aux personnes compétentes de
revoir la question. Ces examens, de méme que la décision de
les refaire ou de les maintenir, obligent I'organisme subalternc
et doivent étre observés.

Le sénateur Frith: Qu'entendez-vous par 1a?

M. von Finckenstein: Permettez-moi de vous expliquer.

Le sénateur Frith: J’ai bien compris jusqu'au point ou I¢
numéro cinq permet un examen judiciaire intérieur.

M. von Finckenstein: C’est cela. Supposons que les Etats-
Unis imposent des droits compensateurs a I'égard d'un produit
canadien qui serait subventionné et qui causerait un préjudice.
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injurious. Both the decision as to whether it is subsidized and
the decision as to whether there is injury can be subject to
review by a binational panel. The binational panel can look at
it and say, “The way you came to the conclusion that it is sub-
sidized is improper because you interpreted the United States
Trade Act improperly. You applied a test that is really not
demanded by the legislation. Redo it and redo it according to
the following formula.” That decision by the binational pant;l
is binding on the lower body, which, in the United States, 1s
the International Trade Administration or the Department of
Commerce. They then have to re-examine the case and deter-
mine whether there is still a subsidy when they apply the new
test that is mandated by the binational panel. It is the same
thing in terms of injury, where the determination is by the
International Trade Commission. It is the same thing on the
Canadian side, with the exception that the bodies involved are
the Deputy Minister of National Revenue and the Canadian
International Trade Tribunal. This is how we will ensure that
the law of each country is properly enforced in accordance
with its letter and that there is no slanting or interpretations
that favour the domestic industry.

Senator MacEachen: Mr. Chairman, on this point, in the
case where an action is taken or a complaint about the process
is invoked because the allegation is made that what has been
done is not in a conformity with the law in the former case,
where a change in the law has led to a binational panel, 1
understand that that case can go directly to the binational
panel.

Mr. von Finckenstein: 1 am sorry, could you rephrase that,
senator?

Senator MacEachen: I must say, my question was not an
example of clarity. Am I correct in saying that, in the chapter
which we have just discussed—namely, where a change in law
has been made—that the complaining party can go directly to
a binational panel?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Yes. You consult first but then you
80, yes.

Senator MacEachen: Thank you. I now go to the second
case, namely where there is a complaint that the action talgen
is not in conformity with existing law. Am I correct in saying
that that case cannot go to a binational panel unless it 15
adjudicated by what is described in the Free Trade Agreement
as the investigating authorities?

Mr. von Finckenstein: The investigating authorities issue
the original decision which becomes the subject of dispute.
They make a finding of dumping, countervail or injury. You,
as a producer or exporter/importer, take issue with that deci-
sion saying that it was not done properly and was the wrong
application of U.S. law. Having taken issue with it, you a_sk for
it to be reviewed. So you have to have, first of all, an action by
the investigating authority which, in effect, will lead to an
imposition of a duty. That is what you are complaining of, t}}e
act which found either countervail or injury. You do not like it.
You want it reviewed. You then ask for a binational panel. A
Panel is set up and then reviews the action.

[Traduction)

Les deux affirmations: celle relative @ une subvention et celle
relative au préjudice peuvent €tre revues par un groupe bina-
tional. Ce dernier peut examiner le probléme et conclure que la
décision selon laquelle il y a eu subvention est erronée parce
qu’'on a mal interprété la loi américaine sur le commerce. 11 y 2
eu application d'un test qui n’était pas vraiment exigé par la
loi. Le groupe demandera alors que 'examen soit refait selon
la formule suivante. Cette décision du groupe binational a
force obligatoire pour I'organisme subalterne, qui aux Etats-
Unis est la Commission du commerce international ou le
ministére du Commerce. Cet organisme doit alors réexaminer
I'affaire et déterminer s’il y a toujours subvention en appli-
quant le nouveau test que leur a prescrit le groupe binational.
La méme chose se passe dans le cas du préjudice, ou la déci-
sion est prise par la Commission du commerce international.
La procédure est la méme au Canada, sauf que I'autorité
administrante est le sous-ministre du Revenu national ou le
Tribunal capadien des importations au Canada. Voild de
quelle maniére nous veillerons a ce que les lois de chaque pays

. soient respectées et a ce qu’il n’y ait aucune partialité ni inter-

prétation favorisant 'industrie du pays en question.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Monsieur le président, en cas de
poursuite ou de plainte pour non-respect de la loi. c'est-a-dire
Jorsqu'une modification a la loi a débouché sur la convocation
d'un groupe binational, je crois comprendre que cette affaire
peut étre directement instruite par le groupe binational.

M. von Finckenstein: Je suis désolé, sénateur, je comprends
mal votre question.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Je dois avouer que ma question
n’était pas un exemple de clarté. Dans le chapitre que nous
venons d’aborder, est-il vrai de dire que la partie plaignante
peut s’adresser directement 4 un groupe binational lorsqu'une
modification & une loi a été apportée”?

M. von Finckenstein: C'est cela. 1l y a d’abord consultation
puis recours a ce groupe.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Je vous remercie. Voyons mainte-
nant la deuxiéme question, c’est-a-dire une plainte pour non-
respect de la loi actuelle. Ai-je raison de dire que cette affaire
ne peut étre déférée a un groupe binational a2 moins qu’elle ne
soit jugée par ce que I’accord de libre-échange appelle les auto-
rités examinantes?

M. von Finckenstein: Les autorités examinantes prennent la
décision initiale, qui devient le sujet de controverse. Elles con-
cluent qu’il y a eu imposition de droits anti-dumping ou com-
pensateurs, ou préjudice. En tant que producteur ou exporta-
teur/importateur, vous pouvez contester cette décision sous
prétexte qu'elle n’a pas été prise correctement et constitue unc
mauvaise application de la loi américaine. Cela dit, vous
demandez qu’elle fasse I'objet d’un nouvel examen. Il faut
donc qu'il existe en premier lieu des mesures prises par l'auto-
rité examinante 4 I’égard de limposition d'un droit. La
doléance concerne la conclusion qu’il y a eu droit compensa-
teur ou préjudice. Vous n’aimez pas cette décision et demandez
qu’elle soit revue par un groupe binational. On procéde donc a
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Senator MacEachen: That is exactly what 1 want to find
out. The process under this chapter implies that there has been
an earlier adjudication.

Mr. von Finckenstein: Yes.

Senator MacEachen: And then that adjudication is appealed
to the binational panel?

Mr. von Finckenstein: That is correct.

Senator MacEachen: Under this chapter, we could not haul
the United States before the binational panel unless we disa-
greed with the finding of the investigating authority in the
United States. That conforms to one of the scenarios that Mr.
Ritchie described in his article in the Globe and Mail, which
presupposes that, for example, in the case of social programs,
an American investigating authority, such as the ITC, would
have found that a social program in Canada constituted a sub-
sidy. Then it would be possible to take it to a binational panel.
I am just trying to relate what I am asking to my comments of
yesterday and I am not making any argument beyond proce-
dure, which is that in order to haul the United States before a
binational panel under this chapter, there has to be a prior
finding by the investigating authority in the United States.

1 have one other point to make regarding this case of a
determination by the investigating authority in the United
States 1 want to take the case in which an American producer
makes a complaint before the ITC, or whichever body is
appropriate, and the case he takes against Canada is dis-
missed, and the finding is favourable to Canada. I just want to
know whether I am right or wrong—and 1 will not have a bet-
ter chance to find out. I take it that in a case of that kind,
where the ITC has found in favour of Canada, that we would
not want to take them to the binational panel. Presumably, the
American government would not want to take the finding of its
own investigating authority before the binational panel. One
would expect that one would then be left with what the Ameri-
can producer would do.

My understanding of the agreement is that if he failed to
take the decision to a binational panel within 30 days, then he
could take it to the U.S. Court. I argue that at that point
Canada loses control because the conclusion of the American
Court would be binding and there would be no appeal, and
that would be the end of it.

Mr. von Finckenstein: No, senator, your conclusion is incor-
rect. We have foreseen that situation; and the agreement and
the legislation both specifically provide that if, in a scenario
such as you have painted, the producer wants to go to a domes-
tic court, he first must give notice to the two governments that
he intends to do so, and he must give such notice ten days
before the expiration of the appeal period to go to the bina-
tional panel expires. The two governments then have the option
of preempting him by asking for a review of that decision by
the binational panel or they may let him go to domestic court
because the issue is so frivolous that they do not fear it. But if

[Traduction)

la création de ce groupe, qui a pour mandat de revoir la déci-
sion.

Le sénateur MacEachen: C'est exactement ce que je cher-
che. La procédure expliquée dans ce chapitre laisse supposer
qu’il y a eu décision antérieure.

M. von Finckenstein: En effet.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Et cette décision est alors contes-
tée devant le groupe binational?

M. von Finckenstein: C’est exact.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Selon les dispositions de ce chapi-
tre, nous ne pourrions amener les Etats-Unis devant le groupe
binational & moins que nous ne soyons en désaccord avec les
conclusions de I'autorité examinante aux Etats-Unis. Cela cor-
respond & I'un des scénarios que M. Ritchie a exposés dans son
article du Globe and Mail. En effet, il a donné I'exemple d'une
autorité examinante américaine, par exemple la CCI, qui déci-
derait qu'un programme social au Canada représente unc
forme de subvention. 1l sera alors possible pour nous de porter
I'affaire devant un groupe binational. Je tente seulement de
faire un rapport entre mes questions et les remarques que j'ai
formulées hier. Je ne tente pas d’aller au-dela de la procédure
qui prévoit notamment que pour amener les Etats-Unis devant
un groupe binational aux termes de ce chapitre, il doit d'abord
y avoir eu une décision prise par l'autorité examinante aux
Etats-Unis.

J'ai une autre remarque a faire au sujet d’une décision que
peut prendre I'autorité examinante aux Etats-Unis. Supposons
qu'un producteur américain présente une plainte devant la
CClI ou tout autre organisme approprié que sa plainte soit reje-
tée et que la conclusion de l'organisme soit favorable au
Canada. Je veux seulement savoir, et je n'ai pas de meilleure
chance de le faire, si j’ai raison ou non de croire que dans une
affaire de ce genre, ou le Canada est blanchi de toute accusa-
tion par la CCI, nous ne voudrons pas porter I'affaire devant le
groupe binational. Le gouvernement américain ne voudra pro-
bablement pas lui non plus contester la décision de sa propre
autorité examinante devant le groupe binational. Les seules
mesures possibles de représailles viendraient sans doute uni-
quement du producteur américain.

D’aprés ce que je comprends de I'accord, si le producteur
néglige de contester la décision devant le groupe binational
dans un délai de 30 jours, il peut alors s'adresser au tribunal
américain. Selon moi, le Canada perd tout contrdle a ce
moment, étant donné que la conclusion du tribunal américain
aura force obligatoire et sera sans appel.

M. von Finckenstein: Votre conclusion est erronée, monsieur
le sénateur. Nous avons prévu cette situation; en effet, I'accord
et la loi prévoient tous deux que si le producteur désire s'adres-
ser 4 une cour américaine, comme dans le scénario que vous
venez de citer, il doit d’abord signifier aux deux gouverne-
ments son intention dix jours avant I'expiration de la période
d’appel au groupe binational. Les deux gouvernements ont
alors la possibilité de le devancer en demandant au groupe
binational d’examiner la décision en cause, ou bien ils peuvent
choisir de ne pas s’interposer 4 la demande au tribunal parce
que les futilités de I'affaire ne suscitent chez eux aucunc
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either government feels that this is an issue that is controver-
sial or is likely to be reversed by the domestic court, they can
invoke the binational panel and, therefore, close the avenue for
the producer to go to the domestic court.

Senator MacEachen: 1 argued that there could be circum-
stances in which neither government would want to bring the
matter before the binational panel. 1 acknowledge that they
could bring it.

Mr. von Finckenstein: But we have specifically provided in
the agreement that a producer who wants to do what you are
suggesting has to inform his government and the Canadian
government. It is then up to the two governments to assess the
risk of this going to domestic court. If they find that the risk is
too great, they can send it to a binational panel. If they feel
that the case has no merit, if it is frivolous or a sure loser, they
can decide to let it go to domestic court; but it is totally within
their control as to whether the domestic court gets to review
this decision or not.

Senator Frith: Can they intervene in that proceeding?

Mr. von Finckenstein: You give notice that you intend to
appeal to the domestic court. If the Canadian government
thinks the risk is too great and that the domestic court will
somehow come up with a decision it does not like, it can invoke
the binational panel. The binational panel preempts a domestic
court.

Senator MacEachen: But in those circumstances why would

the Canadian government, for example, insist on a binational

" panel when the Canadian case was won in the American
subordinate body?

Mr. von Finckenstein: It depends upon how much confi-
dence you have in the judgment of the lower body as to
whether they made the decision for the right reasons or viewed
the right interpretation of the law or not. You may have won,
but you may feel it was a shaky victory.

Senator MacEachen: Would it not imply the confidence you
had in the American court also?

Mr. von Finckenstein: You have to understand that the
entire FTA, except chapter 19, is written in terms of what gov-
ernments may or may not do, and it does not give the right to
any private party. Chapter 19 departs from that rule and pro-
vides that Parties, both the two governments and the litigants,
who produce the imports, exports, et cetera, can invoke this
binational panel review.

In your scenario, an American producer may be unhappy
with the decision that a Canadian exporter is happy with. Any-
one can be involved in that: the manufacturer, the exporter,
the importer, the distributor and the two governments. Every-
one receives notice that the U.S. producer intends to appeal
this to the domestic court, and any one of these persons can
decide to have the matter go before the binational panel, and
then the binational panel will preempt the domestic court.

[Traduction)

crainte. Cependant, si 'un ou l'autre des gouvernements
estime que la question préte & controverse ou qu'elle est
susceptible d’étre instruite en faveur du producteur par le
tribunal, ils peuvent invoquer la participation du groupe bina-
tional et ainsi enlever toute possibilit¢ au producteur de
s’adresser 4 ce tribunal intérieur.

Le sénateur MacEachen: J'avais mentionné qu'il pouvait y
avoir des circonstances ol ni 'un ni 'autre des gouvernements
ne voudrait s’adresser au groupe binational. J'admets qu'ils
pourraient le faire.

M. von Finckenstein: Mais I'accord prévoit spécifiquement
qu’un producteur qui désire prendre les mesures que vous indi-
quez doit d’abord informer son propre gouvernement et celui
du Canada. Il revient alors a ces deux gouvernements d'évaluer
les risques d’une instruction de cette affaire devant un tribunal
intérieur. S'ils estiment que les risques sont trop grands. ils
peuvent renvoyer la question au groupe binational. Dans le cas
contraire, si la cause est futile ou perdante a coup sir, ils pour-
ront décider de ne rien faire; cependant, il n'en revient qu'a
eux de décider si le tribunal intérieur sera ou non saisi de cette
décision.

Le sénateur Frith: Peuvent-ils intervenir dans cette action?

M. von Finckenstein: Vous signalez votre intention d’interje-
ter appel devant le tribunal intérieur. Si le gouvernement cana-
dien estime que le risque est trop élevé et que ce tribunal arri-
vera 4 une décision qu'il n'aime pas, il peut s'adresser au
groupe binational. Ce dernier a préséance sur un tribunal inté-
rieur.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Mais dans ce cas-la, pourquoi le
gouvernement canadien, par exemple, insisterait-il pour
s'adresser 4 un groupe binational si I'affaire a déja é1é jugée en
sa faveur par un organisme subalterne aux Etats-Unis?

M. von Finckenstein: Cela dépend de la confiance que vous
portez a cet organisme, en d’autres termes si vous estimez que
la décision prise repose sur les bonnes raisons ou sur une inter-
prétation valable de la loi. Vous avez gagné, mais il peut s’agir
d’une victoire fragile.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Cela ne signifie-t-il pas aussi la
confiance témoignée a I'égard du tribunal américain?

M. von Finckenstein: Il faut comprendre que tout I'Accord
de libre-échange, sauf le chapitre 19, est rédigé en fonction des
mesures que les gouvernements peuvent ou non prendre. et
qu'il ne donne aucun droit 4 un particulier. Le chapitre 19 fait
exception a cette régle puisqu'il prévoit que les parties plai-
gnantes et les deux gouvernements, qui produisent les importa-
tions, exportations, etc., peuvent demander un examen du
groupe binational.

Dans votre scénario, un producteur américain peut étre
mécontent d’une décision que I'exportateur canadien trouverait
favorable. Cette décision peut toucher n’importe qui: le fabri-
cant, I'exportateur, I'importateur, le distributeur et les deux
gouvernements. Toutes les parties sont informées que le pro-
ducteur américain compte interjeter appel de la décision
devant le tribunal intérieur, et n'importe laquelle de ces per-
sonnes peut demander que la question soit débattue devant le
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Senator MacEachen: Yes. I agree, but it is possible that
they would decide not to put it before the binational panel.

Mr. von Finckenstein: That is the risk they take over the
right.

Senator MacEachen: Then they go to an American court,
and the circumstances which 1 have described come into play.

Mr. von Finckenstein: Yes, but you are the master of your
own fortune. You can prevent any case from going to domestic
court if you so want. Each and every time you may invoke the
binational panel.

Senator MacEachen: 1 agree with that. ] think we under-
stand the facts. There is a judgment that is to be exercised, and
if it is not exercised in the way we think it ought to be, then the
case would end up in the American court.

Senator Bazin: 1 would like to follow up on something that
Senator MacEachen mentioned in terms of social programs
and the possibility that there may be a finding in the United
States by some body or some corporation that social programs
were subsidized, which is the word that Senator MacEachen
used, and are therefore subject to review. Is it conceivable,
absent export of social programs into the United States, that a
body in the United States would find that our social programs
are somehow subsidized? I do not follow how social programs
end up before a binational panel which looks at countervail
and antidumping.

Mr. von Finckenstein: You are absolutely right, senator.
The present U.S. legislation and the defined subsidy provide
that it is a benefit which should be given to an industry or a
group of industries and that benefit then causes injury to some
U.S. industry which competes with the product that is being
exported and receives that subsidy.

Our social programs are generally available. Everyone gets
them. So it is not a specific industry or group of industries, but
every person has O.H.1.P. or unemployment insurance, et cet-
era. 1 do not know how you could say it was a subsidy to begin
with, because no one is singled out. Certainly the recipients are
persons, not an industries, and certainly you would have to
prove by virtue of the social program that it amounted to a
subsidy which is causing injury to a U.S. competing industry,
which has never been the case. The one instance when this
issue arose involved unemployment insurance to fishermen on
the east coast. The U.S. bodies both found by exactly the same
logic that 1 explained that it was not a subsidy because it was
generally available. So I do not see on what basis, given the
present U.S. legislation, a social program could ever be con-
stituted as a subsidy.

[Traduction)

groupe binational, auquel cas ce dernier aura préséance sur le
tribunal intérieur.

Le sénateur MacEachen: D’accord, mais il est possible
qu’elles décident de ne pas s’adresser au groupe binational.

M. von Finckenstein: C’est le risque qu’elles prennent en
n’invoquant pas leur droit.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Elles se présentent donc devant un
tribunal américain, et le scénario que j’ai décrit précédemment
se déroule.

M. von Finckenstein: C’est cela, mais vous étes le maitre de
votre destinée. Vous avez la possibilité d’empécher n'importe
quelle cause d’étre instruite par un tribunal intérieur. Dans
chacun des cas, vous pouvez vous adresser au groupe binatio-
nal.

Le sénateur MacEachen: J'en conviens. Je pense que nous
saisissons bien les faits. 11 y a une décision a prendre et si nous
ne la prenons pas de la fagon que nous croyons étre la bonne, il
est alors possible que l'affaire aboutisse devant le tribunal
américain.

Le sénateur Bazin: J'aimerais revenir & une remarque du
sénateur MacEachen au sujet des programmes sociaux et de la
possibi]ité qu’un organisme ou une entreprise quelconque aux
Etats-Unis en vienne a la conclusion que nos programmes
sociaux sont une sorte de subvention et donc susceptibles de
faire I'objet d’un examen. Est-il concevable, 4 moins qu'il y ait
exportation de nos programmes sociaux aux Etats-Unis, qu'un
organisme de ce pays conclue que nos programmes sociaux
sont une subvention? Je vois mal comment les programmes
sociaux peuvent étre examinés par un groupe binational dont le
mandat est de traiter de I'imposition de droits antidumping et
compensateurs.

M. von Finckenstein: Vous avez absolument raison, mon-
sieur le sénateur. Selon la loi actuelle aux Etats-Unis et la défi-
nition qu’on y trouve d’une subvention, il y a avantage lorsque
la subvention accordée & une industrie ou a un groupe d'indus-
tries cause un préjudice a une industrie américaine qui offre
elle-méme le produit exporté subventionné.

D’une maniére générale, nos programmes sociaux sont uni-
versels. Il ne s’agit donc pas d'une industrie ou d'un groupe
d’industries particuliers puisque tout le monde bénéficie du
Régime d’assurance-hospitalisation ou de [’assurance-cho-
mage, etc. Jignore comment on peut dire qu’il s'agit d'unc
subvention au départ puisque personne ne regoit un avantage
supérieur 4 un autre. Les bénéficiaires en sont des personnes.
non une industrie ou un groupe d’industries, et il faudrait assu-
rément prouver que I'application méme du programme social
correspond 4 une subvention qui cause un préjudice & une
industrie concurrentielle aux Etats-Unis, ce qui n’a jamais été
le cas. La seule fois ol cette question a été soulevée concernait
I’assurance-chdmage versée aux pécheurs de la cote est. Les
deux organismes aux Etats-Unis en sont arrivés exactement
par la méme logique a la conclusion qu’il n’y avait pas subven-
tion étant donné que le programme était universel. Je vois don¢
mal comment, compte tenu de la loi actuelle aux Etats-Unis.
un programme social pourrait étre un jour considéré comme
une subvention.
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Senator Frith: Any social program?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Our social programs in Canada are
generally available to all citizens. “Social programs” is a very
loose term. I do not know what shape the future of social pro-
grams will take.

Senator MacEachen: 1 want to assure Senator Bazin that
the prospect of this occurring was not stipulated by me but by
the Deputy Chief Negotiator of the Canadian-U.S. Free Trade
Agreement, and the article to which 1 refer in which he said:

Under free trade, if the Americans were to flagrantly
misapply their laws to call medicare a subsidy, Canada
would haul them before a binational panel of Canadian
and U.S. experts.

Senator Bazin: Is that a quote?

Senator MacEachen: Yes, it is. That is why I have found it
extraordinary.

Senator Barootes: Mr. Chairman, I have a question supple-
mentary to the last one raised. Take the hypothesis that has
been put forward by some to the effect that social programs
could be at risk in that they constitute a favourable situation
for some Canadian industries vis-d-vis American industries.
What is the situation where there are differentials in corporate
taxation systems or regimes between the two countries? Could
Canada, by means of a similar hypothesis, claim that certain
industries in the United States have an advantage over
Canadian industries inasmuch as U.S. taxation methods
impose a lesser penalty upon their companies than do
Canadian methods?

Mr. von Finckenstein: You are now totally outside the Free
Trade Agreement, senator. You are talking about the law of
countervail as it is administered in Canada and the U.S. The
‘crux of that law, of course, is: What is a subsidy? How is a
subsidy defined?

A subsidy can take many forms. An industry can obviousl_y
be favoured through directed methods of taxation. It is possi-
ble in a given scenario that a certain tax measure can consti-
tute a subsidy.

The Chairman: 1 wanted to ask a question myself and this
seems to be an appropriate moment. My question relates to
Article 1904:2. This is directly on the matter of the procedure
we have been talking about. We are told here that:

Either Party may request that a panel r(.-.view..bascd
upon the administrative record, a final antidumping or

countervailing duty determination of a competent investi-
gating authority of either Party ...

Let us say that a competent investigating authority in the
United States decided that a Canadian export—perhaps fish
from Atlantic Canada—is eligible to be countervailed in the
United States. Am | to understand that the countervail would
not become operative until such time as the entire panel review
process had been completed, or will there be immediate conse-

[Traduction)
Le sénateur Frith: N'importe quel programme social?

M. von Finckenstein: Les programmes sociaux que nous
avons au Canada sont accessibles a tous les citoyens. L’expres-
sion «programmes sociaux» est trés générale. J'ignore quelle
sera ’évolution des programmes sociaux.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Je désire assurer le sénateur Bazin
que cette situation n’a pas été soulevée par moi, mais bien par
I'adjoint au chef négociateur de I'Accord de libre-échange
canado-américain et par I'article dans lequel il disait:

En vertu du libre-échange, si les Américains devaient
scandaleusement interpréter leurs lois de maniére & consi-
dérer les soins médicaux comme une subvention, le
Canada les trainerait devant un groupe binational com-
posé de spécialistes canadiens et américains.

Le sénateur Bazin: Est-ce une citation?

Le sénateur MacEachen: Oui. C'est ce que je trouve
extraordinaire.

Le sénateur Barootes: Monsieur le président, j'ai une ques-
tion sup_plémemaire, Certains se sont demandé si les program-
mes Sociaux pouyraiem étre compromis du fait qu'ils placent
certaines industries canadiennes dans une situation favorable
par rapport a des industries américaines. Mais que se passe-1-il
en cas de différences entre les régimes d’imposition des sociétés
des deux pays? Selon la méme hypothése, le Canada pourrait-
il alléguer que certaines industries des Etats-Unis jouissent
d’un avantage par rapport a des industries canadiennes dans la
mesure ou les méthodes d'imposition américaines sont moins
séveres que les canadiennes?

M. von Finckenstein: Vous vous écartez tout a fait de
I'Accord de lbre-échange, monsieur le sénateur. Vous parlez
de la Loi sur les droits compensateurs appliquée au Canada et
aux Etats-Unis. L'essentiel de cette loi, c’est évidemment de
savoir ce qu’est une subvention, comment on la définit.

Une subvention peut prendre diverses formes. Une industrie
donnée peut évidemment étre avantagée par des méthodes
d'imposition dirigées. Il est possible dans un scénario donné
qu'une mesure fiscale particuliére puisse constituer une sub-
vention.

Le président: Je voulais poser une question moi-méme, et
c'est peut-étre le bon moment. Elle porte sur I'article 1904:2.
Cela intéresse directement la procédure dont nous discutons
actuellement. Il y est dit que:

Chaque Partie pourra demander qu'un groupe spécial
examine, sur la base du dossier administratif, toute déci-
sion finale en matiére de droits antidumping ou compen-
sateurs rendue par une autorité compétente chargée de
’enquéte de 'une ou I'autre Partie . . .

Supposons qu’une autorité compétente chargée de I'enquéte
aux Etats-Unis décide qu’un produit d’exportation canadien—
du poisson du Canada atlantique, par exemple—peut faire
I'objet de droits compensateurs aux Etats-Unis. Dois-je com-
prendre que les droits compensateurs entreraient en vigueur
seulement au moment ou prend fin tout le processus d’examen
par le groupe spécial binational ou bien qu'il y aurait des con-
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quences of that decision by the competent investigating
authority of the United States?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Once the competent investigating
authority has made a decision, the countervail duty will be
levied and payable, or will have to be paid in escrow or have
some guarantee given to it, or something like that. However, if,
as a result of a review by the binational panel, the decision is
found to be wrong, then the money will be returned to the per-
son who paid it.

The Chairman: It will be returned to the person who paid it?

Mr. von Finckenstein: If you tendered any goods during
that period and paid the countervailing duty, that duty would
be restored to you, together with interest.

The Chairman: How does the inclusion of the panel review
process shorten or lengthen the time required under present
U.S. law?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Under present U.S. law there is no
time limit. If you appeal a decision of either the ITA or the
ITC through the Court of International Trade, it can take any-
where from two to five years, depending upon the complexity
of the case, the caseload of the court and so on. This procedure
is designed to result in a decision in 315 days.

The Chairman: Conceivably, then, it might go to a com-
petent court in the United States, thinking of the scenario to
which reference was made earlier. What is the time limit in
such a case?

Mr. von Finckenstein: There is no time limit on the court
proceedings, if it goes to court.

The Chairman: What about after the review panel?

Mr. von Finckenstein: It cannot go to court; that is it. A
decision of the binational panel is not reviewable by a domestic
court in either country.

Mr. Nymark: | believe the senator is referring to the possi-
bility of a case having gone through the tribunal and being
remanded by the tribunal back to the investigating authority,
not to the court. That could take an additional 30 days, I
believe, in which it would review the decision. This process is
thought to take 315 days, but there is a slight margin over that
if the case needs to be reviewed once more by the investigating
authority.

Mr. von Finckenstein: Was that the point you were making,
Mr. Chairman?

The Chairman: I was interested in when the countervail
penalty comes into effect and how this new procedure will
affect the period in which Canadian exporters would be under
that penalty. I think you have given a satisfactory answer.

Senator Frith: Could you point out where in the agreement
the 10-day period for interventions is laid out?

[Traduction)
séquences immeédiates de la décision prise par I'autorité compé-
tente chargée de I'enquéte aux Etats-Unis?

M. von Finckenstein: Aprés que 'autorité compétente char-
gée de I'enquéte a rendu sa décision, le droit compensateur est
percu et doit étre payé, il doit étre gardé en dépdt, faire I'objet
d’une garantie ou étre soumis a4 une mesure semblable. Toute-
fois, si, a la suite d’un examen fait par le groupe spécial bina-
tional, la décision est jugée mauvaise, 'argent est rendu a la
personne qui I'a payé.

Le président: C’est rendu 2 la personne qui I'a payé?

M. von Finckenstein: Si, au cours de cette période, vous
avez offert des biens et payé le droit compensateur, ce droit
vous sera remis, avec I’intérét.

Le président: Comment ’examen du groupe spécial allonge-
t-il ou abrége-t-il le délai exigé en vertu de la loi américaine
actuelle?

M. von Finckenstein: En vertu de la loi américaine actuelle.
aucun délai n’est fixé. S’il y a appel d’une décision de I'ITA ou
de I'ITC aupreés de la cour du commerce international (Court
of International Trade), I'affaire peut durer de deux a cing
ans, selon la complexité du cas, le nombre des affaires en cours
et d'autres facteurs. La procédure dont il s’agit ici vise I'obten-
tion d'une décision dans un délai de 315 jours.

Le président: On peut donc concevoir que I'affaire soit sou-
mise a un tribunal compétent des Etats-Unis, selon le scénario
auquel il a été fait allusion plus t6t. Quel est le délai dans un
tel cas?

M. von Finckenstein: Aucun délai n'est imposé a la procé-
dure judiciaire si I’affaire est soumise a un tribunal.

Le président: Et qu’en est-il de 'examen par le groupe spé-
cial? !

M. von Finckenstein: Justement, 'affaire ne peut pas étre
soumise 4 un tribunal. Une décision du groupe spécial binatio-
nal ne peut pas faire I'objet d’un appel auprés d'un tribunal
national de I'un ou I'autre des deux pays.

M. Nymark: Le sénateur semble songer a la possibilité
qu’un cas ait été soumis au tribunal et qu’il soit référé par l¢
tribunal 4 I'autorité chargée de I’enquéte, et non 4 la cour. 11 Y
aurait 14 un délai additionnel de 30 jours, si je ne m’abuse, av
cours duquel l'autorité examinerait la décision. On pense qu¢
ce processus durera 315 jours, mais il y a un léger délal
additionnel si 'affaire doit étre examinée de nouveau par
'autorité chargée de ’enquéte.

M. von Finckenstein: Quel est le point que vous vouliez sou-
lever, monsieur le président?

Le président: Je me demandais quand le droit compensateu’
entrerait en vigueur et je voulais savoir comment cette nouvell¢
procédure modifierait la période au cours de laquelle les expo”
tateurs canadiens seraient soumis a ce droit. Je suis satisfait d¢
la réponse que vous avez donnée.

Le sénateur Frith: Pourriez-vous nous préciser dans quelle
partie de I'’Accord se trouve le délai de dix jours au cour
duquel les interventions sont permises?
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Mr. von Finckenstein: That appears at page 278, under
Article 1904:15(g)(ii).

Senator Frith: | was asking about an appeal from a determi-
nation made by the investigating authority.

Mr. von Finckenstein: That is what they are talking about.
This says that, where a party wants to go to a domestic review
board rather than the binational panel, it first has to give
notice of its intention to do so to all other parties not less than
ten days prior to the date on which a panel may be requested.

Senator Frith: 1 thought you said that if ] am an American
and I have a determination from the ITC, which is the Ameri-
can counterpart to the Deputy Minister of National Revenue,
it not being a final determination, if I want to take that to a
domestic court 1 must notify the governments, which are the
parties, and the governments can derail me on that. Have 1
misunderstood? The governments can derail that procedure by
saying that they want the decision made by a review panel.
Then 1 cannot go to court.

Mr. von Finckenstein: Under normal U.S. procedure, a final
decision of either the ITA, which makes findings on dumping
or countervailing, or the ITC, which makes findings on injury,
would go to the Court of ‘International Trade in New York.
The agreement provides that any party can request to go to the
binational panel and further provides that if you do not want
to go to a binational panel but prefer to go to a domestic court,
you can then give notice that you intend to do so. You have to
do that within the 30-day period for appeal. The governments
then have the choice of either letting you go there or maintain-
ing that they want the decision to be made by a binational
panel, which then preempts a domestic court.

Senator Frith: I understand.

Mr. von Finckenstein: That provision is set out in subpara-
graph 1904:15(g)(ii), and in our own legislation it appears at
page 28 of the bill, clause 77.12.

The Chairman: Are we ready to return to the main line of
questioning? I call upon Senator Hays.

Senator Hays: I shall try to be brief, Mr. Chairman, aqd if
you think it is not in order to ask this question at this time,
please so indicate. I should first like to put a hypothetical ques-
tion which has to do with Chapter Eighteen of the Free Trade
Agreement and which also has to do with the sensitive area of
federal-provincial relations.

If the Province of Quebec supplies electricity to a manufac;—
turing process—a value-added component to a good that is
exportable into the U.S.—and the U.S. feels that that is an
unfair subsidy and they wish to complain, one route they might
follow is to claim that this is an unfair subsidy and seek a
countervailing duty against the good. Is it also available to
them, under Chapter Eighteen, to attempt to address this prac-
tice of the provincial government to say that that is not in
keeping with the intent and spirit of the trade agreement?

[Traduction)

M. von Finckenstein: C'est 4 la page 278, a Ilarticle
1904:15(g)(ii).

Le sénateur Frith: Je songeais au fait d’en appeler d'une
décision prise par I'autorité chargée de I'enquéte.

M. von Finckenstein: C’est de cela qu'il s’agit. On peut 3
lire que, si une partie désire s’adresser a une commission d’exa-
men nationale plutét qu’au groupe spécial binational, elle doit
d’abord aviser toutes les autres parties de son intention au
moins dix jours avant la date ou un groupe spécial peut rece-
voir une demande.

Le sénatéur Frith: D’aprés ce que vous aviez dit, j'avais cru
comprendre que si je suis Américain et que je regois une déci-
sion de I'ITC, c’est-a-dire I’homologue américain du sous-
ministre du Revenu national, puisqu’il ne s’agit pas d'une déci-
sion sans appel, si je veux en appeler auprés d'un tribunal
national, je dois en aviser les gouvernements, qui sont les par-
ties, et les gouvernements peuvent m'empécher de poursuivre
ma démarche. Ai-je mal compris? Les gouvernements peuvent
modifier cette procédure en disant qu'ils veulent que la déci-
sion soit prise par un groupe spécial binational. Dans un tel
cas, je ne peux pas m'adresser 4 un tribunal.

M. von Finckenstein: En vertu de la procédure américaine
normale, une décision finale soit de I'ITA, qui rendait juge-
ment sur I'antidumping ou les droits compensateurs, soit de
I'ITC, qui statue sur les torts, irait en appel devant la cour de
commerce international (Court of International Trade). & New
York. Selon les dispositions de I'accord, toute partie peut
demander de s'adresser au groupe spécial binational: il est en
outre prévu que, si I'on ne veut pas s’adresser a un groupe spé-
cial binational, mais qu'on préfére un tribunal national. on
peut alors faire part d'une telle intention. Cela doit se faire
dans le délai d’appel de 30 jours. Les gouvernements ont
ensuite le choix soit de vous laisser vous adresser au tribunal,
soit de décider de recourir & un groupe spécial binational, ce
qui écarte la compétence d'un tribunal national.

Le sénateur Frith: Je comprends.

M. von Finckenstein: Cette disposition est formulée dans le
sous-alinéa 1904:15(g)(ii) et, dans notre propre législation, 4 la
page 28 du projet de loi, article 77.12.

Le président: Sommes-nous préts a retourner aux questions
principales? La parole est au sénateur Hays.

Le sénateur Hays: J'essaierai d'étre bref, monsieur le prési-
dent, et si vous jugez que ma question est irrecevable pour
I'instant, veuillez m’en aviser. J’aimerais d’abord poser une
question hypothétique qui intéresse le Chapitre 18 de I'Accord
de libre-échange et qui touche aussi au domaine délicat des
relations fédérales-provinciales.

Si la province de Québec fournit de Iélectricité @ une usine
de fabrication—¢lément de valeur ajouté 4 un bien qui est
exportable aux Etats-Unis—et si les Etats-Unis jugent qu'il
s’agit d’une subvention injuste et qu'ils désirent s’en plaindre.
un des moyens qu’ils pourraient prendre serait d’alléguer qu’il

s'agit d’une subvention injuste et de demander un droit com-

pensateur contre ce bien. Ne pourraient-ils pas aussi, en vertu
du chapitre 18, vouloir modifier cette pratique du gouverne-
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Article 102 says that the effect of the agreement is to facili-
tate conditions of fair competition within the free-trade area.
There is the possibility of a conclusion under Chapter Eighteen
that to supply any value-added component at less than cost will
probably constitute a subsidy as between the federal and pro-
vincial governments and be within the province’s power to do
$0.

This is a situation where we bring that under the purview of
this international agreement. Do we enshrine in this interna-
tional agreement something that does not now exist between
the federal and provincial governments or between provincial
governments in a situation where the U.S. government may
say that this is not in keeping with the intent and spirit of the
agreement? Accordingly, that is a practice to be discontinued
or they will, as you explored earlier, take the action that they
are allowed to take under Chapter Eighteen, which is that they
can withdeaw from the agreement on 90 days’ notice.

Mr. von Finckenstein: If they think it is an unfair subsidy
they can start countervail action in the U.S. against that prod-
uct. If we do not like the decision and feel it is a wrong
application of U.S. law, we can invoke the bilateral panel.

The second part of your question is more difficult to answer.
The agreement does not address subsidies as to what you may
or may not do, other than Article 703 under the agriculture
section, which says you cannot have export subsidies targeted
at the market of the other party. There is no prohibition or
allowance for subsidies. Therefore, the argument that you are
postulating, that under Chapter Eighteen this is a violation of
the agreement, could not be made because there is nothing in
the agreement which says you may or may not subsidize.

The agreement is trying to evolve new rules of subsidy over
the next seven years. It does not, however, say what is a proper
subsidy and what is an improper subsidy. We tried to work
that out during the negotiations, and we failed. We hope to do
that over the next period.

Chapter Eighteen refers to any violations of the agreement
other than subsidies, and they may be violations by a provin-
cial government or a federal government. If there is something
that the Americans feel a provincial government has done
which is improper and in contradiction with the FTA, they will
take it to the Chapter Eighteen panel.

Senator Hays: You are saying that a provincial government
that is subsidizing is not in violation of the agreement, other
than it may apply countervailing duty, but it would not be in
violation of Article 102, which I have quoted?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Exactly. There is nothing in this
agreement, other than Article 703, that says you may not sub-

[Traduction)

ment provincial en alléguant qu'elle n'est conforme ni & 'esprit
ni 4 la lettre de I'Accord de libre-écange?

Selon I'article 102, I'accord a pour objet de faciliter la con-
currence loyale a I'intérieur de la zone de libre-échange. 1!
serait concevable de conclure, en vertu du chapitre 18, que
I'offre de tout élément de valeur ajoutée a un prix inférieur au
prix coiitant constitue probablement une subvention entre les
gouvernements fédéral et provinciaux, et fait partie des pou-
voirs de la province.

Voila une situation que nous faisons relever de I'accord
international. Est-ce que nous incorporons dans cet accord
international quelque chose qui n’existe pas actuellement entre
le gouvernement fédéral et les provinces, ou entre les gouverne-
ments provinciaux, c’est-a-dire une situation dont le gouverne-
ment des Etats-Unis pourrait prétendre qu'elle n’est conforme
ni 4 'esprit ni 4 la lettre de 'accord? Ce serait alors une prati-
que qu'’il faudrait faire cesser, sans quoi, comme vous en avez
explore plus tét la possibilité, le gouvernement des Ftats-Unis
pourrait prendre la mesure que lui permet le chapitre 18, c'est-
a-dire se soustraire a I'accord aprés un préavis de 90 jours.

M. von Finckenstein: Si les Etats-Unis jugent qu’il s’agit
d’'une subvention déloyale, ils peuvent entreprendre d'imposcr
des droits compensateurs chex eux contre ce produit. Si cette
décision ne nous convient pas et si, d'aprés nous, c'est mal
appliquer la loi américaine, nous pouvons nous adresser au
groupe spécial binational.

11 est plus difficile de répondre a la deuxiéme partie de votre
question. L’accord lui-méme ne traite pas des subventions qui
peuvent étre permises ou non, sauf a I'article 703, dans la par-
tie qui traite de I'agriculture, ou sont interdites les subventions
a 'exportation dirigées vers le marché de I'autre partie. 11 n’est
nulle part question des subventions interdites ou permises. Par
conséquent I’argument que vous supposez, soit qu'il s'agit 12
d’une violation de I'accord en vertu du chapitre 18, ne pourrait
pas étre mis de I'avant puisque nulle part, dans I'accord. il
n’est dit que I'on peut subventionner ou qu'on ne peut pas le
faire.

L’accord prévoit qu'on s'efforcera d’établir de nouvelles
régles au sujet des subventions au cours des sept prochaines
années. Rien, cependant, n’y est précisé quant 4 ce qui consti-
tue une subvention admissible ou inadmissible. C’est une ques-
tion que nous avons essayé de régler au cours des négociations.
mais nous n’y avons pas réussi. Nous espérons y parvenir au
cours de la prochaine période.

Le chapitre 18 traite de toutes les violations de I'accord
autres que les subventions, et ces violations peuvent étre le fait
d’un gouvernement provmc1a1 ou d'un gouvernement fédéral.
Si les Américains jugent qu’un gouvernement provincial a agi
d’une manicre incorrecte et contraire 4 'accord, ils soumet-
tront I'affaire au groupe spécial prévu dans le chapitre 18.

Le sénateur Hays: Vous dites qu'un gouvernement provin-
cial qui subventionne ne viole pas I'accord, sauf que des droits
compensateurs pourraient étre appliqués, mais ce ne serait pas
une violation de I'article 102, que j’ai cité?

M. von Finckenstein: Exactement. Rien dans cet accord. 4
I'exception de I'article 703, ne stipule que les subventions sont
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sidize. We do not deal with what is a proper subsidy or what is
an improper subsidy.

Senator Hays: As | understand you, the spirit and intent
have not been given life yet and have not been fleshed out. It is
only the letter of the agreement that would give rise?

Mr. von Finckenstein: No. The spirit and intent only come
into play with Article 1903, where we amend our countervail-
ing antidumping law. We have established the process for the
administration of this law, making sure that it is proper. Either
party could amend their laws completely and thereby in effect
negate the whole process of Chapter Nineteen. That is why we
have included Article 1903, which says that either party can
make amendments to their antidumping and countervailing
laws. We are not freezing them because they may be required,
given the exigency of the situation. However, when you do
that, you have to stay within the basic intent of this agreement,
which is to ensure free flow between the borders and the move-
ment of unnecessary and harmful barriers.

Senator Hays: Would you give me an example of some con-
duct that Chapter Eighteen would apply to? I am interested in
it in a federal-provincial context. because that is the hardest
question for us to answer. Why is Chapter Eighteen there if it
is not to address a practice in Canada or the U.S. where the
other party feels that it is not in keeping with the spirit of this
agreement?

Mr. von Finckenstein: In the services chapter we say that
present regulations are fine, but future ones have to be non-
discriminatory.

If Ontario enacts a new provision that says you cannot be
licenced as an architect in Ontario unless you are a Canadian
citizen, that is clearly discriminatory. It has nothing to do w_nh
your capability as an architect or your qualifications for bplld-
ing houses. It is trying to keep Americans out. The Americans
would say that that is a violation of Chapter Fourteen. That is
a discriminatory measure introduced subsequent to the entry
into force of the FTA, and it would be taken to dispute settle-

ment.

Senator Hays: During the course of construction of large
power projects, the Province of Quebec had a requirement that
the engineers, to some considerable degree, be of Quebec or
Canadian origin. You could use Chapter Eighteen to prevent
that kind of thing. In other words, if we wanted to use
Canadian engineers to build the OSLO oil sands project in
Alberta, the U.S. could complain about that through their ser-
vice sector and say that that is the type of conduct that 1s not
envisaged and not within the spirit of the agreement in the ser-
vice sector. Is this where you would use Chapter Eighteen to
achieve your end, if you were the U.S.?

Mr. von Finckenstein: The particular cxam;_;le that you hav’e
chosen is the wrong one because the provincial government’s
action would be binding.

Senator Hays: Let us assume it is a private sector project.

[Traduction)

interdites. On n'y traite nulle part des subventions admissibles
ou inadmissibles.

Le sénateur Hays: Si je vous comprends, bien, I'esprit de
I'accord ne pourrait étre invoqué. C'est seulement la lettre de
cet accord qui donnerait lieu . . . ?

M. von Finckenstein: Non. L’esprit de I'accord n’intervient
qu'a l'article 1903, ou nous modifions notre loi sur les droits
anti-dumping et nos droits compensateurs. Nous avons établi
le processus permettant d'appliquer cette loi, en veillant a ce
que ce processus soit correct. L'une ou l'autre des deux parties
pourrait modifier ses lois entiérement et annuler ainsi tout le
processus faisant I'objet de I'article 19. C'est pourquoi nous
avons inséré Iarticle 1903, selon lequel chaque partie peut
modifier sa législation sur les droits anti-dumping ou compen-
sateurs. Nous ne figeons pas ces lois, car on pourrait en avoir
besoin dans une situation pressante. Cependant, tout en agis-
sant de la sorte, il faut respecter 'esprit de cet accord, qui est
d’assurer une circulation libre entre les deux pays et de faire
disparaitre les obstacles inutiles et nuisibles.

Le sénateur Hays: Pourriez-vous me donner un exemple de
comportement auquel s’appliquerait le chapitre 187 Ce qui
m’intéresse, c’est le contexte fédéral-provincial, car c'est la
question la plus embarrassante pour nous. Pourquoi le chapitre
18 existe-t-il sinon pour corriger une pratique du Canada ou
des Etats-Unis que I'autre partie juge contraire & I'esprit de
I'accord?

M. von Finckenstein: Dans le chapitre sur les services. nous
disons que les réglements actuels sont bons, mais que les régle-
ments futurs devront étre non discriminatoires.

Si I'Ontario adopte une nouvelle disposition selon laquelle on
ne peut étre admis comme architecte en Ontario a moins d'étre
un citoyen canadien, cette disposition est nettement discrimi-
natoire. Elle n'intéresse en rien le talent d’architecte ou I'apti-
tude du sujet & construire des maisons. Cela vise a écarter les
Américains. Les Américains diraient que c’est une violation du
chapitre 14, une mesure discriminatoire adoptée aprés I'entrée
en vigueur de I’Accord de libre-échange. Et une telle mesure
serait contestée.

Le sénateur Hays: Au cours de la construction de grands
barrages, le Québec exigeait que les ingénieurs soient surtout
d’origine québécoise ou canadienne. On pourrait utiliser le
chapitre 18 pour empécher une telle mesure. En d’autres ter-
mes, si nous voulions faire appel a des ingénieurs canadiens
pour réaliser le projet d’exploitation des sables pétroliféres
OSLO en Alberta, les Etats-Unis présenteraient un grief par la
voie de leur secteur des services et diraient que ce genre de
comportement n’est pas prévu et est contraire a I'esprit de
I’entente dans le secteur des services. Est-ce ainsi que vous uti-
liseriez le chapitre 18 & vos fins, si vous étiez 4 la place des
Etats-Unis?

M. von Finckenstein: Cet exemple est mal choisi. car la
mesure du gouvernement provincial aurait force d’obligation.

Le sénateur Hays: Supposons qu'il s'agisse d'une mesure
prise par le secteur privé.
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Mr. von Finckenstein: A private sector project is totally out-
side the FTA. The FTA only deals with government-mandated
actions.

My example of the architects, where you cannot be accred-
ited unless you are Canadian, is clearly attempting to keep
someone out. If you use provincial procurement, that is outside
the FTA.

Senator Hays: My example is that the private sector will
construct the system. The process will be designed by the pri-
vate sector. The provincial government may say, “In the course
of doing that, we require you to use members of the service
sector located in the province of Alberta or within Canada.” Is
that the kind of thing that the U.S. can complain about under
Chapter Eighteen?

Mr. von Finckenstein: The way you posit that situation
would be a procurement. It would become, in effect, the pro-
vincial government buying the services of an engineering com-
pany and attaching conditions on the engineering contract.
That is perfectly proper for the provincial government to do. It
would not be contrary to the FTA.

If it was the federal government and it was one of the enti-
ties listed in Chapter Thirteen, and it was within the range of
contracts, then clearly it would not be.

Senator Hays: A provincial government could bar, in effect,
or partially bar, members of the engineering profession outside
of Canada, which would also mean the United States, from
doing certain service work within a province?

Mr. von Finckenstein: On Crown projects, effectively.

Senator Hays: No; the example 1 want to use is a typical
one of the private sector constructing a project with the gov-
ernment assisting in various ways, but not as an owner. Maybe
they are involved in an equity purchase, but maybe they are
not, and that they are not. Let us assume that they have grant
money or have provided some incentive. In that situation, I
take it from what you have said that it is okay for the govern-
ment to bar, or partially bar, from providing the service com-
ponent, service sector people from the United States—unless
you use engineers as an example—and that Article Eighteen is
not something that the U.S. would look to and say, “This is not
in keeping with the spirit of the agreement, and you are not to
do that.”

Mr. von Finckenstein: It is difficult to answer your question
in the abstract, because you are talking about where the pro-
vincial government would make a contribution to that project.
You would have to look at the particular case and say to your-
self, “Is this a disguised regulation of the industry? Does it suit
the contribution mechanism, or is it just a government contri-
bution to the project and not a disguised attempt to regulate?”
If you do that on every single project in the province to which
you contribute, subject to this, then you are using the contribu-
tion mechanism to regulate the industry and you would be
caught by the FTA. However, if you do just a few selective
projects, no one would argue that it is an attempt to regulate

[Traduction)

M. von Finckenstein: Les actions du secteur privé échappent
entiérement a I'’Accord de libre-échange. Celui-ci ne traite que
des mesures prises par les gouvernements.

Dans le cas des architectes, que j'ai mentionné et ol 1'accré-
ditation est refusée si I'on n’est pas Canadien, la mesure visc
nettement 4 mettre quelqu'un & I'écart. S'il s’agit des achats
des provinces, cela échappe a la portée de I’Accord de libre-
échange.

Le sénateur Hays: Dans mon exemple, c’est le secteur privé
qui est maitre d’ceuvre. Le processus sera congu par le secteur
privé. Le gouvernement provincial pourrait intervenir: «Pour
cette réalisation, nous vous obligeons & utiliser des membres du
secteur des services qui se trouvent dans notre province
d’Alberta ou au Canada.» Est-ce le genre de chose dont les
Etats-Unis peuvent se plaindre en vertu du chapitre 18

M. von Finckenstein: Dans la situation que vous décrivez, il
s'agirait d’'un achat. En réalité, le gouvernement provincial
achéterait les services d’une firme d’ingénieurs et imposerait
des conditions au contrat de génie. Le gouvernement provincial
est parfaitement autorisé 4 agir de cette maniére. Ce ne serait
pas contraire aux dispositions de I'Accord de libre-échange.

S'il s’agissait du gouvernement fédéral, d’une des entités
énumeérées dans le chapitre 13 et de marchés, cela serait nette-
ment inadmissible.

Le sénateur Hays: Un gouvernement provincial pourrait
donc interdire, du moins en partie, 4 des ingénieurs de I'exté-
rieur du Canada, ce qui engloberait les Etats-Unis, d'effectuer
certains travaux de services dans une province?

M. von Finckenstein: Dans le cas de travaux de la Cou-
ronne, Oui.

Le sénateur Hays: Non, mon exemple est le cas typique ou
le secteur privé réalise un projet et ou le gouvernement fournit
une aide diverse, mais sans étre maitre d'ceuvre. Le gouverne-
ment peut prendre une participation, ou encore—et c’est plus
probable—offrir une subvention ou un encouragement quelon-
que. Dans une telle situation, si je vous comprends bien, le gou-
vernement est autorisé, en partie du moins, a empécher les
Américains de fournir des services—des ingénieurs, par exem-
ple—et les Etats-Unis n’invoqueraient pas l'article 18 pour
affirmer qu’une telle mesure est contraire & I'esprit de I'Accord
et ne doit pas étre appliquée.

M. von Finckenstein: 1] est difficile de répondre a votre
question dans I'abstrait puisque vous parlez d’'un apport du
gouvernement provincial 4 I'entreprise. 11 faut envisager cha-
que cas particulier, se demander s’il s’agit d’une réglementa-
tion déguisée de I'industrie, ou encore d’un simple apport du
gouvernement a cette entreprise. Si cest le cas pour chacur
des projets de la province auxquels le gouvernement fait un
apport, alors le mécanisme de subvention est utilisé pour Ja
réglementation de I'industrie, et cela serait contraire 4
I'’Accord de libre-échange. Mais, si cela s'appliquait unique-
ment 4 quelques projets choisis, personne ne pourrait prétendre
que Cest une tentative de réglementation de I'industrie et. 2
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the industry, and 1 do not think that the province would be in
contravention of the provisions of the FTA.

You are now getting into a difficult area. You can appreci-
ate that the agreement sets out the general principles. In each
specific case you have to look at all the factors in order to
determine whether or not it involves the conduct of the govern-
ment, and if that conduct is regulated by the FTA.

Senator Hays: 1 guess 1 do not have a clear answer—and
that is probably attributable to an unclear question. Perhaps
there will be an opportunity to return to this later.

The Chairman: Thank you, Senator Hays. Does that com-
plete the examination of Part 1117

Mr. von Finckenstein: Through this general discussion I
have basically elaborated on what this part of the bill does.
There is no need to go through this part clause by clause.

The Chairman: Does any senator wish to raise a question on
Part 111 of the bill this time?

We now turn to Part 1V on page 40 of the bill, entitled
“Related and Consequential Amendments to Implement the
Agreement.” The first part concerns the Department of
Agriculture Act, and the second part concerns the Bank Act.

Honourable senators know that there has been some discus-
sion of the amendments to the Bank Act with regard to finan-
cial services. A paper was prepared for the committee, and an
abbreviated version of that paper is now available. At this
point 1 will suggest that two things be done: First, that that
paper be distributed; and second, that we have a short adjourn-
ment to allow honourable senators to read the paper. I suggest
that we come back at 10.45.

Senator Frith: We will certainly not squander time on our
recess.

The Chairman: I think that honourable senators will have no
problem reading the paper in this time. We will adjourn until
10.45.

A short recess.

Upon resuming:

The Chairman: Honourable senators, I call the committee to
order. We will shortly be continuing our review of the bill.
However, 1 believe the schedule of hearings for the rest of
today and for tomorrow has now been distributed and 1 think,
before we leave this morning, we should take a minute or two
to look at this list and make sure that we all understand what
we have in store for us later today and tomorrow.

We will now proceed with Part IV of the bill which is on
page 40.

Senator Frith: Mr. Chairman, I thought you were intending
to look at the schedule now.

. The Chairman: No, I said before we leave today. However,
if the members of the committee prefer to deal with this mat-
ter now, because they have to leave, then that is perfectly in
order. Is that what you propose, senator?

Senator Frith: Yes, Mr. Chairman.

[Traduction)

mon avis, la province ne contreviendrait pas aux dispositions dec
I’Accord de libre-échange.

Vous abordez un domaine difficile. Vous comprenez bien
que I’Accord formule les principes généraux. Dans chaque cas
particulier, il faut examiner chacun des facteurs pour détermi-
ner s'il y a ou non intervention du gouvernement et si cette
intervention reléve de I’Accord de libre-échange.

Le sénateur Hays: A mon avis, la réponse n’est pas claire. et
c’est sans doute parce que la question ne I'est pas non plus.
Peut-étre pourrons-nous y revenir.

Le président: Merci, sénateur Hays. Est-ce que cela met fin
a 'examen de la troisiéme partie?

M. von Finckenstein: Dans ce débat général, j'ai insisté sur
la portée de cette partie du projet de loi. Il n’est pas nécessaire
d'en faire I'étude article par article.

Le président: Y a-t-il des sénateurs qui veulent poser des
questions sur la troisiéme partie du projet de loi?

Passons a la Partie 1V, page 40 du projet de loi, «Modifica-
tions connexes visant la mise en ceuvre de I'Accord». On
traite d’abord de la Loi sur le ministére de 1'Agriculture, puis
de la Loi sur les banques.

Les honorables sénateurs savent que des débats ont eu licu
au sujet des modifications de la Loi sur les banques en ce qui
concerne les services financiers. Un document a été préparé
pour le Comité, et une version abrégée de ce document est
maintenant a notre disposition. J’ai deux suggestions 4 formu-
ler: d’abord, que le document soit distribué et. deuxiémement.
que la séance soit ajournée quelque temps pour permettre aux
honorables sénateurs de lire le document. Je suggére que nous
revenions a 10 h 45.

Le sénateur Frith: Nous n’aurons certes pas de temps a per-
dre pendant notre récréation.

Le président: A mon avis, les honorables sénateurs n’auront
aucun mal a lire le document pendant cette période. La séance
est ajournée a 10 h 45.

Ajournement pour une bréve période.
A la reprise

Le président: Honorables sénateurs, je déclare la séance
ouverte. Nous allons continuer I'examen du projet de loi. Pour-
tant, je crois qu’on vient de distribuer le calendrier des audien-
ces pour le reste de la journée et pour demain, et 4 mon avis.
avant de nous séparer ce matin, nous devrions prendre quel-
ques instants pour examiner cette liste et nous assurer que nous
comprenons tous bien ce qui nous attend.

Nous allons maintenant aborder la partie IV du projet de
loi, page 40.

Le sénateur Frith: Monsieur le président, je croyais que vous
aviez I'intention d’examiner le calendrier dés maintenant.

Le président: Non, j'ai dit avant de partir aujourd’hui.
Cependant, si les membres du comité préférent s'occuper de
cette affaire maintenant, parce qu'ils doivent partir, cela est
parfaitement recevable. Est-ce ce que vous proposez, sénateur?

Le sénateur Frith: Oui, monsieur le président.
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Senator MacEachen: Mr. Chairman, originally, as you
know, | had requested a witness from the International Energy
Agency. As a substitute, it has been proposed that we might
hear from Professor Toner of Carleton University. I am sure
that Professor Toner is an excellent witness, but I do not think
he would satisfy my needs in this respect, so I suggest that you
take him off the list.

The Chairman: Senator MacEachen, 1 have to tell you that
even if we wanted to hear from Professor Toner, he could not
be available by reason of illness.

Senator MacEachen: | see.

The Chairman: That, of course, means that there will be no
authoritative person from either the agency or from the aca-
demic community to make the comparison which 1 understood
was sought between the energy-sharing provisions of the IEA
and the requirements under the Free Trade Agreeement. Is
that satisfactory to you, senator?

Senator MacEachen: Mr. Chairman, it is inevitable. It is
not satisfactory, but it has to be accepted for this set of hear-
ings. That is not to say that we cannot revive the matter later.

The Chairman: Is there any other point that senators want
to raise?

Senator LeBlanc (Beauséjour): In the middle column you
indicate that from 7 to 9 p.m. we will hear from officials from
TNO and Agriculture Canada on concerns raised by the
Canadian Federation of Agriculture. It is my understanding
from the informal gathering that we had that agricultural peo-
ple would be asked to present their views. In other words, they
had expressed malaise and basically the reason we wanted to
see them again was to ask if they were satisfied. Now we are
hearing from a group of officials. I have some respect for offi-
cials, but they tend to take a line that has been somewhat
repeated before this committee in any event.

The Chairman: As far as the Canadian Federation of
Agriculture is concerned, Mr. Dobell described their situation
to us yesterday.

Senator LeBlanc (Beauséjour): I apologize. 1 was away yes-
terday.

The Chairman: The president does not wish to come. CEMA
has provided a statement of their continuing difficulties, and
the Canadian Federation of Agriculture will provide a compa-
rable paper. The committee will then be able to pick up the
points raised therein and ascertain from the representatives of
the government what has been done to meet these irritants,
complaints, or grievances. That seems to be all that we can do,
since the Canadian Federation of Agriculture does not wish to

appear.

Senator MacEachen: The original intention was not to hear
again from the officials of Agricultural Canada or the TNO,
but to hear from the Federation of Agriculture as to their out-
look for the future.

[Traduction)

Le sénateur MacEachen: Monsieur le président, a 'origine.
comme vous le savez, j’'avais demandé un témoin de I'Agence
internationale de I'énergie. A la place, il a été proposé que nous
entendions le professeur Toner, de I'université Carleton. Je suis
sir que le professeur Toner est un excellent témoin, mais je ne
pense pas que cela réponde a mes besoins & cet égard. Je sug-
gere donc qu’il soit retiré de la liste.

Le président: Sénateur MacEachen, je dois vous dire que.
méme si nous voulions entendre le professeur Toner, nous ne lc
pourrions pas puisqu’il est malade.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Je vois.

Le président: Cela veut dire naturellement qu'il n'y aura
aucune autorité de 'agence ou du monde universitaire pour
comparer, comme on semblait le désirer, les dispositions dc
'AIE et les exigences de I’Accord de libre-échange. Etes-vous
d’accord monsieur le sénateur?

Le sénateur MacEachen: Monsieur le président, c’est inévi-
table. Ce n’est pas satisfaisant, mais il faut 'accepter pour
cette série d'audiences. Cela ne veut pas dire que nous ne pour-
rons pas reprendre cette question plus tard.

Le président: Les sénateurs veulent-ils soulever d'autres
points?

Le sénateur LeBlanc (Beauséjour): Dans la colonne du
milieu, on peut lire que, entre 19 heures et 21 heures, nous
entendrons des représentants du BNG et d'Agriculture
Canada au sujet des préoccupations exprimées par la Fédéra-
tion canadienne de I'agriculture. Je crois savoir, d'aprés les
réunions non officielles que nous avons eues, que les agricul-
teurs seront invités a exprimer leur point de vue. En d’autres
termes, ils avaient formulé des réserves et si nous voulions les
revoir, c’est surtout pour leur demander s'ils étaient satisfaits.
Mais nous allons entendre un groupe de hauts fonctionnaires.
Je respecte les hauts fonctionnaires, mais ils ont tendance @
répéter des choses que le comité a déja entendues.

Le président: En ce qui concerne la Fédération canadienne
de I'agriculture, M. Dobell nous a décrit sa situation hier.

Le sénateur LeBlanc (Beauséjour): Je m’excuse. J'étais
absent hier.

Le président: Le président ne souhaite pas venir. L’Agence
canadienne de la commercialisation des ceufs a exposé, par
écrit, ses difficultés incessantes et la Fédération canadienne de
I'agriculture se propose de nous remettre un document du
méme genre. Le comité sera alors en mesure de reprendre les
points soulevés et d’établir, d’aprés les propos des représentants
du gouvernement, ce qui a été fait pour supprimer les sources
de contrariété et les motifs de plainte ou de griefs. 1l semble
que C’est tout ce que nous puissions faire, étant donné que la
Fédération canadienne de I’agriculture ne souhaite pas compa-
raitre.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Notre but premier n'était pas

d’entendre a nouveau les hauts fonctionnaires du ministére de
I’Agriculture ou du Bureau des négociations commerciales.
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The Chairman: When Mr. Knoerr appeared before this com-
mittee last August, he said that they were somewhat unhappy
and that their unhappiness was increasing as the days marched
on, because they had problems which they thought the govern-
ment could and should clear up. Those problems were set forth
clearly by the President of the Canadian Federation of
Agriculture. As I understand it, the committee wished to see
how far the government has gone in eliminating or overcoming
the problems of the Canadian Federation of Agriculture. They
are to provide us with a paper which will, in a sense, give us a
statement of their present level of satisfaction or dissatisfac-
tion. Then the committee will be in a position to hear a
response from the government.

Senator MacEachen: When will we get these papers?

The Chairman: | believe we have the CEMA paper and that
the other one will be forthcoming later today.

Senator Stollery: Mr. Chairman, as I recall those hearings,
there was one particular glaring inconsistency. As I recall, the
processors and packagers of food said—and they were unani-
mous or certainly close to it—that they would not be able to
continue in business in Canada because their U.S. competitors
would have access to products—and 1 remember particularly
poultry—that were not supply managed as they are in Canada.
The cost would be 30 to 35 per cent higher on imports of our,
for example, chicken pot pies, according to the representative
who appeared for that industry. Then we had people from the
Quebec Federation of Agriculture. The packagers then
indicated that the government had said to them that they
would resolve this problem by giving them more access to non-
supply managed products from the U.S. In other words, they
would get a product that was not supply-managed in the
poultry industry.

We then had evidence to the effect that the supply manage-
ment system in Canada was not affected by the agreement. So
we had one group saying that they faced problems with staying
in the business but that the government was going to look after
them by giving them access to non-supply managed products.
These witneses represented the largest processors of this prod-
uct. On the other hand, we had evidence that said that the
agreement did not affect supply-managed agricultural prod-
ucts. The poultry industry is the example that first comes to
mind. I do not think that this issue has been resolved, certainly
not to my satisfaction. What is the situation? Do we have any-
one who will bring these opposing positions together?

The Chairman: We had hoped that the Canadian Federation
of Agriculture would help us.

Senator Stollery: But they are not coming.

29675-2

[Traduction)

mais d'écouter ce que les représentants de la Fédération de
I'agriculture pensent de ce que leur réserve I'avenir.

Le président: Lorsque M. Knoerr a comparu devant le
comité, en aoit dernier, il a fait part de son insatisfaction, qui
ne cessait de croitre de jour en jour en raison des problémes
qui, d’apres lui, pouvaient et devaient étre réglés par le gouver-
nement. Le président de la Fédération canadienne de I'agricul-
ture a clairement énoncé ces problémes. Si je comprends bien.
le comité souhaitait voir jusqu'a quel point le gouvernement
s’était efforcé d’éliminer ou de résoudre les problémes de la
Fédération canadienne de I'agriculture. La Fédération nous
remet a cet égard un document qui, dans un certain sens, nous
éclairera sur son degré actuel de satisfaction ou d'insatisfac-
tion. Le comité sera alors en mesure d’entendre la réponse du
gouvernement.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Quand obtiendrons-nous ces docu-
ments?

Le président: Je crois que nous avons déja le document de
I'Agence canadienne de commercialisation des ceufs et que
I'autre devrait nous parvenir d'ici la fin de la journée.

Le sénateur Stollery: Monsieur le président, si je me sou-
viens bien de ces audiences, nous avions relevé une inconsé-
quence particulierement flagrante. Je me rappelle que les usi-
nes de transformation et de .conditionnement d’'aliments
avaient déclaré—a I'unanimité ou presque—qu’elles ne pour-
raient continuer 4 faire affaire au Canada parce que leurs con-
currents américains auraient accés 4 des produits—je me sou-
viens plus particulierement de la volaille—non soumis 4 la
gestion de I'offre, contrairement a ce qu'il en est au Canada.
Les colts d'importation des pités de poulet, par exemple.
seraient de 30 & 35 p. 100 plus élevés, selon le représentant de
cette industrie qui a comparu devant nous. Nous avons ensuite
entendu des représentants de la fédération québécoise de 1'agri-
culture. Les conditionneurs ont alors déclaré que le gouverne-
ment leur avait promis de résoudre ce probléme en leur don-
nant davantage accés aux produits américains non soumis a la
régulation de I'offre. En d’autres termes, ils obtiendraient un
prc;;luil de l'industrie avicole non assujetti a la gestion de
I'offre.

Nous avons alors entendu un témoignage selon lequel le sys-
teme de régulation de I'offre du Canada n’était pas visé par
I'’Accord. Ainsi, un groupe nous a dit avoir de la difficulté a
subsister dans cette industrie, tout en affirmant que le gouver-
nement allait s’occuper de son cas en lui donnant accés a des
produits non soumis 4 la régulation de I'offre. Ces témoins
représentaient le plus important groupe d’usines de transfor-
mation de ce produit. Par contre, d’autres témoins nous ont dit
que l'accord ne visait pas les produits agricoles soumis & la
régulation de I'offre. L’industrie avicole est le premier exemple
qui vienne a 'esprit. Je ne pense pas que ce probléme ait été
résolu, en tout cas pas @ ma satisfaction. Qu’en est-il? Allons-
nous entendre un témoin capable de concilier ces deux attitu-
des?

Le président: Nous avions espéré que la Fédération cana-
dienne de I'agriculture nous aiderait.

Le sénateur Stollery: Mais elle ne va pas étre représentée.
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The Chairman: They have chosen not to appear, but they
will be providing a paper. Their attitude is that we can take it
from there if we wish. The testimony to which you referred
was given in large part before this committee on August 8. Mr.
Knoerr indicated that their statement:

—reflects growing ill-ease that some of the measures that
we think are necessary have not yet been implemented,
and we are rapidly approaching the potential date of
implementation, which is January 1, 1989.

It was in view of that statement and of other comparable state-
ments that the committee felt that the Canadian Federation of
Agriculture might wish to come here to represent the interests
of farmers at this time. They have decided not to do so. 1 do
not know what we can do other than to receive the paper and
then hear the representatives of the government.

Senator Stollery: It is a strange situation.

Senator Kelly: Will these papers that will be distributed to
members of the committee also be distributed to the officials
that we will be hearing in order that they may be prepared?

The Chairman: Yes.

Senator MacEachen: Mr. Chairman, on that point, I am
beginning to question the utility of hearing the officials again.
I think we are losing sight of our objectives in the course of
these hearings. It was not our objective to have repetition of
former evidence, but to hear by sector the problems that lay in
the future. One of the sectors was agriculture and the objective
was to find out from agriculture how they viewed the future,
where their problems lay, and so on.

The Chairman: So what are you proposing; that we omit
that sector, that we receive the papers and do nothing?

Senator MacEachen: | am proposing that we get the papers
and read them. Then, if we find there is reason to hear from
officials again, we will hear from them.

Senator Kelly: Mr. Chairman, I totally disagree. If there are
legitimate questions out there, surely part of the purpose of
this exercise is to see if there are answers to those problems.
They may simply be misunderstandings.

The Chairman: May I suggest that we not discuss this point
in a vacuum, that we see the papers first. It may well be that
we will conclude that there is no point in hearing from the offi-
cials.

Senator Stollery: The issue is a fairly simple one. One
group, which seems to know what it is talking about, says the
supply-management system will be broken down by this agree-
ment. As a matter of fact, both groups, the farmers, producers
and the packagers, seem to agree. The government has said
that it will not be broken down. We do not seem to be in a
position to resolve what is a clear and important difference of
opinion.

[Traduction)

Le président: La Fédération a décidé de ne pas comparaitre.
mais elle nous enverra un document. D'aprés elle, nous pou-
vons poursuivre, si nous le souhaitons. Les témoignages aux-
quels vous faites allusion ont été en grande partie entendus par
le comité le 8 aofit dernier. M. Knoerr indiquait que I'exposé¢
de la Fédération:

—refléte un malaise croissant parce que certaines des
mesures que nous estimons étre nécessaires n'ont pas
encore été adoptées; or, nous nous rapprochons rapide-
ment de la date possible de la mise en ceuvre, qui est le 1¢
janvier 1989.
C’est en raison de cette déclaration et d’autres affirmations du
méme ordre que la comité pensait que la Fédération cana-
dienne de I'agriculture aurait pu souhaiter venir représenter les
intéréts des agriculteurs. La Fédération a décidé de ne pas le
faire. Je ne sais pas ce que nous pouvons faire d’autre que de
recevoir le document avant d’entendre les représentants du
gouvernement.

Le sénateur Stollery: La situation est vraiment bizarre.

Le sénateur Kelly: Ces documents qui seront distribués aux
membres du Comité le seront-ils également aux témoins, pour
qu’ils puissent se préparer?

Le président: Oui.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Monsieur le président, a ce propos.
je commence @ me demander s’il est vraiment utile d'entendre
des témoins une deuxiéme fois. Je crois que nous sommes en
train de perdre de vue nos objectifs. Nous n'avions pas pour
objectif d’entendre deux fois le méme témoignage. mais plutot
les représentants des grands secteurs d'activité, pour qu'ils
nous parlent des difficultés auxquelles ils feraient face dans
'avenir. Pour I'agriculture, il nous fallait savoir comment les
représentants de ce secteur entrevoyaient I'avenir, quels pro-
blémes ils pressentaient, etc.

Le président: Vous proposez donc que nous n'invitions per-
sonne de ce secteur, et que nous nous contentions d’obtenir Jes
documents?

Le sénateur MacEachen: Je propose que nous obtenions les
documents et que nous les lisions. Ensuite, s'il se révele néces-
saire d’'inviter une nouvelle fois les témoins, nous le ferons.

Le sénateur Kelly: Monsieur le président, je ne suis pas du
tout de cet avis. S'il existe de véritables problémes, le but d¢
nos audiences est siirement, en partie du moins, d'y trouver des
solutions. Il se peut que ce ne soit que des malentendus.

Le président: Je propose que nous ne discutions pas de cett¢
question dans le vide, mais que nous commencions par lire 1€
documents. 11 est fort possible que nous jugions par la suit¢
inutile d’entendre ces témoins de nouveau.

Le sénateur Stollery: La question est pourtant simple. UP
groupe, qui semble savoir de quoi il parle, soutient qu¢
I'Accord détruira le systéme de gestion de l'offre. En fait, il
semble y avoir unanimité parmi les agriculteurs, les produc-
teurs et les conditionneurs. Le gouvernement a affirmé le con
traire. 11 me semble que nous ne sommes pas en mesure de
trancher le débat.
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Senator Kelly: 1 will say again: As one member of this com-
mittee. if 1 am convinced that the papers that come today
represent legitimate questions and concerns, ] feel entitled to
hear from officials on what the responses are to those concerns.

The Chairman: Could we leave this philosophical discussion
until such time as we have seen the papers?

Senator LeBlanc (Beauséjour): Those of us who attended
the exhaustive sessions saw very clearly that the Federation of
Agriculture is like a troika or a multiple troika with many
horses, some of them pulling in different directions. 1 suspect
they did not want to illustrate again their own inability to fed-
erate and to have a positive position which would be coherent
and collectively accepted. 1 suspect that this is part of the par-
alysis of many federations. Barring that, there are other groups
in a different situation such as CEMA and other supply-man-
agement operations. Certainly, the Quebec Federation of
Agriculture, L'Union des Producteurs Agricole, did not seem
to have any trouble with federating its position.

Senator Bazin: Does it still have a problem with its member-
ship?

Senator LeBlanc (Beauséjour): Does it still have the same
malaise or not?

The Chairman: 1 do not know that we are in a position to
answer that question. What we do know is that when Mr. Kno-
err appeared for the Canadian Federation of Agriculture, not-
withstanding that he admitted that the federation was not
unanimous in its reaction, he did identify certain specific prob-
lems that the Free Trade Agreement creates for farmers in
Canada. He proposed, in some instances, certain remedies.

As | understand it, the purpose of the members of the com-
mittee was to see how far the government had been able to g0
in eliminating these specific problems identified by the
Canadian Federation of Agriculture. We asked them to come
and present, in person, their appreciation of the situation as it
now stands. The president decided not to come but the federa-
tion has indicated that it will give us a written statement. It is

up to the committee whether they wish to receive that written

statement and, if they do receive it, what they will do with it.

Senator Frith: 1 support your earlier solution to the problem.
1 think our real interest is in presenting questions regarding
issues, no matter how eclectic they may be. In other words, it
matters not what branch of agriculture these people may
represent, they are raising questions and we are interested in
the questions more than in the person who will present them.
Your solution of giving us the paper, allowing us to read the
paper and then deciding who we want to hear from is \_what 1
would support. We can then decide to ask some officials to
answer our questions. However, | think this is anticipatory. Let
us look at the papers and see if there are questions we want to
Pursue. If so, 1 think Senator Kelly will want to pursu¢ them
Wlllh officials and we may want to pursue them with someone
else.

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Kelly: Je le répéte en qualité de membre du
Comité, si j'ai la conviction que les documents que nous rece-
vrons aujourd’hui font état de véritables difficultés, j'estime
avoir le droit d’entendre des témoins proposer des solutions &
ces problémes.

Le président: Pourrions-nous interrompre cette discussion
qui tourne a vide, du moins jusqu'a ce que nous ayons pris con-
naissance des documents?

Le sénateur LeBlanc (Beauséjour): Ceux qui ont assisté aux
séances au cours desquelles nous avons vidé la question savent
sans I'ombre d’un doute que la Fédération de I'agriculture est
semblable 4 une tour de Babel. Je pense que ses responsables
n’ont pas voulu étaler de nouveau leur propre incapacité de
faire front commun, de s’en tenir & une position unique, cohé-
rente et acceptée de tous. Je crois méme que c’est un probléme
qui paralyse bon nombre de fédérations. En revanche, il existe
d’autres groupes ou la situation est différente, comme 'ACCO
et d’autres organismes de gestion de I'offre. Par exemple, la
fédération québécoise de I'agriculture, soit I'union des produc-
teurs agricoles, n'a pas semblé avoir eu de difficultés a adopter
une position unique.

Le sénateur Bazin: L'Union éprouve-t-elle toujours des pro-
bléemes avec ses membres?

Le sénateur LeBlanc (Beauséjour): Est-elle toujours aux
prises avec les mémes difficultés?

Le président: Je ne sais pas si nous pouvons répondre a cette
question. Ce que nous savons toutefois, c'est que M. Knoerr a
comparu au nom de la Fédération canadienne de I'agriculture.
qu'il a pris la peine d’admettre qu'il n'y avait pas unanimité au
sein de la Fédération, et qu'il a souligné certains problemes
particuliers qu’entraine I’Accord de libre-échange pour les
agriculteurs du Canada. Dans certains cas, il a2 méme proposé
des solutions.

A mon avis, les membres du Comité cherchaient a détermi-
ner dans quelle mesure le gouvernement avait pu régler les
problémes signalés par la Fédération canadienne de I'agricul-
ture. Nous avons invité la Fédération & venir nous présenter sa
fagon de voir la situation. Le président a décidé de ne pas
venir, mais la Fédération nous a fait savoir qu’elle nous fourni-
rait une déclaration écrite. C'est au Comité de décider s'il
désire recevoir cette déclaration écrite et, s'il la regoit, ce qu'il
en fera.

Le sénateur Frith: Je suis d’accord avec la solution que vous
avez présentée auparavant. Notre role consiste principalement
a examiner les sujets de préoccupation, si éclectiques soient-ils.
En d’autres mots, ces personnes—peu importe le secteur agri-
cole qu’elles représentent—soulévent des problémes et c'est ce
qui nous intéresse, les problémes beaucoup plus que ceux qui
les présentent. J'appuie votre proposition de nous laisser lire le
document puis de décider quels témoins nous voulons entendre.
Nous pourrions ensuite demander a certains représentants du
gouvernement de répondre & nos questions. Toutefois, je pense
que j'anticipe un peu. Examinons les documents et voyons s'ils
traitent de questions que nous désirons approfondir. Dans
I'affirmative, le sénateur Kelly voudra probablement en discu-
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The Chairman: s that agreed?
Honourable Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Are there any other questions concerning the
proposed schedule?

Senator Frith: Where are we on the question of energy?

Senator Fairbairn: I note that on tomorrow’s schedule, we
will not be hearing from the Minister of Employment.

The Chairman: I do not know who can speak for the govern-
ment in that regard. Perhaps Senator Doody can tell us the sit-
uation. A request was made that Minister McDougall, who
was responsible, as 1 understand it, for the adjustment pro-
grams, to appear tomorrow, presumably after Mr. Jean de
Grandpré's appearance. What is the situation? When will she
be available?

Senator Doody: My understanding at the present time is
that efforts are being made to find a solution to the problem
she has with timing. She will be making a major policy state-
ment on immigration in Toronto tomorrow or even, perhaps,
today. She has various press conferences arranged and other
arrangements. Whether or not she will be able to find some
free time is debatable at this point. It could very well be that
she cannot, so perhaps a substitute will have to be found.

The Chairman: That is tomorrow, Thursday, but what about
Friday?

Senator Doody: There is always Friday, Saturday and Sun-
day. 1 had not made any forays into the future. There are oth-
ers who presumably could answer the questions you may have.

Senator Fairbairn: I suppose we will not be able to judge, in
advance, the degree to which Mr. de Grandpré can deal with
some of these questions. It is a policy area and a sensitive one
which is one of the reasons 1 suggested yesterday that the min-
ister responsible might be the person we should ask the ques-
tions of.

I understand her statement on refugees is to be made today.
At any rate, it is in the hands of the committee as to whether,
if Thursday is completely impossible, one should pursue Friday
as a possibility to hear the minister.

Senator Doody: Would anyone else be able to answer these
questions? It is difficult to assume that a minister can be made
available on such short notice and in a given policy area.
Surely there are others in the department who could be
informed of the questions and the subject matter and be asked
to bring the government policy forward.

However, it is up to the committee to decide what it wants
to do and when it wants to do it, but I think we are using up a
lot of valuable time discussing management matters which,
perhaps, could be discussed in a steering committee.

[ Traduction)

ter avec les représentants du gouvernement et nous souhaite-
rons peut-étre le faire avec d’autres personnes.

Le président: Etes-vous d’accord?
Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: Y a-t-il d’autres questions 4 propos de
I’horaire proposé?

Le sénateur Frith: Ol en sommes-nous sur la question de
I'énergie?

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Je remarque que le nom de la
ministre de ’Emploi ne figure pas sur le calendrier de demain.

Le président: Je ne sais pas qui peut parler au nom du gou-
vernement a ce sujet. Le sénateur Doody pourrait peut-étre
nous dire ce qu’il en est. On a demandé a la ministre McDou-
gall, responsable des programmes d’adaptation, si je com-
prends bien, de comparaitre demain, probablement aprés M.
Jean de Grandpré. Quand pourra-t-elle venir?

Le sénateur Doody: Je crois comprendre qu’elle s'efforce
actuellement de trouver du temps dans son horaire. Demain.
ou peut-étre méme aujourd’hui, elle doit faire, & Toronto, une
importante déclaration de nature politique au sujet de I'immi-
gration. On a déja prévu diverses conférences de presse, de
méme que d'autres engagements. Nous ne savons pas encore si
elle pourra se libérer. Si elle ne peut pas, nous devrons peut-
étre trouver un remplagant.

Le président: Voild pour demain, jeudi, mais qu’en est-il de
vendredi?

Le sénateur Doody: 11 y a toujours vendredi, samedi et
dimanche. Je n’ai pas sondé I'avenir. D’autres pourraient pro-
bablement répondre a vos questions.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Nous ne pouvons dire, & I'avance,
dans quelle mesure M. de Grandpré répondra 4 certaines de
ces questions. Il s’agit d’un domaine de I'action gouvernemen-
tale trés délicat, et c’est pourquoi j'ai proposé hier que les
questions soient posées au ministre responsable.

Si je comprends bien, c’est aujourd’hui qu'elle fera unc
déclaration au sujet des réfugiés. De toute fagon c'est au
Comité qu’il appartient de décider si on devrait envisager la
possibilité de la convoquer vendredi, si elle ne peut absolument
pas venir jeudi.

Le sénateur Doody: Quelqu’un d’autre pourrait-il répondre
a ces questions? On peut difficilement s’attendre qu'un minis-
tre puisse se libérer a si bref préavis et comparaitre au sujet
d’un secteur de I'action gouvernementale trés précise. D'autres
personnes du ministére sont certainement au courant de ces
questions et elles pourraient probablement venir exposer 12
politique du gouvernement.

C’est toutefois au Comité qu'il appartient de décider ce qu'!
veut faire et quand il veut le faire. Je pense que nous sommes
en train de perdre un temps précieux 4 discuter de questions
d’organisation qui, peut-étre, pourraient étre réglées par I¢
comité directeur.
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Senator Frith: Senator Fairbairn is the senator who raised
this. Is there a minister of state, who could answer your ques-
tions?

Senator Fairbairn: There is a minister of state but 1 believe
he is in the hospital at the moment.

Senator MacEachen: Why don’t we explore the possibility
of sitting on Friday?

The Chairman: Perhaps we will leave that with Senator
Doody.

Senator Doody: No, we will leave it with the committee.

The Chairman: Senator Murray is not here and this is the
government’s bill.

Senator Doody: I realize that.

The Chairman: As I understand it, you are trying to get this
bill through by the end of 1988. There is a disposition in the
committee that it wants certain witnesses to be heard. Now,
the government has provided Mr. de Grandpré as a witness.
Some of the members are unhappy with regard to the Interna-
tional Energy Agency representative. Now there is growing
discontent with regard to the minister responsible for adjust-
ment. As chairman, | am saying to you that you could expedite
the work of the committee greatly if you would take this in
hand and produce a responsible minister.

Senator Doody: As always, 1 will do what 1 can do within
the timeframe that is available.

The Chairman: I guess the committee will say that the time-
table is not ours.

Senator Frith: What we are saying is: If the minister’s press
conferences relating to an important announcement in her
portfolio are scheduled for today, can Senator Doody deter-
mine if she can be available tomorrow or early on Friday?
That would mean we could keep to our schedule.

Senator Doody: That has already been done and she is try-
ing to find a way to separate herself from the schedule she has.
At this point in time I cannot say whether that is possible or
not. 1 would ask if there is a subsitute who would be accept-
able.

Senator Frith: At the moment it is not impossible that she
could get here by Thursday or Friday morning so we will deal
with it when it becomes impossible.

Senator Doody: To the best of my knowledge, as you say,
nothing is impossible.

The Chairman: Let us proceed. Are we ready to go back,
then, to a review of the proposed statute? Under Part IV, are
there any questions on clause 46, regarding agriculture?

Senator Hays: Mr. Chairman, I have a related question. I
guess the way to put it is to what extent have we already
Passed legislation to implement the agreement? I ask because
when we were considering Bill C-141 in the last Parliament,
this matter came up in the context of registered establishments

[Traduction)

Le sénateur Frith: C’est la sénatrice Fairbairn qui a soulevé
ce point. Y a-t-il un ministre d’Etat qui pourrait répondre 4 vos
questions?

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Il y en a un, mais je crois qu'il est a
I’hopital en ce moment.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Pourquoi n’examinons-nous pas la
possibilité de siéger vendredi?

Le président: Nous devrions peut-étre laisser au sénateur
Doody le soin de trancher cette question.

Le sénateur Doody: Non, c’est le Comité qui décidera.

Le président: Le sénateur Murray n'est pas ici et ce projet
de loi émane du gouvernement.

Le sénateur Doody: Je m’en rends compte.

Le président: D’apreés ce que je comprends, vous essayez de
faire en sorte que ce projet de loi soit adopté d’ici la fin de
1988. Le comité voudrait entendre certains témoins. Or, le
gouvernement a choisi M. de Grandpré comme témoin. Cer-
tains membres déplorent qu'un représentant de I’Agence inter-
nationale de I'énergie n’ait pas comparu. Et je constate aussi
maintenant que les membres sont de plus en plus mécontents
du ministre responsable de 1'aide a I'ajustement. Je tiens & vous
dire, en tant que président, que vous pourriez grandement
accélérer le travail du Comité si vous preniez les choses en
main et convoquiez un ministre responsable.

Le sénateur Doody: Comme toujours, j'essaierai de faire
tout en mon pouvoir dans les délais impartis.

Le président: Je suppose que le comité dira que ce n'est pas
lui qui a fixé le calendrier.

Le sénateur Frith: Si les conférences de presse données par
le ministre, au cours desquelles elle fera une annonce impor-
tante en ce qui concerne son portefeuille, sont prévues pour
aujourd’hui, le sénateur Doody peut-il nous dire si la ministre
sera disposée a venir témoigner devant le comité demain ou
vendredi matin? Nous pourrions ainsi respecter notre calen-
drier de travail.

Le sénateur Doody: C'est déja fait et elle essaie de trouver
un moyen de changer son emploi du temps. Je ne peux pas
vous dire 4 ce moment-ci si cela est possible ou non. Vous
pourriez peut-étre proposer un remplacant que vous jugeriez
acceptable.

Le sénateur Frith: Il est possible qu'elle vienne témoigner
Jjeudi ou vendredi matin. Nous agirons en conséquence si elle
ne vient pas.

Le sénateur Doody: A ma connaissance, rien n'est impossi-
ble, comme vous le dites.

Le président: Continuons. Sommes-nous donc préts a pour-
suivre 'examen du projet de loi? Avez-vous des questions &
poser au sujet de I'article 46, Partie 1V, qui traite de I'agricul-
ture?

Le sénateur Hays: J'en ai une, monsieur le président. Dans
quelle mesure avons-nous déja adopté des lois en vue de mettre
en ceuvre I'accord? Si je vous demande cela, c’est parce que la
question est venu sur le tapis 4 propos des établissements et des
laboratoires agréés au moment ol nous étudiions le projet de
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and accredited laboratories. I think it was clause 48 of Bill C-
130 and I believe that is now gone. Am I correct? There was a
question as to whether we are implementing the agreement
before the agreement has been lived up to in terms of the
requirement that implementing legislation be passed as pro-
vided for by the agreement. An interesting question was put as
to whether we were doing that when we passed Bill C-141, in
the context of the provisions of that bill, which are now law,
having to do with registered establishments and accredited
laboratories. I do not have Bill C-130 here but I do not see that
provision in Bill C-2. I am guessing that it has been taken out
because it is no longer required to be put into effect. My ques-
tion is to what extent have we been implementing this agree-
ment before now?

Mr. von Finckenstein: The first version of Bill C-130 which
was tabled in the House of Commons had the provision
amending the Agricultural Products Standards Act. Since
then, a new version of the Agricultural Products Standards
Act has been enacted and the provisions therein are wide
enough to implement part of the provisions of Chapter 7 of the
Free Trade Agreement. So partly through that new Agricul-
tural Products Standards Act, we have given ourselves the
power to implement the provisions of Chapter 7 once the work-
ing groups have reached agreement on standards, et cetera.
However, we have not covered the whole issue. That is why
you now have this new section 5.1 added to the Department of
Agriculture Act, giving the Governor in Council powers to
enact regulations for the purpose of implementing Chapter 7
or 8 of the Free Trade Agreement.

Senator Hays: Can you tell me whether that is something
we did quite often or is that the only sample of implementing
the agreement before the implementing legislation with which
we are now dealing?

Mr. von Finckenstein: It was not implementing the agree-
ment before the implementing legislation. It was a general
enabling clause in that act which can be used for the purpose
of the FTA. It can also be used for the purpose of agreements
reached with the Europeans.

Senator Hays: Was your working group the origin of that in
Bill C-141?

Mr. von Finckenstein: No. It came out of a totally separate
track.

Senator MacEachen: 1 have just one question with respect
to the agricultural clause. Can we be told why it was found
necessary to implement Article 708 entirely by regulation and
not by legislation?

Mr. von Finckenstein: It is implemented by legislation
rather than regulation. You cannot have regulation without
legislation. Section 708 is a “work towards” provision. There is
nothing concrete to be implemented at this point in time. It
sets up the framework for the two parties to sit together and
establish equivalent accreditation procedures for inspection
systems and inspectors. That has to be done. Once the techni-
cal experts from Agriculture Canada and the United States
Department of Agriculture have worked those out, we will

[Traduction]

loi C-141 lors de la derniére législature. Je crois que cette
question figurait a I'article 48 du projet de loi C-130; elle a
maintenant été supprimée. Ai-je bien raison? On cherche
savoir si nous sommes déja en train de procéder 4 la mise en
ceuvre de 'accord avant méme qu'une loi en ce sens ne soit
adoptée, comme le prévoit I'accord. Est-ce effectivement ce
que nous avons fait lorsque nous avons adopté les dispositions
du projet de loi C-141, qui traitaient des établissements et des
laboratoires agréés? Je n’ai pas le projet de loi C-130 sous la
main, mais je ne retrouve pas cette disposition dans le projet de
loi C-2. Je suppose qu’elle a été supprimée parce qu'elle était
devenue sans objet. Je voudrais savoir dans quelle mesure nous
avons déja mis en ceuvre cette entente?

M. von Finckenstein: La premiére version du projet de loi
C-130, qui a été déposée a la Chambre, renfermait une disposi-
tion modifiant la Loi sur les normes de produits agricoles du
Canada. Entre-temps, une nouvelle version de cette loi a été
adoptée et les dispositions assez étendues qu'elle contient vont
nous permettre de mettre en ceuvre une partie du Chapitre 7
de I’Accord de libre-échange. Ainsi, grace un peu a la nouvelle
loi, nous avons maintenant le pouvoir d’appliquer les disposi-
tions du Chapitre 7 dés que les groupes de travail se seront
entendues sur les normes, etc. Cependant, nous n'avons pas
épuisé toute la question. C’est pourquoi on a ajouté le nouvel
article 5.1 4 la Loi sur le ministére de I’Agriculture, pour auto-
riser le gouverneur en conseil & prendre des réglements pour
mettre en ceuvre le Chapitre 7 ou 8 de I'’Accord de libre-
échange.

Le sénateur Hays: Pouvez-vous me dire s'il y a d'autres cas
semblables ou si c’est le seul exemple ou I’Accord a été appli-
qué avant que la loi habilitante que nous étudions n'ait été
votée?

M. von Finckenstein: L'Accord n’a pas été mis en ceuvre
avant I'adoption de la présente loi. Il s’agissait d'une disposi-
tion habilitante générale qui peut servir pour mettre en geuvre
’Accord et pour conclure aussi des ententes avec les Euro-
péens.

Le sénateur Hays: Est-ce votre groupe de travail qui a pro-
posé d’insérer ces dispositions dans le projet de loi C-141?

M. von Finckenstein: Non. Cela est venu d’ailleurs.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Je n’ai qu'une question a poser
concernant la disposition relative 4 I’agriculture. Pourquoi a-1-
on décidé de mettre en ceuvre Iarticle 708 par voie de régle-
ment et non par voie législative?

M. von Finckenstein: Il a été mis en ceuvre par une loi ¢l
non par réglement, car tout réglement découle d'une loi
L’article 708 est une disposition «préparatoire». Pour I'instant.
il n’y a rien de précis & mettre en ceuvre. Mais cette disposition
institue un cadre qui permettra aux deux parties d’établir des
procédures d’accréditation équivalentes concernant les inspec”
tions et les inspecteurs. Cela reste 4 faire. Aussitdt que les
experts d’Agriculture Canada et du département de I'Agricul-
ture des Etats-Unis auront mis au point ces procédures. nous
allons les appliquer. Cet article n’est qu'un mécanisme de mis¢
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both implement it. This gives us a tool for implementing it.
Until those are worked out, we cannot implement them.

Senator MacEachen: So you put in a section on regulations
because you do not know what you are going to do under
Article 708 yet, basically until you write it into the law?

Mr. von Finckenstein: In the FTA, we have written down
the objectives to be achieved and we have set up working
groups to achieve those objectives. Then both we and the
Americans, in our legislation, give ourselves the power through
regulation to implement these objectives once they have been
achieved by the working group.

Senator MacEachen: Article 708 is rather extensive, yet is
dealt with in one sentence in Part 1V. All right. When I said
“legislation™, 1 meant provisions that go through Parliament
rather than regulations which go through the Governor 1n
Council.

Mr. von Finckenstein: I understand.

The Chairman: Are we ready, then, to go on to the amend-
ments of the Bank Act? Starting at page 40, clauses 47, 48
and 49 deal with financial services, and specifically with the
Bank Act.

Senator Frith: Mr. Chairman, I should like to raise some
questions about this part. First, by way of setting. our concord-
ance is D-2 where the explanation is given about these clauses.

Mr. von Finckenstein: Yes.

Senator Frith: 1t is explained that Canada has agreed to an
exemption from the 25 per cent aggregate limit on non-resi-
dent ownership of Schedule A banks and to exempt U.S. bank
subsidiaries from the 16 per cent ceiling. The highlight from
clause 47 is the excluding of U.S. residents from the term
“non-residents”. So that is our reference point.

I would like to say two things. The first is that 1 think those
of us that are not expert in banking have the feeling that, on
the basis of statements made, Canadian bankers feel that
access was given to competition against them which was not
paralleled by opportunities for them in the United States. In
other words, the gates were opened into their pasture but the
gates were not opened into the U.S. banking pasture. Those
concerns were expressed to the government some time ago
regarding Bill C-130 and Bill C-2. 1 understood that these
Questions had been considered by the government and that the
government had decided not to change the legislation accord-
ingly. I think it might be useful, Mr. Chairman, if we had this
Paper which we have had a chance to read during this recess—
and which 1 take it the witnesses are familiar with—made part
of our record, because it would focus attention on the issues
that [ think we should raise under this subject.

Senator Stollery: I just wanted to say that I recall, I believe,
I. MclIntosh appeared before a committee and, as I recall his
testimony, he castigated us for asking questions about the Free
rade Agreement. I recall it very well because I think we had
a bit of an outburst at the committee. So 1 don't recall the

[Traduction]

en ceuvre, mais il faut que les procédures soient définies avant
de les appliquer.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Ainsi, vous avez inséré une dispo-
sition sur les réglements parce que vous ne savez pas ce que
vous allez faire en vertu de I'article 708, en somme en atten-
dant que cela figure dans la loi?

M. von Finckenstein: L'Accord de libre-échange énumeére
les objectifs 4 atteindre et nous avons mis sur pied des groupes
de travail pour définir ces objectifs. Dans leurs lois respectives.
Canadiens et Américains se donnent le pouvoir, par voie de
réglement, de poursuivre ces objectifs une fois que les groupes
auront terminé leur travail.

Le sénateur MacEachen: L’article 708 est assez long, et
pourtant il ne fait I'objet que d’une seule phrase dans la Partic
1V. Quand j'ai parlé de «dispositions législatives» je voulais
parler des mesures soumises au Parlement et non des régle-
ments qui sont pris par le gouverneur en conseil.

M. von Finckentein: Je comprends.

Le président: Sommes-nous préts alors a passer aux modifi-
cations 4 la Loi sur les banques! A partir de la page 40, ce sont
les articles 47, 48 et 49 qui portent sur les services financiers.
plus précisément sur la Loi sur les banques.

Le sénateur Frith: Monsieur le président, j'aurais quelques
questions & poser a ce sujet. D’abord, pour préciser les choses.
il faut se reporter a la section D-2 du tableau de concordance
pour une explication de ces articles.

M. von Finckenstein: Oui.

Le sénateur Frith: On y dit que le Canada a accepté
d’exempter, de la limite générale de 25 p. 100, la participation
étrangeére dans les banques de I'’Annexe A et d'exempter les
filiales de banques américaines du plafond de 16 p. 100. Le
point saillant de l'article 47, c'est qu'il exclut les résidents
américains de toute mention de «non-résidents». Voila donc
notre point de départ.

Jaimerais faire deux observations. D’abord, ceux parmi
nous qui ne sommes pas experts dans le domaine des banques
avons l'impression, en raison de certaines affirmations faites
par les banquiers canadiens, que ceux-ci croient que leurs con-
currents américains on obtenu des avantages qui leur sont
refusés aux Etats-Unis. Autrement dit, les clotures protégeant
les plates-bandes canadiennes ont été enlevées alors que les
plates-bandes américaines en matiére bancaire continueront
d’étre cloturées. Ces inquiétudes ont été exprimées au gouver-
nement il y a quelque temps déja au sujet des projets de loi C-
130 et C-2. Je crois savoir que le gouvernement s’est penché
sur ces questions et qu'il a décidé de ne pas modifier la loi en
conséquence. Monsieur le président, & mon avis il serait utile
que ce document que nous avons eu I'occasion de lire pendant
I'ajournement, et que les témoins semblent connaitre, soit
annexé au compte rendu de nos délibérations parce qu'il met
en relief les questions que nous devrions, & mon avis, examiner.

Le sénateur Stollery: Je vous signale que, si ma mémoire est
fidéle, M. McIntosh a comparu devant un comité et nous a fait
reproche, au cours de la séance, des questions que nous posions
sur I’Accord de libre-échange. Je me souviens trés bien puisque
cela a soulevé un tollé. Je ne me souviens pas que le président
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President of the Bankers Association being anything but very
strongly in favour of this agreement.

Senator Frith: Yes. It is right that Bob Mclntosh was in
favour before this committee. However, yesterday, in the
media, there were statements made by the Canadian Bankers
Association.

Senator LeBlanc (Beauséjour): He had not read the report
either.

Senator Stollery: I guess he had not read the report before
he was in favour of it.

Senator Frith: ] am making no comment about that. | am
simply saying that that was expressed in the media yesterday,
and it was on behalf of the Canadian Banker’s Association as 1
understood it. The spokesman was a woman, but I cannot
remember her name, and it was not Mr. McIntosh. Let us deal
with the concerns again rather than worrying about from
where.

Senator Stollery: But we had the concerns expressed before
the committee, and the concern was that we were not expedit-
ing the Free Trade Agreement quickly enough. That is the evi-
dence that this committee received.

Senator Frith: Is Senator Stollery suggesting that 1 drop the
whole thing?

The Chairman: Senators, I think I can describe the situation
to the satisfaction of everyone. As 1 recall, the Canadian
banks, through their representative, recorded their enthusiastic
zeal for the early passage—

Senator LeBlanc (Beauséjour): They certainly did.

The Chairman: —of Bill C-130; but then, in a footnote they
said, “We do that notwithstanding that we are somewhat
aggrieved as an interest group, but we take that stand for the
greater good of the country.” That was what Mr. Mclntosh
told us. What we are focusing on now is their footnote or their
own grievance.

Senator Frith: Which I understand the government has had
a chance to respond to.

The Chairman: They would be completely happy; they
would agree with it, and their grievance would be cured if the
government would volunteer to amend the bill today in order
to take care of these small points. I think that is the situation.

Senator LeBlanc (Beauséjour): Is this for the good of the
country or for the good of the banks?

Senator Frith: Remember Mr. Wilson of General Motors.

Senator Bazin: On the suggestion of Senator Frith to file
this report, I am not sure what the custom is in terms of these
committee hearings. Regarding the annexing of documents
that are distributed, I am concerned about some of the draft-
ing and some of the questions. It is not a working paper per se.
It raises questions. I am not sure it is correct to file this
untouched.

[Traduction)

de I'Association des banquiers ait exprimé autre chose qu'un
appui vigoureux a cet accord.

Le sénateur Frith: Oui. 1] est exact que Bob Mclntosh a
exprimé son appui devant ce comité. Toutefois, les médias ont
rapporté hier certaines affirmations faites par I’Association des
banquiers du Canada.

Le sénateur LeBlanc (Beauséjour): Il n’avait pas lu le
rapport lui non plus.

Le sénateur Stollery: Cela signifie qu’il n’avait pas lu le rap-
port avant d’exprimer son appui.

Le sénateur Frith: Je me refuse a tout commentaire 1a-des-
sus. Je dis tout simplement que les propos rapportés dans les
médias hier étaient attribués, sauf erreur de ma part, a I'Asso-
ciation des banquiers du Canada. Son porte-parole était une
femme dont j'oublie le nom, mais ce n'était pas M. Mclntosh.
Parlons des inquiétudes exprimées plutdt que de leur source.

Le sénateur Stollery: Mais ces inquiétudes, a savoir que
nous ne procédions pas assez rapidement a I'adoption de
I’Accord de libre-échange ont été exprimées devant le comité.
Voila ce qu'on a dit au comité.

Le sénateur Frith: Le sénateur Stollery suggére-t-il que je
laisse tomber?

Le président: Je crois pouvoir décrire la situation a la satis-
faction de tous. Si ma mémoire est fidéle, les banquiers cana-
diens, par I'entremise de leur porte-parole, ont exprimé publi-
quement leur souhait ardent qu’on adopte, dans les plus brefs
délais . . .

Le sénateur LeBlanc (Beauséjour): Absolument.

Le président: . . . le projet de loi C-130; or, ils ont ensuite
ajouté que malgré le fait qu'ils se sentaient personnellement
lésés, ils prenaient cette position dans l'intérét supérieur du
pays. Voila ce que nous a dit M. Mclntosh. Pour ainsi dire.
nous mettons donc l’accent sur cet ajout ou sur leurs doléances.

Le sénateur Frith: Auxquelles le gouvernement a eu l'occa-
sion de répondre, je crois.

Le président: Ils seraient tout 4 fait heureux; ils donneraient
leur appui & I'accord et leurs doléances pourraient étre corri-
gées si le gouvernement prenait [linitiative de modifier
aujourd’hui le projet de loi pour corriger ces petites lacunes.
Voila ce qui en est.

Le sénateur LeBlanc (Beauséjour): Est-ce dans I'intérét du
pays ou dans I'intérét des banques?

Le sénateur Frith: Souvenez-vous de M. Wilson de la Gene-
ral Motors.

Le sénateur Bazin: Le sénateur Frith propose de joindre c¢
rapport, mais je ne suis pas certain de I'usage concernant les
audiences de ce comité. Il est question d’annexer les documents
qui nous ont été distribués, mais j’ai des réserves quant 4 la
rédaction et & certaines questions. I ne s'agit pas d'un docu-
ment de travail 4 proprement parler. Il suscite des questions €t
je ne suis pas certain qu’il soit opportun de I'inclure tel quel.
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The Chairman: Senator Bazin, what paper do you have in
your possession?

Senator Bazin: 1 thought Senator Frith was refe(ring to
Senate Committee Amendments to the Bank Act—Financial
Services which was distributed to us about 15 minutes ago.

The Chairman: Yes. We know what we are talking about
now.

Senator Frith: My suggestion was not that this be an
approved report but simply as something to be responded to. ]f
there is a problem, we will spend more time arguing about it
and I will spend more time reading the whole thing tl_xrough
rather than saying look at paragraph so and so. That is all I
was suggesting. How do we stand, Mr. Chairman?

The Chairman: ] gather you are saying that we can—

Senator Frith: If they had it before them, it would save time
if I could refer to this paragraph, and so on. However, someone
who is reading the transcript will wonder what they had before
them. 1 only want it as something they had before them, not as
any approved decision by this committee.

Senator Bazin: | do not'want to belabour the point.

The Chairman: | want to know what your advice is. What do
we do?

Senator Bazin: | suggest we get on with asking questions,
and, if it is satisfactory, to file these things as part of the pro-
ceedings in the normal course, then we will do it.

The Chairman: Then I gather we are not going to because
we cannot judge that general procedure.

Senator van Roggen: Mr. Chairman, the document handed
to us before the adjournment refers to a paper prepared for the
committee by Barbara Kagedan, which I recall seeing. The
Paper was requested when | was still the Chairman _of the com-
Mittee, and it was a somewhat longer paper than this.

My understanding is that the government had access to that
paper and has considered it; so we are not asking the witnesses
Questions concerning a document they have seen for tl_1e first
time. It should be on the record that these problems raised by
the author of this paper have been considered by the govern-
ment, and they chose, for whatever reasons, not to amend the

ill relative to these positions on the paper.

The Chairman: But they did amend one or more particulars.

Senator van Roggen: They did amend some minor particu-
lflTS. In answer to Senator Bazin’s and Senator Frith’s ques-
tion, the paper itself, plus this document, should be attached to
the Minutes of the Proceedings.

[Traduction)

Le président: Sénateur Bazin, quel document avez-vous en
votre possession?

Le sénateur Bazin: Je croyais que le sénateur Frith parlait
des amendements du Comité sénatorial relatifs a la Loi sur les
banques et aux services financiers qui nous ont été remis il y a
une quinzaine de minutes.

Le président: En effet. Nous savons maintenant de quoi il
est question.

Le sénateur Frith: Je ne demande pas d'avaliser ce rapport:
Je veux simplement qu’on le considére comme un document qui
appelle une réponse. S’il y a un probléme, nous en débattrons
plus longuement et je passerai plus de temps a lire le document
au complet au lieu de vous renvoyer a tel ou tel paragraphe.
C’est tout ce que je voulais proposer. Qu'en dites-vous, mon-
sieur le président?

Le président: Si j’ai bien compris, vous dites que nous pour-
rions . . .

Le sénateur Frith: A supposer que tout le monde ait le docu-
ment devant soi, on gagnerait du temps si je pouvais renvoyer i
tel ou tel paragraphe. Toutefois, ceux qui liront la transcrip-
tion de ces délibérations se demanderont ce que les partici-
pants avaient devant eux. Je veux seulement que le document
soit considéré comme quelque chose qui nous a été soumis. et
non pas comme une décision sanctionnée par ce comité.

Le sénateur Bazin: Je ne veux pas discutailler vainement sur
ce point.

Le président: Je veux connaitre votre point de vue. Que
devons-nous faire?

Le sénateur Bazin: Je propose que nous posions des ques-
tions, et si vous étes d’accord pour annexer ces documents le
moment venu, nous le ferons.

Le président: J'en conclus alors que nous n’en ferons rien car
nous ne pouvons pas juger de cette procédure générale.

Le sénateur van Roggen: Monsieur le président, le document
qui nous a €té remis avant I'ajournement fait état d’'un docu-
ment rédigé a I'intention du comité par Barbara Kagedan; je
me souviens de I'avoir vu. 1l a été commandé lorsque j'étais
encore président du comité, et il était un peu plus élaboré que
celui-ci.

Autant que je sache, le gouvernement a eu accés a ce docu-
ment et il I'a examiné; nous n’allons donc pas poser des ques-
tions aux témoins au sujet d’'un document qu'’ils voient mainte-
nant pour la premiére fois. Il faudrait indiquer dans le compte
rendu que les problémes soulevés par I'auteur du document ont
€té pris en considération par le gouvernement, lequel, pour une
raison ou une autre, a décidé de ne pas modifier le projet de loi
en fonction des opinions exprimées 4 ce sujet.

Le président: Mais certains détails y ont été modifiés.

Le sénateur van Roggen: Certains points mineurs y ont en
effet été modifiés. En réponse  la question des sénateurs Bazin
et Frith, le document en question ainsi que celui-ci devraient
étre annexés aux Procés-verbaux.
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The Chairman: If Senator Bazin is unhappy with the small
paper, 1 suppose he will be even more unhappy with both
papers.

Senator LeBlanc (Beauséjour): Let’s vote on it.
Senator Hays: Let’s dispose of this, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: In answer to your point, Senator van Rog-
gen, the short paper, which we now have, puts an intense focus
on the questions that are before the committee at this time,
and we should not encumber our record with other paper.

Senator van Roggen: Your point is well taken, but 1 would
certainly support that at least this should be part of the pro-
ceedings in order for the reader of these proceedings to under-
stand the questions and the answers that have been put.

Senator Frith: Mr. Chairman, this document is in front of us
now, and | am going to ask questions about it. At the end of
that time 1 will make a suggestion that the document be made
a part of the proceedings; and if the members of the committee
say no, that it is a bad thing to have that document as part of
the record, then we will make the decision then. Why don’t we
do it that way?

Senator Doyle: If we are going to attach it to our working
papers, surely we should add something about the qualifica-
tions of the author.

Senator Frith: | am not trying to have this considered as tes-
timony.

Senator Doyle: 1 understand, but questions are going to be
asked on the basis of it. If I had written the report, the value of
it would be zilch. Surely someone who has done this kind of an
examination has qualifications that should be added so that we
will know from what point she comes to the exercise.

Senator Frith: I think that is correct if I were trying to make
this some document of record in the sense that 1 wanted to
qualify her as a witness. What 1 will say is that 1 have been
handed a document. This is my document and my qualifica-
tions—in fact, a lack of them are well known—and I want to
ask these questions. It is a document that is before you, and we
will not make it a part of anything unless we decide later on to
do so.

Senator Doyle: We will call the author Madam X.

Senator LeBlanc (Beauséjour): 1 don’t think she would
appreciate that.

Senator Frith: I have a document here which was prepared
by someone, and the second paragraph of the document says:

The paper argues that the Bill would give U.S. residents
more than was agreed to under the terms of the FTA.

The reference is to section 47 which is the section that was put
before us. 1 am going to read the question so it is clear to all of
us:

[Traduction)

Le président: Si le sénateur Bazin est mécontent du docu-
ment abrégé, je présume qu'il le sera davantage s'il s’agit des
deux documents.

Le sénateur LeBlanc (Beauséjour): Je demande le vote.
Le sénateur Hays: Finissons-en, monsieur le président.

Le président: En réponse au point qu'a fait valoir le sénateur
van Roggen, comme le document abrégé que nous avons
actuellement entre les mains insiste beaucoup sur les questions
dont le comité est saisi, nous ne devrions pas encombrer notre
compte rendu d’autre documentation.

Le sénateur van Roggen: J'admets que votre remarque est
pertinente, mais je crois pourtant que ce document devrait au
moins faire partie des actes de procédure afin que celui qui les
lira comprenne les questions et les réponses.

Le sénateur Frith: Monsieur le président, nous avons main-
tenant ce document en main, et je désire poser des questions a
son sujet. Je suggérerai ensuite que le document soit annex¢
aux actes de procédure. Si les membres du Comité refusent
parce que, a leur avis, ce document ne devrait pas figurer au
compte rendu, nous prendrons alors une décision. Pourquoi ne
procéderions-nous pas ainsi?

Le sénateur Doyle: Si nous ’annexons & nos documents de
travail, nous devrions alors préciser les titres de compétence de
son auteur.

Le sénateur Frith: Je ne veux pas qu’on accepte ce rapport
au méme titre qu'un témoignage.

Le sénateur Doyle: Je comprends, mais es questions seront
posées en fonction des compétences de I'auteur. Si j'avais moi-
méme rédigé ce rapport, il n'aurait eu aucune valeur. Les com-
pétences de la personne qui a effectué cet examen devraient
étre précisées afin que nous sachions & quel point c'est une¢
experte en la matiére.

Le sénateur Frith: Ce serait exact si je tentais de faire
admettre ce rapport comme document officiel ou de fair¢
accepter 'auteur comme témoin. Tout ce que je peux dire.
c’est qu'on m’a remis un document. C’est mon document ¢!
mes compétences—ou plutdt une absence reconnue de celles
ci—et je désire poser ces questions. Vous avez ce document
devant vous, et nous ne I’annexerons 4 rien d’autre a moins qu¢
nous en décidions autrement plus tard.

Le sénateur Doyle: Nous appellerons donc 1'auteur madame¢
X.

Le sénateur LeBlanc (Beauséjour): Je ne crois pas qu'elle €7
serait trés heureuse.

Le sénateur Frith: J’ai devant moi un document. On peu!
lire, au second paragraphe:

D’aprés ce document, le projet de loi serait plus gép‘-f’
reux que I’Accord de libre-échange 4 I'endroit des rest”
dents américains.

On fait ici référence a I'article 47 dont nous discutons actuell¢”
ment. Je vais maintenant vous lire une des questions qui app?’
raissent dans ce document, afin qu’elle soit claire pour tous:
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Why does Bill C-2 go further than required by the
Agreement and exempt U.S. residents from the 10 per
cent limitation on Schedule 11 banks?

Mr. Nymark: Mr. Chairman, perhaps 1 might introduce Mr.
Ray LaBrosse of the Department of Finance, formerly a mem-
ber of the Trade Negotiations Office and part of the team that
negotiated the financial services section of the agreement. He
is here today to help out with the response to those questions.

Mr. John Raymond LaBrosse, Chief, Industry Relations,
Financial Institutions and Markets Division, Department of
Finance: Mr. Chairman, with respect to the first question, Bill
C-2 does not go further than what is required by the Free
Trade Agreement. This bill exempts U.S. residents from the
25 per cent non-resident restriction on all banks. This is in con-
formity with Article 1703 of the Free Trade Agreement.

As the senator may be aware, what is referred to here as
Schedule B banks can be banks closely held either by Canadi-
ans or by non-residents, which would include U.S. residents.
Had we left the 25 per cent restriction on domestic Schedule B
banks, we would have had a lack of symmetry in the Bank Act
with respect to the treatment of U.S. residents. For the sena-
tor's information, there is only one Schedule B bank that is
Canadian controlled.

Senator Frith: That is the Laurentian Bank, is it not?

Mr. LaBrosse: Yes. Had we not amended the act in this
way, we would have had a 25 per cent non-resident withhold-
ing restriction on that bank but on no other type of bank. We
are required to do this for purposes of symmetry and in order
to be in compliance with the act.

Senator Frith: Mr. Chairman, 1 was about to move on to the
definition of the U.S. resident and resident qualifications.
Before 1 do so, if any other senator would like to ask questions
on this matter, perhaps he could now do so.

Moving on, then, to the next section of this working paper, I
see that it deals with the requirements under our legislation for
residence in the United States. The 183 days that is referred to
is related to the resident requirements for purposes of payment
of income tax, is it not?

Mr. LaBrosse: That is correct.

Senator Frith: The question in this document, which is
directed through the Chairman to you, Mr. LaBrosse, is:

Do the drafters of the legislation see this as a problem
area whereby persons other than U.S. nationals (that is
persons from third countries) could, under the definition
of a U.S. national in the Act, benefit from the exemp-
tions?

[Traduction]
Pourquoi le projet de loi C-2 va-t-il au-dela des exigen-
ces de I’Accord en dispensant les résidents américains de

la limite de 10 p. 100 concernant les banques de I’Annexe
11?

M. Nymark: Monsieur le président, j’aimerais vous présen-
ter M. Ray LaBrosse, du ministére des Finances. 11 travaillait
auparavant au Bureau des négociations commerciales et a fait
partie de I’équipe qui a négocié la partie de I'Accord qui traite
des services financiers. Il a accepté de venir aujourd’hui pour
nous aider a répondre 4 ces questions.

M. John Raymond LaBrosse, chef, Relations industrielles,
Division des institutions et des marchés financiers, ministére
des Finances: Monsieur le président, en ce qui concerne la pre-
miére question, le projet de loi C-2 ne va pas au-dela des exi-
gences de I'Accord de libre-échange. Aux termes du projet de
loi, les résidents américains ne sont pas soumis & la restriction
qui limite & 25 p. 100 la propriété des non-résidents dans tou-
tes les banques. Cette disposition est conforme a I'article 1703
de I'’Accord de libre-échange.

Comme le sénateur s’en doute peut-étre, les banques dec
I’Annexe B dont il est question ici peuvent étre sous le contréle
de Canadiens ou de non-résidents, ce qui inclut évidemment les
résidents américains. Si nous avions continué d'imposer la
limite de 25 p. 100 a I'égard des banques canadiennes de
’Annexe B, nous aurions créé un déséquilibre avec la Loi sur
les banques en accordant un traitement plus généreux aux rési-
dents américains. A titre d'information pour le sénateur, une
seule banque de I'’Annexe B est sous contrdle canadien.

Le sénateur Frith: 11 s’agit de la Banque Laurentienne.
n’est-ce pas?

M. LaBrosse: Oui. Si nous n'avions pas modifié¢ la loi de
cette fagon, cette banque aurait été la seule a étre assujettie a
cette restriction. Nous devons le faire pour assurer une cer-
taine symétrie et pour nous conformer a la Loi.

Le sénateur Frith: Monsieur le président, j'allais passer a la
définition des conditions requises des résidents américains et
des résidents en général. Mais, si un autre sénateur veut poser
des questions sur ce sujet, il peut le faire dés maintenant.

Bon, eh bien la section suivante de ce document de travail
traite des exigences prévues dans notre loi en ce qui concerne
la résidence aux Etats-Unis. Les 183 jours dont il est question
constituent la période de résidence aux fins du paiement
d’impdt sur le revenu, n’est-ce pas?

M. LaBrosse: C’est exact.

Le sénateur Frith: La question qui est soulevée dans ce
document, et qui vous est posée par l'entremise du président
est celle-ci:

Les rédacteurs du projet de loi conviennent-ils du pro-
bléme posé par la possibilité que des personnes autres que
des nationaux des Etats-Unis (c’est-a-dire des personnes
d’un pays tiers) puissent bénéficier des exemptions grace a
la définition du national des Etats-Unis qui figure dans la
loi?
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In other words, could someone from Saudi Arabia, for
instance, qualify because of the way in which that residency
requirement is phrased?

Mr. LaBrosse: It is our view, Mr. Chairman, that such a
person would not qualify. I would like to add that the report on
which this paper is based was prepared using Bill C-130. Since
we have had the time to review the drafting of Bill C-130, we
have taken note of a concern that was raised by the author in
the legal analysis of C-130 and have subsequently modified the
definitions of non-residents to be clearer in Bill C-2. These
amendments define more clearly the sections of the act to
which U.S. residents will not be subject in terms of the non-
resident restriction on the holding of shares.

Senators may notice that under Bill C-130 we were to
amend sections 110 to 113 inclusive of the Bank Act. Under
Bill C-2, we amend specific subsections of those sections in
order to remove any ambiguity that might have existed in the
previous legislation.

Senator van Roggen: Could the witness walk us through the
old and the new wording that relate to this problem?

Mr. LaBrosse: Sections 110 to 113 of the Bank Act were
amended in Bill C-130. In Bill C-2, we are now amending sub-
section 110(1), subsection 111(1), subsections 112(4) and (5)
and subsection 113(4). In other words, we are dealing quite
precisely with the sections of the act to which U.S. residents
would not be subject for the purposes of implementing the
commitment on the 25 per cent ownership restriction.

Senator Frith: The answer that you have just given to Sena-
tor van Roggen was the same as that which you gave earlier to
me. Is this the way in which you tightened up the matter of
non-U.S. residents qualifying throughout the residency provi-
sions? Can you point out how you did that?

Mr. von Finckenstein: No, senator. My colleague was deal-
ing with another criticism made by Mrs. Kagedan about our
legislation. As far as your specific question is concerned, the
Free Trade Agreement specifically allows us to establish rules.
You will notice that section 109.1 of the Bank Act talks about
an individual who is ordinarily resident in the United States.
The person who makes that determination, of course, is the
Canadian regulator, the Inspector General of Banks.

Senator Frith: Why did you say *“of course”?

Mr. von Finckenstein: He is charged by the Bank Act to do
that. I am sorry, senator, that was an unnecessary editorial
comment. It is the duty of the Inspector General of Banks to
make that determination. He would not allow somebody in a
situation as you suggest, who was merely 183 days resident in
the United States, to avail himself of these provisions. If a
technical problem with this should arise, the agreement allows
us to take the necessary steps, either legislative or regulatory,
to deal with it. This has never been a problem in the past and
the regulators do not anticipate that it will present one in the

[Traduction)

Autrement dit, un ressortissant d'Arabie Saoudite, par exem-
ple, pourrait-il y avoir droit, en raison de la fagon dont est for-
mulée cette exigence de résidence?

M. LaBrosse: Nous estimons, monsieur le président, qu'une
telle personne n'y aurait pas droit. Je tiens a préciser que le
rapport sur lequel ce document se fonde a été préparé en
regard du projet de loi C-130. Comme nous avons eu suffisam-
ment de temps pour réviser le libellé du projet de loi C-130.
nous avons pu prendre en considération le point qui avait é1¢
soulevé par I'auteur de I'analyse juridique de ce projet de loi et
avons pu subséquemment modifier les définitions de non-rési-
dent pour qu’elles soient plus claires dans le projet de loi C-2.
Ces modifications définissent plus nettement les articles de la
loi auxquels les résidents américains ne seront pas assujettis et.
en particulier, quant a la restriction qui touchait les non-rési-
dents pour ce qui est de la détention d’actions.

Je signale aux sénateurs qu’en vertu du projet de loi C-130.
nous devions modifier les articles 110 a 113 inclusivement de la
Loi sur les banques. Par le projet de loi C-2, nous modifions
des paragraphes de ces articles de fagon a enlever toute ambi-
guité qui aurait pu exister dans la loi précédente.

Le sénateur van Roggen: Le témoin pourrait-il nous entrete-
nir de 'ancien libellé et du nouveau sur ce plan?

M. LaBrosse: Les articles 110 a2 113 de la Loi sur les ban-
ques ont été modifiés par le projet de loi C-130. Le projet de
loi C-2 vient modifier les paragraphes 110(1), 111(1), 112(4)
et (5) et 113(4). Vous pouvez constater que nous traitons pré-
cisément des articles de la loi auxquels les résidents américains
ne seraient pas assujettis lorsqu’il s’agira de mettre en applica-
tion la restriction visant la possession de 25 p. 100 des parts.

Le sénateur Frith: Vous venez de donner au sénateur van
Roggen la méme réponse que vous m'aviez déja faite. Est-ce
ainsi que vous avez réglé la question des droits des non-rési-
dents américains dans toutes ces dispositions concernant la
résidence? Pouvez-vous nous dire comment vous vous y étes
pris?

M. von Finckenstein: Non, sénateur ce n’est pas ainsi. Mon
collégue s’est attaqué a une autre critique proférée par M™
Kagedan au sujet de notre loi. Pour répondre a votre question.
je vous dirai que I’Accord de libre-échange nous permet préci-
sément d’établir des régles. Vous observerez que I'article 109.1
de la Loi sur les banques vise un individu qui réside habituelle-
ment aux Etats-Unis. La personne autorisée a faire ce juge-
ment est bien sir celle qui s’occupe de la réglementation au
Canada, en I'occurrence I'Inspecteur général des banques.

Le sénateur Frith: Pourquoi avez-vous dit «bien sir»?

M. von Finckenstein: C’est parce qu'il est chargé de cette
tache par la Loi sur les banques. Je vous prie d’excuser séna-
teur, ce commentaire superflu. Il incombe évidemment a I'Ins-
pecteur général des banques de faire ce jugement. Dans votre
exemple, il ne permettrait 4 personne qui aurait seulement 183
jours de résidence aux Etats-Unis de se prévaloir de ces dispo-
sitions. S’il surgissait un probléme technique dans I'application
de cette disposition, I'accord nous permettrait de prendre les
mesures nécessaires, que ce soit une loi ou un réglement, pour
remédier 4 la situation. Cela n’a jamais fait probleme dans le
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future. After all, they are the ones who make the determina-
tion of who is ordinarily resident in the U.S.

Senator Frith: Let us proceed, then, to the question regard-
ing a bank subsidiary controlled by a U.S. corporation. The
question in this document reads:

Do officials consider there is a possibility that a bank sub-
sidiary controlled by a U.S. corporation which is in fact
controlled by a national of a third country could benefit
from the exemption set out in the Agreement?
It seemed to me that this applies the previous question to the
corporate rather than the individual situation.

Mr. LaBrosse: That is correct.

Mr. von Finckenstein: Yes, and the same answer can be
applied.

Senator Frith: The Inspector General of Banks would have
the control in this regard?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Exactly. He is the one who makes the
decision.

Senator Frith: You do understand that these questions are
not meant to be argumentative? They are merely for purposes
of eliciting information.

Mr. von Finckenstein: Absolutely.

Senator Frith: On the matter of a bank’s control by U.S.
residents, the document presents this question:

Is it the intent of the Bill to allow any Canadian Schedule
I bank controlled by U.S. residents to branch without
restriction while other Canadian Schedule 11 banks can-
not do so?

For the record, what we are talking about here when we talk
about branches is the long-standing tradition of a requirement
for approval with respect to the establishment of branches
throughout the country. The question is: Does this agreement
permit branching that would not otherwise be permitted?

Mr. LaBrosse: The agreement specifically provides that
U.S.-controlled institutions that want to branch throughout
Canada do not have to seek ministerial approval for additional
branches beyond what is provided in the act. That is the intent
of the provision.

Senator Frith: It will have that effect and its intent is to
have that effect, then?

Mr. LaBrosse: Yes.

Senator Frith: By way of prefacing the next question, I will
read from the bottom of page 2 of this document:

Moreover, Mr. Mclntosh made the point that Section
51 of Bill C-130 (now Section 48 of Bill C-2 unchanged)
should be amended to ensure that U.S. banks are not
treated more favourably in respect to branching than
Canadian banks. Specifically he suggested that the words

[Traduction]

passé et ceux qui assureront la réglementation ne prévoient pas
que ce le soit dans 'avenir. Apreés tout, ce sont eux qui déci-
dent qui est ordinairement résident des Etats-Unis.

Le sénateur Frith: Passons donc a la question qui concerne
les filiales bancaires controlées par des sociétés américaines.
La question suivante apparait dans le document:

Peut-on envisager la possibilité qu’'une filiale de banque
américaine controlée par un ressortissant d'un pays tiers
puisse bénéficier de I’exemption énoncée dans I’Accord?

Il me semble que cette question correspond a la question précé-
dente, a I'exception prés qu'elle vise les sociétés plutdt que les
particuliers.

M. LaBrosse: C’est exact.

M. von Finckenstein: Oui, et la réponse est également la
méme.

Le sénateur Frith: Le contrdle serait-il alors exercé par
I'Inspecteur général des banques?

M. von Finckenstein: Oui. C’est a Jui qu'il incombe de pren-
dre ce genre de décisions.

Le sénateur Frith: Vous vous étes siirement rendus compte
que ces questions ne visent pas 4 provoquer une cControverse
mais plutot a obtenir des renseignements.

M. von Finckenstein: Tout a fait.

Le sénateur Frith: En ce qui concerne le contrdle d'une ban-
que par des résidents américains, la question suivante apparait
dans le document:

Le projet de loi a-t-il notamment pour objet de permettre
sans restrictions a une banque canadienne de I'Annexe 1]
controlée par des résidents américains d’'établir des suc-
cursales, alors que les autres banques canadiennes de
I’Annexe 11 ne peuvent pas le faire?
Aux fins du compte rendu, ce dont nous voulons parler lorsque
nous faisons allusion aux succursales, c’est que les nouvelles
succursales créées partout au pays ont toujours di étre approu-
vées avant de voir le jour. La question est donc: Cet accord
permet-il & certaines banques d’établir de nouvelles succursales
alors qu’elles ne pouvaient le faire auparavant?

M. LaBrosse: L'Accord prévoit expressément que les institu-
tions sous contrdle américain qui désirent ouvrir d'autres suc-
cursales au Canada n’ont pas a obtenir I’approbation du minis-
tre pour le faire. C’est la le but de cette disposition.

Le sénateur Frith: Cette disposition aura donc de telles
répercussions et c’est la son but?

M. LaBrosse: Oui.

Le sénateur Frith: En guise d’introduction & la prochaine
question, je citerai un extrait qui figure au bas de la page 2 du
document:

En outre, M. Mclntosh a signalé qu'il fallait modifier
Iarticle 51 du projet de loi C-130 (devenu sans modifica-
tion I'article 48 du projet de loi C-2) de telle sorte que les
banques américaines ne soient pas privilégiées par rapport
aux banques canadiennes en matiére d'établissement de
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by a resident or be inserted in Clause 48 of Bill C-2 pur-
suant to its amendment of Section 173(2.1). ..

And that section is set out. The question is phrased in this
document as follows:

Why, since this discrepancy was pointed out in Bill C-130,
was the wording of this section not changed in Bill C-2 to
allay the concerns of Canadian bankers? In any case,
when the provisions in respect to banks are clearly more
favourable to the U.S. banks—at least until the United
States amends the Glass-Steagall Act—why does the
Canadian legislation give the United States banks more
than is required by the Agreement itself?

Because this deals with the question of branching, is there any-
thing you want to add to what you have said? Also, would you
deal with the second part of the question?

Mr. LaBrosse: The answer to this question relates to the
answers that were given previously to the committee. The
approach in Bill C-130 and in Bill C-2 is to implement what is
required by the Free Trade Agreement. The Canadian Bank-
ers’ Association has pointed out and is now asking that we
extend a treatment that will be accorded to U.S.-controlled
banks and to Canadian-controlled Schedule B banks. That is
not a requirement of this agreement. We chose to implement
only what was required by the terms of the Free Trade Agree-
ment.

Senator Frith: 1 understood that they thought you were
going further. I thought the thrust of part of this document
was that you gave more than you had to under the agreement.
Is that not so?

Mr. LaBrosse: No, Mr. Chairman. It is specifically provided
in Article 1703, paragraph 2(c), where it says:

(c) exempt such subsidiaries from the requirement to
obtain approval of the Minister of Finance prior to open-
ing additional branches within Canada;

It is specifically provided in the agreement. What we are
doing is implementing it.

The Canadian Bankers’ Association is pointing out that
Canadian-controlled Schedule B banks are under this require-
ment, and they would like Canadian Schedule B banks to have
the same benefit that we are providing to U.S.-controlled
banks.

The Chairman: You are saying, then, that the agreement
opened up the prospect for U.S. banks to have a benefit or an
opportunity which is not available to Canadian Schedule B
banks; is that correct?

Mr. LaBrosse: In legal terms, yes, Mr. Chairman. However,
in practical terms the minister routinely approves requests for
opening of additional branches, no matter who the request
comes from. It does not matter if the request comes from a
Canadian-controlled or a U.S.-controlled or another foreign-
controlled Schedule B bank. By law it is a requirement that the
minister grant approval.

[Traduction)
succursales. Plus précisément, il a proposé que I'on ajoute
les mots par un résident ou a I'article 48 du projet de loi
C-2, qui modifie I'article 173(2.1) de la Loi . ..

Et ce paragraphe a été modifié. La question qui figure dans ce

document est la suivante:

Dans la mesure ol ce probléme a été signalé a propos du
projet de loi C-130, pourquoi n'a-t-on pas modifié le
libellé de cette disposition dans le projet de loi C-2, de
maniére 4 répondre aux doléances des banquiers cana-
diens? En tout état de cause, comme les dispositions con-
cernant les banques sont manifestement plus favorables
aux banques américaines—du moins jusqu'a ce que les
Etats-Unis modifient le Glass-Steagall Act—pourquoi la
législation canadienne accorde-t-elle aux banques améri-
caines davantage que ne I'exige I’Accord?

Comme cela a trait 4 'ouverture de succursales, voulez-vous

ajouter quelque chose? Parler de I'autre volet de la question?

M. LaBrosse: La réponse a cette question a trait aux répon-
ses déja données au Comité. L objet des projets de la loi C-130
et C-2 est de mettre en ceuvre I’Accord de libre-échange.
L’Association des banquiers canadiens demande que nous élar-
gissions un traitement qui sera accordé aux banques détenues
par des intéréts américains et aux banques de I’Annexe B qui
sont détenues par des intéréts canadiens. Cela n’est pas une
exigence de I’Accord. Nous avons décidé de nous en tenir aux
exigences de I’Accord de libre-échange.

Le sénateur Frith: Il me semblait qu’ils pensaient que nous
ferions plus. 11 me semblait que, aux termes de ce document.
vous donniez davantage que vous ne deviez le faire aux termes
de I’Accord, n’est-ce pas?

M. LaBrosse: Non, monsieur le président. On dispose
expressément 4 I'alinéa 1703 2(c) que le Canada:

¢) exemptera ces filiales de I'obligation d’obtenir I'appro-
bation du ministre des Finances avant de pouvoir ouvrir
d’autres succursales au Canada;

C’est expressément énoncé dans I’Accord. Nous ne faisons
que I'appliquer.

L’Association des banquiers Canadiens souligne que les ban-
ques de I’Annexe B qui sont détenues par des intéréts cana-
diens sont assujetties a cette exigence, et elle souhaite les voir
bénéficier des mémes avantages que ceux que nous accordons a
des banques détenues par des intéréts américains.

Le président: Vous dites donc que ’Accord a permis a des
banques américaines de bénéficier d’'un avantage dont sont pri-
vées les banques canadiennes figurant 4 I’Annexe B, n’est-ce
pas?

M. LaBrosse: Sur le plan juridique, oui, monsieur le prési-
dent. Cependant, dans la pratique, le ministre approuve égale-
ment les demandes visant 'ouverture de nouvelles succursales.
quel qu’en soit I'auteur. Peu importe que la demande provienne
d’une banque détenue par des intéréts canadiens, d'une banque
détenue par des intéréts américains ou d'une banque détenue
par d’autres intéréts étrangers. La loi dispose que le ministre
donne son autorisation.

|
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The Chairman: So you think that the bankers are making a
protest where, in the real world, there is no ground for one?

Mr. LaBrosse: Mr. Chairman, the Canadian Bankers' Asso-
ciation has written to us, as has the Laurentian Bank, which is
the only bank affected by this. The minister has responded that
he is prepared to review this particular aspect in the context of
domestic market reforms, where it would more appropriately
be done, rather than through the Free Trade Agreement.

Mr. von Finckenstein: As | said at the outset of my tes-
timony, we have put in the agreement only what is necessary
for the Free Trade Agreement, specifically because it would be
improper to include something that is not required for the Free
Trade Agreement. This suggested amendment, inserting the
words “by a resident or,” would be making an amendment not
required by the Free Trade Agreement or to benefit Canadian
domestic banks. It would be an improper use of this legislation.

Senator Frith: So we have your answer to the contention
that more has been given than was necessary by the agree-
ment.

Mr. LaBrosse: I would not agree with that statement.

Senator Frith: We can make those comparisons, Mr. Chair-
man.

The last issue raised regards the Glass-Steagall Act. Was it
anticipated during the negotiations that the U.S. legislation
would be amended in the next few years to make mutual the
privileges accorded to the U.S. financial institutions under the
FTA and Bill C-2?

Mr. LaBrosse: During the negotiations we were hopeful that
progress would be made on the U.S. Glass-Steagall Act, and
that is why we embodied a provision of that regard in the Free
Trade Agreement. Revision of the Glass-Steagall Act can
come in a number of forms. One would obviously be through a
legislative repeal or amendments to the act, which is certainly
possible. Revisions or changes to the Glass-Steagall Act can
also come through administrative orders granted by regulators
in the United States.

While the proposed changes to the Glass-Steagall Act died
in the last Congress, we are hopeful that new initiatives will be
taken in the new Congress and/or that the regulators will see
fit to expand the securities activities of bank-linked securities
firms in the United States, which, of course, would be granted
through a provision of the Free Trade Agreement.

Senator Frith: Do you believe that there is an understanding
that we anticipate and hope for such changes? Is there any
connection between that and the privileges that we have given
and the possibility of withdrawing the privileges we have given
if they are not paralleled?

Mr. LaBrosse: I do not believe there is a connection between
the two. In Canada, regulatory reform was clearly spelled out
in the policy paper which was tabled in December 1986, where

[Traduction]

Le président: Estimez-vous que les banquiers contestent
quand en réalité ils n’ont aucun motif de le faire?

M. LaBrosse: Monsieur le président, I’Association des ban-
quiers canadiens nous a écrit @ ce sujet, comme l'ont fait les
responsables de la Laurentian Bank, qui est la seule banque
touchée. Le ministre a répondu qu’il est disposé & examiner
cette question eu égard aux réformes du marché national, 14 ou
il conviendrait de le faire, plutdt que de recourir a 1'Accord de
libre-échange.

M. von Finckenstein: Comme je I'ai dit au début de mon
témoignage, nous n’avons inclus dans ’Accord que ce qui était
nécessaire, pour la bonne raison qu’il ne conviendrait pas d’\
inclure quelque chose qui ne serait pas nécessaire. Si I'on adop-
tait cet amendement, qui consiste a ajouter I’expression «par
un résident, ou», on apporterait un amendement que ne néces-
site pas I'’Accord de libre-échange et qui ne profiterait pas aux
banques canadiennes. Ce serait mal utiliser ce texte de loi.

Le sénateur Frith: Voild donc la réponse a I'argument selon
lequel on a, par I'Accord, cédé plus qu'il ne fallait.

M. LaBrosse: Je ne suis pas d’accord.

Le sénateur Frith: Nous pouvons faire des comparaisons.
monsieur le président.

Le dernier point concerne la loi dite Glass-Steagall. Pendant
les négociations, a-t-on prévu que la loi américaine serait
modifiée au cours des années qui viennent de maniére a assurer
la réciprocité des priviléges accordés aux institutions financie-
res américaines aux termes de I’Accord de libre-échange et du
projet de loi C-2?

M. LaBrosse: Au cours des négociations, nous comptions
bien qu'on réaliserait des progrés en ce qui concerne la loi
américaine dite Glass-Steagall. C’est pourquoi nous avons
inclus une disposition a cet égard dans I’Accord de libre-
échange. La réforme de la Loi Glass-Steagall pourrait prendre
plusieurs formes. Elle pourrait notamment étre opérée grice a
la modification ou a I'abrogation de cette loi par un acte légis-
latif. Par ailleurs, les organismes de réglementation américains
pourraient aussi y apporter des changements ou des révisions
au moyen de réglements administratifs.

Bien que les changements proposés 4 la Loi Glass-Steagall
n'aient pas été adoptés par le dernier Congrés, nous espérons
que le nouveau Congrés prendra de nouvelles initiatives ou que
les organismes de réglementation jugeront bon d’autoriser les
maisons de courtage en valeurs mobiliéres américains ayant
des liens avec un établissement bancaire & élargir la gamme de
leurs activités dans ce secteur, autorisation qui serait accordée
sous le régime d’une disposition de I’Accord de libre-échange.

Le sénateur Frith: Leur avons-nous bien fait comprendre
que nous espérons, voire que nous prévoyons, de tels change-
ments? Existe-t-il un lien entre cela et, d’autre part, les privile-
ges que nous avons concédés et la possibilité que nous retire-
rons ces priviléges si nous n’obtenons pas de concessions en
retour?

M. LaBrosse: Je ne crois pas qu'il existe de lien entre les
deux. Au Canada, les éléments de la réforme de la réglementa-
tion ont été détaillés dans I’énoncé de politique déposé en
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we set about to reform some of our financial institution legisla-
tion. We did not do it on a conditional basis, nor does the Free
Trade Agreement provide any conditionality.

Senator Frith: Mr. Chairman, that is the use I wanted to
make of that document. I believe it would be useful for persons
reading the transcript to know what it was I was talking about.
If there is still objection to it, we should move on. I renew my
request strictly from that point of view, namely, that someone
reading the transcript will know what document is being
referred to.

Senator Bosa: Agreed.

Senator Bazin: Senator Frith has asked questions and there
have been answers. We still do not know the author of this
document. However, it is agreed that we attach it to the pro-
ceedings.

The Chairman: We will now go on to clauses 50 and 51,
which relate to broadcasting.

Senator Frith: Mr. Chairman, 1 have some questions here. |
should like to say that 1 am not going through my questions
alphabetically. It is just a coincidence that the broadcasting
portion follows banking.

Again, to set the stage, we are looking at Tab D-3. The
background here, as | understand it, is the legislation that
Canada passed some years ago with regard to border broad-
casting and signals that came into Canada—principally from
U.S. stations into the maritimes. The principal ones are the
Burlington station for Quebec, the three Buffalo stations for
Toronto, the North Dakota station for Winnipeg and the Bel-
lingham, Washington station for Vancouver. As a result of
those signals coming in—and, of course, commercials being
sold—there were three main thrusts. One was the question of
deductibility for advertising purposes. If a Canadian advertised
on one of these border stations he could not deduct that as an
expense.

The other two dealt with the deletion of commercials and
replacement by other commercials, and the deletion and the
replacement by non-commercial public messages. The third
one dealt with simultaneous broadcasting, which meant that
they took the whole program and simultaneously broadcast it
in certain Canadian commercials instead of the U.S. commer-
cials.

Am I right that that is what we are after in these sections,
namely, that we make some agreement? 1 want to refer to the
FTA commitment contained in Article 2006, which states:

... that deletion of commercial messages from U.S. sig-
nals can no longer be made a condition of a cable televi-
sion licence.

[Traduction)

décembre 1986. C’est a ce moment-la que nous avons entrepris
de réformer notre législation régissant les institutions financié-
res. Cette réforme n’a pas été engagée sous réserve du respect
de certaines conditions et I'Accord de libre-échange n’est pas.
lui non plus, assorti de conditions a cet égard.

Le sénateur Frith: Monsieur le président, voila comment je
voulais me servir de ce document. A mon avis, il serait utile
que les personnes qui liront le compte rendu des délibérations
sachent de quoi je parlais. Si certains continuent de s’y oppo-
ser, nous devrions passer a4 autre chose. Je renouvelle ma
requéte strictement pour cette raison, pour que les lecteurs du
compte rendu puissent savoir de quel document il s’agit.

Le sénateur Bosa: D’accord.

Le sénateur Bazin: Le sénateur Frith a posé des questions
auxquelles il a obtenu des réponses. Nous ne connaissons tou-
jours pas I'identité de I'auteur de ce document. Toutefois. il est
convenu de le joindre au compte rendu des délibérations.

Le président: Nous passons maintenant aux articles 50 et 51
qui portent sur la radiodiffusion.

Le sénateur Frith: Monsieur le président, j'aimerais poser
des questions 4 ce sujet. Je tiens a signaler que je ne pose pas
mes questions en fonction de I'ordre alphabétique des sujets.
C’est par pure coincidence que la radiodiffusion suit les activi-
tés bancaires.

Pour que nous sachions tous de quoi nous parlons. nous en
sommes a I'onglet D-3. Si j'ai bien compris, il est question ici
d’une loi que le Canada a adoptée il y a quelques années pour
réglementer la radiodiffusion et la transmission de signaux vers
le Canada dans la région frontaliére—notamment par des sta-
tions américaines captées dans les Maritimes. Les principales
sont la station de Burlington pour ce qui est du Québec, les
trois stations de Buffalo pour la région de Toronto, la station
du Dakota du Nord pour la région de Winnipeg et la station
Bellingham de I’Etat de Washington pour la région de Van-
couver. La transmission de ces signaux vers le Canada, qui
s’accompagnent bien sir de la vente de publicité, avait trois
grandes conséquences. D'abord, cela soulevait la question de la
déductibilité des dépenses de publicité. Si une entreprise cana-
dienne plagait des messages publicitaires aupres de I'une de ces
stations frontaliéres, elle ne pouvait pas réclamer de déduction
pour ses dépenses de publicité.

Les deux autres conséquences ont été d’abord la suppression
des messages publicitaires et leur remplacement par dautres
publicités, ainsi que la substitution de messages non commer-
ciaux d’intérét public, et ensuite, dans le cas de la radiodiffu-
sion simultanée, la retransmission simultanée de I'émission
intégrale entrecoupée de messages publicitaires canadiens plu-
tdt qu’américains.

Ai-je raison de penser que ces articles visent notamment &
arriver 4 une entente a cet égard? J'aimerais me reporter au
passage relatif & l'article 2006 de I'Accord de libre-échange.
qui dit:

...que la suppression des messages publicitaires des
signaux américains ne pourra plus dorénavant étre exigée
comme condition de I'obtention d'une licence de cablodis-
tribution.
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This deletion and substitution is only possible on the basis of
cable, because you cannot do it out of the air. You interrupt
the signal, and when it comes in from the head end of the cable
you then have an opportunity to make the changes that you
want.,

I am now reading from the concordance under the heading
“FTA Commitment.” It states:

Article 2006 of the Free Trade Agreement provides
that deletion of commercial meesages from U.S. signals
can no longer be made a condition of a cable television
licence.

If I am correct in my reading of this, the device that the gov-
ernment has used to fulfil its commitment is to give the gov-
ernment, one of the parties to the FTA, the power in the legis-
lation to tell the CRTC what it can and cannot do about this
whole subject of deletion and replacement. Is that right?

Mr. Nymark: Mr. Chairman, 1 wish to introduce Mr.
Michel Hétu, from the Department of Communications, who
assisted us throughout the negotiations on this matter and can
respond to these questions.

M. Michel Hétu, avocat général, ministére des Communica-
tions: Monsieur le président, si vous le permettez je vais répon-
dre en francais. Pour bien comprendre les dispositions relatives
a la Loi sur la radiodiffusion, il faut comprendre qu’elles sont
associées a l'engagement de mettre sur pied au Canada un
régime de compensation pour la retransmission des signaux de
télévision et de radio en vertu de la Loi sur les droits d'auteur.

Le régime qui est proposé en est un de licence obligatoire en
vertu duquel un cdblodistributeur peut distribuer des signaux
éloignés de provenance canadienne ou américaine. En compen-
sation, il doit offrir un montant d'argent fixé par la Commis-
sion du droit d'auteur.

L'un des éléments fondamentaux d'un régime de droits
d’auteur relatif 4 la transmission de signaux (surtout lorsqu'il
est sujet a une licence obligatoire) est d’exiger que la retrans-
mission se fasse de fagon simultanée et que le ciblodistributeur
ne modifie pas le signal qu'il retransmet.

Le sénateur Frith: Ceci constitue exactement la base de
notre objection en ce qui concerne les radiodiffuseurs.

M. Hétu: Le projet de loi sur les droits d’auteur, comme on
le verra un peu plus loin, impose ces deux conditions de base
au cablodistributeur pour qu'il bénéficie de la licence obliga-
toire. Il doit retransmettre simultanément le signal éloigné
qu’il regoit. I1 doit en plus ne pas le modifier 4 moins qu’il soit
requis de le faire par I'organisme de réglementation, le CRTC.

11 sera requis de le faire en vertu de I'une ou 'autre de ces
politiques existantes au CRTC qui sont décrites dans I'accord,
a savoir D'article 2006, paragraphe 3 qui était en vigueur au 4
octobre 1987.

Ces politiques qui étaient en vigueur le 4 octobre 1987 sont
maintenues en vertu de I'accord. Le but de I'amendement a la
Loi sur la radiodiffusion est de mettre en vigueur la mesure

[Traduction)

Cette suppression et cette substitution ne peuvent étre opé-
rées que dans le cas de la cablodistribution puisque cela est
impossible pour les signaux de radiodiffusion transmis autre-
ment. Les cablodistributeurs peuvent interrompre la retrans-
mission du signal dés qu’il est capté au point d’arrivée et )
apporter alors les changements qu'ils veulent.

Je vous lis maintenant un extrait du tableau de concordance
sous la rubrique «Engagement aux termes de I’Accord de libre-
échange». Je cite:

(Traduction) L’article 2006 de 1'Accord de libre-
échange stipule que la suppression des messages publici-
taires des signaux américains ne pourra plus étre exigée
comme condition d’obtention d’une licence de cablodistri-
bution.

Si mon interprétation de ce texte est juste, le gouvernement
s’est acquitté de cet engagement en se donnant, dans une loi. le
pouvoir—a titre de partie 4 I’Accord—de dire au CRTC ce
qu'il peut et ne peut pas faire en ce qui a trait aux suppressions
et substitutions en question. Est-ce exact?

M. Nymark: Monsieur le président, permettez-moi de vous
présenter M. Michel Hétu du ministére des Communications:
il nous a conseillé sur ces questions pendant toute la durée des
négociations et il est donc en mesure de répondre a vos ques-
tions.

Mr. Michel Hétu, General Counsel, Department of Com-
munications: Mr. Chairman, to understand the provisions
respecting the Broadcasting Act, one has to understand that
they stem from the commitment to establish in Canada a
remuneration system for the retransmission of television and
radio signals, pursuant to the Copyright Act.

Under the proposed compulsory licensing system, a cablc
company would be able to distribute distant signals originating
in Canada or the U.S. In return, the company would be
required to pay remuneration, the amount of which would be
determined by the Copyright Board.

A copyright system for signal transmission, particularly in
the case of compulsory licensing, would have several basic
requirements: the transmission would have to be simultaneous
and the cable company would not be allowed to alter the signal
it was retransmitting.

Senator Frith: That's precisely the basis of our objection. as
far as broadcasters are concerned.

Mr. Hétu: The copyright bill, as we will see later, imposes
these two basic conditions for obtaining a compulsory licence
on the cable company. It must retransmit simultaneously the
distant signal it receives. Furthermore, it must not alter this
signal, unless required to do so by the regulatory agency. in
this instance, the CRTC.

It may be required to alter this signal in accordance with
existing CRTC policies which are described in the Agreement.
specifically in paragraph 3 of Article 2006, which was in effect
on October 4, 1987.

The measures that were in effect on October 4, 1987 will be
maintained under the Agreement. The purpose of the amend-
ment to the Broadcasting Act is to implement the measure



2:50

Foreign Affairs

28-12-1988

[Text]

décrite au paragraphe 3-A-6. Cette mesure assure le ministére
de cette pratique par les cdblodistributeurs. 1l n'y a que deux
entreprises de cablodistribution de Calgary au Canada qui pra-
tiquaient cette suppression des commerciaux depuis que la
politique avait été mise sur pied dans les années 1970. Alors
I'accord maintient cette pratique pour ces deux cablodistribu-
teurs.

Dans I'avenir et pour les autres cablodistributeurs au
Canada, ils ne pourront pas modifier le signal qu’ils regoivent.
Autrement, ils perdront le bénéfice de la licence obligatoire.
Donc il a fallu s’assurer que I'organisme de réglementation ne
vienne pas faire perdre le bénéfice de la licence obligatoire des
cablodistributeurs en imposant des conditions qui entraine-
raient une modification d'un signal qui ne doit pas étre fait
vraiment en vertu des principes du droit d’auteur. Vous utilisez
la propriété d’autrui, le programme que vous recevez. Vous ne
négociez pas du tout les droits. Vous retransmettez mais en
payant une redevance qui a été fixée par un tribunal. Alors on
a protégé les mesures existantes et on prévoit que pour les
mesures futures, le CRTC pourra en adopter pourvu qu’elles
aient pour but de protéger les intéréts des titulaires de droits
dans la programmation.

Le sénateur Frith: En guise d'information, depuis le fameux
projet de loi C-58 qui traitait le sujet de «border broadcasting»
et du Time magazine et de Readers’ Digest etc., 100 p. 100 des
demandes de radiodiffuseurs aux Etats-Unis était de laisser la
situation comme elle existait avant la loi C-58, c’est-d-dire que
les radiodiffuseurs aux Etats- Unis pouvaient continuer a ven-
dre de la publicité diffusée au Canada en provenance des
Etats-Unis.

En général, c’est 100 p. 100 de leur demande. C’est quelque
chose qui était bien évident. C’est pour eux un aspect impor-
tant des négociations sur le libre-échange. Tenant compte de
ce 100 p. 100, 4 quel pourcentage de leur demande est-ce que
vous estimez nous avons donné suite, a cause de I’article 20067
Laissons de coté la question de Calgary.

M. Hétu: En ce qui concerne le régime de retransmission,
vous savez sans doute qu’il a été annoncé comme étant une
politique gouvernementale depuis fort longtemps. Les problé-
mes relatifs 2 'absence de compensation au Canada pour la
retransmission des signaux a la fois canadiens et étrangers
datent des années 1950. En 1954, la Cour de P’échiquier de
I’époque a décidé que la Loi sur les droits d’auteur ne s’appli-
quait pas 4 la retransmission. Il n’y a jamais eu de paiements
depuis cette époque.

Les Etats-Unis ont connu une expérience semblable qui a
entrainé des amendements 4 leurs lois plus rapidement qu’on
I’a fait au Canada. Mais depuis quelques années, la politique
du gouvernement canadien était d'insérer dans notre Loi sur
les droits d’auteur une protection pour la retransmission des
signaux évidemment pour le bénifice des auteurs dont les oeu-
vres sont produites 4 la télévision. Par conséquent, pour répon-
dre 4 votre question, c’était une politique du gouvernement que
d’instaurer au Canada ce régime de protection. On I'aurait fait
de toute fagon.

Le sénateur Stollery: J'aimerais poser une question, s'il vous
plait, monsieur le président. J'ai été membre du comité de la

[Traduction)

described in paragraph 3(a)(vi). This measure ensures that
cable companies continue this practice. Only two Canadian
cable companies in Calgary have been deleting commercial
materials since the policy was first established in the 1970s.
Under the Agreement these two companies will be able to con-
tinue deleting commercial materials.

As for the other cable companies in Canada, they will not be
allowed in future to alter the signal they receive. If they do.
they will lose their compulsory licence. Steps had to be taken
to ensure that cable systems did not lose their compulsory
licences because the regulatory agency had set conditions
which would result in an altered signal. This would run coun-
ter to the principles of copyright. The cable system is using
someone else’s property or program. Not all rights are nego-
tiated. The cable system retransmits signals, but pays remu-
neration the amount of which is determined by a panel. Exist-
ing measures have therefore been protected. The CRTC can
adopt other measures in the future, provided its objective in so
doing is to safeguard the interests of holders of copyright in
the programs.

Senator Frith: As a point of information, since the famous
Bill C-58 which dealt with border broadcasting, Time maga-
zine, Readers Digest and so forth, all U.S. broadcasters have
asked us to leave the situation as it was before Bill C-58. In
other words, U.S. broadcasters want to continue selling adver-
tisements for programs originating in the U.S. and broadcast
in Canada.

That's what all broadcasters were generally demanding. It
was quite obvious. They consider this one important aspect of
the free trade negotiations. In light of this situation, to what
extent does Article 2006 satisfy their demands, leaving aside
the Calgary question?

Mr. Hétu: Regarding the retransmission system, you are no
doubt aware that it has been an established government policy
for quite some time. Problems concerning the absence of remu-
neration in Canada for the retransmission of both Canadian
and U.S. signals date back to the 1950s. In 1954, the Court of
the Exchequer ruled that the Copyright Act did not apply to
retransmission. No remuneration has been paid since then.

The United States had a similar experience which led them
to amend their laws more quickly than we have amended them
in Canada. For the past several years, it has been the
Canadian government’s policy to include in its copyright legis-
lation safeguards for signal retransmission. This was clearly
for the benefit of authors whose works were produced for
television. Consequently, to answer your question, it was gov-
ernment policy to establish this system of safeguards in
Canada. It would have been done in any event.

Senator Stollery: I have a question, Mr. Chairman. I was 2
member of the House of Commons Committee that passed Bill
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Chambre des communes lorsque I'on avait adopté le projet de
loi C-58, il y a quand méme 10 ans de cela. Est-ce que cet arti-
cle touche la ville de Toronto, par exemple? On parle cablodis-
tribution, n’est-ce pas?

M. Hétu: Oui, sénateur.

Le sénateur Stollery: C'est assez compliqué. Le projet de loi
C-58, je me souviens trés bien, portait sur le probléme des
impdts et des stations qui étaient situées prés des frontiéres.
Prenons la ville de Toronto par exemple, est-ce que cela affecte
vraiment les gens de cette ville?

M. Hétu: 1l ne faudrait vraiment pas confondre, cela n’a
absolument rien a voir avec la loi C-58.

Le sénateur Stollery: Oui, c’est exact. Le projet de loi C-58
traitait des impdts. Les gens ne pouvaient plus déduire cela de
leurs impdts. Cela est tout a fait une autre chose?

M. Hétu: C'est tout a faire une autre chose . . .

Le sénateur Frith: Pas exactement. C'est une autre chose
dans un certain sens mais c'était une partie des trois aspects.
Vous aviez les impots . . .

M. Hétu: Oui, sénateur. Mais vraiment le projet de loi C-58
a remplacé la mesure antérieure a la suppression des commer-
ciaux. A preuve, il n'y avait que deux cablodistributeurs au
Canada qui I'exergaient a Calgary.

Le sénateur Stollery: Donc, cela n'affecte que trés peu de
gens.

M. Hétu: Oui, sénateur.
Le sénateur Stollery: Me vous remercie.

Le sénateur Beaudoin: Pour ce qui est des droits d’auteur,
est-ce que vous répondez tout de suite & la question ou si I'on
attend d’étre rendu 4 la question de la Loi sur les droits
d’auteur?

Mr. von Finckenstein: Mr. Chairman, I am in your hands.
We can deal with them both together or we can deal with them
separately.

The Chairman: There is another consideration, and that is
the hour. If we were to rise now, we could come back and deal
with clause 52, the Canadian International Trade Tribunal
Act, followed by the Copyright Act as it appears in the statute.
Is that agreeable?

Senator Beaudoin: Very well, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Frith: Mr. Chairman, before we leave the subject, I
know I previously said that I have no further questions, but I
may want to pursue this subject. In other words, if we continue
our monitoring, I may want to go further with it. However, 1
already have on the record my position and the explanation
from the witness that adds to what is in our concordance, and I
thank the witness for that. However, I did not mean to imply
that I was foreclosing on dealing with this matter.

The Chairman: Very well. Senators, perhaps we might
review the work we have lined up for the afternoon. As I now
understand it, we will proceed with what we planned for this
afternoon, namely the witnesses from the Canadian Labour

[Traduction)

C-58 some ten years ago. Does this article affect the City of
Toronto? We are talking about cable broadcasting, are we
not?

Mr. Hétu: Yes, Senator.

Senator Stollery: It’s rather complicated. 1 remember ver)
well that Bill C-58 touched on the problem of taxes and of sta-
tions located close to the border. Take the City of Toronto. for
example. Will Torontonians really be affected?

Mr. Hétu: We musn’t confuse matters. This has nothing to
do whatsoever with Bill C-58.

Senator Stollery: That’s true. Bill C-58 dealt with taxes.
People could no longer deduct this from their taxes. That's an
entirely different matter, don’t you think?

Mr. Hétu: | agree . . .

Senator Frith: Not exactly. To some extent, it's the same.
but it’s only one of three issues involved. You had taxes . . .

Mr. Hétu: Yes, Senator. But the fact is that Bill C-58
replaced the measure respecting the deletion of commercial
materials. The proof of that is that only two cable companies
in Calgary have been deleting commercial materials.

Senator Stollery: Therefore, this provision affects only a
very few people.

Mr. Hétu: That’s correct, Senator.
Senator Stollery: Thank you.

Senator Beaudoin: With respect to copyright. are you going
to answer the question immediately or shall we wait until we
discuss the Copyright Act?

M. von Finckenstein: Monsieur le président, je ferai comme
vous voudrez. Nous pouvons examiner les deux questions
ensemble ou séparément.

Le président: Nous avons une autre contrainte, a savoir celle
du temps. Si nous voulions suspendre nos travaux maintenant.
nous pourrions d notre retour examiner l'article 52, concernant
la Loi sur le Tribunal canadien du commerce extérieur. et
ensuite le texte actuel de la Loi sur le droit d’auteur. Cela vous
convient-il?

Le sénateur Beaudoin: Trés bien, monsieur le président.

Le sénateur Frith: Monsieur le président, je vous avais dit
avoir épuisé mes questions sur ce sujet, mais avant que nous
passions a autre chose je vous signale que je voudrai sans doute
y revenir. Autrement dit, si nous poursuivons notre contréle. je
voudrai sans doute approfondir la question. Toutefois, j'ai déja
fait consigner au compte rendu ma position et I'explication du
témoin qui compléte les renseignements de notre tableau de
concordance et je le remercie. Je précise néanmoins que ce
n’était pas mon intention de mettre fin au débat la-dessus.

Le président: Trés bien. Chers collégues, nous pourrions
peut-étre discuter de ce que nous avons au menu pour cet
aprés-midi. Si j’ai bien compris, nous respecterons l'ordre du
jour prévu pour cet aprés-midi,  savoir que nous entendrons
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Congress who will lead off at 2 p.m. Then at 3 p.m. we will
hear from the Economic Council and then we will deal with
the question of temporary residents.

We are left with some uncertainty for the evening. My pro-
posal is that when we resume at 7 o’clock we consider how we
will proceed with two or possibly three matters: first, what we
will do with respect to agriculture and, second, continuation of
the examination of the bill which we have been engaged in this
morning and, third, questions on temporary entry. At that time
we can decide on the order of proceeding with these matters.
My own hope is that we can begin with the clause-by-clause
examination in which we have been engaged this morning.

Senator Bosa: Mr. Chairman, it has been our past practice
that when the Senate is sitting, a committee will not convene
until 2.15.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, we do have permission
to meet at 2 p.m. but I know the point that Senator Bosa is
making and I think it is a valid one. We must, of course, go
into the chamber in order to establish our presence, in the Sen-
ate, because, regardless of how obviously we are present here
and how hard we are working, we are not present in the Senate
unless and until we show our faces in the chamber. Therefore
we will adjourn the committee until 2.15, at which time we will
hear from the witnesses from the Canadian Congress of
Labour.

Mr. Nymark: Mr. Chairman, a few minutes ago you men-
tioned that we might deal with temporary access?

The Chairman: Yes.

Mr. Nymark: Did you mean this afternoon after the Eco-
nomic Council of Canada, or this evening?

The Chairman: I mentioned that we would proceed with that
matter after we have dealt with the Economic Council of
Canada. However, I then raised the possibility that we might
have to deal with that matter this evening because there is a
chance that we would run out of time this afternoon. That is
why I said there would be three topics this afternoon or two,
depending on our timing. Would this cause any problems?

Mr. Nymark: No, Mr. Chairman, but we will have the offi-
cials here to deal with the issue of adjustments after the Eco-
nomic Council, if that is when you would like to hear from
them.

The Chairman: Yes, you are quite right. I made a mistake.
The temporary entry matter would not be on at any time this
afternoon. It is, in fact, one of the possibles topics for this
evening. Very well, senators, the committee is adjourned until
2.15 this afternoon.

The committee adjourned until 2.15 p.m.
Upon resuming at 2.15 p.m.

The Chairman: Honourable senators will recall that we
decided we would focus on certain parts of the Free Trade
Agreement and of the bill because there are areas which poss-

[Traduction)

les porte-parole du Congrés du travail du Canada & 14 heures,
et 4 15 heures, des représentants du Conseil économique du
Canada, aprés quoi nous examinerons la question des autorisa-
tions de séjour temporaire.

Il nous reste donc d& nous entendre sur le programme de la
soirée. Je propose qu’a la reprise de nos travaux a 19 heures
nous examinions deux ou trois questions: d’abord, ce que nous
ferons au sujet de I'agriculture, ensuite, la poursuite de I'exa-
men du projet de loi que nous avons entrepris ce matin et,
enfin, les questions sur les autorisations de séjour temporaire.
Nous pourrons, & ce moment-la, décider dans quel ordre nous
examinerons ces questions. Pour ma part, j'espére que nous
pourrons poursuivre d’abord ’examen article par article que
nous avons commencé ce matin.

Le sénateur Bosa: Monsieur le président, la pratique veut
que les comités ne se réunissent pas avant 14 h 15 quand le
Sénat siége.

Le président: Honorables sénateurs, nous sommes autorisés
a nous réunir dés 14 heures mais je pense que le point que fait
valoir le sénateur Bosa est valable. Nous devons bien sir nous
rendre au Sénat pour faire acte de présence puisque nous som-
mes réputés étre absents 4 moins de nous y faire voir méme s'il
est évident que nous poursuivons avec diligence nos travaux en
comité. La séance est donc levée jusqu'd 14 h 15; nous accueil-
lerons 4 ce moment-1a les porte-parole du Congrés du travail
du Canada.

M. Nymark: Monsieur le président, vous avez dit, il y 2
quelques instants, que nous pourrions examiner la question des
autorisations de séjour temporaire?

Le président: C’est exact.

M. Nymark: Le ferons-nous cet aprés-midi, aprés avoir
entendu les porte-parole du Conseil économique du Canada, ou
en soirée?

Le président: J'ai dit que nous examinerions cette question
aprés avoir entendu les témoins du Conseil économique du
Canada. J'ai toutefois mentionné la possibilité que nous le fas-
sions en soirée car il se peut que le temps nous fasse défaut cet
aprés-midi. Voila pourquoi j’ai dit que nous examinerions cet
aprés-midi deux ou trois questions, selon le temps dont nou$
disposerons. Cela vous poserait-il un probléme?

M. Nymark: Non, monsieur le président, mais les fonction-
naires seront ici pour nous aider 4 examiner la question des
problémes d’adaptation aprés la comparution des représentants
du Conseil économique, si cela vous convient.

Le président: Oui, vous avez tout 4 fait raison. Je me suis
trompé. Nous n’examinerons pas cet aprés-midi la question des
autorisations de séjour temporaire. Nous devrons en fait I'ins-
crire & I'ordre du jour de ce soir. La séance est levée jusqu'd
14 h 15 cet aprés-midi.

La séance est levée jusqu’a 14 h 15.
A lareprise 4 14 h 15.

Le président: Les honorables sénateurs se souviendront cer
tainement que nous avons décidé de nous pencher sur certain’
secteurs de I’Accord de libre-échange qui pourraient bien étr¢
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ibly will cause difficulties and which will certainly be of con-
cern even after the bill becomes law. One of the important
areas which we anticipate will be of concern to the govern-
ment, to parliament, and to the people of Canada, after Bill C-
2 becomes law, is the matter of adjustment assistance. This
afternoon we are turning for the first time in this committee to
that matter, adjustment assistance. Senator Fairbairn.

Senator Fairbairn: Mr. Chairman, I just wondered if before
we start the hearing this afternoon whether I could ask that
the committee members might receive a list of the members of
the de Grandpré commission later today or tomorrow morning
in advance of Mr. de Grandpré’s appearance. I am sure it
would assist us with our deliberations.

The Chairman: All right. We will take cognizance of that
request. 1 guess the answer is that we will get the list of the
members of that commission to the members of this committee
just as soon as possible. Mr. de Grandpré will be hear tomor-
row afternoon and presumably we will have that list well in
advance of his appearance.

Senator Fairbairn: Thank you.

The Chairman: So let us turn now to the business of the
hour, namely, adjustment assistance. Our first group of wit-
nesses on this important topic are from the Canadian Labour
Congress, specifically Mr. Dick Martin, Executive Vice-Presi-
dent; Emile Vallée, Executive Assistant to the President, and
Kevin Hayes, National Representative.

Gentlemen, would you proceed with your initial presenta-
tion?

Mr. Dick Martin, Vice-President, Canadian Labour Con-
gress: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I think the committee is
aware that we did not have all that much time to put together
a written submission, but I will preface my remarks by saying
that we will be more than happy to put detail to it at a later
date if that is your wish. We are really here to make some
overviews and some suggestions to the Free Trade Agreement
and adjustment, but we have lots of material so that I can
assure committee members we can make adequate comment
later on.

I think it is fair to say, first of all, that it is no secret that the
Canadian Labour Congress was and is strongly opposed to the
Free Trade Agreement for a number of reasons. We were very
concerned and believed that it was going to have and is going
to have a negative impact on employment, that there was going
to be and is going to be an unnecessary diminution of
Canadian sovereignty over matters of economic, fiscal and
social policies.

We believed that there is a very heavy push downward in
terms of harmonization of social and labour programs set up
by Canada vis- a-vis the United States.

[Traduction)

des sources de difficultés et qui souléveront certainement des
inquiétudes méme aprés ’adoption du projet de loi. L’un des
secteurs les plus importants qui, & notre avis, sera une source
de préoccupation pour le gouvernement, le Parlement et la
population du Canada, une fois le projet de loi C-2 adopté, est
celui de I'aide & I’adaptation. Cet aprés-midi, nous allons abor-
der pour la premiére fois au cours des délibérations du comité,
cette question de I'aide & I'adaptation. Sénateur Fairbairn,
vous avez la parole.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Monsieur le président, je me
demande tout simplement si, avant d’entamer les délibérations,
je peux demander que les membres du comité regoivent une
liste des membres de la Commission Grandpré aujourd’hui ou
bien demain matin, avant que M. de Grandpré se présente
devant nous. Je suis certain que cela nous aidera dans nos tra-
vaux.

Le président: D’accord. Nous prendrons note de cette
demande. Je crois que nous aurons la liste des membres en
question le plus tot possible. M. de Grandpré viendra demain
aprés-midi et nous devrions avoir cette liste bien avant son
arrivée.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Merci.

Le président: Penchons-nous maintenant sur la question qui
nous intéresse, & savoir 'aide & I'adaptation. Notre premier
groupe de témoins sur cette question importante vient du Con-
grés du travail du Canada; il s’agit plus exactement de M.
Dick Martin, vice-président exécutif, d’Emile Vallée, adjoint
administratif du président et de Kevin Hayes, représentant
national.

Messieurs, veuillez commencer votre exposé.

M. Dick Martin, vice-président, Congrés du travail du
Canada: Merci, monsieur le président. Je crois que le comité
sait pertinemment que nous n’avons pas eu énormément de
temps pour préparer un mémoire écrit; toutefois, j'ajouterai
que nous serons plus qu'heureux de vous fournir des détails, a
une date ultérieure, si vous le désirez. Nous sommes en fait ici
pour faire des observations générales ainsi que des suggestions
relativement 4 I’Accord de libre-échange et pour parler égale-
ment de la question de I’ajustement. Je tiens cependant d assu-
rer les membres du comité que nous avons énormément de
documents et que nous pourrons donc faire des observations
adéquates a ce sujet un peu plus tard.

Je crois qu’il est juste de dire, tout d’abord, que cela n’est un
secret pour personne que le Congrés du travail du Canada a
été et est toujours fortement opposé 4 I'Accord de libre-
échange, et ce, pour certaines raisons. Nous étions convaincus
que cet accord aurait, et en fait va avoir, des répercussions
négatives sur I'emploi, qu’il y aurait, et qu'il y aura en fait une
diminution inutile de la souveraineté du Canada sur les ques-
tions économiques, fiscales et sociales.

Nous étions persuadés que I’harmonisation des programmes
d’avantages sociaux et de travail nécessités par I'accord avec
les Etats-Unis serait néfaste au Canada.
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Our opposition to free trade has not been mollified, I might
say, by statements made during or after the recent election
campaign. However, we recognize that the government was re-
elected and obviously is proceeding very quickly in implement-
ing the Free Trade Agreement.

We have followed closely, of course, the statements made by
the Prime Minister and his colleagues, including his ministers,
senior officials and even business leaders on the Free Trade
Agreement. We note that there has been a lot of inconsisten-
cies between them. In particular, the Prime Minister has
repeated again and again that Canadian sovereignty and social
programs were not covered by the Free Trade Agreement. He
has also indicated that his government would be generous and
understanding in looking after those who would be the victims
of the deal.

His ministers, from Finance Minister Wilson to Employ-
ment Minister McDougall have, on the other hand, stated that
present programs of labour adjustment were adequate to deal
with the dislocation that will result from free trade.

It is not often, I might say, that we have agreed with the
Prime Minister, but in this instance we certainly have confi-
dence and agree with him and would like to believe he will be
true to his word and ensure that workers do not carry the bur-
den of the negative impact of the Free Trade Agreement.

What we have heard from business leaders today is not reas-
suring, and certainly we look forward to hearing what Mr. de
Grandpré and his committee will be saying to this Senate com-
mittee tomorrow.

We understand the Chamber of Commerce, in their usual, I
might say, regressive fashion, for instance, is proposing for the
umpteenth time that unemployed workers from the less devel-
oped parts of Canada be moved to central Canada where the
jobs are. We want to be on record as opposing any measure
that will essentially starve people into moving. We support
mobility to programs, obviously when it is on people’s own free
will. Indeed, Canadians are among the most mobile workers
anywhere. However, people should move on their own will, not
because they are forced to. We should bring jobs to people, not
the other way around.

The Chamber of Commerce is not alone. We understand
that last week the Canadian Manufacturers’ Association pro-
posed a royal commission on social spending, with a view to
reduce such spending in the light of the need to “harmonize”
our policies with the United States. This is what we have
feared all along—and we said it repeatedly for the last three
years when the debate was under way, and lo and behold they
came out and called for it very shortly after the election. Once
again we are asking that the Prime Minister be true to his
word and that it will not have a detrimental effect upon our
social programs. I understand that the Canadian Manufactur-

[Traduction)

Notre opposition au libre-échange est toujours aussi viru-
lente et n’a aucunement été amenuisée par les déclarations que
I'on a pu entendre aussi bien durant qu’aprés la derniére cam-
pagne électorale. Toutefois, nous reconnaissons que le gouver-
nement a été réélu et que de toute évidence il va mettre les
bouchées doubles pour que I’Accord de libre-échange soit mis
en application.

Nous avons examiné de trés prés, bien entendu, les déclara-
tions que le premier ministre et ses collaborateurs, y compris
des ministres, de hauts fonctionnaires et des directeurs d’entre-
prise, ont faites sur I’Accord de libre-échange. Nous tenons &
souligner le trés grand nombre de contradictions entre eux. En
particulier, le premier ministre n’a cessé de répéter que la sou-
veraineté canadienne et les programmes sociaux n’étaient pas
assujettis 4 ’Accord de libre-échange. Il a également précisé
que son gouvernement serait généreux et compréhensif envers
les victimes de I’accord.

Ses ministres, que ce soit le ministre des Finances, M. Wil-
son, ou bien celui de 'Emploi, Mme McDougall, ont, d’autre
part, déclaré que les programmes d’adaptation actuels étaient
adéquats et permettraient de faire face aux bouleversements
que causera I’Accord de libre-échange.

11 est rare, et je tiens 4 le préciser, que nous soyons d’accord
avec le premier ministre; toutefois, dans ce cas-ci, nous avons
certainement confiance en lui et sommes d’accord avec lui.
Nous aimerions donc croire qu’il va respecter sa parole et faire
en sorte que les travailleurs ne subiront pas les répercussions
néfastes de I’accord.

Si I'on en croit ce qu'ont déclaré les chefs d’entreprise, la
situation n’est pas réassurante. Nous attendons avec impa-
tience d’entendre ce que M. de Grandpré et les membres de sa
commission vont dire au comité sénatorial demain.

Nous croyons savoir que la Chambre de commerce, dans son
style régressif habituel, propose, par exemple, pour la milliéme
fois, que les travailleurs sans emploi des régions les moins
développées du pays soient déplacés vers le centre du pays ou
des emplois sont disponibles. Nous tenons & ce qu'il soit bien
indiqué au compte rendu que nous sommes Opposés a toute
mesure qui obligerait qui que ce soit & déménager. Nous som-
mes en faveur de la mobilité, mais 4 la condition que les per-
sonnes concernées consentent a se déplacer. En fait, les Cana-
diens font partie des personnes les plus mobiles qui soient.
Toutefois, une personne ne devrait aucunement étre obligée de
déménager. Nous devrions plutét apporter des emplois aux tra-
vailleurs et non pas obliger les travailleurs a se déplacer 1a ol
se trouvent les emplois.

La Chambre de commerce n’est toutefois pas seule. Nou$
croyons en effet savoir que la semaine derniére, I’Association
des manufacturiers canadiens a proposé la création d’une com-
mission royale sur les dépenses sociales, afin d’entrainer un¢
diminution de ces dépenses avec pour objectif d’«<harmoniser
nos programmes avec ceux des Ep.t;ts-Unis. C’est exactement
ce que nous n’avons cessé de craindre—et nous l’avons répét¢
au cours des trois derniéres années pendant tout le débat; peu
importe, cela ne les a pas empéchés de réclamer une telle chost
aussitdt aprés les élections. Nous demandons une fois de plus
au premier ministre de respecter sa parole et de faire en sort¢
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ers’ Association was taking particular aim at U.I. For heaven’s
sake, we just finished a great big commission on U.I. It came
out in a rather satisfactory way. Surely we don’t want to be
opening up the whole U.I. debate again.

About a year ago the Prime Minister appointed an Advisory
Committee on Adjustment headed by Mr. de Grandpré. We
refused to make representation to the committee at the time
because obviously this would not have been consistent with our
opposition to free trade, and because we did not think much
would come out of the committee. So far our assumptions have
been correct.

In a year the committee has failed to provide any original or
independent thought of value in the present debate. So far it
looks as if nothing will be reported till spring or summer. We
believe we need action right now. Further, Mr. de Grandpre
has made statements to the effect that he will not recommend
any program that will result in an increase in the federal defi-
cit. Further, we understand he has expressed confidence in the
capacity of existing programs to handle the problem. I really
don’t know why we needed a committee to start telling us all
that. In our view such statements are unacceptable from a per-
son given the responsibility to provide a so-called objective
view of adjustment issues.

We think there should be a social clause, and throughout the
debate we heard once again the Free Trade Agreement being
compared to the European Common Market, the European
Community, and it is something I recommend that the Senate
committee have a good look at in terms of the social clause
that has been implemented and is even presently being nego-
tiated and re- negotiated in the European Common Market.

It was a major omission in the Free Trade Agreement that it
does nothing to guarantee that the anticipated increased trade
will strengthen future growth and employment. There are no
mechanisms to ensure that trade flows will contribute to desir-
able structural adjustment which also creates jobs. Free trade
can only be successful when trade flows are translated into a
net increase in jobs. It must be accomplished in a framework
which will address the ways we cope with adjustment. Gaps in
labour standards—wages, working time, working conditions,
social programs—between Canada and the U.S. are a major
protetionist device. The disruptive effects of these gaps are
already evident.

Labour standards are an important factor in international
trade because they strongly affect our competitive position.
International trade must also aim at improving labour stand-
ards, and this should be reflected in the Free Trade Agree-
ment.

[Traduction)

que cela n’ait aucun effet négatif sur nos programmes sociaux.
Je crois savoir que I’Association des manufacturiers canadiens
visait plus particuliérement 1’assurance-chdmage. Pour I’amour
de Dieu, nous venons tout juste de terminer I’étude de cette
question au sein d’une importante commission, et les résultats
ont été plutdt satisfaisants. Je ne crois pas que I’on veuille vrai-
ment relancer le débat sur I’assurance-chémage.

Il y a environ un an, le premier ministre a nommé un comité
consultatif sur ’adaptation dirigé par M. de Grandpré. Nous
avions refusé de nous présenter devant ce comité car, de toute
évidence, cela aurait été contraire 4 la position que nous avions
sur le libre-échange, et parce que d’autre part, 4 notre avis, ce
comité ne produirait pas grand-chose de positif. Jusqu’a pré-
sent, nous avons vu juste.

En I’espace d’un an, le comité n’a absolument rien avancé
qui soit original ou bien nouveau ou encore qui pourrait appor-
ter quelque chose d’intéressant au débat actuel. Jusqu’a pré-
sent, on a bien I'impression que rien ne se passera d'ici au prin-
temps ou encore & 1’été. A notre avis, il faut que des mesures
soient prises dés maintenant. D’autre part, M. de Grandpré a
déclaré qu’il ne recommandera aucun programme qui entrai-
nerait une augmentation du déficit fédéral. Qui plus est, nous
croyons savoir qu’il a indiqué étre convaincu que les program-
mes actuellement en place permettront de régler le probleme.
Je ne vois vraiment pas pourquoi nous avions besoin d'un
comité pour nous entendre dire tout cela. A notre avis, toutes
ces déclarations sont inacceptables de la part d’une personne a
qui I’on a donné la responsabilité d’avancer un point de vue soit
disant objectif sur la question de ’adaptation.

Selon nous, il devrait y avoir une clause sociale; durant tout
le débat, nous avons entendu une fois de plus des comparaisons
entre I’Accord de libre-échange et le Marché commun, la
Communauté européenne. J'aimerais suggérer au comité séna-
torial qu'il se penche de trés prés sur cette question en ce qui a
trait 4 la clause sociale qui a été mise en application et qui fait
actuellement I’objet d’une négociation au sein de la CEE.

L’une des grosses lacunes de I’Accord de libre-échange est le
fait qu’il ne garantit absolument pas que I'augmentation anti-
cipée du commerce consolidera la croissance et I'emploi. Il
n’existe aucun mécanisme garantissant que les échanges com-
merciaux entraineront une adaptation structurelle souhaitable
qui créera des emplois. Le libre-échange ne réussira que si les
flux commerciaux entrainent une augmentation nette du nom-
bre d’emplois. Cela doit étre réalisé au sein d’une structure qui
se penchera sur les diverses fagons d’attaquer la question de
I’adaptation. Les normes différentes entre le Canada es les
Etats-Unis en ce qui a trait au salaire, 4 la durée du travail,
aux conditions de travail en général et aux programmes
sociaux, constituent un dispositif protectionniste important.
Les répercussions néfastes de ces différences sont déja éviden-
tes.

Les normes de travail constituent un facteur important dans
le commerce international du fait qu’elles influent fortement
sur notre position concurrentielle. Le commerce international
doit également entrainer une amélioration des normes de tra-
vail, ce dont il devrait étre tenu compte dans I'Accord de libre-
échange.
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Under no circumstances should international trade be pro-
moted in a way which undermines existing social safeguards
and, I might say, trade union rights. No trade-induced struc-
tural adjustment is acceptable if the trade flows have been
forced at the cost of labour standards or the suspension of
trade union rights. Abuse of this kind needs to be addressed in
the trade regulations.

As members of the committee will know from the recent
election, we are concerned that the Free Trade Agreement
does not contain any provision for measures to cope with the
effects of the agreement on jobs and communities. For
instance, there is no bilateral restructuring fund or the equiva-
lent to the social fund of the European Community. What is
needed is a number of sizeable funds for adjustment problems.
But this should have been part of the agreement. Safeguard
clauses which are only negative and defensive instruments do
not solve the problems that arise.

The insistence of the international trade union movement on
a social clause in trade agreements recognizes the social
impact of trade-induced structural change. The aim is the
establishment of a balance mechanism which places obliga-
tions on the trading partners to ease the process of change: on
the one hand, access to markets, and, on the other hand, meas-
ures to ensure that working people share in the benefits of
expanded trade; also in terms of improving labour standards.

The concept of fair labour standards must not be perverted
into a protectionist device. Social clauses are an efficient
means of preventing such a perversion of this vital concept.

It has been repeatedly alleged that trade unions wish to
transform social progress into a matter of trade sanctions
through social clauses. In fact, social clauses are instruments
for negotiation and agreement and they must not be conceived
as protectionist measures. Their implementation is a matter of
using the existing negotiation machinery and, if necessary,
developing additional ones.

A social clause based on agreed minimum labour standards
would serve to guarantee that evolving trade patterns do not
leave workers unemployed in Canada and exploited in the
United States or vice versa. Thus, one would avoid a situation
where the comparative advantage of productive efficiency is
replaced by a comparative disadvantage of basic social and
trade union rights to the detriment of economic welfare. If we
are going to talk about harmonization we should be talking
about coming up to the highest denominator, not harmonizing
to the lowest denominator in terms of Alabama or Arkansas or
some other far-off place like that.

Trade-induced change occurs at a more rapid pace than
change due to technological innovation and is less amenable to
management by negotiation between the collective bargaining

[Traduction)

Le commerce international ne devrait en aucun cas étre
développé de telle fagon qu’il risque de saper les garanties
sociales existantes et, j’ajouterais méme, les droits syndicaux.
Aucune adaptation structurale stimulée par le commerce ne
peut étre acceptable si les courants d’échanges ont été mis en
place au détriment des normes de travail ou encore des droits
syndicaux. Tout abus de ce genre doit étre traité dans les régle-
ments commerciaux.

Les membres du Comité savent trés bien, et la population I'a
d’ailleurs bien fait comprendre lors de la derniére élection, que
nous sommes préocupés par le fait que I’Accord de libre-
échange ne comporte aucune disposition prévoyant des mesu-
res qui permettraient de faire face aux répercussions de
I’Accord sur les emplois et les collectivités. Par exemple, il n'y
a aucun fonds de restructuration bilatéral ou I'équivalent du
fonds social de la Communauté européenne. Il faut un certain
nombre de fonds assez importants pour régler les problémes
d’adaptation; toutefois, cela aurait di faire partie de I'entente.
Les clauses de garantie ne sont que des instruments négatifs et
défensifs qui ne réglent aucunement les problémes qui surgis-
sent.

L’insistance que met le mouvement syndical international a
vouloir I'intégration d’une clause sociale dans les accords com-
merciaux tient bien compte de I'impact social du changement
structurel entrainé par le commerce. L’objectif est la mise en
place d’'un mécanisme équilibré prévoyant des obligations pour
chacun des partenaires commerciaux afin de faciliter la transi-
tion: d'une part, I'accés aux marchés et, d’autre part, des
mesures qui garantissent aux travailleurs le partage des avan-
tages d’'un commerce élargi, sans oublier une amélioration des
normes de travail.

Le concept de normes de travail équitables ne doit pas s¢
transformer en un mécanisme protectionniste. Les clauses
sociales constituent un moyen efficace pour empécher que soit
dénaturé ce concept fondamental.

On n'a cessé de prétendre que les syndicats désirent trans-
former le progrés social en une affaire de sanctions commer-
ciales par le biais de clauses sociales. En fait, les clauses socia-
les sont des instruments de négociation et d’entente et né
doivent pas étre congues comme des mesures protectionnistes.
Alors, pour les mettre en application, il suffit d’utiliser les
moyens de négociation en place et, si nécessaire, d’en concevoir
de nouveaux.

Une clause sociale reposant sur des normes de travail mini-
mums convenues garantirait que les nouvelles orientations
commerciales ne laisseront pas les travailleurs sans emploi au
Canada et ne méneront pas 4 I’exploitation des travailleurs auX
Etats-Unis, et vice-versa. On éviterait ainsi une situation ol
I’avantage comparé du rendement productif est remplacé par
le désavantage comparé des droits sociaux et syndicaux fonda-
mentaux au détriment du bien-étre économique. Puisqu’il v2
étre question d’harmonisation, il faudra chercher & obtenir l¢
dénominateur le plus élevé et non pas le moins élevé, commé
I’Alabama ou I’Arkansas, ou tout autre Etat de ce genre.

Un changement entrainé par le commerce se produit 4 uf
rythme beaucoup plus rapide qu’un changement entrainé par
une innovation technologique et il reléve moins d’une gestio?



28-12-1988

Affaires étrangéres 2:57

[Text)

partners because it is beyond their control. I know that there is
certain disagree- ment but we have seen some instances that
we think are a result already of the Free Trade Agreement and
they are out of our control.

That is why the government should have developed anticipa-
tory adjustment policies for workers in order to deal with
structural problems before they became insolvable. Such poli-
cies should be fully integrated into other employment training
and investment policies designed to address structural shifts in
economic activity. Comprehensive trade adjustment policies,
by helping workers to take advantage of new opportunities,
would facilitate access to the trading system for new entrants.

Nevertheless, adjustment policies alone will not solve all the
problems associated with the impact of trade on workers and
communities.

As the members of the committee know, under the Free
Trade Agreement, subsidies will be defined over the next seven
years. As part of that exercise, the labour movement will be
seeking the equivalent of a social clause or as the European
Economic Community define it, a social charter.

The social charter guaranteed the enjoyment, without dis-
crimination, of the following fundamental rights:
—the right to a job,
—the right to just conditions of work,
—the right to safe and healthy working conditions,
—the right to a fair remuneration,
—the right to organize,

—the right to bargain collectively, including the right to
strike,

—the right of children and young persons to —protection,
—the right of employed women to protection,

—the right to vocational guidance,

—the right to vocational training,

—the right to protection of health,

—the right to social security,
—the right to social and medical assistance,

—the right to benefit from social welfare services,

[Traduction)

par la négociation entre partenaires dans le cadre de négocia-
tions collectives car ils n’en ont pas le contrdle. Je sais bien
qu'il existe un certain désaccord mais nous avons néanmoins
déja vu des exemples qui sont, selon nous, le résultat de
I’Accord de libre-échange et sur lesquels nous n’avons pas de
contrdle.

C’est pourquoi le gouvernement aurait di prévoir des
moyens d’adaptation pour les travailleurs afin de faire face aux
problémes structurels avant que ceux-ci soient insolubles. De
tels programmes devraient étre pleinement intégrés aux autres
programmes d’emploi, de formation et d’investissement desti-
nés a faire face aux changements structurels de I’activité éco-
nomique. De vastes programmes d’adaptation permettraient
aux travailleurs de profiter de nouvelles possibilités d’emploi et
faciliteraient 'accés au systéme commercial aux nouveaux
venus.

Quoi qu’il en soit, les programmes d’adaptation a eux seuls
ne peuvent régler tous les problémes liés & I'impact du com-
merce sur les travailleurs et les collectivités.

Les membres du Comité n’ignorent pas qu’en vertu de
I’Accord de libre-échange les subventions seront définies au
cours des sept prochaines années. Dans le cadre de cet exer-
cice, le mouvement syndical cherchera a obtenir I'équivalent
d’une clause sociale ou, comme I'appelle la Communauté éco-
nomique européenne, une charte sociale.

La charte sociale garantit la jouissance, sans aucune discri-
mination, des droits fondamentaux suivants:

—toute personne doit avoir la possibilité de gagner sa vie
par un travail librement entrepris;

—tous les travailleurs ont droit a des conditions de travail
équitables;

—tous les travailleurs ont droit 4 la sécurité et a I’hygiene
au travail;

—tous les travailleurs ont droit & une rémunération équi-
table;

—tous les travailleurs ont le droit de s’associer librement;

—tous les travailleurs ont le droit de négocier collective-
ment, y compris le droit de gréve;

—Iles enfants et les adolescents ont droit 4 une protection
spéciale contre les dangers physiques et moraux aux-
quels ils sont exposés;

—Iles travailleuses ont droit 4 une protection spéciale dans
leur travail;

—toute personne a droit 4 des services d’orientation pro-
fessionnelle;

—toute personne a droit 4 des services de formation pro-
fessionnelle;

—toute personne a droit 4 toutes les mesures lui permet-
tant de jouir du meilleur état de santé possible;

—tous les travailleurs ont droit 4 la sécurité sociale;

—tous les travailleurs ont droit 4 I'assistance sociale et
médicale;

—toute personne a droit 4 des services sociaux;
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—the right of physically or mentally disabled persons to
vocational training, rehabilitation and social resettle-
ment,

—the right of the family to social, legal and economic
protection,

—the right of mothers and children to social and eco-
nomic protection,

—the right to engage in a gainful occupation in the
territory of other contracting parties,

—the right of migrant workers and their families to pro-
tection and assistance.

An additional protocol to the European Social Charter spells
out rights of workers. Let me list some of these:

1. All workers have the right to equal opportunities and
equal treatment in matters of employment and occupation
without discrimination on the grounds of sex.

2. Workers have the right to be informed and to be con-
sulted within the undertaking.

3. Workers have the right to take part in the determination
and improvement of the working conditions and working envi-
ronment in the undertaking.

4. Every eldery person has the right to social protection.

Whether we have a social clause inserted in the Free Trade
Agreement in no way diminishes the urgency to proceed with
proactive, rather than reactive, labour adjustment programs.

We are disturbed when we hear key ministers like Mr. Wil-
son and Mrs. McDougall say that we don’t need any new
labour adjustment program. Presumably they regard unem-
ployment as a totality of labour adjustment programs.

The view that labour adjustment programs are only unem-
ployment programs disturbs us for two reasons. First and most
importantly, it accepts unemployment as unavoidable and
inevitable in a worker’s adjustment to structural change.
Secondly, it implies that our unemployment programs are ade-
quate. They are not.

Labour’s view of labour adjustment is very different. We do
not accept that unemployment be inevitable or a first step in a
worker’s transition to another job. Unemployment must be the
last resort when all other programs and policies fail.

Because we view labour adjustment policy as an integral
part of a full employment strategy, the policy presupposes that
workers will have jobs to go to. It also presupposes that the
workers will move to an equal or better paying job and con-
tinue to enjoy the security of our social programs.

[Traduction)

—toute personne invalide a droit 4 la formation profes-
sionnelle et d la réadaptation professionnelle et sociale,
quelles que soient I'origine et la nature de son invalidité:

—Ila famille a droit 4 une protection sociale, juridique et
économique;

—la mére et ’enfant ont droit 4 une protection sociale et
économique;

—Iles ressortissants de I'une des parties contractantes ont
le droit d’exercer sur le territoire d’une autre partie
toute activité lucrative, sur un pied d’egallte avec les
nationaux de cette derniére;

—les travailleurs migrants ressortissants de I'une des par-
ties contractantes et leur famille ont droit 4 la protec-
tion et a I'assistance sur le territoire de toute autre par-
tie contractante.

Un protocole joint a la Charte sociale européenne énumére les
droits des-travailleurs, dont voici quelques-uns:

1. Tous les travailleurs ont droit & des possibilités d’emploi
égales et a un traitement identique en matiére d’emploi sans
aucune discrimination fondée sur le sexe.

2. Tous les travailleurs ont le droit d’étre informés et consul-
tés au sein de I'entreprise.

3. Tous les travailleurs ont le droit de prendre part a I'élabo-
ration et 4 'amélioration des conditions de travail et du milieu
de travail dans I’entreprise.

4. Toutes les personnes dgées ont droit a la protection
sociale.

Méme si I'on incorpore une clause sociale dans I'Accord de
libre-échange cela ne diminue en rien I'urgence de passer 4 des
programmes d’aide & I'adaptation de la main-d’ceuvre préven-
tifs plutdt que curatifs.

Nous sommes préoccupés parce que nous entendons des
ministres importants comme M. Wilson et M™ McDougall
déclarer que nous n’avons pas besoin d’un nouveau programme
d’aide 4 I'adaptation de la main-d’ceuvre. Je présume qu'ils
considérent les programmes de chdmage comme un ensemble
de programmes d’aide a I’adaptation de la main-d’ceuvre.

L’idée que les programmes d’aide 4 I’adaptation de la main-
d’ceuvre ne sont que des programmes de chémage nous préoc-
cupe pour deux raisons. Tout d’abord et avant tout, elle
accepte le fait que le chdmage est inévitable dans le cadre d'un
processus d’adaptation des travailleurs au changement structu-
rel. Ensuite, elle implique que nos programmes de lutte contre
le chdmage sont adéquats. Or ils ne le sont pas.

Les travailleurs voient I'aide a I'adaptation de la main-
d’ceuvre sous un angle trés différent. Nous n’acceptons pas le
fait que le chdmage est inévitable ou constitue une premiere
étape dans le cadre d’une transition des travailleurs vers un
autre emploi. Le chdmage doit étre le dernier recours lorsque
tous les autres programmes et politiques échouent.

Etant donné que nous considérons que la politique d’aide 4
'adaptation de la main-d’ceuvre fait partie intégrante d’une
stratégie de plein emploi, la politique présuppose que les tra-
vailleurs auront des emplois vers lesquels ils pourront se tour-
ner. Elle présuppose également que les travailleurs se tourne-
ront vers un emploi aussi bien ou mieux rémunéré et
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For the labour movement, labour adjustment does not mean
unemployment and only the array of programs that support
unemployed workers such as U.I. and CEIC programs. It is
precisely because we do not have proactive “‘worker transition
policies and programs” that so much of our energy and
resources is devoted to coping with the ravages of unemploy-
ment.

Labour adjustment in any civilized society must be seen as
part of a full employment strategy. It accepts on the one hand
that in a growing and dynamic economy, workers’ skills, occu-
pations, will undergo change. At the same time, it rejects that
this change can only occur if the workers first lose their jobs,
earnings and investment.

When the labour movement speaks about labour adjust-
ment, we want to talk about programs which will allow the
workers to cope with economic and industrial adjustment with-
out job loss. Labour adjustment policy should allow for the
smooth transition of individual workers to better jobs and
higher incomes. What we really want is an Employment
Assurances Act, on top of an Unemployment Insurance Act,
coping with people who have lost their jobs.

A proactive adjustment policy attempts to reduce unemploy-
ment and the number of workers dependent on unemployment
compensation. First priority is given to measures that improve
the unemployed workers’ chances of getting a new job and that
reduces the mis- matches in the labour market. Even so-called
“active” measures as training, job creation and employment
equity are parts of a passive policy if they are used aimlessly
and without regard for the underlying causes of unemploy-
ment. The different parts of the labour market policy must be
highly coordinated.

Our program of adjustment includes the following points:

1. We believe that there should be one year advance notice
of plant closures and major lay-offs, and six months for lay-
offs of fewer than ten employees.

2. Major lay-offs and plant closures must be justified in
hearings before a job protection board. A single member
board, appointed by the government after consultation with
the parties affected, would have powers under the Inquiries
Act to examine reasons for the full or partial closure.

3. Compensation payments to communities affected by lay-
offs payable out of a special fund financed through employer
contributions. The job protection board would makeection
board would make recommendations concerning payments out
of a community adjustment fund. The rules governing the

[Traduction)

continueront 4 bénéficier de la sécurité de nos programmes
sociaux.

Pour le mouvement ouvrier, I’aide & I’adaptation de la main-
d’ceuvre ne signifie pas le chdmage et uniquement la gamme de
programmes qui viennent en aide aux chdmeurs comme les
programmes d’assurance-chomage et de la CEIC. C’est préci-
sément parce que nous n’avons pas de «politiques et program-
mes d’aide 4 I’adaptation de la main-d’ceuvres préventifs que
nous consacrons une si grande partie de notre énergie et de nos
ressources a faire face aux ravages causés par le chomage.

Dans toute société civilisée, I'aide d 1’adaptation de la main-
d’ceuvre doit étre considérée comme une partie intégrante
d’une stratégie de plein emploi. D’un cté, elle accepte que,
dans une économie dynamique et en pleine croissance, les qua-
lifications et les emplois des travailleurs subiront des change-
ments. En méme temps, elle rejette le fait que ces changements
ne peuvent se produire que si les travailleurs perdent tout
d’abord leur emploi, leurs revenus et leur investissement.

Lorsque le mouvement ouvrier parle d’aide a I’adaptation de
la main-d’ceuvre, nous voulons parler de programmes qui per-
mettront aux travailleurs de faire face a 1’évolution économi-
que et industrielle sans perte d’emplois. La politique d’aide 2
I’adaptation de la main-d’ceuvre devrait permettre aux travail-
leurs de passer tout doucement & de meilleurs emplois et & des
revenus supérieurs. Ce que nous voulons vraiment, c’est une
Loi sur I'assurance-emploi, en plus d’une Loi sur I’assurance-
chomage, qui s’occupe des gens ayant perdu leur emploi.

Une politique préventive d’aide 4 I’adaptation de la main-
d’ceuvre s’efforce de réduire le chdmage et le nombre des tra-
vailleurs qui dépendent des indemnités d’assurance-chomage.
La priorité est donnée aux mesures qui améliorent les chances
des travailleurs en chdmage d’obtenir un nouvel emploi et qui
diminuent les incohérences sur le marché du travail. Méme les
mesures soi-disant «actives» comme la formation, la création
d’emplois et I'équité en matiére d’emploi font partie intégrante
d’une politique passive si elles sont utilisées sans objectif précis
et sans tenir compte des causes sous-jacentes du chomage. Les
différentes parties de la politique du marché du travail doivent
étre fortement coordonnées.

Notre programme d’aide & 1’adaptation de la main-d’ceuvre
comporte les points suivants:

1. Nous sommes d’avis que les fermetures d’usines et les
licenciements importants devraient se faire sur préavis d'un an,
et que les licenciements de moins de dix employés devraient se
faire sur préavis de six mois.

2. Les licenciements importants et les fermetures d’usines
doivent étre justifiés lors d’audiences devant une commission
de protection des emplois. Une commission composée d'un seul
membre nommé par le gouvernement aprés consultation des
parties concernées disposerait de pouvoirs en vertu de la Loi
sur les enquétes pour étudier les motifs de la fermeture totale
ou partielle.

3. Des versements de compensation aux collectivités tou-
chées par les licenciements 4 effectuer 2 méme un fonds spécial
financé par des contributions des employeurs. La commission
de protection des emplois ferait des recommandations concer-

A

nant les versements a effectuer 4 méme un fonds d'aide a
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establishment and administration of the fund and respecting
entitlement for assistance would be and could be made by
regulation.

Much of this arises out of debate in the past and surveys and
studies that have been done about single industry communities.
This is not necessarily new at all. It has been recommended
through various bodies.

4. In addition to proceedings before the job protection
board, no lay-offs may occur until negotiations take place
between the employer and the union or, where there is no
union, a committee of employees, to discuss ways of avoiding a
loss of jobs. During such consultations, the employer shall
make available all relevant financial information concerning
the lay-off.

5. Where lay-offs cannot be prevented, an agreement must
be signed between the employer and the union or committee of
employees covering all terms of the lay-off before terminations
may proceed. The Minister of Labour will be able to make
regulations setting out minimum amounts to be paid to ter-
minated employees or relocation allowances.

6. In cases where employees are on strike or locked out at
the time the employer announces his intention to lay off, the
above- mentioned negotiations would remain mandatory
before any action could be taken.

7. We believe that standard hours of work must be lowered
through collective bargaining.

8. Severance pay of at least one week per year of service, or
portion of a week’s pay for each portion of a year worked, with
no service requirement.

9. A levy/grant system to ensure that all employers contrib-
ute to the cost of retraining workers and promote an employer-
based training culture.

10. Statutory paid education leave.

11. Changes in pension legislation to improve vesting rights
and ensure portability of pensions.

12. Reforming our national employment services to serve all
employers or job-seekers by operating an information system
in the form of a public employment service that registers and
publishes all vacancies and that is open to all job-seekers.

13. Mobility grants to include travel allowances, household
moving expenses, purchase guarantees for vacated homes and
special community services to help the family settle in the new
community. Geographical mobility must be seen, however, in
the context of regional development. A proactive labour
adjustment policy must therefore be accompanied by effective
regional policies.

14. Finally, employment equity—participation rate of disad-
vantaged groups by removing barriers. For example, child care

[Traduction)

'adaptation de la collectivité. Les régles régissant la création
et l'administration du fonds et concernant le droit a I'aide
seraient et pourraient étre édictées par voie de réglement.

Ce point découle en grande partie de discussions antérieures
ainsi que de sondages et d’études qui ont été effectués & propos
des collectivités disposant d’une seule industrie. Ce n’est pas
forcément un point nouveau. Il a été recommandé par I'inter-
médiaire de diverses instances.

4. En plus des audiences devant la commission de protection
des emplois, aucun licenciement ne peut étre effectué avant
que des négociations ne se déroulent entre I'employeur et le
syndicat ou, en P’absence de syndicats, un comité d’employés,
pour aborder les moyens d’éviter une perte d’emplois. Au cours
de ces consultations, I'employeur présentera tous les renseigne-
ments financiers pertinents concernant le licenciement.

5. Lorsque des licenciements sont inévitables, une entente
doit étre signée entre I’employeur et le syndicat ou le comité
d’employés pour couvrir toutes les conditions du licenciement
avant de procéder 4 ce licenciement. Le ministre du Travail
pourra édicter des réglements fixant les sommes minimales &
verser aux employés licenciés ou les indemnités de relocalisa-
tion.

6. Dans les cas ou des employés sont en gréve ou en lock-out
au moment ou I'employeur fait part de son intention de procé-
der 4 des licenciements, les négociations susmentionnées
demeureraient obligatoires avant que des mesures puissent étre
prises.

7. Nous sommes d’avis que les heures normales de travail
doivent étre réduites par le biais de la négociation collective.

x

8. Une indemnité de licenciement égale & au moins une
semaine par année de service, ou d une portion de la rémunéra-
tion hebdomadaire pour chaque portion d’une année de travail.
sans exigence en matiére de service.

9. Un systéme de prélévement/subvention pour s’assurer que
tous les employeurs contribuent au coit du recyclage des tra-
vailleurs et pour favoriser un systéme de formation basé sur
I'employeur.

10. Des congés d’étude statutaires rémunérés.

11. Des changements 4 la législation sur les pensions en vue
d’améliorer les droits acquis et de garantir la transférabilité
des pensions.

12. La réforme de nos services nationaux d’emploi afin de
desservir tous les employeurs ou tous les demandeurs d’emploi
en gérant un systéme d’information sous forme d’un service
d’emploi public qui enregistre et publie tous les postes vacants
et qui est ouvert 4 tous les demandeurs d’emploi.

13. Des subventions 4 la mobilité incluant des indemnités de
déplacement, des frais de déménagement, des garanties
d’achat des maisons quittées et des services spéciaux 4 la col-
lectivité pour aider la famille 4 s’installer dans sa nouvelle col-
lectivité. Cependant, la mobilité géographique doit étre envisa-
gée dans le contexte du développement régional. Une politique
préventive d’aide 4 ’adaptation de la main-d’ceuvre doit donc
étre accompagnée de politiques régionales efficaces.

14. Enfin, ’égalité en matiére d’emploi au niveau du taux de
participation des groupes défavorisés en éliminant les obsta-
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and parental benefits under U.l. are necessary measures to
increase the participation of women. And older workers obvi-
ously need protection against explusion from the labour mar-
ket.

That, members of the committee, is a very short overview
because what you have asked for and what you are looking at
is, in our opinion, a massive program that has to be put into
place to meet the adjustments that are going to be imposed
upon us in the very near future—in fact, right now.

We welcome the opportunity of appearing before your com-
mittee to put these view forward, but we believe that the time
for a long type of study has long passed and the Government of
Canada must act upon it.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Martin. We know that the
notice was short and we appreciate your readiness to put
together at least an initial statement of your views. I am going
to ask two questions first and then I will be relatively happy.
Then I am sure other members of the committee will have
their questions.

You mentioned a long series of rights. Am I correct in think-
ing you said that these rights now exist in the European Eco-
nomic Community under a social charter and that you are
proposing that there should be in Canada at least a compa-
rable clause or charter embodying at least these rights. Is that
correct?

Mr. Martin: It is our understanding that seven countries in
the European Community are signatories to the social charter.
We also understand that it is up for renegotiation by 1992,
when the total integration takes place, and that more countries
are expected to be at least signing it. What we are advocating,
in fact, is a similar copy of that to be instituted between
Canada and the United States under the auspices of the Free
Trade Agreement.

The Chairman: My second question is really quite different.
You mentioned that there was a need for law prohibiting com-
plete plant closures, closures of large plants, without at least
one year’s notice, and, in the case of smaller lay-offs, notice of
a somewhat shorter period.

My question is a jurisdictional question. We have been told
that the laws, whether they are statutory or regulatory, to give
effect to the Free Trade Agreement will be valid even if
adjustment of provincial law is required. Have you looked into
the question of whether the Parliament of Canada could enact
law to carry out the recommendations with regard to plant clo-
sures and lay-offs that you have mentioned? Have you looked
into that question, and is it your conclusion that since this
would be an integral part of the trade arrangement eventuat-
ing from the Free Trade Agreement it would be constitution-
ally proper for the Parliament of Canada, even if it appeared
to trench upon provincial jurisdiction?

[Traduction)

cles. Par exemple, les garderies et les prestations parentales en
vertu de I’assurance-chdmage constituent des mesures néces-
saires pour accroitre la participation des femmes. Et il est évi-
dent que les travailleurs 4gés ont besoin de protection contre
I’expulsion du marché du travail.

Voila, messieurs les membres du Comité, un trés bref apercu
de notre position car ce que vous nous avez demandé et ce que
vous attendez constitue, & notre avis, un programme énorme
qu’il faut mettre en place pour répondre aux ajustements qui
nous seront imposés dans un avenir trés rapproché et méme dés
maintenant.

Nous apprécions la possibilité qui nous est offerte de compa-
raitre devant votre comité pour présenter ces points de vue,
mais nous sommes d’avis qu'il est grand temps d’effectuer une
étude de longue haleine et que le gouvernement du Canada
doit agir en la matiére.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Martin. Nous savons que
vous n’avez pas eu un long préavis et nous apprécions votre
empressement a rédiger au moins un exposé préliminaire de
vos points de vue. Je vous poserai tout d’abord deux questions
et ensuite je serai relativement satisfait. Je suis persuadé que
d’autres membres du Comité auront également des questions 2
VOus poser.

Vous avez mentionné toute une liste de droits. Ai-je raison
de penser que vous avez déclaré que ces droits existent a
I’heure actuelle au sein de la Communauté économique euro-
péenne dans le cadre d’une charte sociale et que vous proposez
qu’il devrait y avoir au Canada au moins une clause ou charte
comparable regroupant pour le moins ces droits. Est-ce exact?

M. Martin: D’aprés ce que nous savons, sept pays de la
Communauté européenne sont signataires de la charte sociale.
Nous croyons également savoir que le tout sera renégocié en
1992, année de I'intégration globale, et qu'un nombre accru de
pays devraient tout au moins la signer. En fait, ce que nous
préconisons, c’est I'instauration d’une charte semblable entre le
Canada et les Etats-Unis en marge de I'Accord de libre-
échange.

Le président: Ma deuxiéme question est tout a fait diffé-
rente. Vous avez parlé de la nécessité d’avoir une loi interdi-
sant les fermetures complétes d’usines, les fermetures de gros-
ses usines, sans un préavis d’au moins un an et, dans le cas des
licenciements plus restreints, un préavis un peu plus court.

Ma question est une question de compétence. On nous a dit
que les lois, qu’elles soient statutaires ou réglementaires, desti-
nées & mettre en vigueur I’Accord de libre-échange seront vali-
des méme si un ajustement de législation provinciale s’avére
nécessaire. Avez-vous étudié la question de savoir si le Parle-
ment du Canada pourrait adopter une loi destinée a appliquer
des recommandations concernant les fermetures d’usines et les
licenciements que vous avez mentionnés? Avez-vous étudié
cette question et pouvez-vous en conclure que, puisqu'il s’agi-
rait d’une partie intégrante de I’entente commerciale découlant
de I’Accord de libre-échange, elle serait constitutionnelle pour
le Parlement du Canada, méme si elle semble empiéter sur la
compétence des provinces?
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Mr. Martin: The answer is no, that we have not done an
exhaustive legal study as to whether that could be done by
provinces. Obviously, it could be done under the federally
regulated industries that come under Part III and Part IV of
the Labour Code. As to whether the provinces would be
obliged to do it or could do it, I can’t give you a straight
answer on that. Basically wheat we are saying is that this is
what should take place under the Free Trade Agreement, and
since we have been able to have the cooperation of the prov-
inces in negotiating the Free Trade Agreement then surely
they should be prepared to negotiate and deal with the federal
government in bringing over the social charter, and this aspect,
within the provinces.

To answer your question, I have not got a constitutional
authority. Perhaps my colleague Kevin Hayes might be able to
expand upon that.

The Chairman: Mr. Hayes.

Mr. Kevin Hayes, National Representative, Canadian
Labour Congress: As you know, some of the labour standards
have been introduced through the back door, so to speak,
through the Unemployment Insurance Act. We brought in
maternity leave provisions under the U.I. Act long before the
provinces got around to providing that under their labour
codes. With similar imagination, 1 suppose, we could be talk-
ing about those kind of provisions being brought under the
constitutional authority the federal government has for unem-
ployment insurance. But that is not a legal view.

The Chairman: Thank you. I have two names, Senator Frith
and Senator MacEachen.

Senator Frith: Mr. Martin, I was a few moments late so you
may have answered this question in your opening remarks. The
question is this. What organizations that you know of in the
Congress, and also in the labour movement generally, are
engaged in monitoring the implementation of the agreement
and the legislation, particularly as it relates to adjustment pro-
grams?

Mr. Martin: Well, we have in the order of eighty-six
affiliated unions across the country and they are obviously
looking at their industries where they have collective agree-
ments in force and watching what those companies are doing.
However, the steel workers, for example, are not monitoring
whether the United Fruit and Commercial Workers have been
affected, but the United Fruit and Commercial Workers are
monitoring what is happening in their particular industry. It is
also, quite frankly, dependent upon the size of the union and
the research capability that they have. It would be fair to say
that virtually all of our large affiliates are monitoring within
their own jurisdiction.

Senator Frith: Are they institutionalized into one federated
group within the Congress?

[Traduction)

M. Martin: Non, nous n’avons effectué aucune étude juridi-
que exhaustive pour savoir ce que pourraient faire les provin-
ces. Il est évident que cela pourrait étre fait dans le cadre des
industries sous réglementation fédérale qui sont régies par la
Partie III et la Partie IV du Code du travail. En ce qui con-
cerne I'obligation ou la possibilité pour les provinces de le faire,
je ne puis vous donner une réponse directe. Dans le fond, ce
que nous essayons de dire, c’est que c’est ce qui devrait se pas-
ser dans le cadre de I’Accord de libre-échange et puisque nous
avons pu obtenir la collaboration des provinces lors de la négo-
ciation de I’Accord de libre-échange, elles devraient alors étre
disposées 4 négocier et a traiter avec le gouvernement fédéral
pour établir chez nous une charte sociale, et ce, 4 I'intérieur
des provinces. ;

Pour répondre a votre question, je n’ai pas de pouvoir consti-
tutionnel. Peut-étre que mon collégue Kevin Hayes pourrait
développer un peu plus la question.

Le président: Monsieur Hayes.

M. Kevin Hayes, représentant national, Congrés du travail
du Canada: Comme vous le savez, certaines des normes de tra-
vail ont été introduites par une voie détournée, pour ainsi dire,
par l'intermédiaire de la Loi sur 'assurance-chomage. Nous
avons introduit les clauses touchant les congés de maternité en
vertu de la Loi sur 'assurance-chémage bien avant que les pro-
vinces ne se proposent de les offrir en vertu de leurs codes du
travail respectifs. En faisant preuve de la méme imagination, je
suppose que nous pourrions mettre en vigueur ce type de clau-
ses en vertu du pouvoir constitutionnel que détient le gouverne-
ment fédéral pour I'assurance-chdmage. Mais il ne s’agit pas la
d’un point de vue juridique.

Le président: Merci. J'ai deux personnes qui voudraient
poser des questions, le sénateur Frith et le sénateur MacEa-
chen.

Le sénateur Frith: Monsieur Martin, je suis arrivé quelque
peu en retard si bien que vous avez peut-étre répondu a cette
question dans vos remarques d’ouverture. Ma question est la
suivante. A votre avis, quels organismes au sein du Congrés, et
également au sein du mouvement ouvrier en général, s’occu-
pent de surveiller la mise en application de I'accord et de la
législation, en particulier en ce qui a trait aux programmes
d’aide 4 I’adaptation de la main-d’ceuvre?

M. Martin: Eh bien, nous avons environ 86 syndicats affiliés
a travers le Canada. Ils s’occupent évidemment de leurs indus-
tries lorsqu’il y a des conventions collectives en vigueur et ils
surveillent ce que font ces sociétés. Toutefois, les sidérurgistes,
par exemple, ne se demandent pas si les Travailleurs unis des
fruits et du commerce ont été touchés, mais ces derniers sur-
veillent ce qui se passe dans leur secteur. Franchement, cela
dépend tellement de la taille du syndicat et de ses possibilités
de recherche. Il serait juste de dire que presque tous nos
importants syndicats affiliés surveillent ce qui se passe au sein
de leur propre secteur de compétence.

Le sénateur Frith: Sont-ils institutionnalisés dans un groupe
fédéré au sein du Congres?
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Mr. Martin: Yes. All of them are coming under the
Canadian Labour Congress.

Senator Frith: I mean on this subject.
Mr. Martin: Oh, on this subject, yes.

Senator Frith: When I came in you were listing a number of
requirements that you felt were necessary in order to make the
adjustment programs really work.

Mr. Martin: Right.

Senator Frith: Did they come from an ad hoc group or an
established group?

Mr. Martin: Yes, most of this all came from resolutions that
have been passed by Canadian Labour Congress conventions
or have been passed by the Executive Council. Virtually none
of them is ad hoc so to speak but have been taken from policies
that we have adopted at either CLC conventions or Executive
Councils, and appeared in briefs, I might say, that we have
given to different government committees dealing in particular
in CEIC or unemployment insurance matters or social pro-
grams.

Senator Frith: As you pointed out in your concluding sen-
tence or two, you feel that the time for just monitoring and
observing and noting is past and that concrete steps are
required. All the ones I was able to note down—and there were
quite a number of them—would require direct government
action in most cases by legislation rather than by the establish-
ment of monitoring boards. Am I right about that?

Mr. Martin: That is correct.

Senator Frith: I agree with you that in many cases the reme-
dies will be legislative, and it seems to me it would be a good
idea if many Canadian organizations or organisms were
engaged in keeping an eye on this process. As you may have
known, there was a suggestion made by Senator MacEachen in
the Senate that this committee or a committee of the Senate,
for example, continue with that monitoring role.

The reason I wanted to know what existed in an institutional
way within the Congress and within the labour movement, is
that we would like to think that they would help us and per-
haps we could help them. Can you give us any organization for
our records that we might look forward to in the months and
years ahead to work with?

Mr. Martin: Well, the Canadian Labour Congress, obvi-
ously, is the first one. We are in fact going to be putting a per-
son on our staff who will do nothing but monitor and do an
analysis in particular where there have been plant closures. He
will do an analysis of what has happened there. It was decided
at our last Executive Council meeting to put that person in
place and provide the best technology we can to simply moni-
tor and report and assist unions, particularly the smaller ones
that are not able to do it for themselves.

[Traduction]

M. Martin: Oui. Tous font partie du Congrés du travail du
Canada.

Le sénateur Frith: Je veux dire sur ce sujet.
M. Martin: Sur ce sujet, oui.

Le sénateur Frith: A mon arrivée, vous étiez en train d'énu-
mérer un certain nombre d’exigences qui vous semblent néces-
saires pour que les programmes d’aide 4 I’adaptation de la
main-d’ceuvre fonctionnent vraiment.

M. Martin: C’est exact.

Le sénateur Frith: Proviennent-ils d’un groupe spécial ou
d’un groupe établi?

M. Martin: Oui, la plupart de ces points sont issus de résolu-
tions qui ont été adoptées lors des congrés annuels du Congreés
du travail du Canada ou par le Conseil exécutif. Aucun point
n’est 4 proprement parler spécial, mais tous sont tirés de politi-
ques que nous avons adoptées lors du Congrés annuel du CTC
ou des réunions du Conseil exécutif et sont apparus dans des
mémoires, si je puis m’exprimer ainsi, que nous avons commu-
niqués aux différents comités gouvernementaux qui s’occupent
en particulier des questions touchant la CEIC ou I'assurance-
chdmage ou des programmes sociaux.

Le sénateur Frith: Comme vous I’avez souligné dans vos
deux derniéres phrases, vous étes d’avis que le temps de la sim-
ple surveillance, de I'observation et de la prise de notes est
révolu et que des mesures concrétes s’imposent. Toutes celles
que j'ai pu noter—et elles étaient nombreuses—exigeraient
une action directe du gouvernement dans la plupart des cas par
le biais de mesures législatives plutét que par la création de
commissions de surveillance. Ai-je raison a ce sujet?

M. Martin: C’est exact.

Le sénateur Frith: Je suis d’accord avec vous pour dire que
dans la plupart des cas les remédes seraient d’ordre législatif,
et il me semble que ce serait une bonne idée si un grand nom-
bre d’organisations ou d’organismes canadiens gardaient un
ceil sur ce processus. Comme vous le savez peut-étre, le séna-
teur MacEachen a suggéré au Sénat que notre comité ou un
comité du Sénat, par exemple, poursuive ce role de surveil-
lance.

La raison pour laquelle je voulais savoir ce qui existait d’une
fagon institutionnelle au sein du Congrés et au sein du mouve-
ment ouvrier repose sur le fait que nous aimerions nous assurer
qu’ils pourraient nous aider et peut-étre que nous pourrions les
aider. Juste pour mémoire, pourriez-vous me donner le nom
d’un organisme quelconque vers lequel nous pourrions nous
tourner au cours des mois et des années 4 venir dans I'optique
d’une collaboration?

M. Martin: Bien évidemment, le Congrés du travail du
Canada vient en premier. Nous allons en fait charger un de
nos employés de surveiller et d’analyser les éventuelles ferme-
tures d’usines. Il effectuera une analyse de la situation. Lors de
notre derniére réunion du Conseil exécutif, il a été décidé
d’engager cette personne et de lui fournir la meilleure techno-
logie possible pour surveiller, présenter des rapports et aider les
syndicats, en particulier les petits qui ne sont pas capables de
faire cela eux-mémes.
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The second group that we are part of, and continue to be
part of, is the Pro-Canada Network, and we are working virtu-
ally with all of the groups that are in there, the farming
groups, the church groups, the environmental groups. The list,
as you know, goes on quite extensively. We will continue to
work with those groups in trying to do that monitoring. And
we would be more than happy to share information with any
monitoring committee that the Senate established, or any
other government body.

Senator Frith: 1 would hope that these people would be
available to come to us again and appear, for example, if such
a committee wanted to hear from the employers, the people
who are involved in any plant closing. We could get in touch
with the Congress and expect to get the benefit of your
research on the same subject, is that correct?

Mr. Martin: Yes. If we don’t have it we will direct you to
where we know it is.

Senator Frith: Thank you.
The Chairman: Senator MacEachen.

Senator MacEachen: Mr. Chairman, I, like Senator Frith,
was a bit late and perhaps what I am about to raise has been
dealt with by Mr. Martin. I wonder if Mr. Martin could tell us
what in his view is the dimension of the adjustment problem
that will arise as the Free Trade Agreement is implemented. Is
it a big problem? Is there any number that can be associated
with those who may be displaced as a result of the Free Trade
Agreement? Is it to be more intense in certain sectors of our
economy, like manufacturing? Will it have major regional
implications in the view of the Congress.

That is what I would like to know. What is your analysis, as
far as you have been able to do it, as to how big the problem
will be and where it will hit.

Mr. Martin: I will try to give you as concise a feedback as
possible. First of all, we believe, and we have seen evidence of
it, that there are certain industries that are exceptionally vul-
nerable. Those are obviously textiles, clothing, shoes, and also,
we believe, electronics. We believe it goes a lot further than
that. When we talk about adjustment policies we are talking
about, as we sometimes call it, “the ghost at the negotiating
table”. It is going to have a direct effect upon collective bar-
gaining, and it is going to have a direct effect upon wages and
working conditions, because it is already coming out that we
have got to meet our competitors in Arkansas, Alabama and
Georgia, which are notorious in terms of having low wage
economies with no proper working conditions or legislation in
effect protecting the workers in terms of occupational health
and safety and workers’ compensation. We have a lot of prob-
lems with workers’ compensation in Canada, but compared to
the United States it looks like heaven.

Those compensation programs are already under attack in
Canada. In particular, there is the Canadian Federation of
Independent Business. The CMA have attacked our workers’

[Traduction)

Le second groupe dont nous faisons et ferons toujours partie
est le Réseau Pro-Canada; nous collaborons pratiquement avec
tous les groupes qui le composent, les groupes agricoles, les
groupes religieux, les groupes environnementaux. Comme vous
le savez, la liste est assez longue. Nous maintiendrons notre
collaboration avec ces groupes en vue d’essayer d’effectuer
cette surveillance et nous serions extrémement heureux de
communiquer nos renseignements a tout comité de surveillance
qui sera mis sur pied par le Sénat ou a tout autre organe gou-
vernemental.

Y

Le sénateur Frith: J'espére que ces gens seront disposés a
venir nous voir et & comparaitre devant nous, par exemple, si
notre comité voulait entendre le point de vue des employeurs,
des gens qui sont impliqués dans toute fermeture d’usine. Nous
pourrions entrer en contact avec le Congrés et nous attendre a
profiter de vos recherches sur le méme sujet, n’est-ce pas?

M. Martin: Oui. Si nous ne possédons pas les renseigne-
ments, nous vous aiguillerons sur la source pertinente.

Le sénateur Frith: Je vous remercie.
Le président: Sénateur MacEachen.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Monsieur le président, tout comme
le sénateur Frith, je suis arrivé quelque peu en retard et peut-
étre que M. Martin a déja abordé la question que je veux
poser. Je me demande si M. Martin pourrait nous dire quelle
est, 4 son avis, 'ampleur du probléme d’adaptation de la main-
d’ceuvre qui sera soulevé par la mise en application de 1'Accord
de libre-échange. S’agit-il d’un gros probléme? Peut-on avan-
cer un chiffre 4 propos des travailleurs qui pourraient étre
déplacés par suite de I’Accord de libre-échange? Ce probleme
sera-t-il plus grave dans certains secteurs de notre économie
comme les secteurs manufacturiers? Aura-t-il d’importantes
répercussions régionales aux yeux du Congres.

C’est ce que j’aimerais savoir. Dans la mesure ou vous avez
pu étudier cette question, quelle est votre analyse de I'ampleur
du probléme et des secteurs qui seront touchés.

M. Martin: Jessaierai de vous donner une réaction aussi
bréve que possible. Premiérement, nous croyons, et nous en
avons vu des preuves, que certains secteurs sont extrémement
vulnérables. Il y a bien siir les textiles, le vétement, la chaus-
sure et, selon nous, ’électronique. Mais nous croyons que ¢a va
beaucoup plus loin. Quand il est question de politiques d’adap-
tation, il est question de ce que nous appelons parfois «le fan-
tdome 4 la table de négociation». Il y aura un effet direct sur les
négociations collectives et un effet direct sur les salaires et les
conditions de travail, parce qu’il est déja évident que nous
devons rivaliser avec nos concurrents de I’Arkansas, de I’Ala-
bama et de la Georgie, Etats reconnus comme étant des écono-
mies 4 faibles salaires, sans conditions de travail adéquates et
sans lois protégeant les travailleurs dans les domaines de la
santé et de la sécurité au travail et de 'indemnisation des acci-
dents du travail. Nous avons beaucoup de problémes avec
I'indemnisation des accidents du travail au Canada, mais com-
parativement aux Etats-Unis, on se penserait au paradis.

Ces programmes d’indemnisation sont déja menacés au
Canada, notamment par la Fédération canadienne de 'entre-
prise indépendante. L’AMC a attaqué nos programmes
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compensation programs. That may not directly affect members
of the Senate committee but it sure affects the workers out
there, being provincial jurisdiction, but there is a lot of attack
on compensation. We believe that has to do with the harmoni-
zation, because employers do pay the premiums to the com-
pensation boards and it is clear they want to bring down those
premiums in line with what is being paid in Arkansas or
Georgia and so on.

So with the adjustment programs the people who are going
to be first affected, of course, will be the people who don’t have
jobs. If a factory closes down and moves to Boston or Atlanta
or Mobile or some place like that, that is going to hit the head-
lines but what will not hit the headlines is this continuous bar-
rage against the social programs that directly affect our mem-
bers—the U.I., workers’ compensation, and other matters we
deal with at the negotiating table.

I am thinking of wages, holidays, and terms of employment.
That is going to be affecting us there. Food processing is
another example. If you talk to the United Food and Commer-
cial workers who basically have our large food processing
industry organized in this country, they will tell you they are
under fierce attack already because of the size of industries in
the U.S. There are packing plants in Iowa, compared to pack-
ing plants here, that could put production forward in two days
to cover the Canadian market. They are under attack and a
downward pressure on their wage settlement is evident
already.

So when I say to you it is massive, we are not kidding. I
can’t put an honest answer, an honest figure, on it, but we used
an example in terms of coming before this committee that six
million Canadian workers change jobs every year. Six million!
That figure was absolutely incredible to me. Three million
workers apply for unemployment insurance benefits every
year, and this is before the Free Trade Agreement has been
put into effect. We can well imagine what the effect is going to
be with the Free Trade Agreement in place. We are talking
about six million plus, three million plus, and that is going to
affect the Canadian workforce.

When we are talking about the adjustment, we are not jpst
talking about unemployed workers and communities closing
down. We are talking about all those other aspects that are
going to have what we believe in general to be a detrimentgl
effect on the working population. We know that we are now in
competition, industry by industry, with Atlanta, Arkansas,
Texas, and so forth, and it is going to create incredible pres-
sure at the negotiating table.

Senator MacEachen: Mr. Chairman, just on that point
which Mr. Martin has made about the competition that
Canadian firms will be facing in places in the United States
like Atlanta and Arkansas and wherever, we know that we
have had to compete in the past. So competition is not new for
Canadian workers or for Canadian firms. Perhaps you could
be a bit more specific. Do you think that the implementation of

29675-3

[Traduction)

d’indemnisation des accidents du travail. Cela ne touche peut-
étre pas directement les sénateurs, vu que ces programmes sont
de compétence provinciale, mais ga touche certainement les
travailleurs, et les programmes d’indemnisation subissent des
attaques féroces. Nous croyons que c’est une question d’har-
monisation, parce que les employeurs versent les primes aux
commissions des accidents du travail, et il va de soi que les
employeurs veulent aligner ces primes sur ce qui est payé en
Arkansas, en Georgie, etc.

Par conséquent, les premiéres personnes qui seront touchées
par les programmes d’adaptation seront celles qui n’ont pas
d’emploi. Si une usine ferme ses portes et s’installe 4 Boston, a
Atlanta, 3 Mobile ou dans une ville semblable, la nouvelle fait
les manchettes, mais le barrage continu contre les programmes
sociaux qui touchent directement nos membres—I’indemnisa-
tion des accidents du travail aux Etats-Unis et d’autres ques-
tions dont nous discutons 4 la table de négociation—lui, ne fait
jamais les manchettes.

Je pense aux salaires, aux congés et aux conditions d’emploi.
Le secteur de la transformation des aliments est un autre
exemple. Si vous parlez aux membres du Syndicat internatio-
nal des travailleurs unis de I’alimentation et du commerce, ils
vous diront qu’ils subissent déja de vives attaques, en raison de
la taille des industries aux Etats-Unis. Il existe en Iowa des
usines de conditionnement dont la production de deux jours
pourrait inonder le marché canadien. Les travailleurs sont
menacés, et une pression 4 la baisse sur leurs accords salariaux
est déja évidente.

Alors quand je vous dis qu= I'effet est massif, je ne blague
pas. Je ne peux donner de chiffre exact, mais nous avons pris
un exemple avant de nous présenter devant votre comité et
nous avons constaté que, tous les ans, six millions de travail-
leurs canadiens changent d’emploi. Six millions! Ce chiffre m’a
renversé. Trois millions de travailleurs demandent des presta-
tions d’assurance-chdmage tous les ans, et ce, avant méme que
I’Accord de libre-échange n’ait pris effet. Nous pouvons bien
imaginer quel sera I'effet lorsque ’Accord de libre-échange
sera mis en ceuvre. Ce sera plus de six millions de travailleurs,
plus de trois millions de chdmeurs, ce qui aura des conséquen-
ces sur le marché du travail canadien.

Quand il est question d’adaptation, il n’est pas simplement
question des chomeurs et des villes qui meurent. Il est question
de tous les autres aspects qui auront ce que nous croyons étre
des répercussions négatives sur les travailleurs. Nous savons
que nous devons maintenant rivaliser, secteur par secteur, avec
Atlanta, I'Arkansas, le Texas, etc., et que cela créera d'énor-
mes pressions 4 la table de négociation.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Monsieur le président, 4 propos de
laffirmation de M. Martin au sujet de la concurrence &
laquelle les entreprises canadiennes devront faire face aux
Etats-Unis, 4 des endroits comme Atlanta, I'’Arkansas ou ail-
leurs, nous savons que nous avons di faire face 4 la concur-
rence par le passé. La concurrence n’est donc pas nouvelle pour
les travailleurs canadiens ni pour les entreprises canadiennes.
Vous pourriez peut-étre étre un peu plus précis. Pensez-vous
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the Free Trade Agreement will alter the quality or the nature
of that competition, or increase its force? Why?

Mr. Martin: Basically the size of markets has everything to
do with it. There are 250 million people in the United States
compared to 25 million people in Canada. Then there is the
size of the factories in existence in the United States. I used
food processing as one example. Then there are the textile
mills. People in the Amalgamated Clothing and Textile Work-
ers Union will tell you there are plants down in the Carolinas
which are so extensive that if they stepped up their production
by ten percent they would cover the Canadian market. And we
are not talking about plants that are outdated in machinery.
We are talking of the newest technology and also, I might say,
fairly skilled workers competing with our people at minimum
wages that run certainly well behind ours, in some cases by $2
and $3 an hour behind our wages. And, of course, labour laws,
environmental laws, occupational health and safety laws,
workers’ compensation laws—the list goes on—are all to their
advantage and not to the advantage of our people.

So the trade barriers come down and we are in direct com-
petition. 1 don’t think it takes anyone very smart to understand
who wins in that game. It goes to the Carolinas and Arkansas
rather than to our people. Obviously in some of our other
industries we have an advantage. I am talking about our basic
industries, mining and forestry. I hope the forests are going to
continue to be there, that is if they get on with reforestation.
Mining will still be there, but in manufacturing we see abso-
lutely no evidence at all that gives us any comparative advan-
tage.

I give you another example. I talked to the owner of a small
packing house in Manitoba. He told us to just compare the
heating costs of a packing house here as compared to one in
Texas. That is another tremendous advantage they have.

It is all these things, and tariffs gave us that protection in
those industries that were particularly vulnerable. I don’t think
you would find that some of our people would complain at all.
In some particular industries we can meet some of them head
on, but in a lot of our industries we can’t and it is just silly to
think we can.

Senator MacEachen: Just to continue that interesting point,
the sources of competition you talked about are in the main in
the southern states. What about the plants in the northern
states and the workers in the north? They have had to face
that competition. Why can’t we?

Mr. Martin: Well, they did face the competition and they
lost. It is called the Rust Bowl in the northern United States.
The industries went to Georgia from New York. You go from
here down to Niagara Falls and travel that northern United
States route and you will find it is a devastated area. Canada is
very prosperous compared to northern New York. The United
Steel Workers’ Union, of which I am a member, lost over one
million of its members in the last eight years. The basic steel
industry is in the Rust Bowl. Bethlehem Steel and the United
States Steel Corporation and all the others lost membership

[Traduction)

que la mise en ceuvre de I’Accord de libre-échange modifiera la
qualité ou la nature de la concurrence ou accroitra la concur-
rence?

M. Martin: Essentiellement, la taille des marchés est le fac-
teur le plus important. Il y a 250 millions de personnes aux
Etats-Unis, contre 25 millions au Canada. Et la taille des usi-
nes américaines existantes est un autre facteur. J’ai donné
I’exemple de la transformation des aliments. Il y a aussi les
textiles. Les Travailleurs amalgamés du vétement et du textile
vous diront qu'’il existe dans les Caroline des usines si grandes
qu’en augmentant leur production de 10 p. 100 elles pourraient
couvrir le marché canadien. Et ce ne sont pas des usines désué-
tes. Elles font appel aux techniques les plus récentes et a des
travailleurs relativement spécialisés qui rivalisent avec les
ndtres 4 des salaires minimums certainement inférieurs aux
notres, parfois jusqu'a 2 ou 3 § I’heure de moins. Et bien sir,
les lois du travail, les lois relatives a la protection de ’environ-
nement, les lois sur la santé et la sécurité au travail et les lois
sur I'indemnisation des accidents du travail—Ila liste n’en finit
plus—sont toutes 4 'avantage des Américains et non 4 I'avan-
tage de nos travailleurs.

Les barriéres commerciales disparaissent donc, et nous
entrons en concurrence directe. Il ne faut pas étre trés futé
pour comprendre qui gagne a ce jeu. Les Caroline et 'Arkan-
sas sortent vainqueurs plutét que nous. Dans certains autres
secteurs, il va de soi que nous avons un avantage. Je pense aux
secteurs de base, les mines et les foréts. J’espére que le secteur
forestier continuera d’exister si, bien sfr, il se met 4 reboiser
les foréts. Les mines resteront, mais dans le secteur manufac-
turier, nous ne voyons rien qui nous donne un avantage compa-
ratif.

Prenons un autre exemple. J'ai parlé au propriétaire d'une
petite usine de conditionnement au Manitoba, qui nous a dit de
comparer simplement les frais de chauffage d’une usine de
conditionnement chez nous et ceux d’une usine texane. Voild
un autre immense avantage pour eux.

Ce sont tous ces aspects qui entrent en jeu. Les droits de
douane protégeaient nos secteurs particuliérement vulnérables.
Certains de nos travailleurs ne se plaignent pas du tout. Dans
certains secteurs particuliers, nous pouvons faire face a la con-
currence, mais dans beaucoup d’autres nous ne le pouvons pas,
et il est stupide de penser que nous le pouvons.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Pour continuer sur cette question
intéressante, les sources de la concurrence dont vous parlez se
trouvent surtout dans les Etats du Sud. Qu’en est-il des usines
des Etats du Nord et des travailleurs du Nord? Ils ont di faire
face a cette concurrence. Pourquoi ne le pourrions-nous pas?

M. Martin: IIs ont fait face a la concurrence et ils ont perdu
la bataille. Les Etats du Nord sont appelés le «Rust Bowl». Les
usines ont quitté New York et se sont installées en Georgie.
Allez jusqu’a Niagara Falls et promenez-vous dans les Etats
du Nord et vous constaterez que la région est dévastée. Le
Canada est trés prospére par rapport au nord de I'Etat de New
York. Les Métallurgistes unis d’Amérique, dont je fais partie,
ont perdu plus d’un million de leurs membres au cours des huit
derniéres années. Le secteur de I’acier de base se trouve dans le
Rust Bowl. La Bethlehem Steel et la United Steel Corporation
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there because of the Rust Bowl. It went either to Georgia or it
went off shore. It went to Korea, to Brazil, to some European
countries, but basically to Southeast Asia and South America
in terms of basic steel. They lost. The same thing happened in
the Rust Bowl.

So there was a free trade agreement between the states in
the United States, and the northern states lost. Once again
they were up against heating costs and environmental costs.
They had better labour laws in northern U.S. They had better
occupational health and safety legislation and they lost. It
went to Georgia or it went off shore.

Senator MacEachen: Mr. Chairman, I might come back to
ask one or two other questions later.

The Chairman: Senator Bazin.

Senator Bazin: I think you stated you had refused to make
representations to Mr. de Grandpré’s commission, for reasons,
of course, that are well known and have been stated publicly.
Did you not also refuse to have a member sit on that commis-
sion from the CLC?

Mr. Martin: No, we were not asked to have a person on that
committee.

Senator Bazin: You were not asked?
Mr. Martin: No.

Senator Bazin: When the commission started, I believe in
May or June of last year, that is when requests came in for
representations to be made by the CLC; is that correct?

Mr. Martin: I believe that is correct.

Senator Bazin: Are you prepared to state today that you are
preprared to make representations to that commission?

Mr. Martin: Yes, we are prepared to, with one caveat. We
have to be assured that that commission is in fact going to
make strong recommendations in terms of adjustment. And I
guess there is another caveat I put on it. I don’t want to make
all kinds of conditions, but this is ridiculous to talk about an
adjustment policy that is not going to affect our deficit. As far
as I am concerned the committee should have nothing to do
with the deficit, and everything to do with bringing programs
and policies into place that will assist workers who are going to
be hurt in the future.

Senator Bazin: So your cooperation to examine and make
suggestions on programs to help workers is conditional, that
there be no attempt, as you stated Mr. de Grandpré stated, to
effect a deficit? Do I understand that correctly?

Mr. Martin: Yes. What I think I am basically saying is that
we want to be assured that this committee is a do-something
committee and is going to make specific recommendations
without having a lot of other caveats on itself. We are prepared
to put the time in and we are prepared to put the energy in

[Traduction)

et toutes les autres ont perdu des membres 4 cause du Rust
Bowl. Les usines sont allées s’installer en Georgie ou a I’étran-
ger. Elles sont parties en Corée, au Brésil, dans quelques pays
européens, mais essentiellement en Asie du Sud-Est et en
Ameérique du Sud. Elles ont perdu. La méme chose est arrivée
dans le Rust Bowl.

Il existait donc un accord de libre-échange entre les Etats
américains, et les Etats du Nord ont perdu. La encore, ils fai-
saient face 4 des frais de chauffage et 4 des frais de protection
de I'environnement. Ils avaient de meilleurs lois du travail. Iis
avaient de meilleurs lois sur la santé et la sécurité au travail et
ils ont perdu. Les usines sont parties en Georgie ou a ’étran-
ger.

Le sénateur MacEachen: Monsieur le président, je poserai
peut-étre une ou deux autres questions plus tard.

Le président: Sénateur Bazin.

Le sénateur Bazin: Vous avez déclaré, si je ne m’abuse,
avoir refusé de présenter vos doléances 4 la Commission de
Grandpré, pour des raisons qui sont bien sir connues et que
vous avez exposées publiquement. N’avez-vous pas également
refusé de déléguer un membre du CTC au sein de cette com-
mission?

M. Martin: Non, on ne nous a pas demandé de siéger a ce
comité.

Le sénateur Bazin: On ne vous I’a pas demandé?

M. Martin: Non.

Le sénateur Bazin: Quand la commission a entrepris ses tra-
vaux, en mai ou en juin de I'an dernier je crois, c’est 4 ce
moment-1d qu’on a demandé au CTC de présenter son point de
vue, n'est-ce pas?

M. Martin: Je crois que c’est exact.

Le sénateur Bazin: Pouvez-vous affirmer aujourd’hui que
vous étes disposés a présenter vos doléances a cette commis-
sion?

M. Martin: Oui, nous le sommes, 4 une condition. Nous
devons étre assurés que la commission présentera effective-
ment de fortes recommandations au sujet de la transition. Et
j'ajouterais une autre condition. Je ne veux pas poser toutes
sortes de conditions, mais il est ridicule de parler d’une politi-
que d’adaptation qui n’influencera pas le déficit. En ce qui me
concerne, le comité ne devrait nullement se soucier du déficit
et se soucier uniquement de mettre en place des programmes et
des politiques visant a aider les travailleurs qui seront frappés
4 I'avenir.

Le sénateur Bazin: Vous étes donc préts 4 collaborer a I'exa-
men des programmes d’aide aux travailleurs et 4 faire des sug-
gestions en ce sens & condition qu’on ne tente pas, contraire-
ment 4 ce qu'a dit M. de Grandpré selon vous, d’éviter le
déficit. Ai-je bien compris?

M. Martin: Oui. Au fond, nous voulons étre assurés que le
comité est un comité qui agit et qui présentera des recomman-
dations spécifiques sans s’imposer toutes sortes de restrictions.
Nous sommes disposés 4 y consacrer le temps et I’énergie qu'il
faut, si nous croyons que nous parlons a quelqu'un qui fera
quelque chose.
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provided that we believe we are talking to somebody who is
going to do something.

Senator Bazin: Well, if that commission has the mandate to
make recommendations to the government, it does have the
power to do that, doesn’t it?

Mr. Martin: It has the power, but Mr. de Grandpré doesn’t
seem to have grabbed the power of that committee to do some-
thing.

Senator Bazin: That is debatable. That is your interpreta-
tion of the work that he has been carrying out.

Mr. Martin: We just want to be assured that it is going to
do the necessary job.

Senator Bazin: You have presented a list of matters that
should be addressed insofar as the CLC is concerned. Have
you priced what this may represent to the government?

Mr. Martin: No, we have not.

Senator Bazin: On the question of the various elements of
those policies of a one-year notice, and so on and so forth, am I
not right in thinking that these have been long-standing
demands, as it were, from the CLC and that they are now
focused on the FTA but there is nothing “new” in terms of the
suggestions you make today? Am I correct in that understand-
ing?

Mr. Martin: Yes.

Senator Bazin: I am thinking of the one-year notice and the
participatory policies you talk about.

Mr. Martin: We made many of these recommendations
back seven and eight years ago at the height of what I call the
depression, and the only thing you will hear new in there in
particular is talk about the social charter. We think it is impor-
tant that we talk about the social charter because once again
we were told, “What have you got to fear about? The Euro-
pean Economic Community has done it and it hasn’t hurt
European workers.” We are saying, “Well, if you are going to
proceed that way, if you want to copy their economic charter,
copy their social charter too.”

Senator Bazin: Just moving on to another question. Govern-
ment statistics indicate that there are just over five million
people who change jobs per year, and that 1.2 million of these
people go through government programs as of today. If there is
a disagree- ment in terms of net gains in terms of jobs, the
Economic Council has made an investigation and has come out
with plus jobs. You have referred to certain sectors only, the
textile industry, for instance, and we know that the competi-
tion there is not in the United States but is in Asia, but that is
part of another argument. Are you able to estimate how many
more people would have to go through a program due to the
Free Trade Agreement, given the 5 million figure and the 1.2
million people who now go through the government programs?
Do you have an estimation of how much that 1.2 million figure
would be increased by?

Mr. Martin: Mr. Chairman, I can only respond by saying
that initially when this whole debate took place we were told
by internal government studies themselves that 700,000

[Traduction)

Le sénateur Bazin: Si la commission a le mandat de présen-
ter des recommandations au gouvernement, elle peut faire ce
que vous demandez, n’est-ce pas?

M. Martin: Elle en a le pouvoir, mais M. de Grandpré ne
semble pas en avoir profité pour faire quelque chose.

Le sénateur Bazin: C’est contestable. C’est votre interpréta-
tion du travail qui se fait.

M. Martin: Nous voulons seulement étre assurés que le
comité fera le travail nécessaire.

Le sénateur Bazin: Vous avez présenté une liste de questions
qu’il faudrait résoudre selon le CTC. Avez-vous déterminé le
prix des solutions pour le gouvernement?

M. Martin: Non, nous ne I’avons pas fait.

Le sénateur Bazin: A propos des divers éléments de ces poli-
tiques prévoyant un préavis d’un an, etc., n'ai-je pas raison de
penser qu'il s’agit de demandes de longue date du CTC et que
ces demandes s'appliquent maintenant & I’Accord de libre-
échange, mais qu’elles n’apportent rien de neuf, 4 en juger par
vos suggestions d’aujourd’hui. Ai-je raison de penser ainsi?

M. Martin: Oui.

Le sénateur Bazin: Je pense au préavis d’un an et aux politi-
ques participatives dont vous avez fait état.

M. Martin: Nous avons formulé bon nombre de ces recom-
mandations il y a sept ou huit ans, au pire moment de ce que
j'appelle la crise, et tout ce qui est nouveau dans ce domaine,
c’est la question de la charte sociale. Nous estimons important
de parler de la charte sociale parce qu’'une fois de plus on nous
a dit: «Qu’avez-vous 4 craindre? La Communauté économique
européenne existe et elle n'a pas nui aux travailleurs euro-
péens.» Nous répondons: «Si vous voulez procéder de cette
fagon, si vous voulez copier la charte économique de la CEE,
copiez aussi sa charte sociale.»

Le sénateur Bazin: Passons maintenant a4 une autre ques-
tion. Les statistiques du gouvernement indiquent que 5 millions
de travailleurs seulement changent d’emploi par année, dont
1,2 million s’inscrivent aux programmes publics actuels. Il y a
un écart en ce qui concerne le nombre d’emplois créés. Le Con-
seil économique a mené une enquéte et découvert que les
emplois augmenteront. Vous n’avez mentionné que certains
secteurs, les textiles, par exemple, et nous savons que, dans ce
secteur, la concurrence ne vient pas des Etats-Unis mais de
I’Asie; il s’agit 13 toutefois d’un autre argument. Pouvez-vous
estimer le nombre de personnes supplémentaires qui devraient
avoir recours 4 un programme public 4 cause de I’Accord de
libre-échange, en prenant comme point de départ les 5 millions
de travailleurs dont j’ai parlé et le 1,2 million d’inscrits aux
programmes publics? Avez-vous une estimation du nombre de
personnes qui s’ajouteraient au 1,2 million actuel?

M. Martin: Monsieur le président, je déclarerai simplement
que, au départ, quand tout ce débat a eu lieu, les études inter-
nes du gouvernement affirmaient que 700 000 travailleurs
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Canadian workers would be dislocated. That was a government
study. So I can only say, well, we will believe it, that 700,000
more workers will be affected. There could be a lot more than
that, and of course you might argue that there could be a lot
less than that. 1 am suggesting to you that the government
study said 700,000 people.

Senator van Roggen: That would be for a year or over ten
years?

Mr. Martin: Seven hundred thousand people were going to
be detrimentally directly affected by free trade over ten years.

Senator Bazin: That is on a ten-year perspective of the full
implementation.

Mr. Martin: I think it is important, Mr. Chairman, to point
out that we are not talking about a specific program with
respect to people who have been detrimentally affected by the
Free Trade Agreement. We are talking about a whole new
social program in terms of assisting people in adjustment. That
is why we concentrated in talking about proactive adjustment
policies rather than reactive adjustment policies. We don’t
have any interest in getting into an argument with anybody
whether a worker lost his job because of free trade or for any
other economic reasons. What we are talking about is that now
has come the time, and we think it is rather urgent time, to
bring in proactive adjustment policies in terms of what we
talked about, the whole issue of retraining, mobility grants,
and better posting of jobs that are available and letting people
know about those jobs—all of those things.

So we don’t think there should be legislation in place that
says that this is only for workers affected by free trade, and
other workers who are not affected by free trade are going to
be treated in a different way. We don’t think you can bring
that in. We think it is incumbent upon this committee, and
certainly the government, to bring a whole new legislation to
assist workers in terms of adjustment and be proactive.

The Chairman: Senator Fairbairn.

Senator Fairbairn: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Martin,
you began your remarks by saying you found yourself in agree-
ment with the Prime Minister when he indicated the need for a
massive program to help workers through adjustment and relo-
cation, as opposed to other comments that have been made
that would suggest that the government believes that the
present job strategy program is flexible enough to cover future
contingencies.

You mentioned some of the areas that will be affected by
the Free Trade Agreement in terms of competition. You men-
tioned textiles, clothing, electronics, food processing, and I
suppose printing and publishing is another area. Those areas
are known and in some cases are under threat, as you said, in
terms of compensation and wage settlements. Coming at it
from another angle, have you in any of those areas, through
your unions, been in discussion with companies in terms of
mutual proactive assistance programs in those areas that are
going to be targetted under the difficulties of the Free Trade
Agreement? Have you had any positive associations with—

[Traduction)

seraient frappés. Nous avons lu ce chiffre dans une étude du
gouvernement. Je ne peux donc qu'affirmer que nous croyons
ce chiffre de 700 000 travailleurs touchés. Il pourrait y en
avoir bien plus, et vous pourriez bien sir soutenir qu’il y a en
aura bien moins. Je vous dis simplement que 1'étude parlait de
700 000 personnes.

Le sénateur van Roggen: Sur une année ou sur dix ans?

M. Martin: Sept cent mille personnes subiraient directement
les contrecoups du libre-échange sur une période de dix ans.

Le sénateur Bazin: Dix ans 4 partir de la mise en ceuvre
compléte de I’accord.

M. Martin: Il me parait important, monsieur le président,
de souligner que nous ne parlons pas d’'un programme précis
s’adressant 4 ceux sur qui 1'’Accord de libre-échange a des
répercussions négatives. Nous parlons d’un tout nouveau pro-
gramme social visant a aider les travailleurs 4 s’adapter. C'est
pourquoi nous avons préconisé des politiques d’adaptation pré-
ventives plutdt que des politiques se contentant de réagir a la
situation. Nous n’avons aucun intérét & nous engager dans un
débat avec qui que ce soit pour savoir si un travailleur a perdu
son emploi & cause du libre-échange ou pour toute autre raison
économique. Nous disons que le moment est venu, et nous pen-
sons que le temps presse, de mettre en ceuvre des politiques
d’adaptation préventives dans les domaines que nous avons
évoqués, soit toute la question du recyclage, les primes a la
mobilité et 'amélioration de I'affichage des emplois disponi-
bles et de I'information transmise au travailleur au sujet de ces
emplois.

Nous ne pensons pas qu’une loi ne devrait s’appliquer qu’aux
travailleurs touchés par le libre-échange, que les autres
devraient étre traités différemment. Nous ne pensons pas qu’on
peut avoir une telle loi. Nous pensons qu’il incombe au comité,
et certainement au gouvernement, d’adopter une nouvelle loi
pour aider les travailleurs 4 s’adapter et que cette loi doit avoir
un caractére préventif.

Le président: Sénateur Fairbairn.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Merci, monsieur le président. Mon-
sieur Martin, vous avez affirmé au début de votre déclaration
que vous étiez d’accord avec le premier ministre quand il a
indiqué la nécessité d’un programme massif d’aide 4 I'adapta-
tion et 4 la réinstallation des travailleurs, par opposition a
d’autres remarques laissant entendre que le gouvernement
estime la stratégie de I'’emploi actuelle assez souple pour
répondre aux besoins futurs.

Vous avez mentionné quelques secteurs qui seront touchés
par la concurrence découlant de I’Accord de libre-échange.
Vous avez mentionné les textiles, le vétement, I’électronique, la
transformation des aliments. Je suppose que I'imprimerie et
I’édition seraient un autre secteur. Ces secteurs sont connus et,
dans certains cas, menacés, comme vous le dites, en ce qui con-
cerne I'indemnisation des accidents du travail et les accords
salariaux. En se plagant sous un autre angle, avez-vous, par
I'entremise de vos syndicats, discuté avec des entreprises de
I'un ou I'autre de ces secteurs des programmes d’aide prééven-
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Mr. Martin: Free trade? No.

Senator Fairbairn: —any of the companies in the manfuac-
turing area or anything like that? Has there been any proac-
tive—

Mr. Martin: There has been proactive adjustment but not
specifically around the issue of free trade. I will give you an
example. There have been proactive adjustments put in place
by the United Steel Workers and the steel companies, Algoma
and Stelco, through the Canadian Steel Trades Conference,
which received some substantial government assistance. That
is to assist workers and it is a proactive thing, and I think it is
a good example. We are talking proactive. It is to assist work-
ers who are going to be affected in the not too distant future by
job lay-off or downgrading of jobs. It is to try to help them in
training, to fine jobs that their capabilities will be equal to, and
to help them in mobility. At this point in time I consider it a
success. It is new. It has only been in force about a year and a
half, but the United Steel Workers are working strong on it,
and I suggest to you that the steel companies would probably
have good things to say about it too.

That is in response to what is happening in steel, not so
much in terms of what is going to happen in free trade. I can’t
give you an answer because I don’t know of any trade unions—
and I am not being facetious—that have had any positive rela-
tionship with their manufacturers. There could be. We have
tens of thousands of collective agreements, and it may not have
come to our attention. But I don’t know of any. I don’t know if
my colleagues know of any.

Senator Fairbairn: Just to follow along on that a bit in terms
of plants and factories closing down and laying off workers.
The de Grandpré commission has not reported. Apparently it
won'’t report until about June, and there seems to be an atti-
tude of almost waiting to see where the job losses are going to
come. In general terms, how much lead time, in your experi-
ence, is required to respond to large lay-offs and plant closing?
I mean you can’t just snap a program out of thin air.

Mr. Martin: 1 can tell you a personal experience. I was
engaged with the plant closing of Swift Canada in Winnipeg
which affected around six hundred to seven hundred workers,
and a year was not even adequate to try to respond to some-
thing like that. But it would certainly have been better than
what took place. Some tracking was done by people at the Uni-
versity of Manitoba as to what happened to those individuals.
It was pretty devastating what happened to them. You are
talking about an industry which had many employees who
were trained only for that particular industry. You are talking
about people who had thirty and thirty-five years of seniority,
older workers who had a lot of problems in terms of just find-
ing any employment, never mind employment equal to the
wages they were receiving.

So a year is a basic minimum, and your programs are going
to have to go into effect right now. If a company says that in
one year it is going to be closed, it stands to reason you have

[Traduction)

tifs destinés aux secteurs en difficulté & cause de I'Accord de
libre-échange? Avez-vous eu des rencontres positives avec—

M. Martin: Au sujet du libre-échange, non.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: . . . des entreprises du secteur manu-
facturier, par exemple? Des programmes préventifs—

M. Martin: Il a été question d’adaptation préventive, mais
pas spécialement 4 cause du libre-échange. Je vais vous donner
un exemple. Des programmes d’adaptation préventifs ont été
mis en place par les Métallurgistes unis et les acieries, Algoma
et Stelco, par 'entremise de la Canadian Steel Trades Confe-
rence, qui a regu une aide assez importante du gouvernement.
Ces programmes préventifs visant 4 aider les travailleurs sont
un bon exemple, & mon avis. Les mesures sont préventives.
Elles visent 4 aider les travailleurs qui seront touchés dans un
avenir assez rapproché par des mises a pied ou une dégradation
des emplois. Elles visent 4 les aider a se former, 4 trouver des
emplois 4 la mesure de leurs capacités et a les aider 4 étre
mobiles. Pour le moment, je considére qu’elles sont un succés.
Elles sont nouvelles. Elles n’existent que depuis un an et demi,
mais les Métallurgistes unis y travaillent trés fort et les aciéries
auraient probablement beaucoup de bonnes choses a4 vous
raconter a ce sujet.

C’est une réponse a4 ce qui se passe dans le domaine de
P’acier, pas tellement par rapport au libre-échange. Je ne peux
répondre 4 votre question parce que je ne connais pas de syndi-
cat—et je le dis sans plaisanter—ayant eu des relations positi-
ves avec les fabricants. Il en existe peut-étre. Il y a des dizaines
de milliers de conventions collectives, et le fait n'a peut-étre
pas été porté 4 notre attention. Mais je n’en connais pas. Je ne
sais pas si mes collégues en connaissent.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Pour continuer sur cette question
des usines qui ferment et des employés mis & pied, la Commis-
sion de Grandpré n’a pas encore présenté son rapport. Appa-
remment, elle ne le fera pas avant juin environ, et il semble que
P’attitude consiste 4 attendre pour voir ol se produiront les per-
tes d’emplois. En régle générale, d’aprés votre expérience,
quelle doit étre la durée du préavis avant des mises a pied et
des fermetures importantes? On ne peut simplement créer des
programmes dans le vide.

M. Martin: Je peux vous parler d’une expérience person-
nelle. J'étais 1a lors de la fermeture de 'usine de Swift Canada
a Winnipeg, qui a touché quelque 600 4 700 travailleurs, et un
an n’aurait vraiment pas suffi face a une telle situation. Mais
un préavis d’un an aurait été mieux que rien. L'Université du
Manitoba a cherché a savoir ce qui était advenu de ces travail-
leurs. Les effets ont été assez dévastateurs. Il s’agit d’un sec-
teur ol de nombreux employés n’étaient formés que pour un
travail dans le secteur. Voua aviez 1a des gens qui avaient 30
ou 35 ans d’ancienneté, des travailleurs 4gés ayant du mal a se
trouver un emploi, peu importe lequel, sans penser & un travail
offrant un salaire égal 4 celui qu’ils recevaient auparavant.

Un an est donc un strict minimum, et vos programmes pren-
dront effet dés maintenant. Si une entreprise déclare que son
usine fermera dans un an, il est logique qu'il faille donner aux
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got to be giving people a year to get some retraining and to
find other places, if possible. It is even more devastating if it
happens in a single industry community because the workers
are not only about to lose their jobs but their homes too and all
their life’s investment. I consider that a year is a basic mini-
mum, especially in the case of large lay-offs. You notice that
we make that differentiation between large and small employ-
ers. Obviously we consider the larger employer to have more
resources to be assisting the workers. I don’t think it is an obli-
gation of government; there is an obligation of employers to
assist in that. So we are not throwing the whole thing on gov-
ernment either. Obviously it is not by draw. It has to be by
legislation.

Senator Fairbairn: One final question, if I may. You men-
tioned two statistics that shocked you. One was the six million
workers who change jobs each year, and the three million who
through the process apply for U.I. There is another statistic
that I find shocking as well, and that is the estimated two mil-
lion people in the Canadian work force who are deemed to be
functionally illiterate.

We talk in terms, in so many of these programs, including
job strategy, of retraining. I wonder if you could comment on
that lower level, the almost under-class of workers who may be
young, middle age or older, 45 and up, like myself—

Mr. Martin: When you get up there, then “older” is further
on.

Senator Fairbairn: I am thinking of that group of Canadian
workers who may have all the seniority in the world but are
not able to be retrained, who are not capable, because of a lack
of basic skills, of taking advantage of training and retraining
programs. Could you tell the committee, from your perspec-
tive, where the onus lies or the cooperative opportunity lies in
helping these people so they will not automatically be on wel-
fare rolls or UIC?

Mr. Martin: I agree with you in that I sometimes find the
two million figure unbelievable, but it has obviously been cor-
roborated by a number of experts. We think it is really a dual
responsibility. I might even use the word “tripartite”. I think it
is a responsibility of government at all levels, not only the fed-
eral but provincial and in some cases municipal governments. I
believe it is certainly incumbent on industry and business to
pull all the stops out to assist those workers. That means giving
them on-the-job literacy training in some instances because
they do not have an option many times to have off-the-job lit-
eracy training. You will find that especially so with workers in
the lower paid categories who are trying to hold on to two jobs
in order to make ends meet. They obviously do not have any
time left for learning literacy skills. So there has to be a lot of
cooperation by employers. Organized labour also has a role to
play in it. I am happy to tell you that the Canadian Labour
Congress i